SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
December 7, 2017
8:30 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Dlréctors will be held at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, December 7, 2017,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20% Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 20" Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board Room)
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment.

- Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

Items placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved,
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for d1scussmn or explanation is received from a
Director or from a member of the audlence

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings; depending on the service requested. Please
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standlng
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), 1n the
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email

(https: //pubhc govdelivery.com/accounts/ CATRANBART/subscriber/new?topic_. 1d*CATRANBART
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later than 48 hours in advance of
the meeting.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23™ Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire
in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A.  Roll Call,
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
C. Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meetmg of November 16, 2017.% Board
requested to authorize.

B. Non-California Public Employees’ Retirement System (N on-CaiPERS)
Medical Plan Structure and Rates for Calendar Year 2018.* Board
requested to adopt.

C. Reject All Bids for Contract No. 15CQ-200, Rail Procurement * Board
requested to reject.

D. Independent Auditor’s Reports on the Basic Financial Statement and
Internal Control for the F iscal Year Ended June 30, 2017.* For
1nformat10n

3. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Titles: General Manager, General Counsel, Controller/Treasurer,
District Secretary, and Independent Police Auditor
Gov’t. Code Section: 54957
B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Agency Negotiators: ~ Directors Saltzman, Raburn, and Keller
Titles: General Manager, General Counsel, Controller/Treasurer,
District Secretary, and Independent Police Audltor

Gov’t. Code Section: 54957.6

4. PUBLIC HEARING

A. Refunding 2012B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT — 15 Minutes :
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Pubhc Comment is prov1ded at
the end of the Meeting.) ! .

* Attachment available 20of4



6. FINANCE, BOND OVERSIGHT AND ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Josefowitz, Chairperson

A. BART to Antioch Fares.* Board requested to adopt. (TWO-THIRDS
VOTE REQUIRED.)

B. BART to Antioch Parking Fees.* Board requested to adopt. (TWO-
THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED.)

C. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017, to Apply Proceeds to
- Series 2010 Bonds, Series 2012A Bonds, and Series 2012B Bonds
Board requested to authorize.

D. Metropolitan Transportation Commission Regional Means-Based Fare
' Study.* For information.

E. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) Pension
Funding Update.* For information.

7. OPERATIONS, SAFETY AND WORKFORCE ITEMS
Director Keller, Chairperson

A. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9035A, Fuel.* Board requested to
- authorize.

B. Change Orders to Contract No. 05HA-100, El Cerrito Del Norte Station
Modernization, with Clark Construction, to Increase Accessible Fare Gate
Quantity.* Board requested to authorize.

C. Change Orders to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety
Program Oakland Shops Spur Tracks, with Shimmick Construction
Company, Inc.

a. Bio-Retention Changes (C.O. No. 2.1, Part 1). *

b. (CONTINUED from November 16, 2017, Board Meeting)
Time Impacts (C.O. No. 6).*

c. Spur Track Stub (C.O: No. 18.1, Part 1). *

Board requested to authorize.

D. Change Order to Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB, with Manson
Construction Company, Inc., for Bearing Pad Field Adjustments
(C.0. No. 99.2).* Board requested to authorize.

E. (CONTINUED from November 16, 2017, Board Meeting)
BART Extension to Silicon Valley, Phase II — Single Bore Tunnel * F or
information.

F. Updates on Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD) San Francisco

Program and the San Francisco Homeless Outreach Team (HOT)
Program.* For information.

* Attachment available 3 of4



10.

11.

12.

"~ * Attachment a{failable

G. (CONTINUED from November 16, 2017, Board Meeting)
Quarterly Performance Report, First Quarter Fiscal Year 2018 - Service
Performance Review.* For information.

PLANNING AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Raburn, Chairperson
A. Proposed BART Transit Operations Facility and Lake Merntt Plaza
Redesign Project.*
1. Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaratlon
ii. Adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan. :
iii. Approve the Proposed BART Transit Operations Facility and Lake
Merritt Plaza Redesign Project.
Board requested to adopt.
B. | Power Purchase Agreements for Renewable Energy.* Board requested to
~ authorize.
C. 2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program.* Board requested to
authorize.
D. Lease of Warehouse Space at 30527 San Antonio Street, Hayward *
Board requested to authorize.
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
A. Report of Activities, including Updatés of Operational, Administrative,
and Roll Call for Introductions Items.
BOARD MATTERS

A. . Board Member Reports.
. (Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are
available through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board
members to report on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.)

B. Roll Call for Introductions. v
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

C. In Memoriam.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.)

PUBLIC COMMENT
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under their
jurisdiction and not on the agenda.)

OPEN SESSION

A. Compensation and Benefits for General Manager, General Counsel,
Controller/Treasurer, District Secretary, and Independent Police Auditor.
Board requested to authorize.

40f4



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,802nd Meeting
November 16, 2017

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held November 16, 2017, convening at
9:07 a.m. in the Board Room, 344 20" Street, Oakland, California. President Saltzman presided;
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller, Raburn, and Saltzman.

Absent: Director Simon. Directors Josefowitz and McPartland entered the
Meeting later. !

President Saltzman announced that the order of agenda items would be changed.
Director McPartland entered the Meeting.
Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were:

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of October 26, 2017 (Regular), and
- November 7, 2017 (Special).

2. Award of Contract No. 08PA-130, West Dublin/Pleasanton Station Site
Improvement Plan.

3. Award of Contract No. 15QH-220, Site Improvements at Daly City
Station.

4, Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9037A, Shoe, Paddle, Current Collector.
5. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9039, Polymer Concrete Cable Trough.

6. Award of Invitation for Bid No. 9040, Cushion, Cover Seat Back and
Bottom.

Director Dufty made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the motions,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes— 7: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Keller,
McPartland, Raburn, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent —2: Directors Josefowitz and Simon.

1. That the Minutes of the Meetings of Octéber 26, 2017 (Regular), and
November 7, 2017 (Special), be approved.

2. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 08PA-130,

Construction of BART’s West Dublin/Pleasanton Station Site
Improvement Project, to Alta Engineering Group, Inc., for the Bid Price of

-1-



DRAFT

$314,130.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager,
and subject to the District’s protest procedures and Federal Transit
Administration’s requirements related to protests.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract

No. 15QH-220, Site Improvements at Daly City Station, to Kerex
Engineering Inc., for the Bid Price of $240,000.00, pursuant to notification
to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to.the District’s protest
procedures.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid No.
9037A, for Current Collector Shoes, to Trans Tech, for an amount of
$278,216.25, including tax, pursuant to notification to be issued by the
General Manager.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid

No. 9039, for Polymer Concrete Cable Trough, to Armourcast Product
Company, Inc., for an amount of $767,745.15, pursuant to notification to
be issued by the General Manager.

That the General Manager be authorized to award Invitation for Bid

No. 9040, for the purchase of Cushion, Cover Seat and Bottom, to Sedia
Inc., for an amount of $214,627.10, pursuant to notification to be issued
by the General Manager.

(The foregoing three motions were made on the basis of analysis by the staff and
certification by the Controller/Treasurer that funds are available for this purpose.)

President Saltzman called for Public Comment. The following individuals addressed the Board.

Clarence Fischer

Aleta Dupree

Director Josefowitz entered the Meeting.

Director Keller, Chairperson of the Opera’aons Safety, and Workforce Committee, brought the
following three items before the Board.

1.

Award of Contract No. 09EK-130A, Oakland Emergency Generator
System.

Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of Hayward
Maintenance Complex Project Sandoval Way Access Road, with Clark
Construction: Acoustical Barrler at Component Repair Shop

(C.0. No. 100.1.)

Change Order to Contract No. 01RQ-110, Construction of Hayward
Maintenance Complex Project Sandoval Way Access Road, with Clark

2-



DRAFT

Construction: Sandoval Way Repalrs and Constructlon Work
(C.0O. No. 152.1).

Director McPartland made the following motions as a unit. Director Blalock seconded the
motions, which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes — 8: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent — 1: Director Simon.

1. That the General Manager be authorized to award Contract
No. 09EK-130A, for the Oakland Emergency Generator System, to DMZ
Builders, for the total bid price of $22,320,000.00, pursuant to the
notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject to
compliance with the District’s protest procedures and Federal Transit
Administration’s requirements related to protest procedures.

2. That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order
* No. 100.1, for acoustical barrier at Component Repair Shop, to Contract
No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance
Facilities, with Clark Construction, for an amount not to exceed '
$518,000.00. :

3. That the General Manager be authorized to execute Change Order
No. 152.1, for Sandoval Way repairs and construction work, to Contract
No. 01RQ-110, Hayward Maintenance Complex Project Maintenance
Facilities, with Clark Construction, for an amount not to exceed
$358,000.00.

Director Keller announced that items 6-C, Chang‘e Order to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART
Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Tracks, with Shimmick Construction Company,
Inc., for Time Impacts; and 6-D, BART Extension to Silicon Valley, Phase II - Tunneling
Options, would be continued to a future meeting.

Director Keller bfought the matter of Escalator and Canopy Program Update before the Board.
Mr. Mike Lemon, Superintendent, Power and Mechanical, and Ms. Shirley Ng, Group Manager,
Stations Engineering and Construction, presented the item.

Aleta Dupree addressed the Board..
The item was discussed.
- Hale Zukas addressed the Board.

President Saltzman announced that under the provisions of the Rules of the Board of Directors of
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, this was the time set to hold a public hearing
on proposed fares and parking fees for the new BART to Antioch Extension, that staff would
give a brief presentation on the items, and that the meeting would then be opened for comments
from the public. ‘



DRAFT

Ms. Pamela Herhold, Acting Assistant General Manager, Administration and Budgets; and
Mr. Bob Franklin, Department Manager, Customer Access, presented the item.

Aleta Dupree addressed the Board.
There being no further public comment, the Public Hearing was closed.

Director Josefowitz, Chairperson of the Finance, Bond Oversight, and Administration
Committee, brought the matters of BART to Antioch Extension Fares and BART to Antioch
Extension Parking Fees before the Board. The items were discussed.

Director Josefowitz brought the matter of Regional Clipper® Card Fare Payment System Update
before the Board. Ms. Patricia Nelson, Project Manager, Clipper® Program, and Mr. Jason '
Weinstein, Metropolitan Transportation Commission, presented the item. The item was
discussed. ‘ :

Aleta Dupree addressed the Board.

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning and Legislation Committee, brought the matter of
Negotiation and Execution of an Extension of Agreement No. 6M6083, Management Services to
Operate BART’s Bike Facilities, with BikeHub, before the Board. Mr. Steve Beroldo, Manager
of Access Programs, presented the item. President Saltzman moved that the General Manager be
authorized to enter into direct negotiations with BikeHub to execute an agreement for a two-year
extension in an amount not to exceed $900,130.00, and a third optional year not to exceed
$480,000.00 Director Dufty seconded the motion. The item was discussed. The motion carried
by electronic vote. Ayes —7: Directors Blalock, Dufty, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn,
and Saltzman. Noes — 1: Director Allen. Absent — 1: Director Simon.

Director Raburn brought the matter of Warm Springs/South Fremont Station West Access Bridge
and Plaza Project before the Board. Mr. Joe Basuino, Senior Right of Way Officer, and

Ms. Zhiming Fan, Deputy Project Manager, Warm Springs Extension Program, presented the
item. Director Blalock moved that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to
complete negotiations and execute Agreement(s) as necessary in connection with the Design,
Funding, Construction, Ownership, Operation and Maintenance of the Warm Springs/South
Fremont BART West Access Bridge and Plaza project. Director Saltzman seconded the motion,
which carried by unanimous acclamation. Ayes —8: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty,
Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, and Saltzman. Noes - 0. Absent — 1; Director Simon.

President Saltzman announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 11-A
(Conference with Legal Counsel), Item 11-B (Conference with Labor Negotiators), and

Item 11-C (Public Employee Performance Evaluation) of the Regular Meeting agenda, and that
the Board would reconvene in open session upon conclusion of the closed session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 12:19 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 12:30 p.m.

4-



DRAFT

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Dufty, Josefow1tz Keller, McPartland, Raburn,
and Saltzman.

Absent:.  Director Simon.

The Board Meeting recessed at 3:00 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 3:04 p.m.

Directors present: Directors Allen, Blalock, Josefowitz, Keller, McPartland, Raburn, and
Saltzman.

Absent:  Director Simon. Director Dufty entered the Meeting-later.

President Saltzmah announced that the Board had concluded its closed session and that there
were no announcements to be made.

President Saltzman called for the General Manager’s Report.
Director Dufty entered the Meeting.

General Manager Grace Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she
had participated in, ridership, upcoming events, and outstanding Roll Call for Introductions
items. She noted participation in the peer review panel in San Jose regarding the operations,
safety, and maintenance concerns with the two tunneling methodologies under consideration for
the Phase Il BART Silicon Valley Extension. Mr. Paul Oversier, AssistantGeneral Manager,
Operations, reported on Fleet of the Future progress.

The presentation on Qqar’terly Performance Report, First Quarter Fiscal Year 2018 - Service
Performance Review, was continued to a future meeting.

President Saltzman called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In
_ Memoriam.

Director Dufty reported he had continued his efforts to improve the environment at the 16
Street Mission Station and reported on information he had received regarding outreach to the
homeless and encouraging young people to become considerate BART riders.

Director Blalock reported he had attended a meeting regarding the state rail plan, the Alameda
County Mayors Conference, and that he would attend the San Joaquin Joint Powers Board
meeting the next day.

Director Raburn reported he had attended Dia de los Muertos at Fruitvale; Trunk or Treat at
Coliseum Station; the Fall Festival at Ascend School; the Senate Bill 1 Rally in Dublin; the
Alameda County Transportation Commission East Bay Greenway Workshop in San Leandro;

-5



DRAFT

had participated in the Network Gap survey for the Coliseum Site; had given Rebuilding BART
presentations at Bella Vista and at the Fruitvale Unity Council; had led the Urban Land Institute
transit-oriented development tour at MacArthur Station; and had attended the Capitol Corridor
Joint Powers Authority Board Meeting. '

Director Allen reported she had attended the Bay Area Council annual awards dinner and had
given a Rebuilding BART presentation to the Walnut Creek Chamber of Commetce.

President Saltzman reported she made a presentation} to the Orinda City Council regarding the
Scoop carpool program.

President Saltzman called for Public Comment. No comments were received.
The Meeting was adjourned at 3:20 p.m..

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
l: ) 29 Mev 2010y
Ad. AT .
DATE: 11/22/2017 N BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Opjginator/Prepared by: Diane Iwata Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary

D Human Resources Administration
~ " Q

Sighature/Date: ’

Non-CalPERS Medical Plan Structure and Rates for CY 2018

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board approval of a resolution approving a change to the contribution schedule
for non-California Public Employee Retirement System (“non-CalPERS”) medical plans that
are available to active members of the Board of Directors, eligible former members of the
Board, and eligible survivors of BART employees and Board members for calendar year
2018. :

DISCUSSION:

The District has two non-CalPERS medical plans, a self-insured indemnity plan under United
Health Care (“UHC”) and a fully-insured health maintenance organization plan under Kaiser
Permanente (“Kaiser”). These non-CalPERS plans are available to individuals who are not
eligible for CalPERS coverage; specifically, those survivors of employees who died prior to
contracting with CalPERS, non-registered domestic partners, and active Board members and
former Board members who are eligible for District provided benefits under State law and
District policy. The number of individuals currently in the non-PERS plans has remained
consistently low over the past few years. A total of 44 individuals participate in these plans,
thirty-seven (37) in UHC and seven (7) in Kaiser.

Due to industry restrictions, the District cannot match the District’s plan designs identically
to CalPERS. However, the District makes every effort to keep these plans as closely aligned
in plan design as possible. As UHC is self-funded, the District must establish the premium
for this plan; however, the District pays all actual expenses. The Board previously approved
matching the UHC rate to the CalPERS Bay Area PERS Choice plan, as the UHC plan is



Non-CalPERS Medical Plan Structure and Rates for CY 2018 (cont.)

close in plan design. Since the District’s Kaiser Plan is fully insured, the negotiated rate is
used for the District plan and not matched to the CalPERS Bay Area Kaiser HMO rates.

The District has also applied the medical cap formula and contribution amount used for a
non-represented employee/annuitant to participants under the non-CalPERS medical plans.

The medical cap for non-represented employees/annuitants is the more costly of the
CalPERS Bay Area Blue Shield Access+ HMO basic plan or the CalPERS Bay Area Kaiser
HMO basic plan for the applicable level of plan participation for the employee/annuitant (as
previously negotiated for collective bargaining groups in 2009), less the employee/annuitant
monthly contribution. For participants under the District plans, the medical cap was
modified to be the more costly of the CalPERS Bay Area Blue Shield Access+ HMO basic
plan or the District's non-CalPERS Kaiser HMO basic plan for the applicable level of plan
participation for the employee, less the employee/annuitant monthly contribution.  For
calendar year 2018, the non-represented employee/annuitant contribution is $143.93 per
month. Staff is recommending this same contribution amount be applied to participants
under the non-CalPERS medical plans.

FISCAL IMPACT:

For the twenty-five (25) primary participants (does not include dependents) enrolled in the
District’s non-CalPERS medical plans, the contribution increase is estimated to produce a
$12,033 savings for calendar year 2018.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the attached resolution. The Office of the General Counsel w111 approve any
agreements or modifications to agreements with plan providers as to-form.

MOTION:

To adopt the attached resolution “In the Matter of Non-CalPERS Medical Plan Structure
and Rates for CY 2018.”



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of the Resolution No.
Non-CalPERS Medical Plan
Plan Structure and Rates

For Calendar Year 2018

WHEREAS, Board Resolution 4981, adopted April 13, 2006 sets forth at length the applicable
law and history of District provided medical benefits for active members and former members
of the Board and their eligible survivors and further sets forth required premium contributions
by active members and former members, with the latter d_ependént on when the former
Director first served and his/her length of service;

WHEREAS, by Resolution 4981, adopted by the Board on April 13, 2006, the Board confirmed its
policy and practice with respect to the participation and contributions of active and former
members of the Board in District provided health plans, with the premium contribution
structure for all active directors and eligible former directors as identified there indexed to the
lowest premium contribution among the employee groups;

WHEREAS, the parties in 2009 collective bargaining agreed that the District’s contribution for
health insurance premiums for employees and retirees would be capped at an amount up to
the applicable level of plan participation (single, two-party, family) and the same Medicare
status as elected by the eligible employee or retiree for the most costly HMO Plan offered to
the employee by CalPERS, less the indexed employee contribution ($86.95 for calendar year
2011);

WHEREAS, after contracting with CalPERS for medical benefits for employees under the Public
Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA), the District has maintained two health
plans outside of CalPERS for those individuals who are eligible for District provided coverage
under collective bargaining agreements or District policy, but are not eligible under the
District’s contract with CalPERS, including members of the Board of Directors (Board), domestic
partners and some survivors of employees, retirees and former Board members;

WHEREAS, by Resolution 5116, adopted on November 19, 2009, the Board approved a
premium structure for the non-CalPERS’ plans with a cap similar to the negotiated structure for
the CalPERS’ plans that capped the District contribution for active members and those former

112862.1



members who are eligible for benefits on the same terms as employees at an amount up to the
applicable level of plan participation (single, two-party, family) for the non-CalPERS HMO, less
the indexed employee contribution;

WHEREAS, by Resolution 5151, adopted by the Board on December 2, 2010, the Board
authorized amendments to the District’s agreements for the non-CalPERS Plans with Principal
Financial Group and Kaiser to align their benefit and premium structure more closely with the
benefits and premium structure then provided under the CalPERS PERS Choice Plan and the
Kaiser HMO Plan and authorized a new rate structure effective in Calendar year 2011 applicable
to active directors and those former directors who are eligible for District provided benefits at
the capped contribution rate; |

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2012, the District replaced Principal Financial Group as its non-
CalPERS self-funded plan administrator with United Health Care (UHC);

WHEREAS, as more fully set forth in Resolution No. 4981, State law imposes restrictions on
health benefits that may be provided by the District to the cdrrent and most former members
of its governing board. For those directors who first serve after January 1, 1989, such benefits
may not exceed benefits provided to full-time current or retired employees and the terms,
conditions, or contributions applicable to any plan provided to employees must also apply to
any plan provided for members of the governing board;

WHEREAS, the Board has adopted an employer’s monthly contribution structure for the non-
represented employees for calendar year 2018 and intends to apply this same structure to
current and eligible former Board members and survivors who have non-CalPERS medical plans
and who are eligible for District provided benefits under the capped contribution structure; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that, (a) the established total premiurh for determining the
applicable employer contribution for the self-funded UHC plan for 2018 will be set at the same
level as the CalPERS PERS Choice Bay Area Plan as it has been established for 2018 and the total
premium for the insured Non- CalPERS Kaiser Plan used for determining the applicable
employer contribution for 2018 shall be established by the rates negotiated between Kaiser and
the District for that period;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, the rate structure and premium contribution for Directors and
for former Directors and survivors who are eligible for District provided health benefits under a
non-CalPERS plan at the capped employer contribution structure shall be the amount necessary
to pay the full cost of his/her enrollment, including the enroliment of his/her family members in
a health benefits plan up to a maximum of the higher of the Non-CalPERS Kaiser basic plan or
the Bay Area Blue Shield Access+ basic plan, less $143.93 employee/annuitant share each
month for the year 2018; and

112862.1



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the rate structure and premium contribution for these plans
for Calendar Year 2018 shall be as follows:

Kaiser Permanénte HMO Single 2-Party Family
Total Monthly Premium S 1,355.13 S 2,710.27 $ 3,835.03
District's Contribution S 1,211.20 S 2,566.34 S 3691.10
Participant's Contribution S 143.93 S 143.93 S 143.93
United Health Care Single 2-Party Family

Total Monthly Premium S 800.27 S 1,600.54 $ 2,080.70
District's Contribution S 656.34 S 1,456.61 S 1,936.77
Participant’s Contribution S 143,93 S 143.93 S 143.93

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, with the exception of the new premium contribution structure
applicable to active directors and those former directors who are eligible for District provided
benefits at the capped contribution rate, Resolution No. 4981 “In the Matter of Health and
Welfare Benefits for Directors” remains in full force and effect.

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District at Oakland, California this ___ day of 2018.

Signed:

President

Attest:

District Secretary

112862.1



Directors, Former Directors and Their Survivors -
Eligibility and Premium Contributions for Health Benefits—2018

Length of Service

Date First Served on Board

on Board Category 1/01/81-01/01/89 | 1/02/89-12/31/94 | 1/1/95 or Later
Employee Rate*
. . . plus $15/mo. Survivor Employee
Active Director None in Category Contribution if Rate*
enrolled ’
Survivor of Active . $15/m9. Sl%eryor Fully Self Paid
Director None in Category Contribution if Fully Self Pai
12 Years enrolled
(3 Full Terms) $0.o;3n;£f alth Employee Rate * .
Former Director Contribution plus § }S/mo. S%I’V%VOI’ Fully Self Paid
plus $15 Survivor Bene.lt Conltirldutlon
Benefit if enrolled. if enrolle
Survivor of $15/mo. Survivor $15/mo. Survivor
Former Director Contribution if Contribution if Fully Self Paid
' enrolled. enrolled
_ Employee Rate*
. . . | plus $15/mo. Survivor Employee
Active Director None in Category Benefit Contribution Rate*
if enrolled
At Least 1 Full . - $15/mo. Survivor ‘
Term - SurV1Iv)ci)rresz?cuve None in Category Contribution if Fully Self Paid
But Less Than 12 enrolled
Years . L ) .
Former Director Not E11g1b1e_ Fully Self-Paid " Fully Self Paid
Fom‘gﬁe"éor Not Eligible Fully Self-Paid | Fully Self Paid
} | Employee Rate*
. . . plus $15/mo. Survivor
Active Dlrector None in Category Benefit Contribution Employee Rate
if enrolled
Survivor of Active . $15/mo. Survivor .
Less Than 1 Term Director None in Category Benefit if enrolled Not Eligible
Former Director Not Eligible Not Eligible Not Eligible
Survivor of Not Eligible Not Eligible Not Eligible

Former Director

Note: The Employee Premium Contribution Rates for 2018 are attached.




. i:fKé'iéé'i?if"'Pé_rrh;a_h‘éﬁtéfHMO' | Single 2-Party Family
Total Monthly Premium $ 135513| % 271027 % 3,835.03
District's Cost $ 121120 $ 256634 $ 3691.10
‘Director's Cost 3 143.93| $ 143.93 | $ 143.93
United Health Care Single 2-Party Family
Total Monthly Premium ' $ 80027 $§ 1,600.54 | $§ 2,080.70
District's Cost $ 656.34| $ 145661| $ 1,936.77 |
Director's Cost $  14393| $ 143.93| $ 143.93

Note: The Employee Premium Contribution Rates for 2018 are attached.




EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENE AGER APPROVAL;; Z"l Mev ZC( rz GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
AA. ;M,
DATE: 11/27/2017 . BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes
Originator/Prepared by: Mark Letman !General Counsel Controller/Treasurer{ District Secre% ARC

Dept: Maintenance and Engineering

) T q
| . | a\!
W?[ ] 1 ]( \\‘\'L

Reject All Bids for Contract 15CQ-200 for Rail Procurement

PURPOSE:

To reject all Bids for Contract No. 15CQ-200 for Ra11 Procurement.

DISCUSSION: _
This is a five (5) year estimated quantity Contract to purchase eight hundred (800) foot
running rail and special trackwork steel components for the District’s Measure RR funded
track infrastructure replacement and capital maintenance projects. The premium head,
hardened rail and steel components are to be used in rebuilding legacy track interlockings,
upgrading BART yard rail and replacing special trackwork. Stock rail, switch point, frogs
and taper rail additionally will be supplied by the Contract.

Notices were mailed to fifteen (15) potential suppliers on August 24,2017. The Contract was
advertised on September 8, 2017, and eight (8) firms registered for the Contract documents.
Two (2) prospective Bidders attended a pre-bid conference held on September 20, 2017.
At the time Bids were opened on November 14, 2017, two (2) Bids were received. A third
Bid that was delivered to the District's post office box arrived at the District's Secretary's
Office on November 15, 2017, after the Bid opening date. In accordance with the District's
standard practice for untimely Bids, the Bid was returned to the Bidder unopened.

The Bidder whose Bid was returned filed a protest asserting that the Bid had been timely
delivered to the District's offices. Staff is unable to accurately determine the timeliness of
delivery of this Bid and thus cannot determine the lowest responsible and responsive Bid. In
the interest of time, Staff recommends the rejection of all Bids. Upon rejection, Staff intends
to promptly reissue the Contract solicitation with the Bid submittal instructions clarified.

FISCAL IMPACT:



Reject All Bids for Contract 15CQ-200 for Rail Procurement (cont.)

There is no fiscal impact resulting from the rejection of all bids.

ALTERNATIVES:
Continue with Award to the apparent Low Bidder. This may result in protests or court

challenges, which could significantly delay award of this Contract, and negatively impact the
District's rail replacement schedule.

RECOMMENDATION:
On the basis of analysis and evaluation by Staff, it is recommended that the Board adopt the

following motion.

MOTION:
The Bids for Contract No. 15CQ-200 for Rail Procurement are rejected and the General

Manager is authorized to re-advertise the solicitation.



ot GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQD S

= BQ IATEDITEMNO B AR T

: .present falrly, in all materlal respects the fin al‘.posmon of the Eni erprl,” 6. :
' ,Fldumary Fund, and ¢ are in confornnty with accountmg prmmples generally accepted 1n the o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FOR THE FISCAL (cont) : . , _

Umted States of Amenca As part.of the examrnatron, the audrtors performed areview and
evaluation of the District's internal control over ﬁnancral reportrng The results of the
evaluation are discussed in the Independent Audrtor s Report on Internal Control over

: Fman01al Reportmg o s

'f-,FIS(LAIJnMURA(rr
None a

_zxrnrﬁuznusrnxnns

] None The Dlstrrct is requlred by law to have its books and accounts audrted every year by
- oan mdependent certlﬁed pubhc accountant ' Lo S -

~Nope:



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL AGER APPROYAL: ‘ GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

/ M' /W«s—— .
DATE: 10/24/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Charlotte Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary - | BARC

Barham
Dept: Budget

. 7 !
Signature/Date: J 7 'Iy‘{’ \ .
W W[27/17 “/@/(%[ ]W [ ] | [ ]

I Status: Routed I Date Created: 10/24/2017 I

BART to Antioch Extension Fares

PURPOSE.: ‘ :
To adopt fares to be charged for trips to and from the BART to Antioch Extension stations
of Pittsburg Center Station and Antioch Station.

DISCUSSION: .

BART to Antioch is a 9.1 mile rail extension located in Contra Costa County that will run
between Pittsburg/Bay Point Station and Hillcrest Road in Antioch. There are two stations:
Pittsburg Center, which is located approximately 2.9 miles from the existing Pittsburg/Bay
Point Station, and Antioch Station, which is approximately 9.1 miles from the Pittsburg/Bay
Point Station. Ticket vending machines at those stations will only sell the regional Clipper
smart card, though riders may also enter and exit these stations using paper mag-stripe
tickets.

BART proposes to apply its existing distance-based fare structure to calculate fares for the
new service. Because the BART to Antioch Stations are stations located in Contra Costa
County, the East Bay Suburban Zone fare (equal to the 2018 minimum fare of $2.00 when
using Clipper) and applied to certain other East Bay station fares is proposed. This fare
would be charged for trips between six and 13 miles from BART to Antioch, e.g., for the
9.1 mile trip between Pittsburg/Bay Point Station and Antioch Station, the Clipper fare would
be $2.00. No new surcharges are proposed for fares to, or from, the new BART to Antioch
Stations, and all discount programs will be applied to these fares as part of the extension of
BART's distance-based fare structure.



BART to Antioch Extension Fares

The table below shows 2018 BART to Antioch sample fares using the adult Clipper card; a
fare paid for with a paper mag-stripe ticket would be an additional 50 cents. The attached
resolution includes complete fare tables for adult Clipper and mag-stripe tickets, as well

as discounted Clipper fare tables for seniors and people with disabilities, and youth age 5
through 18. When using discounted mag-stripe tickets, seniors and people with disabilities
will pay an additional 19 cents per trip (50 cents discounted by 62.5%), and youth riders will
pay an additional 25 cents per trip (50 cents discounted by 50%).

Embarcadero 12th St/Oakland San Leandro

Pittsburg/Bay Point $6.70 $4.90 $5.55
Pittsburg Center $6.85 $5.05 $5.70 .
Antioch $7.50 $5.70 $6.35

The "BART to Antioch Extension Title VI Equity Analysis and Public Participation Report"
was approved by the BART Board on October 26, 2017. As BART's distance-based fare
structure is unchanged, BART staff has determined that the proposed fares will have no
adverse effect on BART to Antioch riders. Since there is no adverse effect on riders, the
analysis found that the proposed BART to Antioch fares would not result in a disparate
impact on minority riders or a dispreportionate burden on low-income riders.

A public hearing on the proposed BART to Antioch fares was held on November 16,

2017. One member of the public spoke at the public hearing, expressing support for both
the proposed fares as an extension of BART's existing distance-based fare structure and
Clipper-only vending at BART to Antioch stations. Four fare-related e-mails

were forwarded to the Board as part of the District Secretary's customer comments
transmittals, and these e-mails supported fares that were less expensive than those proposed
for BART to Antioch stations.

FISCAL IMPACT:

In Fiscal Year 2019, the first full year of service, net fare revenue from BART to Antioch
trips is estimated to be approximately $7 to $8 million; fare revenue is projected to grow in
succeeding years as additional new riders begin to use the service.

ALTERNATIVES:

BART to Antioch fares could be calculated using a different method from application of the
existing distance-based fare structure. Application of an alternative method would not be
consistent with fares charged for trips taken in the rest of the system and would result in a
fare change. : |

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion.



BART to Antioch Extension Fares

MOTION: | '
Adopt the attached resolution, "In the Matter of Adopting Fare Rates and Charges for the
BART to Antioch Extension." Two-thirds vote required.






BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ‘
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting
Fare Rates and Charges for
the BART to Antioch Extension Resolution No.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 29038, it is the duty and
responsibility of the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District (“District”) to fix the rates and charges for rapid transit service to be furnished by
the District; and

WHEREAS, the BART to Antioch Extension (BART to Antioch) is located in Contra
Costa County and has two stations: Pittsburg Center, which is located approximately 2.9
miles from the existing Pittsburg/Bay Point Station and Antioch Station, Wthh is
approximately 6.2 miles from Pittsburg Center Station; and

WHEREAS, recommended fare rates and charges for BART service to and from
Pittsburg Center Station and Antioch Station have been calculated by applymg BART’s
existing distance-based fare structure and are consistent with fares charged for trips taken
in the rest of the system; and '

WHEREAS, the recommended fare rates and charges for BART to Antioch service are
set forth in the attached Exhibit A entitled “Fare Rates and Charges for the BART to
Antioch Extension;” and \

WHEREAS, the “BART to Antioch Extension Title VI Equity Analysis and Public
Participation Report,” approved by the BART Board on October 26, 2017, found the
proposed fares would not result in a disparate impact on minority riders or a
disproportionate burden on low-income riders; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 16, 2017 at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the Board to consider fare rates and changes for the BART to Antioch
Extension; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board hereby finds that:

(1) After careful study of staff recommendations, public comment, and due deliberations,
the Board determines, as required by Public Utilities Code Section 29038, that the
rates and charges for service are reasonable; and that insofar as practicable, these
rates and charges are calculated to result in revenue which will:

(a) Pay for the operating expensés-of the District;



(b) Provide repairs, maintenance and depreciation of works owned and operated by
the District; ‘

(c) Provide for purchases, lease, or acquisition of rolling stock, including provisions
for the interest, sinking funds, reserve funds, or other funds required for the
payment of any obligations incurred by the District for the acquisition of rolling
stock; and

(d) After making any current allocation of funds for the foregoing purposes and by-
~ the terms of any indebtedness incurred under Public Utilities Code Articles 6
(commencing with Section 29240) and 7, (commencing with Section 29250) of
Chapter 8, provide funds for any purpose the Board deems necessary and
desirable to carry out the purposes of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities
Code. '

(2) Fare rates and chargeé for the Prdj ect were discussed in the Project Environmental
Impact Report (EIR/EIS). '

(3) The rates and charges set forth in Exhibit A are for thé purposes of:
(a) Meeting operating expenses such as employee wage rates and fringe benefits;
(b) Purchasing or leasing supplies, equipmeﬁt or materials;
(c) Meeting financial reserve needs and requirements; and

(d) Obtaining funds for capital projects, necessary to maintain service within existing
service areas. ‘

The rates and charges for service set forth in Exhibit A are statutorily exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code
Section 21080(b)(8) and CEQA Guidelines, 14 Cal. Code Regs. § 15273 and that Notices
of Exemption will be filed in the affected counties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District that:

(1) The rates and charges for BART service set forth in Exhibit A are hereby adopted.

(2) The General Manager is authorized to implement the fare rates and charges as set
forth in Exhibit A for the new BART to Antioch Extension.

#H## 4



EXHIBIT A—FARE RATES AND CHARGES FOR THE BART TO ANTIOCH
EXTENSION

The fare rates and charges for BART service to or from the BART to Antioch Extension stations
of Pittsburg Center and Antioch shall be as shown in Attachments 1, 2, 3, and 4 and shall be
effective upon commencement of operation of the BART to Antioch Extension.

The fares as shown in Attachment 1 will be paid by adult riders using the regional Clipper smart
card. The fares as shown in Attachment 2 are Attachment 1 fares increased by 50 cents per trip
and will be paid by adult riders using paper magnetic-stripe tickets. The fares as shown in
Attachment 3.are Attachment 1 fares discounted by 62.5% rounded down to the nearest nickel
and are charged for riders who are seniors or people with disabilities using the appropriate
Clipper discount card. The fares as shown in Attachment 4 are Attachment 1 fares discounted by
50% rounded down to the nearest nickel and are charged for youth age 5 through 18 years using
the Youth Clipper Card.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

|l 44, Vo

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: Z q Nov ZCJI, 7

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Yes

DATE: 9/25/2017

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

Originator/Prepared by: Robert Franklin

Dept: Customer Accesg
Bot Frak>

Signature/Date:

General Counsel

Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary

(W/é’i;[ ) [

BARC

X"

y

I Status: Routed

| Date Created: 9/25/2017

- Parking Fees for the new Pittsburg Center and Antioch Stations

PURPOSE

For the BART Board of Directors to set parkmg fees for the new Eastern Contra
Costa BART extension stations at Pittsburg Center and Antioch.

DISCUSSION

The new BART to Antioch extension is scheduled to open in May 2018. The Pittsburg
Center Station will have 262 parking stalls, located on Bliss Ave near the Railroad Avenue
overcrossing at BART's existing Park-n-Ride lot. The Antioch Station will have 1,012
parking stalls. The District is proposing to charge parking fees at these parking facilities that
are consistent with the parking fees charged at 31 of the 34 stations systemwide, including
at the Pittsburg/Bay Pomt and North Concord stations, which are adjacent to the extension

stations.

The proposed parking fees at the Pittsburg Center and Antioch stations are as follows:

Daily Fee: $3
Monthly Reserved Permit: $105
Single Day Reserved Permit: $6

Airport/Long Term Reserved Permit: $7

Permit and Fee areas will be designated within the parking areas at both extension stations.




Parking Fees for e BART stations

Consistent with other BART stations with parking fees, parking fees will be required from
4:00 am to 3:00 pm, Monday through Friday. Once the parking fees are approved, future
changes to parking fees at the Pittsburg Center and Antioch stations will be governed by
BART’s parking policies previously established by the Board for BART stations on

~ February 28, 2013. ’

BART is obligated to ensure that its actions comply with federal and state law prohibiting
discrimination in its programs and activities. A review of the proposed BART to Antioch
station parking fees has determined that the proposed fees will not adversely affect minority
and/or low-income populations at these stations and therefore wﬂl not have a
disproportionate impact on those populations.

This item was presented at the November 7, 2017 Finance, Bond Oversight and
Administration Committee. This item was also presented at both a public hearing and the
BART Board meeting on November 16, 2017.

FISCAL IMPACT

After the initial ramp up period and once parking is fully utilized, parking fee revenues from
the Pittsburg Center and Antioch stations are expected to generate about $900,000 annually.
For purposes of the Station Access Fund, which earmarks a portion of parking revenue for
station access and station modernization and rehabilitation improvements, the $3 daily fee is
proposed to be used as a baseline and the parking revenue from FY18 is proposed to be
allocated to the operating budget. The BART Board may consider directing staff as a part
of the FY19 Budget process to reallocate a portion of the parking revenue from these two
stations to the Station Access Fund. Alternatively, the BART Board potentially may also
consider reallocating this revenue through a future change in parking policy. This topic will
be agendized as part of the February, 2018 Board workshop.

ALTERNATIVES '
Do not implement parking fees or implement a different parking fee or allocation schedule.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the following motion:

DRAFT MOTION
The Board hereby adopts the attached Resolution: "In the Matter of Adoptmg Parking Fees
for the BART Pittsburg Center and Antioch Stations." (Two-thirds vote required.)



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting

Parking Fees for the

BART Pittsburg Center.

and Antioch Stations Resolution No.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 29038, it is the duty and
responsibility of the Board of Directors of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District (“District”) to fix the rates and charges for rapid transit service to be furnished by
the District; and

WHEREAS, the Eastern Contra Costa BART Extension Project (“Project”) adds
approximately 10-miles of new track from the existing Pittsburg/Bay Point Station east to .
the new Pittsburg Center and Antioch BART Stations, located in the Cities of Pittsburg and
Antioch; and : :

WHEREAS, the parking fees established by this Resolution for the Pittsburg Center and
Antioch Stations are consistent with fees charged at the adjacent Pittsburg/Bay Point and
North Concord BART Stations and at the majority of BART stations in the rest of the
system; and

WHEREAS, the recommended parking fees for the Pittsburg Center and Antioch Stations
are set forth in the attached Exhibit A entitled “Parking Fees for the Pittsburg Center and
Antioch Stations”; and :

WHEREAS, to ensure compliance with federal Title VI requirements and state law
prohibiting disparate impact in its programs and activities, District staff has conducted
public participation and BART’s Office of Civil Rights has performed an analysis to
determine whether the proposed parking fees would have a disparate impact on minority
riders or place a disproportionate burden on low-income riders; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on November 16, 2017 at a regularly scheduled
meeting of the Board to consider parking fees for the Pittsburg Center and Antioch
Stations; and

WHEREAS, the District will use parking fee revenue to pay for operating expenses at the
station and in the remainder of the BART system; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board hereby makes the following findings:

(1) After careful study of staff recommendations, public comment, and due deliberations,
the Board determines, as required by Public Utilities Code Section 29038, that the
parking fees are reasonable; and that insofar as practicable, these parking fees are
calculated to result in revenue which will:



(a) Pay for the operating expenses of the District;

(b) Provide repairs, maintenance and depreciation of works owned and operated by the
District;

(c) Provide for purchases, lease, or acquisition of rolling stock, including provisions for
the interest, sinking funds, reserve funds, or other funds required for the payment of
any obligations incurred by the District for the acquisition of rolling stock; and

(d) After making any current allocation of funds for the foregoing purposes and by the
terms of any indebtedness incurred under Public Utilities Code Articles 6
-(commencing with Section 29240) and 7, (commencing with Section 29250) of
Chapter 8, provide funds for any purpose the Board deems necessary and desirable
to carry out the purposes of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code.

(2) The parking fees set forth in Exhibit A are for the purposes of:
(a) Meeting operating expenses such as employee wage rates and fringe benefits;
(b) Purchasing or leasing supplies, equipment or materials;
(c;) Meeting ﬁnancial reserve needs and requirements; and

,(d) Obtaining funds for capital projects, necessary to maintain service within existing
service areas.

(3) The parking fees for the station are statutorily exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080
(b)(8) and CEQA Guidelines, 14 Cal.CodeRegs. Section 15273 and that Notices of
Exemption will be filed in the affected counties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District that:

(1) The parking fees for the Pittsburg Center and Antioch Stations set forth in Exhibit A
are hereby adopted. '

~(2) The General Manager is authorized to implement the parking fees for the new Pittsburg
Center and Antioch Stations as set forth in Exhibit A.

(3) Following implementation of the parking fees for the new Pittsburg Center and Antioch

Stations as set forth in Exhibit A, the parking fees for said Station shall thereafter be
subject to the parking fee program adopted pursuant to Board Resolution Number 5207.

#HHH



EXHIBIT A—PARKING FEES FOR THE NEW PITTSBURG CENTER AND
ANTIOCH STATIONS

The parking fees at the Pittsburg Center and Antioch Stations shall be effective upon
commencement of operation of the Pittsburg Center and Antioch Stations and are as
follows: ’

Daily Fee Parking: $3 per day

Permit Fee Parking: _

Monthly Reserved Permit: $105 per month
Single Day Reserved Permit: $6 per day
Airport/Long-Term Permit: $7 per day







EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

ENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
¢ 29 pov 2017 Q

[t 2t

DATE: 11/28/2017

'| BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

]
Originator/Prepared by: Michaela Y Gi Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC
Morales s

i
Dept: Finance

[
' ”[7/517? ] I ]T< N @\’M[ ]

TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT'S SALES TAX
REVENUE BONDS, REFUNDING SERIES 2017

PURPOSE:

To request Board adoption of a resolution, which authorizes the issuance and sale of not to
exceed $250 million in Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017. Furthermore, to
seek Board authorization for the Controller-Treasurer to-(1) enter into a Bond Purchase
Agreement with the underwriting syndicate led by Barclays Capital Inc. to provide the
District with underwriting services in the issuance of the Bonds and (2) to implement the
preparation, execution and delivery of the necessary documents including the preliminary
Official Statement, the Official Statement, Fourth Supplemental Indenture, Bond Purchase
Agreement, Continuing Disclosure Agreement, Escrow Agreement and related agreements, if
any, in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.

DISCUSSION:

In 2017, the District intends to issue not to exceed $250 million in Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds. Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to refund outstanding bonds to achieve debt
service savings and to pay costs of issuance of the bonds.

The District continually evaluates the municipal bond market for opportunities to achieve
debt service savings. The District advertised the RFP for underwriting services to the 12
members of the District’s Underwriting Pool on November 1, 2017, and received 10
proposals on November 10, 2017. The Selection Committee performed a technical
evaluation of the proposals. The Selection Committee ranked these proposals and
recommended Barclays Capital Inc. as Senior Manager, Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC as Co-
- Senior Manager, and Fidelity Capital Markets and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC as Co-



TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT'S SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS, REFUNDING
SERIES 2017 (cont.) ,

Managers. Underwriting compensation will not exceed one-half of one percent of the
principal amount of the bonds issued.

On November 2, 2017, the U.S. House of Representatives began deliberating on tax reform
legislation that may potentially limit the District’s ability to advance refund its outstanding
debt after December 31, 2017 as well as other potential changes to the municipal bond
market. Based on the proposed legislation, the District and its advisors provided an
addendum to the RFP to expedite the proposal deadline and consequently selected
underwriters to assist the District to facilitate potential advance refundings before December
31, 2017.

The proposed resolution will authorize the Controller-Treasurer to negotiate the structure,
financing, and cost of issuance of the Bonds. In addition, the resolutions will authorize the
preparation, execution, and delivery of the necessary documents including the preliminary
Official Statement, the Official Statement, Fourth Supplemental Indenture, Bond Purchase
Agreement, Continuing Disclosure Agreement, Escrow Agreement and related agreements,
and payment to cover the costs of issuance as well as the negotiation and commitment to
bond insurance or other credit support agreements, if any, in connection with issuance of the
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The District proposes to issue Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017 in the total
principal amount of not to exceed $250 million. After setting aside approximately 1% of

the principal amount for costs of issuance, the District intends to apply the proceeds of the
Refunding Series 2017 Bonds, together with other funds of the District, to advance refund all
or a portion of the Series 2010 Bonds, the Series 2012A Bonds, and the Series 2012B
Bonds to achieve debt service savings.

All fees for the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017 shall be paid out of bond
sale proceeds, therefore, no direct costs will be paid by the District. If no bonds are issued,
no expense will be incurred. Interest and principal debt service on the bonds will be paid in
accordance with the provisions of the Fourth Supplemental Indenture from sales tax
proceeds via allocation from the District’s annual adopted operating budget.

ALTERNATIVES: \

The District may elect not to issue the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017 at
this time, which would mean no debt service savings would be available with respect to
bonds currently outstanding.

RECOMMENDATION: .
“To authorize the Controller-Treasurer to negotiate the structure, financing, and cost of



TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE DISTRICT'S SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS, REFUNDING
SERIES 2017 (cont.) '

issuance for the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017 and execute and deliver
all documents necessary for their issuance.

MOTION:

The Board adopts the attached resolution, incorporated herein as if set forth in full,
authorizing the issuance and sale of not to exceed $250 million aggregate principal amount of
Sale Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2017, and authorizing the preparation, execution
and delivery of agreements and documents in connection therewith.






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

RESOLUTION OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT TO EXCEED
$250 MILLION SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT SALES TAX
REVENUE BONDS FOR REFUNDING PURPOSES; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF A FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE PURSUANT TO
WHICH SUCH BONDS ARE TO BE ISSUED AND A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
PURSUANT TO WHICH SUCH BONDS ARE TO BE SOLD; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL
STATEMENT RELATING TO SUCH BONDS; AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE, SALE
AND SECURITY OF SUCH BONDS, INCLUDING A CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT AND AN ESCROW 'AGREEMENT; DELEGATING TO THE
CONTROLLER/TREASURER OF THE DISTRICT POWER TO DETERMINE FINAL
TERMS ' OF SUCH BONDS AND TO COMPLETE SAID DOCUMENTS; AND
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its sales tax revenue bonds (the “1990
Indenture Bonds™) under and pursuant to an Indenture, dated as of July 1, 1990, as supplemented
and amended by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August7, 1990, the Second
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 29, 1991, the Third Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of June 7, 1995, the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1997, the Fifth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 12, 1998, the Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of October 7, 1999, the Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 12, 2001, the Eighth
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 7, 2005, the Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of June 29, 2006, the Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 30, 2006 and the
Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 19, 2010 (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “1990 Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank National Association “U.S.
Bank”), successor by merger to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, which was successor to
First Trust of California, National Association, which was successor to Bank of America
National Trust and Savings Association, which was successor to Security Pacific National Bank,
as trustee (the “Prior Trustee™);

WHEREAS, the following 1990 Indenture Bonds are outsfa:nding in the following
amounts:

Original Principal Outstanding
Series Issuance Date ‘ Amount Principal Amount

2010 May 19, 2010 $129,595,000 $115,095,000

OHSUSA:767634540.4



WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its sales tax revenue bonds (the “2012
Indenture Bonds” and, together with the 1990 Indenture Bonds and other bonds issued on a
parity with the 2012 Indenture Bonds, the “Bonds”) under and pursuant to an Indenture, dated as
of September 1, 2012, as supplemented and amended by the First Supplemental Indenture, dated
as of September 1, 2012, the Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2015, and
the Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 1, 2016 (hereinafter collectlvely referred
to as the “2012 Indenture”), between the District and U.S. Bank; as trustee (the “Trustee”);

WHEREAS, the following 2012 Indenture Bonds are outstanding in the followmg
amounts:

Original Principal Outstanding

Series Issuance Date - Amount Principal Amount
2012A October 4, 2012 $130,475,000 $117,060,000
2012B . October 4, 2012 111,085,000 99,635,000
2015A October 8, 2015 186,640,000 155,655,000
2016A August 3, 2016 83,800,000 - 83,800,000

WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, 2012 Series B (Federally Taxable) (the “2012B. Bonds™) were issued as taxable bonds to
finance the Oakland Airport Connector and such bonds may be refunded on a tax-exempt basis if
certain requirements are met by the District, including that the issuance of refunding bonds to
refund such 2012B Bonds (such refunding bonds referred to herein as the “2012B Refunding
Bonds™) is approved in accordance with Section 147(f) of the Code if necessary in the
determination of bond counsel;

WHEREAS, this Board is the elected legislative body of the District and is the applicable
elected representative required to approve the 2012B Refunding Bonds for purposes of Section
147(f) of the Code;

WHEREAS, a notice of public hearing with respect to the 2012B Refunding Bonds to be
issued by the District was published not less than fourteen (14) days ptior to said public hearing,
in a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of the District;

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held pursuant to such notice before this Board on the
date hereof, and an opportunity was provided for interested persons to present arguments for and
against the issuance of the 2012B Refunding Bonds to refinance the projects described in the
notice of public hearing;

WHEREAS, some or all of the 2012B Refunding Bonds to be issued may constitute
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of the Code, and in such case, the District intends

that such obligations constitute qualified exempt facility bonds within the meaning of Sections
141 and 142 of the Code;

OHSUSA:767634540.4



WHEREAS, the District desires to issue its San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, including the 2012B Refunding Bonds, in one or more Series
(the “Refunding Bonds”) to provide funds to refund a portion of the outstanding Bonds, as shall
be determined appropriate by the Controller/Treasurer of the District (the “Controller/Treasurer”)
in order to achieve debt service savings and/or to restructure existing debt service and discharge
the 1990 Indenture;

WHEREAS, the District desires to issue the Refunding Bonds, payable on a parity with
the Bonds pursuant to the 2012 Indenture, as it may be amended and supplemented pursuant to
its terms, including as amended and supplemented by a Fourth Supplemental Indenture thereto
(collectively, as so supplemented and amended, the “Indenture”), which is proposed to be
entered by the District and the Trustee;

WHEREAS, Sperry Caprtal Inc. serves as municipal advisor (the “Municipal Advisor™)
to the District and will serve in such capacrty in connection with the Refunding Bonds authorized
hereby; :

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and presented to this meeting a proposed form of
Fourth Supplemental Indenture (such Fourth Supplemental Indenture, in the form presented to
this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as are made pursuant to this
Resolution, being hereinafter referred to as the “Fourth Supplemental Indenture”);

WHEREAS, this Board deems it necessary and desirable to sell the Refunding Bonds by
negotiated sale to the underwriters designated by the Controller/Treasurer from the District’s
Underwriters Pool in order to provide flexibility in the timing of the sale of the Refunding Bonds
and to achieve a more desirable debt structure and an overall lower cost of borrowing;

WHEREAS, Barclays Capital Inc., actrng on behalf of itself and as representative of
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC, Fidelity Caprtal Markets and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Underwrrters”) has submitted a proposed contract to
purchase the Refunding Bonds (such purchase contract in the form presented to this meeting,
with such changes, insertions and omissions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being
_ hereinafter referred to as the “Bond Purchase Agreement”);

WHEREAS, there has been prepared and submitted to this meeting a proposed form of
Official Statement in preliminary form (the “Preliminary Official Statement”) to be used in
connection with the offering and sale of the Refunding Bonds;

WHEREAS, in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 15(c)2-12(b)(5), there has been prepared and submitted to this
meeting a proposed form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement (such Contrnulng Disclosure
Agreement, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, omissions and insertions as
are made pursuant to this Resolution, being hereinafter referred to as the “Continuing Disclosure
Agreement”), which is proposed to be entered into by the District and U.S. Bank, as trustee and
dissemination agent;

WHEREAS, the District hereby determines that the projects financed by the outstanding
Bonds and the use of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds to refinance such projects will assist

3
. OHSUSA:767634540.4



BART in providing mass transit services which services are electrically powered and thus reduce
the amount of carbon dioxide that would otherwise be released if BART riders used automobiles
and as such the Refunding Bonds should be considered “Green Bonds” under publicly
considered Green Bond Principles;

WHEREAS, in order to provide for the refunding of a portion of the outstanding Bonds,
there has been prepared and submitted to this meeting a proposed form of Escrow Agreement
(such Escrow Agreement, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, omissions
and insertions as are made pursuant to this Resolution, being hereinafter referred to as the
“Escrow Agreement”), which is proposed to be entered into by the District and the escrow bank
to be designated therein,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District as follows:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and the issuance by the District
of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series
2017 payable on a parity with the Bonds, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $250
million and being sufficient to: (i) refund such portion of the outstanding Bonds as shall be
determined appropriate by the Controller/Treasurer in order to achieve debt service savings, use
excess proceeds, and to restructure existing debt service and discharge the 1990 Indenture; and
- (i1) pay costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, on the terms and conditions set forth in, and
subject to the limitations specified in, the Fourth Supplemental Indenture, as finally executed and
delivered, is hereby approved. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to
determine the principal amount, series designations, interest rate or rates, and other terms of the
Refunding Bonds to be issued, including determining whether such Refunding Bonds shall be
issued as taxable or tax-exempt bonds (subject to the aforesaid limitations and the limitations
hereinafter specified) and to specify said terms in the Fourth Supplemental Indenture.

Section 2. The Fourth Supplemental Indenture in the form presented to this meeting
is hereby approved. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and
deliver the Fourth Supplemental Indenture in substantially the form presented to this meeting
with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by such officer, said execution
being conclusive evidence of such approval; and the District Secretary is hereby authorized to
attest to such signature. The proceeds of the Refunding Bonds (after payment of the costs of
issuance thereof) will be applied to provide funds for the purposes hereinabove described. The
maximum term of the Refunding Bonds shall not exceed the maturity date of the Bonds being
refunded. The maximum rate of interest to be payable on the Refunding Bonds shall not exceed
five and one half percent (5.50%) per annum. The combined true interest cost for the Refunding
Bonds shall not exceed four and one half percent (4.50%). Optional redemption of the
Refunding Bonds shall be provided for at not later than July 1, 2028; provided, however, that the
Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized to cause all or any portion of the Refunding Bonds to.
be issued as noncallable bonds. The net present value of the debt service savings with respect to
the Refunding Bonds shall be at least five percent (5.00%) of the aggregate principal amount of
the Bonds being refunded. The interest payment dates, denominations, forms, manner of
execution, terms of redemption and other terms of the Refunding Bonds shall be as provided in
the Fourth Supplemental Indenture as finally executed.

4

OHSUSA:767634540.4



Section 3. The sale of the Refunding Bonds to the Underwriters on the terms and
conditions contained in the Bond Purchase Agreement is hereby approved and authorized. The
Bond Purchase Agreement in the form presented to this meeting is hereby approved. The
Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase
Agreement in substantially the form presented to this meeting with such changes, insertions and
omissions as may be approved by such officer, said execution being conclusive evidence of such
approval. The maximum underwriting discount on the sale of the Refunding Bonds (exclusive of
original issue discount) shall not be greater than one half percent (0.50%) of the principal amount
of the Refunding Bonds. The proceeds shall be applied simultaneously with the delivery of the
Refunding Bonds to the costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds and the defeasance of the
portion of the Bonds being refunded, as required by the terms of the Indenture and Escrow
Agreement as finally executed. The costs of issuance of the Refunding Bonds, excluding the
underwriting discount, shall not be greater than one percent (1.00%) of the principal amount of
the Refunding Bonds.

Section 4. The Preliminary Official Statement in the form presented to this meeting
is hereby approved and the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, in connection with
the offering and sale of the Refunding Bonds, with such changes, omissions and insertions as
shall be approved by the Controller/Treasurer, including appropriate disclosure on the Green
Bond status of the Refunding Bonds, is hereby authorized and approved.  The
Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized to review the Preliminary Official Statement and to
certify on behalf of the District that the Preliminary Official Statement is “deemed final” as of its
- date, except for certain terms and pricing information permitted to be omitted therefrom pursuant
to Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12. The Controllet/Treasurer is authorized
to deliver such certification to the Underwriters. ’

The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare a final version of
the Official Statement (such final version of the Official Statement, in the form of - the
Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, insertions and omissions as shall be approved
by the Controller/Treasurer, being hereinafter referred to as the “Official Statement”) and to
execute the Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto, in the name of and on
behalf*of the District, and cause the Official Statement and any such amendment or supplement
to be delivered to the Underwriters and distributed in connection with the offering and sale of the
Refunding Bonds.

Section 5. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement in the form presented to this
meeting is hereby approved. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to
execute and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Agreemerit in substantially the form presented to
this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by such officer,
said execution being conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 6. The Escrow Agreement in the form presented to this meeting is hereby
approved. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver one
or more escrow agreements in substantially the form presented to this meeting, with such
changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by such officer, said execution being
conclusive evidence of such approval.

OHSUSA:767634540.4



Section 7. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized and directed to take such
actions as are necessary in connection with the investment of funds deposited in the escrow
funds established pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, including seeking bids for escrow
securities and, if applicable, U.S. Bank, in its capacity as trustee or escrow agent, the
Underwriters, or the Municipal Advisor, is hereby authorized and directed to file such
applications and other documents on behalf of the District as may be required to order and obtain
U.S. Treasury Obligations ~ State and Local Government Series or other government securities
to be purchased with proceeds of the Refunding Bonds and deposited in the escrow funds.

Section 8. The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized to enter into or to instruct
the Trustee to enter into one or more investment agreements, float contracts, swaps or other
hedging products (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Investment Agreement™) providing
for the investment of moneys in any of the funds and accounts created under the Indenture or the
Escrow Agreement, on such terms as the Controller/Treasurer shall deem appropriate. Pursuant
to Section 5922 of the California Government Code, the Board of Directors of the District hereby
finds and determines that the Investment Agreement will reduce the amount and duration of
interest rate risk with respect to amounts invested pursuant to the Investment Agreement and is
designed to reduce the amount or duration of payment, rate, spread or similar risk or result in a
lower cost of borrowing when used in combination with the Bonds or enhance the relationship
between risk and return with respect to investments. :

Section 9. Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP is hereby appointed as bond and
disclosure counsel in connection with the issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds and fees of
such counsel are to be paid from the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds and contingent upon the
issuance of the Refunding Bonds.

Section 10.  The Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized to. solicit proposals from
third parties providing Green Bond certifications and, if the Controller/Treasurer determines that
it is in the best interest of the District to arrange for such certifications for the Refunding Bonds
or a portion thereof, the Controller/Treasurer is hereby authorized to execute and deliver all
documents necessary in connection therewith.

_ Section 11.  The Controller/Treasurer, the District Secretary and any other proper
officer of the District, acting singly, is, and each of them hereby is, authorized and directed to
execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments and to do and cause to be done any
and all acts and things necessary or proper to carry out the transactions contemplated by the 1990
Indenture, the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement, the
Official Statement, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and by this
Resolution, including without limitation, the delivery of tax certifications, the delivery of any
documents necessary in connection with the refunding of the Bonds, the discharge of the 1990
Indenture, the delivery of any documents relating to the investment of bond proceeds and the
making of any determinations or submission of any documents or reports which are required by
any governmental entity in connection with the issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds. The
Controller/Treasurer and such officials of the District as the Controller/Treasurer designates are
hereby authorized to undertake such travel and incur such expenses, upon consultation with the
- District’s Municipal Advisor, as is considered advisable to secure appropriate credit ratings
and/or credit enhancement for the Refunding Bonds or assist in the marketing of the Refunding

. 6
OHSUSA:767634540.4



Bonds, which authorization shall constitute prior approval under Section 5-3.2(b) of the Rules of
the Board of Directors of the District.

Section 12.  All actions heretofore taken by the officers, representatives or agents of
the District in connection with the issuance and sale of the Refundmg Bonds are hereby ratified,
confirmed and approved

This Resolutlon shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted:

Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary

OHSUSA:767634540.4



'SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: - Board of Directors , DATE: December 1, 2017
FROM: General Manager
RE: Regional Means-Based Fares Informational Item

Attached is a presentation describing work done by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission
and the region’s transit operators regarding offering a regional means-based fare discount, which
will be presented as an informational item to the Board at the December 7, 2017 meeting.

If 'you have any questions about the document, please contact Pamela Herhold Actmg Assistant
General Manager, Administration and Budget, at 510-464-6168.

/ ’7 Joec GWW\/

Grace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
MEMORANDUM

TO: BART Board of Directors DATE November 29, 2017
FROM: General Manager
RE: Pension Funding Update

At the December 7" Board Mary Beth Redding, Vice President of Bartel Associates, the District’s
actuarial consultant will provide an update on pension funding. Attached is a copy of her presentation.

If you have any questions about the document, please contact Michael Jones, Assistant General

Manager, Human Resources, at 510-464-6231.
%f% 4. /EZ%,

, %Grace Crunican

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



EBART
9@

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

T De 22
Wt o 2. "7 51

DATE: 11/27/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes

Ongmator/Prepared by: Mark Letman | G::‘%Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secreta:’y/<

7
Dent:gly enance anr Engineering
{

v | B
Signature/Date: \\: -a 30“?
\ Ve " S Al [ ] W

| ) T |

[

Award of IFB No. 9035A, Gasoline, Renewable Diesel Fuel, Red Dyed #2 Diesel
Fuel and Dies¢l Exhaust Fluid

PURPOSE:
To request Board authorization for the General Manager to award Invitation For Bid (IFB)

No. 9035A, to Golden Gate Petroleum of Martinez, CA, for the purchase of Gasoline,
Renewable Diesel Fuel, Red Dyed #2 Diesel Fuel and Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF), for the
District’s non-revenue vehicle fleet and the eBART diesel multiple unit system.

DISCUSSION:

Gasoline and diesel fuel power the District’s non-revenue vehicle fleet and other engine
driven equipment. This Contract is to supply fuel for core BART shops and the e BART
system. BART core shops will purchase Regular Unleaded 10% Ethanol gasoline and a
cutting edge, low carbon, 100% sustainable biofuel known as Renewable Diesel Fuel
(RD100) that is chemically identical to petroleum diesel, yet petroleum free. Using
Renewable Diesel Fuel use will significantly lower the District’s carbon footprint. e BART is
contracting for ultra-low sulfur Red Dyed Diesel Fuel, identical to clear diesel except in
color. Designed for off road use, Red Dyed Diesel Fuel is exempt from state and federal fuel
taxes and its use will yield substantial fuel cost savings to ebart. eBART is also contracting
for diesel exhaust fluid (DEF), an aqueous urea solution which helps reduce carbon
emissions by converting nitrogen oxide into harmless nitrogen gas and water vapor in the
selective catalytic reductions process.

This is a five (5) year estimated quantity Contract. During the term of the Contract, The
District is required to purchase from the Supplier the minimum amount of fifty (50) percent
of the total dollar value of the Contract. Upon Board approval, the General Manager will
have the authority. to purchase up to one hundred fifty (150) percent of the total dollar value



Award of IFB No. 9035A, Gasoline, Renewable Diesel Fuel, Red Dyed #2 Diesel Fuel and Diesel Exhaust (cont.)

of the Contract, subject to available funding.

A notice requesting bids was published and uploaded to the BART Vendor Portal on
October 31,2017, and correspondénce was sent to five (5) prospective bidders inviting them
to view the solicitation on the Vendor Portal. Bids were opened on November 14, 2017, and
three (3) bids were received.

Totals Including Projected Fuel and Sales Tax ‘
Bidder Core BART eBART Grand
Shops System Total
Golden Gate Petroleum, Martinez, CA $5,060,398 $5,458,821 $10,519,219
Valley Oil Company, Mountain View, CA  $5,084,358 $5,696,856  $10,781,214
Southern Counties Oil Co, Orange, CA  $5,228,990 $5,573,096  $10,802,086

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $ 10,207,200, including all applicable tax.

The invoice delivery price for fuel will be the appropriate Oil Price Index Service net average
price for northern California in effect on the date of delivery, plus the per gallon price
adjustment for delivery and administrative cost as offered by the low bidder, including all
applicable tax.

Staff has determined that Golden Gate Petroleum, Martinez, CA, submitted a responsive bid
and that the Bid pricing is fair and reasonable based on market surveys, bid competition and
prior purchases.

The District’s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to
Invitations for Bid. Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business
Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Auvailability Percentages for this
IFB.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Core BART Shops: Oakland, Hayward, Concord, Richmond, Daly City

Funding of $421,700 for the core BART portion of the contract price ($5,060,398) (PR
14549) for the award of IFB No. 9035A will be provided by the FY18 operating budget for
Non-Revenue Vehicle Maintenance, Cost Center 0802871, accounts 680-061 and 680-060. ‘
The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that finds are currently available to meet this
obligation. Funding for subsequent fiscal years, FY19 — FY23 will be requested in future
operating budget cycles.



Award of IFB No. 9035A, Gasoline, Renewable Diesel Fuel, Red Dyed #2 Diesel Fuel and Diesel Exhaust (cont.)

FY18 $ 421,700 (2/1/18 to 6/30/18)
FY19 $1,012,080

FY20 $1,012,080

FY21 $1,012,080

FY22 $1,012,080

FY23 § 590,378 (7/1/22t0 2/1/23)
The eBART Diesel Multiple Unit System

Funding of $454,902 for the eBART FY'18 portion will come from the project budget for

- FMS #0450000 — eBART Pre-Revenue. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer certifies that
funds are currently available to meet this obligation. Funding for subsequent fiscal years,
FY19 — FY23 will be requested in future operating budget cycles.

FY18 § 454,902 (2/1/18 to 6/30/18)
FY19  $1,091,764
FY20  $1,091,764
FY21 . $1,091,764
FY22  $1,091,764
FY23 $ 636,863 (7/1/22 t0 2/1/23)

The following table depicts funding assigned to project 04S0000 - eBART Pre-Revenue
and is included in totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed
to meet this request will be expended from a combination of these sources. As of November
21,2017, $15,730,745 is available for this project from the following sources:

8530 FY 2016 Operat p 233,
8531 | FY 2017 Operating Allocation to Capital | BART | 3,896,616
8532 FY 2018 Operating Allocation to Capital | BART | 9,601,113

BART has expended $6,866,801, committed $486,319, and reserved $165,347 to-date for



Award of IFB No. 9035A, Gasoline, Renewable Diesel Fuel, Red Dyed #2 Diesel Fuel and Diesel Exhaust (cont.)

other action. This action will commit $454,902 leaving an available fund balance of
$7,757,377 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

Reject the Bid and re-advertise the Contract. This, however, is not likely to result in
increased competition or lower prices and the ready availability of fuel is essential to the
operation of District automotive and other engine driven equipment. Purchasing fuel as
required from retail outlets would result in higher cost and reduced environmental benefit.

RECOMMENDATION:
On the basis of analysis by Staff and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds
- are available for this purpose, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion.

MOTION:
The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation For Bid No. 9035A, an estimated

‘quantity contract for Gasoline, Renewable Diesel Fuel, Red Dyed Diesel Fuel and Diesel
Exhaust Fluid, to Golden Gate Petroleum of Martinez, CA for the Bid price of $10,519,219
including all applicable taxes, and pursuant to notification to be issued by the General
Manager, subject to compliance with the District’s Protest Procedures.



S

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: . zq M /)] ,7 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
j i Forward and approve to the Board of Directors

| pATE: 102512017 . N | BoaRD MNITIATED TTEM:NG

OriéinatOr/Prepnred by: Shirley Ng | Genegal C nsel
Dept: Extensions \ | . 1
.J P "

fig"afnre'”?‘°’- &% ifzfq) “/G/H —+

Execute Change Orders to Increase Accessnble Fare Gate Quantlty, to Contract No.
05HA-100, El Cerrito Del N orte Statlon Modernlzatlon Project

Contfbller/T reasﬁ’fer' District Secietary >

SEE1 I [1

\\\"[6\1

PURPOSE To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute up to three -
-Change Orders in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 to increase the accessible fare gate -
uantlty on Contract No. 05HA-100, El Cemto Del Norte Statlon Modermzatlon Pro; ect.

' DISCUSSION

In February 2017, the Board authorized the award of Contract No 05HA-100 with.a value of

" $23.2M. - The Contract also included an option for procurmg new AFC equipment for other
stations pendmg funding avallablhty That option was executed. Addlthl’lal accessible fare
gates are a priority for two primary reasons: (1) access1ble fare gates improve customer
access fora wide range of users and provision of additional accessible fare gates isa
recommended measure supported by both the BART Access1b111ty Task Force and Bicycle

' Advisory Task Force per a 2015 joint letter to the BART Board; and (2) installation of
accessible fare gates in strategic locations will support station: hardemng efforts to reduce
fare evasion. Staff'would like to leverage manufacturing costs of the accessible fare gates by
increasing the quantity to support the station access program and other District needs. If the
‘items are procured through a separate contract, the equipment cost may increase due to re-
engineering of obsolete parts, inflation, and the eqmpment may delay a pro; jectas thisisa
long lead time item.,

Staﬁ‘ anticipates issuing the first Change Order in December for nine AFGs for six stations
to meet current project needs. 1t is anticipated that the remaining Change Orders will be
executed in the spring or summer of 2018. Staff is evaluating the quantity of accessible fare
gates needed to support future projects; and, as a result, Change Order authority is
requested.



COs to Increase AFG Quantity to 05HA-~100

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
-require Board approval.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve these Change Orders as to form prior to
execution. The Procurement Department will review these Change Orders for comphance
- with procurement guidelines prior to execution.

. FISCAL IMPACT:

The total not to exceed amount of $2,000,000 for Change Orders to Contract No. 05HA-
100 is included in total project budget for FMS # 05HA001 — El Cerrito Del Norte Gateway.
The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this
‘obligation. The followmg table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is
included in totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet
this request will be expended from a combmatlon of these sources as hsted

- As of November 13 2017, $39, 705 512 is available for this pro;ect from the followmg
~ sources:

535/ FY10 1Prop 1B-PTMISEA | State 10,000,000
535B__ | FY14-15 Prop IB-PIMISEA |Swmte | © 11,549,407
[663Y | CCTA MeasureJ - Res 17-46-G_| Local | 2,400,000
6646 | CCTA Measure J - Res 13-09-P | Local 125,000
16649 | CCTA Measure J - Res 16-17-9 | Local | 11,503,000
8526 - | FY2014 Operating Cap Alloc =~ | BART . 328,105
8528 | Stations & Access form Pkg Rev | BART 1,500,000 |
802A 2017 Measure RR GOB 'BART 2,300,000
ol ~oosase ne e I

BART has expended $7,026,271, committed $23,256,541 and reserved $0 to date for other
action. This action will commit $2,000,000 leaving an available fund balance of $7,422,700
in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of these Change Orders. This will requ:lre
the items to be procured in a future contract that could result in higher costs per unit and -



COs to Increase AFG Quantity to 05HA-100

may delay impacted projects requiting the equipment.

RECOMMENDATION: :
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION:
The General Manager is authorized to execute up to three Change Orders in an amount not

to exceed $2,000,000 to increase the accessible fare gate quantity on Contract No. 05HA-
100, El Cerrito De] Norte Station Modernization Project.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
ATTACHMENT #1
CONTRACT NO. 05HA-100
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND

Name of Contractor:  Clark Construction.
Contract No./NTP: 05HA-100/ May 15, 2017
Contract Description:  El Cerrito def Norte Station Modernization Project

Percent Complete as of: 11/15/2017 - 3.00%

Dollars Percent Complete as of: 11/15/2017 - 12%

COST % of Award Cost Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount ‘ $23,200,000.00
Change Orders: .03% $6,000.00
Board Authorized Options:
#1: $954,000.00
#2: . $4,131,000.00
#3: . $566,000.00
These Change Orders: 8% $2,000,000.00
Subtotal of all Change Order 8.03% $2,006,000.00
Revised Contract Amount; ' : $30,857,000.00
SCHEDULE
Original Contract Duration: 740 Days
Time Extension to Date: 0 Days
Time Extension Due to Approved COs: "~ 0Days
Revised Contract Duration: : N/A

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER

Staff would like to leverage manufacturing costs of the accessible fare gates by increasing the quantity to support

the station access program and other District need.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
’ Z R Nev ZC‘"‘? Approve and Forward to the Board
bt . Do

DATE: 11/14/2017 X BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Controller/Treasurer{ District Secretary B

-~
4
(el
i

Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track,
Change Order No. 2, Bioretention Changes

Originator/Prepared by: Anthony
Hitchings
Dept: Extensions

P |
Signagufe/Date: ///Z/ /7

\\V?’\:

] [

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager or her designee to execute Change
Order No. 2.1, Part 1, Bioretention Changes, to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake
Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, in an amount not to exceed $350,000.

- DISCUSSION:

On September 22, 2016, the Board of Directors authorized the award of Contract No.
09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track (“Contract”), to
Shimmick Construction Company, Inc. The Notice to Proceed was issued November 28,
2016. :

The Contract provided for a bioretention area to mitigate environmental impacts caused by
the addition of a new spur track at the Oakland Shops. As work progressed, Staff
determined that the proposed bioretention area overlapped with a planned future expansion
of the adjacent BART Annex building. It also became clear that the existing surface drainage
did not adequately flow to the bioretention area. To avoid extensive regrading of paved
areas, this proposed Change Order will relocate the bioretention area within the Oakland
Shops site, minimizing the need to regrade the site and avoiding an overlap with the planned
Annex building expansion. ‘ |

Change Order No. 2, Part 1 was issued in an amount not to exceed $50,000. Change Order
No. 2.1, Part 1 will be issued in an amount not to exceed $350,000. The total estimated




Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, Change Order No. 2, Bioretention
Changes

value of the work for all elements of Change Order No. 2 is $4OO 000.

The following table summarizes the District's financial commitments for all elements of
Change Order No. 2:

Change Order No. 2, Part 1 , $50,000
Change Order No 2.1, Part 1 $350,000 Pending Approval
Total Commitment $400,000

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Office of the General Counsel will approve this Change Order
as to form prior to its execution. The Procurement Department will review this Change
Order for compliance with procurement guidelines prlor to its execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $350,000 for the award of Change Order No. 2.1, Part 1 to Contract No. 09AU-
130 is included in the total budget for 09AU000 — TBT Retrofit #1 (Underwater). The Office
of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation.

The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in
totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet thlS
request will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of November 13, 2017, $374,726,031 is available for this project from the following
sources:

801F & 801J ESP GO Bond $300,518,803 |
8011 ESP GO Bond Interest Earnings | BART | $20,000,000
850V, 850X & 850W | Capital Allocation BART $207,228

802A 2017 Measure RR GO Bond 54,000,000

BART has expended $61,269,158, committed $286,306,903, and reserved $25,765,000 to-
date for other action. This action will commit $350,000 leaving an available fund balance of
$1,034,970 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If the Change
Order is not executed, the District would remain responsible for the environmental impacts



Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, Change Order No. 2, Bioretention
Changes

caused by the Contract Work. Non-compliance with the MS4 environmental permit would
expose the District to potential fines from the California State Water Board and the District
would remain liable for the cost of completing the bioretention changes at a later date.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager or her designee is authorized to execute Change Order No. 2.1, Part 1,
Bio-Retention Changes, to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program
Oakland Shops Spur Track with Shimmick Construction Company Inc., in an amount not to
exceed $350,000. '



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
ATTACHMENT No 1

CONTRACT No. 09AU-130

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

Date: 11/16/2017

CO No. 002.1 Part 1

'BACKGROUND
Program: Earthquake Safety Program
Name of Contractor Shimmick Construction
Contract No. / NTP 09AU-130 / November 28, 2016
Contract Description: OKS Spur Track
Percent Complete as of 11/16/17 83.51%
COST % of Award CO Totals Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount ' 3 7,903,190
Change Orders
Board Authorized COs 2.35% $ 186,000
Other Than Board Authorized COs 8.39% $ 663,081
This CO No. 002.1 Part 1 4.43% $ 350,000
Subtotal of all Change Orders 15.17% $ 1,199,081
Revised Contract Amount $ 9,102,271
SCHEDULE
Original Contract Duration 350 days
Time Extension to Date 0 days
Time Extension Due to Approved COs 0 days
Time Extension Due to this CO No. 002.1 Part 1 _ 0 days
Revised Contract Duration 350 days
MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION MBE WBE
Original Subcontracted Value excluding Allowances ' $ 2,682,000 $ 2,682,000
Current Particpation excluding this Change Order 3.18% 4.20%
Projected Particpation excluding this Change Order 4.81% 10.48%
This Change Order No. 002.1 Part | 0.00% 9.08%
Contract 09AU-130 Participation Commitment 4.81% 9.62%



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: - . _ GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
& / & wod 20 ‘7 Approve and Forward to the Board
M foe
DATE: 9/15/2017 | BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Anthony Controller/Treasnrer| District Secretary
Hitchings

Dept: PD&C-ESP

w/23)17 N
4

Signature%% W

Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track,
Change Order No. 6, Time Impacts

[1] [1

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager or her designee to execute Change
Order No. 6, Time Impacts, to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program
Oakland Shops Spur Track in an amount not to exceed $385,000.

DISCUSSION:

On September 22, 2016, the Board of Directors authorized staff to award Contract No.
09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track (“Contract”), to
Shimmick Construction Company, Inc. Staff issued the Notice to Proceed for the Contract
on November 28, 2016.

This Change is necessary to compensate the Contractor for delays resulting from changes in
the scope of the Contract relating to construction of a new weld shop pursuant to Change
Order No. 1, and new bioretention work that is currently under negotiation pursuant to
proposed Change Order No. 2. These District directed changes impacted the critical path of
the Contract. This change is for time and costs incurred due to these delays. .

On 09/20/2017 the Contractor submitted a Time Extension and Cost Proposal relating to
impacts of all BART-caused delays to date. The Time Extension and Cost Proposal
reflected a 72-calendar day extension of time on the Contract, with a cost impact not-to-



U-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, Change Order No. 6, Time Impacts

exceed $385,000.

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Office of the General Counsel will approve this Change Order
as to form prior to its execution. The Procurement Department will review this Change
Order for compliance with procurement guidelines prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $385,000 for the award of Change Order No. 6 to Contract No. 09AU-130 is

- included in the total budget for 09AU000 — TBT Retrofit #1 (Underwater). The Office of the
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The
following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in totality
to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will
be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of October 3, 2017, $373,536,500 is available for this project from the following sources:

"801F & 8017

ESP GO Bond BART $299,509,627
8011 ESP GO Bond Interest Earnings | BART $20,000,000
850V & 850X | Capital Allocations BART $26,873
802A 2017 Measure RR GO Bond BART $54,000,000

BART has expended $47,024,934, committed $299,045,496, and reserved $26,155,000 to-
date for other action. This action will commit $385,000 leaving an available fund balance of
$926,070 in this project. '

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. Ifthe Change
Order is not executed, the Contractor may pursue a claim against the District for the cost of
delays attributable to the District. Contractor's delay costs and potential litigation costs, thus
potentially increasing the final cost to the District.



Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, Change Order No. 6, Time Irr

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board approve the following motion:
MOTION:

The General Mémager or her designee is authorized to execute Change Order No. 6, Time
Impacts, to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops
Spur Track with Shimmick Construction Company Inc. in an amount not to exceed
$385,000. : '



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
ATTACHMENT No 1

Date: 10/12/2017

CONTRACT No. 09AU-130 CO No. 06
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND
Program: Earthquake Safety Program
Name of Contractor Shimmick Construction
Contract No. / NTP 09AU-130 / November 28, 2016
Contract Description: OKS Spur Track
Percent Complete as of 10/12/17 76.46%
COST ‘ % of Award CO Totals Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount $ 7,903,190.
Change Orders :

Board Authorized COs 0.00% $ -

Other Than Board Authorized COs 4.60% $ 363,888

This Change Order No. 001 Part 2 4.87% $ 385,000

Subtotal of all Change Orders 9.48% $ 748,888
Revised Contract Amount $ 8,652,078
SCHEDULE
Original Contract Duration . 350 days
Time Extension to Date 0 days
Time Extension Due to Approved COs ‘ 0 days
Time Extension Due to this CO 06 77 days
Revised Contract Duration 427 days
MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION MBE WBE
Original Subcontracted Value excluding Allowances $ 2,682,000 $ 2,682,000
Current Particpation excluding this Change Order 4.89% 10.12%
Projected Particpation excluding this Change Order - 4.89% 10.12%
This Change Order No. 06 0.00% 0.00%

9.62%

Contract 09AU-130 Participation Commitment 4.81%



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
! Zq NV 2oy '7 Approve and Forward to the Board
DATE: 10/3/2017 r : BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Anthony Controllér/Treasurer District Secretar

Hitchings

Dept: PD&C-ESP, -
Signgture/Date:

//?4/7

Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track,
Change Order No. 18, Spur Track Stub

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager or her designee to execute Chahge
Order No. 18.1, Part 1, Spur Track Stub, to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake
Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track in an amount not to exceed $1,150,000.

DISCUSSION:

. On September 22, 2016, the Board of Directors authorized staff to award Contract No.
09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track (“Contract”), to
Shimmick Construction Company, Inc. (“Contractor”). Staff issued the Notice to Proceed
for the Contract on November 28, 2016.

The work being performed pursuant to the Contract includes accommodation for two future
spur tracks, one to the south of the main shop and a second going directly into the second
shop bay. |

The passage of Bond Measure RR has created an urgent need for track that is accessible by
Maintenance & Engineering ("M&E”) for the maintenance of the District’s growing fleet of
non-revenue vehicles. As a result, staff proposes to have the Contractor build out the first
165 feet of the spur track south of the main shop, including a section of reinforced concrete
over a 78" diameter storm drain owned by the City of Oakland.

As a part of the Contract 09AU-130, BART’s Earthquake Safety Program staff has



Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, Change Order No. 18, Spur Track Stub

coordinated with the City of Oakland for required City approvals. This coordination would
expedite any additional approvals required in connection with the proposed Change Order.

In addition, if the proposed spur track is built at a later date, there will be operational
impacts on the Transbay Tube Retrofit Contract (Contract No. 09AU-120), which could
potentially impact the cost and duration of that contract.

Change Order No. 18, Part 1 was issued in an amount not to exceed $50,000. Change
Order No. 18.1, Part 1 will be issued in an amount not to exceed $1,150,000. The total
estimated value of the work for all elements of Change Order No. 18 is $1,200,000.

The following table summarizes the District's financial commitments for all elements of
Change Order No. 18:

Change Order No. 18 Part 1 * $50,000
Change Order No 18.1 Part 1 $1,150,000 Pending Approval
Total Commitment $1,200,000 ‘

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000
require Board approval. The Office of the General Counsel will approve this Change Order
as to form prior to its execution. The Procurement Department will review this Change
Order for compliance with procurement guidelines prior to its execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $1,150,000 for Change Order No 18.1 Part 1 of Contract No.
09AU-130 to Shimmick Construction Company, Inc is included in the total budget for FMS
project #15CQ002- Replace Rails, Ties, Fasteners Ph3 from Bond Measure RR. The Office
of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation.
The following table depicts funding assigned to the referenced project and is included in
totality to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this
commitment will be expended from a combination of these sources as listed.

As of October 18, 2017, $617,146,525 is the total budget for this project from the following
sources:

Measure RR General Obl1gat10n Bond BART $616,949,279

BART has expended $13,338,871, committed $7,428,684, and reserved $41,960,095 to date
for other actions. This action will commit $1,150,000 leaving an available fund balance of
$553,218,875.



Contract 09AU-130 BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland Shops Spur Track, Change Order No. 18, Spur Track Stub

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVE:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If the Change
Order is not executed, the work will not be performed and another contract to complete this
necessary work will be required in the future.

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board approve the following motion:
MOTION:

The General Manager or her designee is authorized to execute Change Order No. 18.1 Part
1, Spur Track Stub, to Contract No. 09AU-130, BART Earthquake Safety Program Oakland
Shops Spur Track with Shimmick Construction Company Inc. in an amount not to exceed
$1,150,000.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT
ATTACHMENT No 1

CONTRACT No. 09AU-130

Date: 11/16/2017

CO No. 018.1 Part 1

' CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND '
Program: Earthquake Safety Program
Name of Contractor Shimmick Construction
Contract No. / NTP 09AU-130/ November 28, 2016
Contract Description: OKS Spur Track
Percent Complete as of 11/16/17 © 83.51%
COST ' % of Award CO Totals Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount $ 7,903,190
Change Orders

Board Authorized COs 2.35% $ 186,000

Other Than Board Authorized COs 8.39% $ 663,081

This CONo. 018.1 Part 1 14.55% $ 1,150,000

Subtotal of all Change Orders 2529% $ 1,099,081
Revised Contract Amount $ 9,902,271

.SCHEDULE

Original Contract Duration 350 days
Time Extension to Date 0 days
Time Extension Due to Approved COs 0 days
Time Extension Due to this CO 018.1 Part 1 : 116 days
Revised Contract Duration 466 days
MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION . - MBE WBE
Original Subcontracted Value excluding Allowances $ 2,682,000 $ 2,682,000
Current Particpation excluding this Change Order 3.18% 4.20%
Projected Particpation excluding this Change Order 4.81% 10.48%
This Change Order No. 018.1 Part 1 0.00% 0.00%
Contract 09AU-130 Participation Commitment 4.81% 9.62%



1181HX3 NOISNILX3 ONIAIS 9
oy 0z g oz HOVYL UNdS SAOHS OGNV IIHVO . .
= ——— WYHO0Ud AL34VS IXNVYNDHLIYYT LuvE
L10Z 'LE LSNONY LOM1SIO LISNVAL QidVY VIHY AVE OJSIONVY NYS
02=,1 31908
Nv1d
e SR

o0 ONIS¥O us 2t”
Y NEHILVA € =5

Dt 2
- = RS
- AT ONISYD US b T
5
r‘. &»\v\ > > ; NSO d 1
i 2
\\sﬁ
s

bt

7% % ZS . e iy + S JAvM 3 L (3
\ S . D e as 01 (3)
d - N ‘ D { ’ o1 (3) oNIgTING

140ddNS INVd

e e "e / ,‘, ) . S o

HIMIS (3)

oNIdTING
ALTIOVA JONVNILNIVA
svo .z (3)

oz_o.__Dm_ , . ..,,.,,o:ncxmm_.._@,_r

SAOHS ONYIIVO Sed. A
S HALVM (3)=

,Q/ ~— 7 Al .\.. S . ; @
PN AU AT . B - Ad p-Z (3) =

\ IR

Y&

O3HS ANIWAINDI ,02X,08 —A29
. ~a vy e EL

- 0T 0Ad 2~2 1A
0313 OAd p-2 (3) =

)

0

ATNO NOISSNOSId 404 - 14V¥d







EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 2 q Vo Zo ! 37 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

1 Approve and Forward to the Board

DATE: 11/10/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Anthony Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary

A

Hitchings
Dept PD&C, SP

N A< v \
Slgnat re/Date /// na/2017 U/Zt/ﬁ | W .

=

L

Contract No. 79HM-120 SFTS MB, Change Order No. 99.2, Bearing Pad Field
Adjustments

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute Change Order No. 99.2,
Bearing Pad Field Adjustments, to Contract No. 79HM-120, for construction of the SFTS
Marine Barrier (MB), in an amount not to exceed $300,000.00.

DISCUSSION:

The Board authorized award of Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB to Manson
Construction Company, Inc. on February 12, 2015. Notice to Proceed was issued on May
19, 2015. This proposed Change Order No. 99.2 will compensate the Contractor

for Bearing Pad field adjustment and shimming, in an amount not-to-exceed $300,000.00.

The original Contract for the SFTS MB assumed that the SFTS was constructed plumb,
square, and flat as indicated in the Contract Drawings. The marine barrier (MB) bearing
pads were designed with this assumption in mind. In the field, a differing site condition
exists; the walls and skin of the SFTS are not plumb, square, and flat and are therefore,
different than indicated in the Contract Drawings. Due to difficulties in obtaining SFTS
flatness measurements, it was determined that the final adjustment can only be made in the
field as part of the setting procedure for the MB modules. This proposed Change Order No.
99.2 will compensate the Contractor for additional labor, equipment and material costs for
installing shimming at bearing pads on deck and under water, in order to achieve the
maximum engineered gap between the MB module pad and SFTS wall, in an amount not-to-
exceed $300,000.



Contract No. 79HM-120 SFTS MB, Change Order No. 99.2, Bearing Pad Field Adjustments (cont.)

The following table summarizes the District's financial commitments for all elements of
Change Order No. 99:

Change Order No. 99 Part 1 $100,000 Issued

Change Order No. 99.1 Part 1~ $100,000 In Process

Change Order No. 99.2 Part 1 $300,000 Pending BOD Approval

Total Commitment $500,000

Pursuant to Board Rule 5-2.3, Change Orders involving expenditures greater than $200,000

- require Board approval. The Office of the General Counsel will approve this Change Order
as to form prior to execution. The Procurement Department will review this Change Order
for compliance with procurement guidelines prior to execution.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $300,000 for Contract No. 79HM-120 Change Order No. 99.2 will come from
project budget 79HMO000 Transition Barriers. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts
funding assigned to the referenced project, and is included in its totality to track funding
history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be expended from
the sources listed below. As of Novemer 14,2017, $108,421,735 is available for this project
from the following sources:

'FEDERAL | $89,339,870

INTERNAL $190,421
REGIONAL ‘ $4,434,500
STATE $ 14 456 944

BART has expended $82,757,517 and committed $16,928,305 to date for other actions.
This action will commit an additional $300,000 leaving an uncommitted balance

of $8,435,913 in this project. There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District
Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of this Change Order. If not resolved,
failure to issue this Change Order will lead to a claim for the Contractor's delay costs and
potential litigation costs, thus increasing the final cost to the District.



Contract No. 79HM-120 SFTS MB, Change Order No. 99.2, Bearing Pad Field Adjusiments (cont.)

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend that the Board approve the following motion:

MOTION: |
The General Manager is authorized to execute Change Order No. 99.2, Bearing Pad Field
Adjustment, in an amount not to exceed $300,000 for Contract No. 79HM-120, SFTS MB

with Manson Construction Company, Inc.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 11/9/2017
ATTACHMENT No 1 CO No. 99.2
CONTRACT 79HM-120
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY

BACKGROUND
Program: o Transition Barriers
Name of Contractor Manson Construction Co.
Contract No. / NTP 79HM-120 / May 20, 2015
Contract Description: ' SFTSMB
Percent Complete as of 9/30/17 74.80%
COST % of Award CO Totals Contract Amount
Original Contract Award Amount $ 49,686,000
‘Change Orders

Board Authorized COs 10.16% $ 5,050,526

Other Than Board Authorized COs 6.43% $ 3,193,696

see note *

This Change Order No. 99.2 0.60% $ 300,000

Subtotal of all Change Orders 17.20% $ 8,544,222
Revised Contract Amount § 58,230,222
SCHEDULE
Original Contract Duration 730 days
Time Extension to Date
Time Extension Due to Approved Cos 367 days
Time Extension Due to this CO 99 0 days
Revised Contract Duration 1,097 days
DBE PARTICIPATION
Original Contract Value excluding Allowances $ 49,105,000
Current DBE Particpation excluding this Change Order 14.86%
Projected DBE Particpation excluding this Change Order 13.74%
This Change Order No. 99 0.00%
Contract 79HM-120 DBE Participation Commitment 1.95%

C:\Users\ARassai\AppDatalLocal\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Fites\Content. Outiook\Q0971 L4H\EDD_CO.99_Cost_Summary.xlsx 11/21/2017



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: December 1, 2017
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT: BART Extenéion to Silicon Valley (SVX), Phase II — Updatev

VTA and BART jointly agreed in October 2017 to conduct a peer review focused on the operations
and safety aspects of the tunneling methodologies for Phase II of the SVX project. As agreed, the peer
review panel would include representatives from public transit agencies currently operating heavy rail
subway systems with deep stations.

The 3-day peer review was conducted the week of November 13th with the transit consulting firm
TRA serving as the facilitator.

The peer review panel included current and retired executives from:
Los Angeles Metropolitan Transportation Authority (LAMTA)
Washington Metrépolitan Area Transit Authority (WMATA)
Metropolitan Atlanta Rapid Transit Authority (MARTA)
New York City Transit NYCTA) '
New York Metropolitan Transportation Authority NYMTA), and
San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA).

Daniel Hauder from TRA will be presenting the findings and recommendations of this peer review as
an item on the Operation, Safety, and Workforce agenda at the Board of Directors meeting on
December 7, 2017. Mr. Hauder will be accompanied by BART and VTA staff who participated in the

peer review.

If you have any questions, please call Robert Powers, Deputy General Manager, at (510) 464-6126.

]Z/W“f’ . z,w
J%@ragxe Crunican

cc:  Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors DATE: December 1, 2017
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: Update on Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD) SF Program and SF
Homeless Outreach Team (SFHOT) Program

At the Dec. 7 Board meeting, there will be a presentation on the Law Enforcement Assisted
Diversion (LEAD) San Francisco Program, and a presentation on the expansion of the San
Francisco Homeless Outreach Team (SFHOT) Program to the Powell and Civic Center BART /
Muni Stations. This item is in response to Roll Call for Introduction #17-809 initiated by Dir.
Dutfty.

Dr. Angelica Almeida, who leads the forensic programs at the San Francisco Department of Public
Health, and serves as Project Director for LEAD SF, will provide an overview of the LEAD SF

Program.

Attached please find the presentation from BART staff on the SF HOT Program. Dr. Almeida’s
LEAD SF presentatlon will be sent to the Board next week.

Please contact Paul Oversier at (510) 464-6710 if you have questions.

/MMP

I’ Grace Crunican
Attachment
' (
cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager

Executive Staff



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL
2 WA 204

72%./7‘4% Vo

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: 10/26/2017 n BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Hannah Lindelof ‘Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC

/W[] . []\I v

Dept: Stations Planning

Signature/Date: M@d(ﬁv‘é@/—

W/

Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring
and Reportmg Plan, and Approve the Proposed BART Transit Operations Facility
and Lake Merritt Plaza Redesign Project

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board action on the proposed BART Transit Operations Facility and Lake Merrltt
Plaza Redesign as follows:

1. Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration ("[S/MND");
2. Adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan ("MMRP"); and
3. Approve the proposed Transit Operations Facility & Lake Merritt Plaza Project

DISCUSSION:

The District currently houses much of its transit system management facilities in the Lake
Merritt Complex, near the Lake Merritt Plaza at the Lake Merritt BART Station in Oakland.
The existing transit management facilities require increased physical space and state of good
~ repair improvements to achieve state-of-the art functionality; support improved BART
operations; and accommodate operation of planned BART extension projects over the next
40 years, including the extension to Silicon Valley.

Because of physical constraints at the current locatlon the existing facilities cannot be
expanded, therefore, the District proposes to design and construct a new Transit Operations
Facility ("TOF") building on the Lake Merritt Plaza. The new TOF would modernize the
current operations control infrastructure and technology to support improved and expanded
operations. On June 22, 2017, the BART Board of Directors approved the Title VI Siting
Analysis for the TOF.



Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, (cont.)

The proposed TOF structure would have a footprint of 16,500 square feet and would be
three stories tall (57 feet tall plus roof equipment such as HVAC, reaching a total height of
73 feet). The upper two stories would include 16,500 square feet of core transit management
facilities, which would be designed as a secure facility. The ground floor would include ,
11,500 square feet of transit management support offices as well as a retail “wrap.” The retail
wrap would consist of approximately 5,000 square feet of retail and/or community uses that
would face onto city streets and the open plaza area.

As of part of the above transit operations improvements, the District is also proposing a
redesign of the existing street-level plaza to create a more inviting and flexible space for the
community. Streetscape and plaza improvements, community space, and retail space are
intended to engage the community, activate the public realm, and enhance connections
between the BART station, the surrounding community, and the number of public facilities in
the vicinity. The plaza design would aim to achieve the following design objectives, based on
community feedback from public and working group meetings, convened by BART:

o Catalyze and Activate
o Connect and Integrate
o Safe and Welcoming

‘The plaza design would improve roughly 40,000 square feet by removing existing structures,
landscaping, and trees, and replacing them with new, integrated elements such as a bike
station, open plaza area, a shade structure, seating, game tables, streetscape improvements,
modified station entrances, and full or partial enclosure of the sunken courtyard/fountain
area, potentially including new station vertical circulation.

Environmental Review

In order to meet the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"), a
Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration ("IS/MND") for the proposed TOF and
Lake Merritt Project was prepared and released to the public. The Draft IS/MND evaluated
the environmental impacts associated with the proposed TOF and Lake Merritt Project and
determined that the proposed Project would not have a significant effect on the environment.
Potential Project impacts were identified for the following environmental areas: air quality,
biological resources, hazardous materials, and noise/vibration. None of the environmental
impacts would result in any significant effects that could not be mitigated to less-than-
significant levels following implementation of project-specific mitigation measures identified
in the IS/MND. The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan ("MMRP") consists of a
program to ensure implementation of specific mitigation measures in the IS/MIND as required
by Public Resources Code Section 21080.6. The Draft IS/MND, Final IS/MND, and MMRP
are available online at www.bart.gov/lakemerritt. '

The Draft IS/MND was released to the public on September 22, 2017. Notices were posted



Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, (cont.)

at the site, in the Lake Merritt Station, and at public facilities in the neighborhood. In
addition, stakeholders were notified by email and information was posted on the project
website. A public comment meeting was héld October 11, 2017; translated materials and
interpretation were provided. In addition to the public comment meetings, comments were
accepted by mail, fax and email. The comment period ran for 30 days, closing on October
22, 2017. Comments received during the review period and corresponding responses are
attached to the Final IS/MND.

Since BART may seek federal funds for a portion of the cost of implementation if the

Project is adopted, BART plans to request a Categorical Exclusion ("CE") under the

National Environmental Policy Act ("NEPA") from the Federal Transit Administration

("FTA"). This is a necessary step in making the TOF and Lake Metritt Plaza eligible for

federal funding. In contemplation of the possibility of future funding, and in order to

facilitate action by the FTA on a CE, staff is bringing the proposed Project forward to the
Board at this time.

Next Steps

If the Board adopts the IS/MND and MMRP and approves the Proposed Transit Operations
Facility & Lake Merritt Plaza Project, staff would then: 1) Proceed with ongoing engagement
with the community and City of Oakland; 2) Complete the project design; 3) Continue to
pursue funding for the TOF and Lake Merritt Plaza Project and return to the Board of
Directors with a full funding plan; 4) Discuss with the FTA arequest for a CE; and 5)
Advance to contracting; and 6) Return to the Board for award of construction contracts.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact at this time associated with Board action to adopt the IS/MND and
MMRP and approve the proposed TOF and Lake Merritt Plaza Project. The rough order of
magnitude capital cost for the TOF is estimated at $60 million and the Lake Merritt Plaza and
Active Uses are estimated at $14 million. The project is partially funded, including $20
million in BART capital allocations and a $26.4 million cost sharing contribution from Santa
Clara Valley Transportation Authority for the TOF, and $2.4 million in Measure RR Station
Access funds contributing to the design of the plaza and construction of the bike station.
Staff will continue to pursue potential fund sources to develop a full funding plan, which will
be brought back to the Board for consideration.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board could choose not to adopt the IS/MND and MMRP and/or approve the
proposed TOF and Lake Merritt Plaza Project. This would delay or prevent construction of
the Project, which are necessary for the improved and expanded operations. Delay of
project adoption could also result in cost escalation. If the project is not constructed it
would, in the long run, cause the opening of the Berryessa Extension to negatively impact



Adopt the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, (cont.)

overall service delivery and would require the construction of a different new facility to
support the addition of the full San Jose extension.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approval of the following Motion.

‘MOTION:

Having reviewed and considered the information contained in the Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan, the BART Board of
Directors hereby:

1 Finds that on the basis of the whole record before the Board, there is no substantial
evidence that the proposed BART Transit Operations Facility and Lake Metritt Plaza
Project will have a significant effect on the environment (the potential significant
impacts identified can all be mitigated to less-than-significant levels following
implementation of project-specific mitigation measures identified in the Initial -
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration); and

2. Finds that the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the Board’s
independent judgment and analysis; and A

Adopts the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

Adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan; and

Approves the BART Transit Operations Facility and Lake Merritt Plaza Project as

proposed.

DB W



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL:

No

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

DATE: t1/21/2017

30 wed 2z
[t 2o "

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Holly Gordon
Dept: Systems Development

Signature/Date:

n)as o

Controller/Treasurer

[ W

[

District Secretary

{1

i

gl

I Status: Approved

| Date Created: 11/21/2017

Approval of Power Purchase Agreements for Wholesale Renewable Energy

PURPOSE: -

To obtain Board authorization to enter into two 20-year Power Purchase Agreements
("PPAs") for wholesale renewable energy. The first agreement is with NextEra Energy for
energy generated from a new 61.7 MW wind project to be located in Kern County,
California. The second agreement is with Recurrent Energy for energy generated from a new
45 MW solar project also to be located in Kern County, California.

- DISCUSSION:

In 2015, the California legislature passed Senate Bill 502 (authored by Senator Leno), which
allows BART to directly procure eligible renewable energy resources. In late April 2017, the
Board approved the Wholesale Electricity Portfolio Policy ("WEPP"), which sets
performance measures for procuring BART's power from eligible renewable energy
resources. To begin implementing the WEPP, BART staff released a Request for Proposals
("RFP") titled "BART 2017 Renewable Energy RFP" on May 8, 2017. In choosing

projects, the objectives of the RFP were as follows:

o Align procurement with Board Policy.

 Purchase long-term (10-30 year) renewable supply at stable, competitive prices.

 Ensure developers are experienced and creditworthy, and contracts mitigate BART’s
exposure to market, development and production risks.

» Ensure projects are realistic and far along in preconstruction planning.

o Ensure BART s risks during delivery terms are minimized.




Approval of Power Purchase Agreements for Wholesale Renewable Energy (cont.)

On August 11, 2017, BART staff selected the NextEra wind project and the Recurrent solar
project. PPAs for these projects were finalized in late November 2017. The key provisions
of the PPAs are as follows:

Developer NextEra Energy Recurrent Energy

Project Name  Sky River Gaskell West 2

Technology Wind Energy ' Solar energy

Location - Kern County (east of Bakersfield) Kern County (southeast of Bakersfield)
Delivery Term  1/1/2021 - 12/31/2040 1/1/2021 - 12/31/2040

Project Size 61.7 MW 45 MW

Expected Output 257,000 MWh/Year 130,000 MWh/Year

The projects will meet approximately 90% of BART's energy needs when they come online

- in 2021. As BART's energy needs increase between 2021-2026, due to the addition of
SVBX service and the new train control system, the projects will then meet approximately
75% of BART's energy needs for the remainder of the PPAs. These projects will exceed the
initial goals set out in the WEPP and put BART well on the path of achieving 100% of its
electric power from eligible renewable sources by 2045.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the PPAs as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The costs of the PPAs will be incurred over the 20-year delivery terms beginning in 2021
and will be paid for from the District's annual energy operating budget (account 682300,
department 1104474). The weighted average price for the two PPAs is 3.23 cents per kWh.
Over the 20-year terms of the PPAs, the projects will cost approximately $12.5 million per
year, or $251 million total. Cost savings are estimated to be $4.5 million in the first year of
delivery, increasing to $13.4 million in Year 20, for total savings of approximately $174
million over the delivery terms as compared with current projections used in long-term

. budget forecasting (including the 2017 SRTP).

Year 1 Year 5 Year 10 Year.15 Year 20 Total
Contract Cost $129M  $127M  $12.6M  $12.4M $12.3M | $251.4M
Est. Savings $4.5M $6.2M $8.5M $11.1M $13.4M $173.9M



Approval of Power Purchase Agreements for Wholesale Renewable Energy (cont.)

*There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

~ Not entering into these PPAs with NextEra Energy and Recurrent Energy. This would a)
delay the District's progress in transitioning to a renewable energy portfolio and b) require
entering into short term contracts that are subject to price volatlhty, both of which are
counter to the goals laid out in the WEPP.

RECOMMENDATION:
Adoption of the following motion.
MOTION:

The Generai Manager, or her designee, is authorized to enter into a 20-year PPA with
NextEra Energy and a 20-year PPA with Recurrent Energy.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Ult i . 2" Q

DATE: 11/21/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No

Originator/Prepared by: Amanda Cruz General Counsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secretary BARC

Dept: Gov't & Community Relations j

Signature/Daj¢. / //7 j . /ﬂ//? “.27«:

YA A [ [ ] [ ]

k] v \ v ]

2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program

PURPOSE:

To review, discuss and seek approval of the District’s 2018 State and Federal Legislative
Advocacy Program.

DISCUSSION:

BART’s State and Federal advocacy efforts are guided by the annual goals adopted by the
Board of Directors. The goals reflect BART’s legislative priorities and provide guidance for
the District's activities in Sacramento and Washington, D.C. Both the State Legislature and
Congress will begin the second year of their respective two-year sessions in January. The

following summarizes proposed State and Federal goals BART plans to actively pursue in
2018.

Proposed STATE Advocacy Program:

Protect state transportation funding, including new SB 1 revenue, from being
eliminated, repealed, or diverted

BART will continue efforts to protect transit funding outlined in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2017-
2018 State Budget, including new funding enacted by SB 1 (Beall). BART will track the
implementation of and pursue funding from various SB 1 programs, including but not limited
to the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP), State Transit Assistance “State of
Good Repair” Program, Local Partnership Program, and Solutions for Congested Corridors




2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program (cont.)

Program.

Opponents of SB 1 have filed two different initiative referenda measures intended to repeal
SB 1’s various tax and fee increases in the November 2018 election. BART will participate in
advocacy efforts organized to protect transit funding such as ACA 5 (Frazier), and oppose
any effort(s) to repeal, divert, or place conditions on enacted SB 1 funding.

Advocate for additional, more flexible funding for publlc transit through the Cap and
Trade Program

Continuing efforts from last session, BART will advocate for doubling the percentage of
annual Cap and Trade auction proceeds directed to transit investments such as the Low
Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) and TIRCP either through a one-time
appropriation or continuous allocation.

BART will also monitor and engage in efforts to reform the Affordable Housing and
Sustainable Communities Program, which receives 20% of Cap and Trade revenue, to
ensure more funding benefits transit.

Additionally, with the stabilization of Cap and Trade through AB 398 (Garcia), BART will
explore opportunities within LCTOP to encourage and incentivize creating or expanding
discount transit pass programs.

Monitor implementation of new housing legislation and funding programs for
affordable housing; Pursue opportunities to advance BART’s transit-oriented
development (TOD) goals

This year, the Legislature passed, and the Governor signed, a package of bills to provide
new funding for low-income housing development, streamline building, and control the
ability of local governments to block new appropriate housing development. BART will

- continue to support legislation that accelerates the development of affordable housing and
collaborate with local, regional, and state partnets to highlight the potential benefits of SB 3
(Beall), the $4 billion housing bond, for which transit agencies would be directly eligible.

BART will also engage in regional and statewide discussions on development requirements
such as housing density, parking minimums, and other restrictions as well as collaborate with
public agencies, who have adopted affordable housing policies, on strategies to pursue new
state funds for transit-oriented or infill development.

Support efforts to enhance local funding for transit and promote infrastructure
improvements near transit

BART will continue to support mechanisms enabling transit agencies and local governments
to maintain and expand transit service and promote infrastructure near public transit. These



2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program (cont.)

tools may include changes to Infrastructure Financing District laws, incentives for
development near transit, and lower voter-thresholds for local sales tax initiatives such as
- SCA 6 (Weiner) and ACA 4 (Aguiar-Curry).

Continue to engage in the State’s Greenhouse Gas emission reduction efforts

BART should continue to engage in the State’s Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction efforts
including policies that prioritize the purchase of electricity supplied from low-carbon or zero-
carbon sources in addition to monitoring programs and funding that incentivize the adoption
of zero-emission technology and supporting infrastructure.

Monitor legislation and regulations related to shared mobility as well as the testing
and deployment of autonomous vehicles

In partnership with local governments, transit agencies, and other transportation
organizations, BART should continue to monitor legislation and regulatory efforts related to
shared mobility such as transportation network companies and real-time carpooling to
maximize potential benefits and ensure the interests of public transit are considered.

For the past two years, BART has supported legislation authorizing autonomous vehicle:
pilot projects designed to serve, in part, transit users accessing BART stations. BART
should continue to engage in efforts related to the testing and deployment of autonomous
vehicles, specifically on projects that provide BART riders with first- and -last mile
connections and help create a mode shift from single occupant vehicles to transit.

Monitor and respond to legislation that directly impacts BART

BART will ensure that the District’s needs and interests are represented in any legislative
effort that could directly impact BART, including bills that were recently enacted or
introduced in the current session. Legislation of interest to BART may pertain to regional
transit governance, agency oversight, law enforcement, pension reform, etc.

Pursue and pass necessary BART-sponsored legislation

As necessary, BART will seek to introduce and pass sponsored legislation that addresses
specific BART-related problems or goals as identified by the Board and/or staff.

Proposed FEDERAL Advocacy Program:

Advocate for Congress to appropriate funding consistent with the amounts
authorized in the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act

BART will partner with regional, state, and federal stakeholders and advocate to ensure
Congress appropriates funding as authorized in the FAST Actin FY18 and FY19. This



2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program (cont.)

includes supporting a minimum appropriation for all FTA formula programs, in addition to
discretionary programs such as the Capital Investment Grant (CIG) Program, inclusive of
the Core Capacity Program, and the TIGER program.

Secure a $50 million FY19 budget appropriation and Full Funding Grant Agreement
for the Transbay Corridor Core Capacity Project

BART’s Core Capacity Project completed the two-year Project Development phase of the
CIG program in August of 2017 and is expected to receive FTA approval to enter into
Engineering in late December or early January. BART is applying for a total of $1.25 billion
in overall CIG funding and is requesting $50 million in FY'19 budget appropriations. A
Congressional letter of support for BART’s request has been secured and efforts will
continue to secure a 2019 Full Funding Grant Agreement.

Engage in any advocacy efforts to advance a federal Infrastructure Initiative with a
specific focus on new funding mechanisms for transit

BART will advocate to the Administration and our Congressional delegation for an
Infrastructure Initiative that provides new federal funding to public transit projects. BART
will partner with the American Public Transit Association and fellow passenger rail agencies
through the Metropolitan Rail Discussion Group to support a federal initiative that supports
the replacement of aging infrastructure; addresses growing demand for new or expanded
service; and includes funds for innovative mobility and workforce development.

Advocate for continued funding to support public transit security programs

BART will continue to advocate for maintaining and increasing funding for all transit security
programs within the Department of Homeland Security and pursue additional grant funding
for identified security projects in 2018.

Support legislative efforts to ensure the solvency of the Highway Trust Fund

Last year, BART supported H.R. 1664 (DeFazio) and H.R. 1670 (Delaney) focused on
increasing funding for the Highway Trust Fund so that the fund remains solvent and capable
of supporting transit programs. BART will continue to support legislative efforts to increase
revenue to the fund by raising the federal gas tax or through the exploration of other revenue
sources that can be diverted to transit programs.

Continue to promote federal funding for apprenticeship and workforce development
programs

BART will continue to support legislation such as the American Apprenticeship Act (S. 862)
and pursue opportunities to sustain or expand current workforce development efforts such
as the Transit Career Ladders Training (TCLT) Program - a partnership with local



2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program (cont.)

community colleges and workforce investment boards. Federal funding for this program
concludes in January 2018 and BART will continue to explore funding opportunities for
future job training programs.

FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could decline to support the 2018 State and Federal Legislative Advocacy
Program. ‘

RECOMMENDATION:
For the Board to approve the following motion.

MOTION:

The Board approves the 2018 State and Federal Advocacy Program, as presented by staff.



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
W z z * ‘g;wam-
DATE: 11/6/2017 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: David Baumann Ge’l\leral Co nsel Controller/Treasurer| District Secfetary BARC /

Dept: Real Estate and Property ?? i
Developmen 4 Co v,.! i : /l/
e | Wl |
Signature/Date: : : _ ! hqlﬁ ; L “ .
W jze\ “/28/[*}‘ [ ] | [ 1] [} [ ]

['status: Routed | Date Created: 11/6/2017 ~ |

Lease of Warehouse - 30527 San Antonio Street, Hayward, CA

PURPOSE:

To authorize the General Manager, or her designee, to enter into a Lease with Hayward
Californial LLC (Landlord) for approximately 42,200 square feet of warehouse space at
30527 and 30537 San Antonio Street, Hayward CAfora ten-year term with a tenant option
to extend for ﬁve years.

DISCUSSION:

As part of the Measure RR infrastructure renew programs, it will be important to store
equipment and materials so they will be available and in a secure location as construction.
phases begin. These projects have commenced and are scheduled to continue through 2027.

Staff evaluated multiple potential storage locations and located five potential properties that
meet the District’s needs. After a detailed evaluation of each site based on proximity to the
A, R and C lines, cost per square foot, truck and dock access, common area maintenance,
tenant improvement costs, age of facility and stability of ownership, staff determined that
30527 and 30537 San Antonio in Hayward (“Property”) was the most suitable location. The
average cost per square foot of the properties considered was $0.80 per square foot. The
subject property will be leased for $0.78 per square foot for the initial year, with escalation of
2.5% per year. Net charges are estimated to be $0.24 per square foot for the first year of the
lease.

The Property selected will be leased for a term of one hundred and twenty months plus an



Lease of Warehouse - 30527 San Antonio Street, Hayward, CA

additional two months free rent, commencing on January 1, 2018 and expiring February
2028, with an option to renew for an additional sixty months, at the District’s request.

The first-year lease payment, including taxes, insurance and common area operating
expenses (Net Charges) are estimated to be $516,625.90. This excludes PG&E and water
which will be billed monthly. A previous tenant’s monthly utility bill was approximately
$1,100. It is unclear what BART’s monthly utility bills will be. The landlord does not

require a security deposit.
INITIAL 10-YEAR LEASE
YEAR RENT
1 $516,625.92
2 $529,541.57
3 $542,780.11
4 $556,349.61
5 $570,258.35
6 $584,514.81
7 $599,127.68
8 $614,105.87
9 $629,458.52
10 $645,194.98
TOTAL $5,787,957.42

5-YEAR TENANT OPTION
YEAR RENT
11 $661,324.85
12 $677,857.98
13 $694,804.42
14 $712,174.54
15 $729,978.90
TOTAL $3,476,140.69

TOTAL POTENTIAL 10 & 15-YEAR RENT

TOTAL 10 YEAR LEASE

$5,787,957.42

TOTAL 5-YEAR OPTION

$3,476,140.69

TOTAL POTENTIAL RENT

$9,264,098.11




Lease of Warehouse - 30527 San Antonio Street, Hayward, CA

Note, the amounts above are estimated. They include initial monthly rent of $0.78 per square
foot plus the estimated initial monthly Net charges of $0.24 per square foot escalating at
2.5% per year. The amounts above will vary slightly over the course of the lease due to
variability of the Net charges.

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the lease as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding in the amount of $9,264,098 for 10 year capital lease obligation plus 5 year option
for warehouse space located on San Antonio St. Hayward is included in the total budget for
FMS project #15CQ002- Replace Rails, Ties, Fasteners Ph3 and FMS project #15EJRR1 —
34.5KV AC Cable Replacement. The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are
currently available to meet this obligation. The following table depicts funding assigned to
the referenced projects and are included in totality to track funding history against spending
authority. Funds needed to meet this commitment will be expended from a combination of
these sources as listed. :

15CQ002 — Replace Rails, Ties, Fasteners $3.612.998 |

As of November 3, 2017, $617,146,525 is the total budget for this project from the following
sources: ' ‘

Funding Group Source Total Awarded
Measure RR General Obligation Bond BART 616,949,279
BART Operating to Capital Allocation =~ BART 197,246
Grand Total 617,146,525

BART has expended $14,777,148, committed $7,277,527, and reserved $43,030,932 to date
for other actions. This action will commit $3,612,998 in part leaving an available fund
balance of $548,447,920.

15EJRR1 — 34.5KV AC Cable Replacement $5,651,100°



Lease of Warehouse - 30527 San Antonio Street, Hayward, CA

As of November 3, 2017, $288,364,368 is the total budget for this project from the following
sources: ' :

Funding Group Source Total Awarded
Measure RR General Obligation Bond BART 288,364,368
Grand Total 288,364,368

BART has expended $1,969,857, committed $6,555,011, and reserved $1,920,000 to date
for other actions. This action will commit $5,651,100 in part leaving an available fund
balance of $272,268,400.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The Board can elect not to authorize the execution of the lease agreement. If the District
does not lease the warehouse space at 30527 and 30537 San Antonio Street, Hayward,
Staff will continue to search for another location to temporarily store the equipment required
for the Measure RR infrastructure renew programs construction.

RECOMMENDATION:

Adoption of the following Motion.

MOTION:

That the General Manager, or her designee, is authorized to execute a lease agreement with
Hayward California 1 LLC for approximately 42,200 square feet of office space at 30527
and 30537 San Antonio Street, Hayward for a ten-year term along with a five-year option for
a total base amount (excluding electricity, gas and water, which will be billed monthly), not to
exceed $9,264,098.11.




SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Annual Financial Report

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Certified
Public
Accountants






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Table of Contents

Page(s)
Independent AUAITOI’S REPOIT.........coiiiii e s e e e et e e sae e sre e aneeeneeere e e 1
Management’s DiSCUSSION @Nd ANGIYSIS .......ooiiiiiiiieie et neeeas 3
Basic Financial Statements
Proprietary Fund — Enterprise Fund
Statements OF NET POSITION ........ciiiiiiiie et 14
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net POSItiON...........cooeovviininincncnceee, 17
Statements OF CaSH FIOWS..........ooiiiiee et s nee s 18
Fiduciary Fund — Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Statements Of TrUSt Nt POSITION .......cc.oiiiiiiiiieere e s 20
Statements of Changes in Trust Net POSITION. ........c.cooe i e 21
Notes to Financial Statements
1. Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting PoliCies..........ccccooeviicviininnnns 22
2. Cash, Cash Equivalents and INVESIMENTS ..........cccoveviiieieie it 28
3. Receivables and Other ASSELS ......c.cicieiiieiierieiesie st se e ste e e e e sre e e ste e seesteeseeseesnes 39
R O T o LS £ SR 40
5. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities ..........c.ccoeieiii i 42
6. LONG-TEIM DEDL.....c.eiiiieie ettt e e e e e s be e e sresreenbe e 43
7. RISK IMBNAGRIMENT. ...ttt bbb e ens 54
8. Federal Capital Contributions and Operating Financial AsSIStanCe.........c.ccccvevvievieninnnnns 55
9. State and Local Operating and Capital Financial ASSIStanCe..........cccccvvvvveveivcieve e 56
10. Employees’ Retirement BENETItS.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiece e 59
11. Money Purchase PENSION PIAN ..........ccoiiiiiiieieie et 72
12. Other Postemployment BeNefitS........c.ccoviiiiiiiiic s 73
13. B0ard Of DireCtOrS” EXPENSES. ......ccuiiiiiiieieiiiiisiisie sttt 87
14. Related Organizations and JOIiNt Venture PrOJECES .........ccoveiererieniseeie e 88
15. Commitments and CONTINGENCIES........ciiuiiieiie e eree s e see s e e e e sre e sreesreesree s aeeneeeeeeneeens 92
Required Supplementary Information
Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios ...........ccccooevviiiiiiinincnennn 95
Schedule of Employer Pension ContribUtIONS ............coiiiirieieiiee e 97
Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios..........c.cccccevvveveiveieieiieieinns 99
Schedule of Employer ContribULIONS. .........c.ooiiiii e 102
Schedules of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits
Other Postemployment Benefits — Retiree Medical BEnefits .........cccccveveviviieieiecceie e, 104

Other Postemployment Benefits — Additional OPEB ...........cccccooveiiiiiie i 104





Certified
Public
Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Oakland, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health
Benefit Trust Fund of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (the District) as of and for the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
2121 N. California Boulevard, Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 www.mgocpa.com





Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund of the District
as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Implementation of New Accounting Pronouncement

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective as of July 1, 2016, the District adopted the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to these matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of
employer pension contributions, the schedules of changes in net Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB)
liability and related ratios, schedule of employer OPEB contributions and schedule of OPEB funding
progress, identified in the accompanying table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 29, 2017 on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mhcias G [ OComel (5P

Oakland, California
November 29, 2017





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance and activity of the San Francisco Bay
Area Rapid Transit District (the District) provide an introduction and understanding of the basic financial
statements of the District for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. This discussion was prepared by
management and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto, which
follow this section.

The District is an independent agency created in 1957 by the legislature of the State of California for the
purpose of providing an adequate, modern, interurban mass rapid transit system in the various portions of
the metropolitan area surrounding the San Francisco Bay. The District started its revenue operations in
September 1972. It presently owns a 112-mile, 46-station system serving the four counties of Alameda,
Contra Costa, San Francisco and San Mateo. The governance of the District is vested in a Board of
Directors composed of nine members, each representing an election district within the District.

The Financial Statements

The basic financial statements provide information about the District’s Enterprise Fund and the Retiree
Health Benefit Trust. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Overview of the Enterprise Fund Financial Statements

The Statements of Net Position reports assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and the difference as net position. The entire equity section is combined to report total net
position and is displayed in three components - net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and
unrestricted net position.

The net position component net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvements of those assets.

Restricted net position consists of assets where constraints on their use are either (a) externally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of restricted or net
investment in capital assets. This net position component includes net position that has been designated by
management for specific purposes, which in the case of the District include allocations to fund capital
projects, and other liabilities, which indicate that management does not consider them to be available for
general operations.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position consist of operating and nonoperating
revenues and expenses based upon definitions provided by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient
Reporting for Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, and GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments: Omnibus. Accordingly, significant recurring sources of the District’s revenues,
such as capital contributions, are reported separately, after nonoperating revenues and expenses.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Statements of Cash Flows are presented using the direct method and include a reconciliation of operating
loss to net cash used in operating activities.

Financial Highlights

In fiscal year 2015, the District implemented required changes to accounting and reporting for pensions. In
2017, the District also implemented required changes in accounting and reporting for OPEB. Due to limited
available information, fiscal year 2016 amounts have not been restated for GASB 75.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

A summary of the District’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for fiscal
years 2017, 2016 and 2015 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2017 2016 2015
Operating revenues $ 547,100 $ 545,800 $ 514541
Operating expenses, net (908,065) (834,746) (767,141)
Operating loss (360,965) (288,946) (252,600)
Nonoperating revenues, net 365,962 292,586 303,214
Capital contributions 342,270 328,123 256,231
Change in net position 347,267 331,763 306,845
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 6,027,354 6,017,192 5,710,347
Net position, end of year $ 6,374,621 $ 6,348,955 $ 6,017,192

Operating Revenues

In fiscal year 2017, operating revenues increased by $1,300,000 primarily due to a slight decrease of
$3,909,000 in passenger fares principally due to decrease in ridership; average weekday ridership in fiscal
year 2017 was 423,395 trips, a decrease of 2.3% from the prior fiscal year. The decrease in passenger
revenue were offset by (1) an increase of $1,567,000 in parking revenue due to higher parking rates
implemented at some stations during fiscal year 2017; (2) increase in other revenue of $2,000,000 from
settlements received from Pacific Gas & Electric and from Penn Machine; (3) increase of $510,000 in traffic
fines; (4) increase of $582,000 in advertising revenue; and (5) increase of $634,000 in fees and permits.

In fiscal year 2016, operating revenues increased by $31,259,000 primarily due to (1) an increase of
$25,949,000 in passenger fares accounted for by a half year fare increase of 3.4% implemented on
January 1, 2016, and a slight increase in ridership; average weekday ridership in fiscal year 2016 was
433,394 trips, an increase of 2.4% over the prior fiscal year; and (2) an increase of $5,139,000 in parking
revenue due to higher parking rates implemented in January 2016 at several stations.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Operating Expenses, Net

In fiscal year 2017, net operating expenses increased by $73,319,000 primarily due to (1) an increase of
$76,054,000 in salaries and benefits principally from (a) an increase of $31,851,000 in employee wages
from an additional 295 net positions hired in fiscal year 2017 as a result of initiative to fill existing vacancies
and to fill new positions related to the opening of the Warm Springs Extension and eBART Extension, and
from wage increases per contractual labor agreements; (b) an increase of $3,495,000 in health insurance
expense due to increase in the number of employees insured as well as slight increase in insurance premium;
(c) net increase of $11,078,000 in other postemployment benefit expenses associated with the adoption of
GASB 75 which requires recognition of postemployment benefit expenses based on actuarially determined
valuation; (d) increase of $36,117,000 in net pension expense recognized based on the GASB 68
requirement ; and offset by (e) a decrease of $4,852,000 in overtime as part of cost cutting measures
implemented in fiscal year 2017 to balance the budget due to decrease in passenger fares from lower
ridership; and (f) decrease of $1,712,000 in lump sum annual payments to employees based on ridership
performance in fiscal year 2017; (2) a decrease of $4,575,000 in depreciation expense due to higher expense
recognized in fiscal year 2016 from catch up in depreciation recognized for assets capitalized in fiscal year
2016 related to completed projects, which include among others the Oakland Airport Connector and a
portion of the Seismic Upgrade Project; (3) a decrease in labor expenses of $13,039,000 from increase in
labor reimbursements charged to capital grants; (4) increase of $5,120,000 in general liability insurance
due to higher claims and to bring the reserve balance to actuarially determined amount; (5) increase of
$5,095,000 in rental expense from a combination of rent escalation in existing lease agreements and due to
lower expense recognized in fiscal year 2016 from a one-time adjustment associated with closing the
remaining unamortized balance of a deferred rent account established under a prior accounting
pronouncement; and (6) increase of $2,620,000 in miscellaneous expenses primarily from election related
expenses.

In fiscal year 2016, operating expenses, net, increased by $67,605,000, primarily due to (1) an increase of
$41,100,000 in salaries and benefits principally from (a) an increase of $19,820,000 in employee wages
from an additional 177 net positions hired in fiscal year 2016 and wage increases per contractual labor
agreements; (b) an increase of $10,653,000 in overtime for increase operational needs, including major
track maintenance involving closures of some stations; (c) an increase of $4,279,000 in health insurance
expense primarily due to increase of about 9% in insurance premium rates; (d) increase of $3,045,000 in
other postemployment benefit contributions required per actuarially determined valuation, particularly
related to the District’s Retiree Health Benefit Plan; (e) increase of $4,622,000 in pension expense; and
offset by (f) decrease of $1,760,000 in workers compensation expense as actual claims have stabilized in
recent years; (2) an increase of $3,629,000 in maintenance and repairs to keep the system in a good state of
repairs; (3) an increase of $2,386,000 for full year recognition of purchased transportation costs for the
Oakland Airport Connector; (4) an increase of $26,427,000 in depreciation expense due to capitalization
of recently completed projects, which include among others the Oakland Airport Connector and a portion
of the Seismic Upgrade Project; (5) increase of $1,099,000 in public liability insurance costs due to higher
claims; (6) increase of $1,677,000 in traction and power costs due to increase in passenger miles; and offset
by (7) a decrease in expenses of $11,795,000 from increase in labor reimbursements charged to capital
grants.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Nonoperating Revenues, Net

In fiscal year 2017, nonoperating revenues, net, increased by $73,376,000 primarily from (1) an increase
of $4,275,000 in operating financial assistance principally from a $4,000.000 Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) grant allocated to an operating preventive maintenance project; (2) an increase of
$39,778,000 in property tax revenue earmarked based on required debt service payments for the General
Obligation Bonds; (3) an increase of $3,536,000 in property tax revenue for general operations due to
continued rise in property valuations in the San Francisco Bay Area; (4) an increase of $5,638,000 or about
2.3% in sales tax revenue as the economy in the San Francisco Bay Area continues to expand; (5) increase
of $995,000 due to slightly higher interest rates earned from investments (6) an increase of $17,555,000 in
gain from exchange of property associated with the land swap with McArthur Transit Community Partners,
LLC; 7) a decrease of $7,794,000 in interest expense principally from lower outstanding principal balances
of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and Measure AA General Obligation Bonds and from lower interest rates due
to refunding; and offset by (8) increase of $3,874,000 in debt issuance costs associated with the issuances
of the 2017 Measure AA General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2016A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding
Bonds, and the first series of Measure RR General Obligation Bonds (see Note 6); and (9) an increase of
$2,372,000 in the amount of transfer made to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for
restricted account established to fund the District’s rail car replacement project (see Note 8).

In fiscal year 2016, nonoperating revenues, net, decreased by $10,628,000 primarily from (1) a decrease of
$34,513,000 in operating financial assistance principally from (a) decline of $31,471,000 in Federal
Financial Assistance from the FTA related to operating preventive maintenance project; (b) decrease of
$6,507,000 in State Transit Assistance due to continued decline in diesel fuel prices; offset by (c) increase
of $2,108,000 in Measure BB grants representing 9 more months of additional revenue compared to fiscal
year 2015; and (d) increase of $1,596,000 in financial assistance from the State of California from Low
Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) allocation (see Note 9); (2) a decrease of $10,307,000 in
earmarked property tax revenue based on required debt service payments for the General Obligation Bonds,
reduced by an increase of $3,762,000 in property tax revenue for general operations due to continued
increase in property valuations in the San Francisco Bay Area; (3) decrease of $5,121,000 due to absence
of revenue from donated assets recognized in fiscal year 2015; (4) decrease of $1,169,000 associated with
the debt issuance costs incurred in fiscal year 2016 from the General Obligation Bonds and Sales Tax
Revenue Bonds refunding (see Note 6); and offset by (5) an increase of $8,398,000 or about 3.6% in sales
tax revenue as the economy in the San Francisco Bay Area continues to expand; (6) increase of $1,271,000
in gain from exchange of property arising from the land swap between the District and the City of
Livermore; (7) an increase of $2,871,000 due to decrease in interest expense principally from lower
outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and from lower interest rates due to refunding; and (8) an increase
of $23,992,000 due to lower payments to the MTC for restricted account established to fund the District’s
rail car replacement project (see Note 8).

Capital Contributions

The revenues from capital contributions relate to grants and other financial assistance received by the
District from federal, state and local agencies to fund capital projects. The District receives mostly
reimbursement-type grants of which the District has to first incur eligible costs under the provider’s
program before qualifying for the grant resources. Revenues from capital contributions are recognized at
the time when the eligible project costs are incurred.

In fiscal year 2017, revenue from capital contributions increased by $14,147,000 primarily from (1) a net
increase in revenue of $8,902,000 from grants received from the State of California mostly due to (a) an
increase of $24,611,000 in High Speed Passenger Train Bond Funds grants received for the rail car
procurement and Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC) projects; (b) a decrease of $11,208,000 from





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

various projects funded by Proposition 1B Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement, and
Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA); (c) a decrease of $2,840,000 in security related grants funded
by the State; (d) $3,102,000 increase in funding for the Union City Phase 2 Intermodal project ; and (e) a
decrease of $4,665,000 in other grants received from the California Department of Transportation for the
Warm Springs Extension project due to completion of the project in fiscal year 2017; (2) an increase of
$25,339,000 due to funds received from East Contra Costa Transportation Regional Fee and Financing
Authority (ECCRFFA) offset by a decrease of $1,597,000 in Contra Costa Transportation Authority
(CCTA) Measure J funds for the eBART extension project; (3) an increase of $12,635,000 for the HMC
project funded by Valley Transportation Authority; (4) an increase of $5,816,000 from San Francisco
Municipal Transportation Agency for reimbursements received for joint use projects for various stations in
San Francisco;(5) an increase of $3,392,000 from Sprint for the 800Mhz radio project; (6) a net increase
of $8,055,000 in MTC Regional Measure 2 and Alameda County Transportation Commission (ACTC)
Measure B funding for the Warm Springs Extension; and offset by (7) a net decrease of $9,224,000 from
federal fund sources primarily due to (a) a decrease of $5,753,000 in Department of Homeland Security
grants revenue for security related projects; and (b) a decrease of $3,471,000 from slightly lower utilization
of grants funded by the FTA; (8) a decrease of $4,731,000 from Union City for the Phase 2 Intermodal
project; and (9) a net decrease of $35,999,000 from funds received from ACTC Measure B funds , CCTA
Measure J funds, from City of Pittsburg, and from Regional Measure 1 and AB 1171 received from MTC
for the eBART project as it gets closer to completion.

In fiscal year 2016, revenue from capital contributions increased by $71,892,000 primarily from (1) a net
increase in revenue of $5,817,000 from grants received from the State of California mostly due to (a)
increase of $20,122,000 in High Speed Passenger Train Bond Funds grants received for the rail car
procurement and Hayward Maintenance Complex (HMC) projects; (b) increase of $19,289,000 from
various projects funded by Proposition 1B Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement, and
Service Enhancement Account (PTMISEA); offset by (c) a $17,339,000 decrease in realized revenue
associated with reduction in Proposition 1B State Local Partnership Program (SLPP) grants for the Warm
Springs Extension; (d) a decrease of $4,293,000 in security related grants funded by the State; (e)
$7,926,000 reduction for the Union City Phase 2 Intermodal project ; and (f) a decrease of $4,036,000 in
other grants received from the California Department of Transportation mostly for the Warm Springs
Extension project as it gets closer to completion; (2) a net increase of $85,994,000 from federal fund sources
primarily due to (a) reduction in federal grants revenue booked in fiscal year 2015 from recognizing a
revenue offset of $43,900,000 for Port facility fees earned in prior years as a result of transfer of capital
assets to the Port of Oakland, in conformity with the development agreement, upon completion of the
Oakland Connector Project in November 2014; (b) increase of $32,642,000 mostly from higher utilization
of federal funds as part of the current initiative undertaken by the District to spend down old FTA grants;
and (c) increase of $9,452,000 in Department of Homeland Security grants revenue for security related
projects; (3) an increase of $52,628,000 from a combination of funds received from MTC, CCTA Measure
J funds and City of Pittsburg primarily for the eBART extension project; (4) increase of $6,131,000 from
Union City for the Phase 2 Intermodal project; and offset by (5) a decrease of $77,641,000 for funds
received from ACTC from Measure B funds as the Warm Springs Extension project gets closer to
completion.

The major additions in fiscal years 2017 and 2016 to capital projects are detailed on page 11.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Condensed Statements of Net Position

A comparison of the District’s Statements of Net Position as of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015
is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2017 2016 2015

Current assets $  1,744906 $ 1452232 $ 1,368,679
Noncurrent assets - capital assets, net 7,710,216 7,378,033 7,129,693
Noncurrent assets - other 26,479 11,485 31,301

Total assets 9,481,601 8,841,750 8,529,673
Deferred outflow of resources 180,037 74,318 60,645
Current liabilities 383,995 339,134 305,811
Noncurrent liabilities 2,862,106 2,178,331 2,139,843

Total liabilities 3,246,101 2,517,465 2,445,654
Deferred inflow of resources 40,916 49,648 127,472
Net position

Net investment in capital assets 6,246,653 6,055,965 5,816,753

Restricted 190,612 214,849 193,944

Unrestricted (242,644) 78,141 6,495

Total net position $ 6374621 $ 6,348,955 $ 6,017,192

Current Assets

In fiscal year 2017, current assets increased by $292,674,000 principally from (1) net increase of
$295,686,000 in current cash & cash equivalents and current investments primarily accounted for by (a) an
increase of $334,569,000 representing the balance of net proceeds received from issuance of 2017 Measure
RR General Obligation Bonds; (b) a net increase of $24,765,000 in cash and cash equivalents earmarked
for the debt service of Measure AA General Obligation Bonds; offset by (c) a decrease of $15,628,000 in
cash and cash equivalents from the proceeds of the Measure AA General Obligation Bonds for payments
of seismic upgrade related expenses; and (d) a decrease of $14,739,000 in cash and cash equivalents and
current investments due to shift in investments with longer maturity in order to earn higher yield on
investments; and (e) a decrease of $33,281,000 in cash and cash equivalent and current investment due to
timing of payment of vendor invoices; (2) an increase of $9,312,000 in materials and supplies inventory of
which $1,936,000 is for new spare parts of the new trains for the eBART extension, and the remaining
increase of $7,376,000 was due to timing in the usage of supplies; and offset by (3) a decrease of
$11,554,000 in capital grants receivable due to timing in billing and collections.

In fiscal year 2016, current assets increased by $83,553,000 principally from (1) an offsetting increase of
$53,137,000 in cash and cash equivalents and decrease in grants receivable from payments received from
the granting agencies; (2) a net increase of $18,667,000 in cash and cash equivalents primarily from
additional cash advances received, classified as current, for projects funded by Proposition 1B funds; (3)
an increase of $6,894,000 primarily for advance payment of premium for medical insurance, traction power
and rent; (4) an increase of $4,292,000 in materials and supplies inventory due to timing in the usage of
supplies; offset by (5) a decrease of $14,379,000 from cash and cash equivalents held by the Operating
Fund reinvested to noncurrent investments; (6) a decrease of $7,494,000 in unrestricted and restricted cash
and current investment due to timing of payment of vendor invoices; (7) a decrease of $22,664,000 in cash





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

and cash equivalents from the proceeds of the General Obligation Bonds for payments of seismic upgrade
related expenses ($6,838,000) and reduction in the balance of the debt service funds ($15,826,000), as
determined by debt service requirements; (8) a decrease of $7,910,000 in cash and cash equivalents from
the proceeds of the 2012 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds for payment of expenses related to the Oakland Airport
Connector project; (9) a decrease of $14,894,000 in the debt service funds for various Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds, as determined by debt service requirements; and (10) increase of $122,233,000 in current
investments from amounts reclassified from noncurrent investments due to length of maturity of
investments from the end of fiscal year 2016.

Noncurrent Assets - Other

In fiscal year 2017, noncurrent assets — other increased by $14,994,000 primarily from an increase of
$14,739,000 in non-current investments due to a shift in investment strategy to obtain higher yield.

In fiscal year 2016, noncurrent assets — other decreased by $19,816,000 primarily from (1) an increase of
$14,379,000 in noncurrent investments from funds originally held by the District in fiscal year 2015 as
cash and cash equivalents; (2) a net increase of $88,347,000 from additions to operating reserves and
unexpended net earnings set aside to fund capital projects; and (3) decrease of $122,233,000 in noncurrent
investments due to amounts reclassified to current investments based on length of maturity of investments
from the end of fiscal year 2016.

Current Liabilities

In fiscal year 2017, current liabilities increased by $44,861,000 primarily due to (1) an increase of
$5,989,000 in payables to vendors and contractors due to timing of receiving and paying their invoices; (2)
an increase of $1,427,000 in payables to employees due to timing in paying the payroll at the end of the
fiscal year and in the remittances of payroll taxes and benefits; (3) an increase of $1,231,000 in the accruals
of compensated absences estimated to be paid in the following fiscal year; (4) a decrease of $1,245,000 in
interest payable due to decrease in outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and Measure AA General
Obligation Bonds; (5) a decrease of $27,225,000 for payments made during the fiscal year of principal
balances of outstanding Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation Bonds; (6) an increase of $77,130,000
in current portion of outstanding balances of Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation Bonds reclassified
from long-term debt based on debt service schedules; (7) an increase of $1,568,000 in current reserves
required for workers compensation and general liability insurance; (8) an increase of $1,613,000 in
unearned revenue related to passenger fare and parking; and (9) a decrease of $15,459,000 in the current
portion of advances from grantors based on projected fund utilization for fiscal year 2018.

In fiscal year 2016, current liabilities increased by $33,323,000 primarily due to (1) an increase of
$36,988,000 in payables to vendors and contractors due to timing of receiving and paying their invoices;
(2) an increase of $3,604,000 in payables to employees due to timing in paying the payroll at the end of the
fiscal year and in the remittances of payroll taxes and benefits; (3) an increase of $806,000 in the accruals
of compensated absences estimated to be paid in the following fiscal year; (4) a decrease of $3,001,000 in
interest payable; (5) a decrease of $27,540,000 for payments made during the fiscal year of principal
balances of outstanding Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation Bonds; (6) an increase of $27,225,000
in current portion of outstanding balances of Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation Bonds reclassified
from long-term debt; (7) an increase of $1,180,000 in current reserves required for workers compensation
and general liability insurance; (8) reclassification to noncurrent liability leading to a decrease of
$25,815,000 in unearned revenues associated with the deferral in recognizing the property exchange
between MacArthur Community Partners, LLC and the District pending the transfer of title to the land
subject to exchange (see Note 14); (9) an increase of $586,000 in unearned revenue related to passenger
fare and parking; and (10) an increase of $18,848,000 in the current portion of advances from grantors
based on projected fund utilization for fiscal year 2017.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Noncurrent Liabilities

In fiscal year 2017, noncurrent liabilities increased by $683,775,000 principally from (1) a decrease of
$634,000 in payables to vendors and contractors due to timing of receiving and paying their invoices; (2)
an increase of $2,592,000 in payables to employees due to timing in the utilization of accrued compensated
absences; (3) an increase of $317,346,000 in liabilities for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) due
to adoption of GASB 75 in the current fiscal year, which requires full recognition of the obligations per
actuarial calculations; (4) an increase of $147,228,000 in net pension liability primarily due to lower return
on investments; (5) a net increase of $41,984,000 in unamortized premium from issuance of bonds consisted
of (a) an increase of $56,837,000 from the issuance of the 2017 Measure AA General Obligation Refunding
Bonds, 2017 Measure RR General Obligation Bonds and the 2016A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
in the current fiscal year; offset by (b) a decrease of $2,467,000 due to reclassification of unamortized
premium to deferred interest associated with the defeased bonds (see Note 6); and (c) a decrease of
$12,386,000 for amortization of the bond issue premium in fiscal year 2017; (6) a net decrease of
$49,905,000 for portion reclassified to current liability for Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation
Bonds; (7) a decrease of $215,455,000 from the payment and defeasance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
and General Obligation Bonds, offset by increase of $468,535,000 from the issuance of the 2016A Sales
Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2017 Measure AA General Obligation Refunding Bonds, and 2017
Measure RR General Obligation Bonds; (8) a decrease of $2,830,000 in the noncurrent portion of advances
from grantors as funds are expended on capital projects; (9) a decrease of $25,815,000 in unearned revenue,
upon recognition of income after the District transferred the title to the land subject to an exchange
agreement to MacArthur Transit Community Partners, LLC, (see Note 14); (10) a decrease of $1,243,000
primarily due to amortization of prepayments received from long-term fiber optics contracts; (11) an
increase of $1,652,000 for funds received from San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans), representing
2% of Measure A half-cent sales tax imposed in San Mateo County, as part of the Tri-Party Financial
Agreement regarding the operation of the SFO Extension (see Note 9); and (12) an increase of $1,074,000
in noncurrent portion of reserves required for workers compensation and general liability insurance.

In fiscal year 2016, noncurrent liabilities increased by $38,488,000 principally from (1) a decrease of
$2,966,000 in payables to vendors and contractors due to timing of receiving and paying their invoices; (2)
a decrease of $1,700,000 in payables to employees due to timing in the utilization of accrued compensated
absences; (3) an increase of $1,636,000 in noncurrent portion of accruals for unfunded other
postemployment benefits per actuarial calculation; (4) an increase of $69,757,000 in net pension liability
primarily due to lower return on investments; (5) a net increase of $46,022,000 in unamortized premium
from issuance of bonds consisted of: (a) an increase of $73,650,000 from the issuance of the General
Obligation Refunding Bonds and the Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds in the current fiscal year; offset
by (b) a decrease of $18,396,000 due to reclassification of unamortized premium to deferred interest
associated with the defeased bonds (see Note 6); and (c) a decrease of $9,232,000 for amortization of the
bond issue premium in fiscal year 2016; (6) a decrease of $27,225,000 for portion reclassified to current
liability for Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation Bonds; (7) a decrease of $532,385,000 from the
defeasance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds, offset by increase of $463,445,000
from the issuance of the 2015 Sales Tax Revenue and General Obligation Refunding Bonds; (8) a decrease
of $2,185,000 in the noncurrent portion of advances from grantors based on estimated utilization for the
next fiscal year; (9) an increase of $25,815,000 due to reclassification to noncurrent liability of unearned
revenue associated with the deferral in recognizing the property exchange between Richmond Transit, LLC
and the District pending the transfer of title to the land, which is the subject of the exchange (see Note 14);
and (10) a decrease of $1,325,000 in noncurrent portion of reserves required for workers compensation and
general liability insurance.

10





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Capital Assets

Details of the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are as
follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

2017 2016 2015

Land and easements $ 631,156 $ 624,090 $ 576,443
Stations, track, structures and improvements 4,893,658 4,249,176 4,020,786
Buildings 8,068 8,201 8,202
Revenue transit vehicles 83,841 104,480 144,599
Other 821,924 679,384 613,953
Construction in progress 1,271,569 1,712,702 1,765,710

Total capital assets $ 7,710,216 $ 7,378,033 $ 7,129,693

The District’s capital assets before depreciation and retirements showed a net increase of $523,571,000 in
2017 and $446,792,000 in 2016. There were no major retirements in 2017 and 2016. Major additions in
capital assets included capital expenditures for the acquisition and/or major improvements related to the
following assets (dollar amounts in thousands):

2017 2016
Guideway $ 278871 $ 251,782
Passenger stations 67,677 86,083
Maintenance & administration buildings 108,942 51,547
Revenue transit vehicles 45,023 36,066
Automatic fare collections and other equipment 12,769 12,405

Guideway and passenger stations included among others, the costs associated with the Warm Springs
Extension project, which opened on March 25, 2017, the eBART Extension project, and the ongoing
Earthquake Safety Program. A significant portion of the additions to maintenance & administration
buildings are related to the new Hayward Maintenance Complex, which is being constructed to
accommaodate the much larger and more technologically advance new rail fleet. The revenue transit vehicle
expenses are associated with the project to procure and replace the existing rail cars and the new Diesel
Cars for the eBART project.

The District has entered into contracts for the construction of various facilities and equipment totaling
approximately $2,750,000,000 at June 30, 2017 and $2,700,000,000 at June 30, 2016.

11





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt

The outstanding balance of total long-term debt (including current portion but excluding unamortized
balance of bond premium/discounts) as of June 30, 2017, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

2017 2016 2015
Bonds payable from and collateralized by
a pledge of sales tax revenues $ 595,060 $ 629,620 $ 698,800
General Obligation Bonds 891,135 603,495 630,795
Total long-term debt $ 1,486,195 $ 1,233,115 $ 1,329,595

Total long-term debt in fiscal year 2017 increased by $253,080,000 due to (1) an increase of $468,535,000
from bonds issued in fiscal year 2017: (a) $300,000,000 from the first issuance of 2017 Measure RR General
Obligation Bonds; (b) $84,735,000 from issuance of 2017 Measure AA General Obligations Refunding
Bonds; and (c) $83,800,000 from issuance of 2016A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds; and offset by
(2) a decrease of $94,450,000 from defeasance of 2006A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds from the
proceeds, including premiums, of the 2016A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds; (3) a decrease of
$93,780,000 from partial defeasance of 2007 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds from the proceeds,
including premium, of the 2017 Measure AA General Obligations Refunding Bonds; (4) a decrease of
$23,910,000 due to principal payments of current outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds; and (5) a
decrease of $3,315,000 due to payment of current outstanding General Obligation Bonds.

Total long-term debt in fiscal year 2016 decreased by $96,480,000 due to (1) $304,105,000 principal
payment of current outstanding General Obligation Bonds and full defeasance of the 2005 General
Obligation Bonds as well as partial defeasance of the 2007 General Obligation Bonds, offset by the
outstanding balance of $276,805,000 for the new 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds; and (2)
$255,820,000 principal payment of current outstanding Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and full defeasance of
the remaining outstanding 2005 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds and 2006 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, offset by
the outstanding balance of $186,640,000 for the new 2015 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets

On June 22, 2017, The District’s Board of Directors adopted a balanced operating budget of $920,613,000
and a capital budget of $ 997,923,000 for fiscal year 2018.

The fiscal year 2018 budget for operating sources is $35,569,000 higher than the fiscal year 2017 budget
(excluding the impact of a Federal pass-through grant), with projected operating revenue, State Transit
Assistance (STA), property tax, and sales tax growth contributing to the increase despite modest declines
in ridership. In fiscal year 2017 total ridership declined by 3.0% and was 6.0% below budget. The ridership
estimate for fiscal year 2018 reflects a forecast of no growth in core system ridership plus increases in
ridership in fiscal year 2018 due to the first full year of service to Warm Springs/South Fremont station,
a partial year of service to the Silicon Valley Berryessa (SVBX) and eBART extensions. STA revenue is
projected to grow by $17,897,000 due to the passage of Senate Bill 1 (SB1), which provides for new
formula-based funding sources for public transit and augments the existing STA program. In order to
serve current crowded trains and future increases in ridership due to the opening of SVBX and eBART,
the District is continuing its investment in its aging rail vehicle fleet and infrastructure and expanding
shop capacity. The fiscal year 2018 adopted budget supports the District’s continued efforts to reinvest
in the system including the first of at least 775 new rail cars. However, limited funds were available for
additional new programs as revenues are constrained due to slowdowns in ridership growth and sales tax

12





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

income, which together account for 86% of the District’s revenue sources. Sales tax revenue is estimated
to increase by 1.3% ($3,245,000) in fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017. Property tax revenue
is budgeted to increase by 9.4% ($3,623,000) in fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017 due to
rising property values stemming from the Bay Area’s strong housing market. The District continues
investment in the aging infrastructure in fiscal year 2018, at a level of self-help that is among the highest
for a transit operator in the nation. Over the past five years, the District has reinvested over $600 million
of operating funds into critical projects such as new rail cars and station renovation. The fiscal year 2018
capital budget also prioritizes reinvestment, with 67% of the $997,923,000 budget programmed to system
reinvestment projects.

The current operating budget supplies critical funding to capital programs, and continues an annual
$39,000,000 allocation to the Rail Car Sinking Fund as part of a $298,000,000 initial commitment for the
District’s share of the Phase | acquisition of 775 rail cars. In addition, the District’s Board of Directors also
dedicated all incremental revenue generated from the productivity-adjusted inflation-based fare increase
program towards high priority capital projects, including the Rail Car Replacement Program, Hayward
Maintenance Complex, and Train Control Modernization Project. In fiscal year 2018, this amount is
estimated at over $38,000,000. The fiscal year 2018 operating budget also included $29,213,000 for eBART
pre-revenue and other state of good repair needs, such as train control uninterrupted power supply
replacement, information technology upgrades and Millbrae tail track. The “baseline” State of Good Repair
allocation also includes local match on capital grants for stations and facilities renovation, equipment and
other needs. Despite these investments, the District needs to aggressively seek other funding sources to
increase its existing capital resources in order to sustain its current state of reliability. The District’s Asset
Management Program has identified a wide variety of system infrastructure funding needs.

A full 67% of capital expenditures next year are directed to System Renovation, at $ 673,095,000. This
includes the Rail Car Replacement Program, the Hayward Maintenance Complex, station modernization,
replacement of train control system, traction power, trackway renovation and other capital projects. The
second largest is the Earthquake Safety Program including work at Oakland Shop spur track, Transbay
Tube retrofits, and retrofit at Fruitvale and Coliseum Stations. Other capital work on essential security
upgrades, life safety improvements, service and capacity enhancements, and ADA/system accessibility
improvements will also continue.

Contacting the District’s Financial Management

The District’s financial report is designed to provide the District’s Board of Directors, management,
investors, creditors, legislative and oversight agencies, citizens and customers with an overview of the
District’s finances and to demonstrate its accountability for funds received. For additional information
about this report, please contact Rosemarie Poblete, Controller-Treasurer, at 300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box
12688, Oakland, California 94604.

13





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Assets
Current assets
Unrestricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Government receivables
Receivables and other assets
Materials and supplies

Total unrestricted current assets

Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables and other assets

Total restricted current assets
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation
Unrestricted assets
Investments
Receivables and other assets
Restricted assets
Investments
Receivables and other assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Losses on refundings of debt
Pension related
Pension contribution subsequent to measurement date
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
Differences between actual and expected experience
Total deferred outflow of resources

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14

2017 2016
336,042 265,069
310,438 387,204
127,730 139,283

27,691 29,754
45,185 35,873
847,086 857,183
287,416 434,304
608,041 159,675
2,363 1,070
897,820 595,049
1,744,906 1,452,232
1,902,725 2,336,792
5,807,491 5,041,241

13,422 -
169 198

1,317 -
11,571 11,287
7,736,695 7,389,518
9,481,601 8,841,750
17,769 20,468
58,386 50,426

97,875 -
6,007 3,424
180,037 74,318






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Net Position, continued
June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2017 2016
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 229,812 $ 222,409
Unearned revenue 57,005 71,021
Current portion of long-term debt 77,130 27,225
Self-insurance liabilities 20,048 18,479
Total current liabilities 383,995 339,134
Noncurrent liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities 46,376 44,418
Unearned revenue 205,423 234,412
Long-term debt, net of current portion 1,579,562 1,334,403
Self-insurance liabilities, net of current portion 35,903 34,829
Net other postemployement benefits liability 380,392 63,047
Net pension liability 614,450 467,222
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,862,106 2,178,331
Total liabilities 3,246,101 2,517,465
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension related
Net differences between projected and actual earnings - 17,485
Differences between actual and expected experience 2,518 3,663
Changes in assumptions 19,285 28,500
Other Post Employment Benefits related
Net differences between projected and actual earnings 8,209 -
Changes in assumptions 10,904 -
Total Deferred Inflow 40,916 49,648
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 6,426,653 6,055,965
Restricted for debt service and other liabilities 190,612 214,849
Unrestricted (242,644) 78,141
Total net position $ 6,374,621 $ 6,348,955

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15





This Page Intentionally Left Blank.

16





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2017 2016
Operating revenues
Fares $ 485,674 $ 489,583
Other 61,426 56,217
Total operating revenues 547,100 545,800
Operating expenses
Transportation 209,335 200,181
Maintenance 302,699 285,996
Police services 64,236 63,921
Construction and engineering 26,700 23,917
General and administrative 200,376 139,041
Depreciation 191,877 196,452
Total operating expenses 995,223 909,508
Less - capitalized costs (87,158) (74,762)
Net operating expenses 908,065 834,746
Operating loss (360,965) (288,946)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Transactions and use tax - sales tax 247,185 241,547
Property tax 99,163 55,849
Operating financial assistance 77,069 72,794
Contribution for BART car replacement funding exchange program (52,548) (50,176)
Investment income 3,747 2,752
Interest expense (28,423) (36,217)
Gain from exchange of property 24,839 7,284
Other expense, net (5,070) (1,247)
Total nonoperating revenues, net 365,962 292,586
Change in net position before capital contributions 4,997 3,640
Capital contributions 342,270 328,123
Change in net position 347,267 331,763
Net position, beginning of year, as previously reported 6,348,955 6,017,192
Cumulative effect of adopting the provisions of new standards (GASB 75) for employer
reporting of other postemployment benefit obligations (321,601) -
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 6,027,354 6,017,192
Net position, end of year $ 6,374,621 $ 6,348,955

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Other operating cash receipts

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transactions and use tax (sales tax) received
Property tax received

Financial assistance received

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Transactions and use tax (sales tax) received

Property tax received

Capital grants received

Expenditures for facilities, property and equipment
Principal paid on long-term debt

Payments of long-term debt issuance and service costs
Proceeds from issuance of General Obligation Bonds
Proceeds from issuance of Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Deferred interest paid for defeased bonds

Interest paid on long-term debt

Contribution for BART car replacement funding exchange program
Deposit refunded

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Purchase of investments

Investment income (loss)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to

the Statements of Net Position
Current, unrestricted assets - cash and cash equivalents
Current, restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016
485901  $ 490,123
(209,360) (191,834)
(482,696) (467,754)
60,682 56,689
(145,473) (112,776)
196,725 192,919
42,775 37,490
79,712 75,126
319,212 305,535
50,461 48,628
57,490 18,152
332,945 399,253
(516,964) (411,182)
(215,455) (559,925)

(5,070) (1,201)
429,717 319,105
95,655 217,990
(955) (21,641)
(40,865) (47,298)
(52,548) (50,176)
(283) (248)
134,128 (88,543)
138,395 129,003
(525,593) (90,918)
3,416 2,095
(383,782) 40,180
(75,915) 144,396
699,373 554,977
623,458 $ 699,373
336,042 $ 265,069
287,416 434,304
623,458 $ 699,373

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

18





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Enterprise Fund
Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2017 2016
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities
Operating loss $ (360,965) $ (288,946)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation 191,877 196,452
Provision for inventory obsolescence 187 -
Amortization of deferred settlement costs 228 50
Accrual of employee retirement and post employment obligations 25,823 -
Net effect of changes in
Receivables and other assets 2,014 (15,753)
Materials and supplies (9,312) (4,292)
Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,770 637
Self-insurance liabilities 2,643 (145)
Unearned revenue (738) (779)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (145,473) $ (112,776)
Noncash transactions
Capital assets acquired with a liability at year-end $ 98,786 $ 89,715
Increase in fair value of investments (842) 349
Amortization of long-term debt premium and discount (12,386) (9,234)
Bond premium reclassed to losses on refunding of debt (2,467) (18,394)
Amortization of loss on early debt retirement 1,186 1,153
Amortization of ground lease 552 534
Property exchanged with MacArthur Transit Community Partners, LLC (976) -
Other property exchanged, net - 7,191
Gain from exchange of property 24,839 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

19





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Statements of Trust Net Position
June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2017 2016
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,092 $ 1,162
Receivables and other assets 11,041 404
Investments
Domestic common stocks 157,994 101,231
Domestic preferred stocks 11 -
U.S. Treasury obligations 73,793 53,413
Money market mutual funds 20,652 29,893
Mutual funds - equity 220 45,701
Corporate obligations 15,874 12,271
Foreign stocks 8,726 3,024
Foreign obligations 936 1,938
Total investments 278,206 247,471
Total assets 290,339 249,037
Liabilities
Accounts payable 205 149
Pending trades payable 19,983 11,485
Total liabilities 20,188 11,634
Net position restricted for retiree health benefits $ 270,151 $ 237,403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

20





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Retiree Health Benefit Trust
Statements of Changes in Trust Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016
(dollar amounts in thousands)

2017 2016
Additions
Employer contributions $ 28,912 27,145
Investment income
Interest income 4,785 4,636
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 22,277 1,993
Investment expense (534) (513)
Net investment income 26,528 6,116
Total additions 55,440 33,261
Deductions
Benefit payments 22,396 17,422
Legal fees 2 12
Audit fees 16 15
Insurance expense 26 26
Administrative fees 252 150
Total deductions 22,692 17,625
Increase in trust net position 32,748 15,636
Net position restricted for retiree health benefits
Beginning of year 237,403 221,767
End of year $ 270,151 237,403

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

21





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Reporting Entity

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (the District) is a public agency created by the legislature
of the State of California in 1957 and regulated by the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District Act,
as amended, and subject to transit district law as codified in the California Public Utilities Code. The
disbursement of funds received by the District is controlled by statutes and by provisions of various grant
contracts entered into with federal, state and local agencies.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The basic financial statements provide information about the District’s Enterprise Fund and the Retiree
Health Benefit Trust Fund (the Trust). Separate statements for each fund category — proprietary and
fiduciary — are presented. The basic financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Revenues from
property taxes are recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied; revenue from sales taxes are
recognized in the fiscal year when the underlying exchange takes place; revenue from grants is recognized
in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied; and revenue from investments is
recognized when earned.

The Enterprise Fund, a proprietary fund, distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. The District’s operating revenues are generated directly from its transit operations and consist
principally of passenger fares. Operating expenses for the transit operations include all costs related to
providing transit services. These costs include labor, fringe benefits, materials, supplies, services, utilities,
leases and rentals, and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and expenses not meeting these
definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The Trust, a fiduciary fund, is used to account for assets held by the District as a trustee to pay retiree health
care premiums. The assets of the Trust cannot be used to support the District’s programs.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

The District records investment transactions on the trade date. Investments in nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts (e.g. nonnegotiable certificates of deposits and guaranteed investment
contracts) are reported at cost and all other investments are at fair value. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The District measures its investments at fair value and categorizes its fair value
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. As
a matter of policy, the District usually holds investments until their maturity.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net position because their use is subject
to externally imposed stipulations, either by certain bond covenants, laws or regulations or provisions of
debt agreements.

22





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Grants/Contributions

The District receives grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and other agencies of the U.S.
Department of Transportation, the State of California, and local transportation funds for the acquisition of
transit-related equipment, improvements and preventative maintenance. Capital grants receivables
represent amounts expected from governmental agencies to reimburse the District for costs incurred for
capital projects (Notes 8 and 9) and are reported as government receivables on the statement of net position.

Materials and Supplies
Materials and supplies consist primarily of replacement parts for the system and rail vehicles, which are
stated at cost using the average-cost method. Materials and supplies are expensed as consumed.

Bond Discounts, Premiums and Losses on Refunding

The bond discounts, premiums and losses on refunding, are deferred and amortized over the term of the
bonds as a component of interest expense. The unamortized portion of these items, except the losses on
refunding, which are reported as deferred outflows of resources, are presented as a reduction of the face
amount of bonds payable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or at fair value of donated assets, and depreciated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 80 years. The District’s policy is to
capitalize acquisitions of capital assets with a cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life of more than one
year, and all costs related to capital projects, regardless of amounts. Upon disposition, costs and
accumulated depreciation/amortization are removed from the accounts and resulting gains or losses are
included in operations.

The District capitalizes as intangible capital assets, internally generated intangibles such as computer
software. Easements and rights-of-way are capitalized and recorded as part of land and are not amortized
as they have indefinite useful lives while computer software is amortized over a period of 20 years.

Major improvements and betterments to existing facilities and equipment are capitalized. Costs for
maintenance and repairs that do not extend the useful life of the applicable assets are charged to expense as
incurred. The District capitalizes certain interest costs, net of interest income related to tax-free borrowings
until the assets are ready for their intended use. The amount capitalized is the difference between the
interest costs and interest income associated with the applicable tax-free borrowings. Amounts capitalized
were net interest expense of $15,461,000 in fiscal year 2017 and $13,029,000 in fiscal year 2016

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists of (1) prepayments of revenues related to license fees paid by
telecommunication companies for the use of the District’s right of way for wireless accessibility to their
customers; (2) estimated passenger tickets sold but unused; (3) advances received from grant agreements;
(4) prepayments of ground lease revenues (Note 15); and (5) value of property received in exchange for the
District’s property not yet transferred at the end of the fiscal year.

23





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are reported and accrued as a liability in the period incurred. Compensated absences
have a total balance of $64,992,000 as of June 30, 2017 and $61,169,000 as of June 30, 2016 and are shown
in the statements of net position in accounts payable and other liabilities (see Note 5) as follows (dollar
amounts in thousands):

2017 2016
Current liabilities $ 20,130 $ 18,899
Noncurrent liabilities 44,862 42,270
Total $ 64,992 $ 61,169

Pollution Remediation

The recognition of pollution remediation obligations (including contamination) address the current or
potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by estimating costs associated with participating in
pollution remediation activities, such as site assessments and cleanups. There are no known material
remediation obligations that the District is currently or potentially involved in.

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets include capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
position is restricted when constraints are imposed by third parties or by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation and include amounts restricted for debt service and other liabilities. All
other net position is unrestricted. Generally, the District’s policy is to spend restricted resources first when
an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Transactions and Use Tax (Sales Tax) Revenues

The State of California legislation authorizes the District to impose a 0.5% transaction and use tax within
District boundaries, which is collected and administered by the State Board of Equalization. Of the amounts
available for distribution, 75% is paid directly to the District for the purpose of paying operating expenses,
except for the portion that is paid directly to trustees to cover principal and interest payments of maturing
sales tax revenue bonds. The remaining 25% is allocated by the MTC to the District, the City and County
of San Francisco, and the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District for transit services. The District records
the total transactions and use taxes earned (including amounts paid to the trustees) as nonoperating revenue.

Property Taxes, Collection and Maximum Rates

The State of California Constitution Article XIII.A provides that the general purpose maximum property
tax rate on any given property may not exceed 1% of its assessed value unless an additional amount for
general obligation debt has been approved by voters. Assessed value is calculated at 100% of market value
as defined by Article XI11.A and may be adjusted by no more than 2% per year, unless the property is sold
or transferred. The State Legislature has determined the method of distribution of receipts from a 1% tax
levy among the counties, cities, school districts and other districts, such as the District.

24





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The District receives an allocation of property tax revenues for transit operations. Additionally, beginning
in fiscal year 2006, the District received property tax allocations for the debt service payments on the 2005,
2007, 2013 and 2015 and 2017 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds. The District will also receive
beginning in fiscal year 2018, property tax allocation for the debt service of Measure RR General Obligation
Bonds. As required by the law of the State of California, the District utilizes the services of each of the
three BART Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco for the assessment and collection of
taxes for District purposes. District taxes are collected at the same time and on the same tax rolls as county,
school district and other special district taxes. Property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year of
levy. Assessed values are determined annually by the Assessor’s Offices of City and County of San
Francisco, County of Alameda and County of Contra Costa on January |, and become a lien on the real
properties at January 1. The levy date for secured and unsecured properties is July 1 of each year. Secured
taxes are due November | and February 1 and are delinquent if not paid by December 10 and April 10,
respectively. Unsecured property tax is due on July 1 and becomes delinquent after August 31.

Operating Financial Assistance
Financial assistance grants for operations from federal, state and local agencies are reported as nonoperating
revenue in the period in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied (Notes 8 and 9).

Collective Bargaining
Approximately 86% of the District’s employees are subject to collective bargaining. The current bargaining
units consist of the following:

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME), Local 3993
Amalgamated Transit Union (ATU), Local 1555

Service Employees International Union (SEIU), Local 1021

BART Police Officers Association (BPOA)

BART Police Managers Association (BPMA)

Capitalized Costs

The District initially charges employee salaries, wages and benefits to operating expenses by functional
expense category. Labor costs included in those amounts that are associated with capital projects are
subsequently adjusted to be included in the cost of the related capital asset. This adjustment is reflected in
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as a reduction of operating expenses. The
amounts of $87,158,000 and $74,762,000 were capitalized during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
District’s Pension Plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

25





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassification and Presentation

Certain reclassifications of prior year’s balances have been made to conform with the current year
presentation. The reclassifications have no effect on the financial position, results of operations, or cash
flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans (GASB 74), which establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements
for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) plans, as well as for certain nonemployer governments that
have a legal obligation to provide financial support to OPEB provided to the employees of other entities.
GASB 74 also includes requirements to address financial reporting for assets accumulated for purposes of
providing defined benefit OPEB through OPEB plans that are not administered through trusts that meet the
specified criteria. GASB 74 is effective for the District’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. As of July 1,
2016, the District implemented this Statement, which resulted in significant changes in the footnote
disclosures and required supplementary information for the District’s Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund
standalone report for the year ending June 30, 2017.

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 75), which establishes new accounting and financial reporting
requirements for governments whose employees are provided with OPEB plans, improving the accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for OPEB and provides information provided by
state and local government employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.
The statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements
by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. GASB 75 is required to be implemented for the
District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. However, the District elected to early implement the standard
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. As of July 1, 2016, the District implemented this Statement, which
resulted in a restatement of beginning net position by $321.6 million, recognition of $19.1 million of
deferred inflows of resources, and establishment of a net OPEB liability of $380.4 million.

In August 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures (GASB 77), which requires
governments that enter into tax abatement agreements to disclose additional information about the
agreements including a brief descriptive information, the gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the
period, and commitments made by a government, other than to abate taxes, as part of a tax abatement
agreement. GASB 77 is effective for the District’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not
have a significant impact to the District’s financial statements.

In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-
Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans (GASB 78). The objective of this statement is to address a practice
issue regarding the scope and applicability of GASB 78 associated with pensions provided through certain
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to state or local governmental employers
whose employees are provided with such pensions. Such plans are not considered a state or local

26





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

government pension plan and are used to provide benefits to both employees of state and local governments
and employees of employers that are not state or local governments. GASB 78 is effective for the District’s
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a significant impact to the District’s financial
statements.

In January 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units —
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 (GASB 80), to improve financial reporting by clarifying the
financial statement presentation requirements for certain component units. This statement amends the
blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of component units of all state and local
governments, which was established in paragraph 53 of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity.
GASB 80 is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a
significant impact to the District’s financial statements.

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB Statements No.
67, No. 68, and No. 73 (GASB 82), to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statements
No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,
and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the
Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. The
statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in required
supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the
guidance in Actuarial Standards of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of
payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. GASB 82 is
effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a significant impact
to the District’s financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements That Have Not Been Adopted

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements (GASB 81), to
improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing
recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the
agreement. This statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable
split-interest agreement recognize revenues, assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. GASB 81
is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The
statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). An
ARO is a legally enforced liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government
that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets
should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this statement. The requirements of this statement are
effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The statement establishes
criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria
generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The statement
provides recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of
these agreements. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June
30, 2020.

27





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. The objective of the statement is to
address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB
Statements. The statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other
postemployment benefits). The requirements of this statement are effective for the District’s fiscal year
ending June 30, 2018.

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The primary
objective of the statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transitions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired
with only existing resources — resources other than the proceeds of the refunding debt — are placed in an
irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. The requirements of this statement are effective
for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of the statement is to improve the
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires recognition of certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes
a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the
right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and
an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the consistency of information about governments’ leasing
activities. The requirements of this statement are effective for the District’s fiscal year ending June 30,
2021.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
A. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments of the Enterprise Fund

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are reported in the Enterprise Fund as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

2017 2016
Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 336,042 $ 287,416 $ 623458 $ 265,069 $ 434304 $ 699,373

Investments 310,438 608,041 918,479 387,204 159,675 546,879
Noncurrent assets

Investments 13,422 1,317 14,739

Total $ 659902 $ 896,774 $ 1,556,676 $ 652,273 $ 593,979 $ 1,246,252

28





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Investment Policy

The California Public Utilities Code, Section 29100, and the California Government Code (CGC), Section
53601, provide the basis for the District’s investment policy. To meet the objectives of the investment
policy — (1) preservation of capital, (2) liquidity, and (3) yield — the investment policy, approved by the
Board of Directors, specifically identifies the types of permitted investments, as well as any maturity limits
and other restrictions. The following table presents the authorized investment, requirements, and
restrictions per the CGC and the District’s investment policy:

Maximum Maximum % Maximum % with Minimum
Maturity (1) of Portfolio One Issuer Rating (2)
Investment Type CGC District CGC District CGC District CGC District
U.S. Treasury Obligations (bills, bonds, or notes) 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
U.S. Agencies Syears  5years None None None None None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 180 days 40% 40% 30% 30% None None
Commercial Paper (3) 270 days 270 days 25% 25% 10% 10% P1 P1
Negotiable Certificates 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None None None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 1 year None None None None None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92days 90 days 20% 20% None None None None
Local Agency Investment Fund N/A N/A None 20% None None None None
Non-Negotiable Time Deposits 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None None None
Medium Term Notes/Bonds (3) 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None A A
Municipal Securities of California Local Agencies 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
Mutual Funds N/A N/A 20% 20% 10% 10% AAA AAA
Notes, Bonds, or Other Obligations 5 years 5 years None None None None None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 5 years 20% 20% None None AAA AAA
Financial Futures (3) N/A N/A None None None None None None

Footnotes
(1) In the absence of a specified maximum, the maximum is 5 years.
(2) Minium credit rating categories include modifications (+/-).

(3) District will not invest in these investment types unless specifically authorized by the Board.

29





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The District must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with fiscal agents under the terms of
certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds and funds set aside for debt service. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Maximum
Maximum Minimum Credit Percentage of Maximum Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality Portfolio In One Issuer
Securities of the U.S. Government and its
agencies None None None None
Housing Authority Bonds or project
notes issued by public agencies or
municipalities fully secured by the U.S. None None None None
Obligations of any state, territory, or
commonwealth of the U.S. or any agency
or political subdivisions thereof None Aal/AA+ None None
Collateralized time deposits None A-1 None None
Commercial paper None Aaa/AAA None None
Repurchase agreements None None None None
Money market mutual funds None None None None
Investment agreements None Aal/AA+ None None
Other investments approved by the
Board that will not adversely affect
ratings on bonds None None None None
Corporate bonds, notes, and debentures None Aal/AA+ None None
Local Agency Investment Fund None None None None

30





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
One of the District’s primary objectives is to provide sufficient liquidity to meet its cash outflow needs,
however, the District does not have any policies specifically addressing interest rate risk, except as outlined
in the CGC. A summary of investments by type of investments and by segmented time distribution as of
June 30, 2017 and 2016 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less
2017 Than 1 1-5 6-10
Money market mutual funds* $ 414387 $ 414387 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury 502,770 502,770 - -
U.S. government agencies 39,109 39,109 - -
Commercial paper 237,344 237,344 - -
California municipal bonds 6,136 6,136 - -
Foreign government bonds 34,639 20,005 14,634 -
Certificates of deposit 865 760 105 -
Total investments 1235250 $ 1,220511 $ 14,739 $ -
Deposits with banks 318,432
Imprest funds 2,994
Total cash and investments $ 1,556,676
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Less
2016 Than 1 1-5 6-10
Money market mutual funds* $ 80,676 $ 80,676 $ - $ -
U.S. Treasury 173,968 173,968 - -
U.S. government agencies 334,937 334,937 - -
Commercial paper 208,917 208,917 - -
California municipal bonds 26,974 26,974 - -
Foreign government bonds 25,037 25,037 - -
Certificates of deposit 962 962 - -
Total investments 851,471 $ 851,471 $ - $ -
Deposits with banks 391,858
Imprest funds 2,923
Total cash and investments $ 1,246,252

* weighted-average maturity

31





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

The District’s credit rating risk is governed by Section 53601 of the CGC which, among others, limits
investments in money market mutual funds to those funds with the highest evaluations granted by the rating
agencies, which is AAAm. The District has investments in U.S. Treasury and government agencies, and
in money market mutual funds. There are no investment limits on the securities of U.S. Treasury or certain
U.S. government agencies that are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government. The
following is a summary of the credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure as rated by
Standard & Poor’s, Fitch Ratings and/or Moody’s as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Credit Ratings
2017 AAA AA A Not Rated
Money market mutual funds $ 414387 $ 359553 $ - $ 54834 $ -
U.S. Treasury 502,770 502,770 - - -
U.S. government agencies 39,109 39,109 - - -
Commercial paper 237,344 - - 237,344 -
California municipal bonds 6,136 - 6,136 - -
Foreign government bonds 34,639 34,639 - - -
Certificates of deposit 865 - - - 865
Total investments 1235250 $ 936,071 $ 6136 $ 292178 $ 865
Deposits with banks 318,432
Imprest funds 2,994

Total cash and investments $ 1,556,676

Credit Ratings

2016 AAA AA A Not Rated
Money market mutual funds $ 80676 $ 28463 $ - $ 52213 $ -
U.S. Treasury 173,968 173,968 - - -
U.S. government agencies 334,937 334,937 - - -
Commercial paper 208,917 - - 208,917 -
California municipal bonds 26,974 - 26,974 - -
Foreign government bonds 25,037 25,037 - - -
Certificates of deposit 962 - - - 962
Total investments 851,471 $ 562,405 $ 26974 $ 261,130 $ 962
Deposits with banks 391,858
Imprest funds 2,923

Total cash and investments $ 1,246,252

32





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value
of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs (the District does
not value any of its investments using Level 3 inputs).

All of the District’s investments fall under the Marketable/Actively traded assets category. The custodian
banks rely on the pricing by nationally known vendors. In the event that a particular category is not priced
by the primary pricing vendor, the custodian banks engage a secondary vendor or other sources.

The following is a summary of the fair value of investments of the District as of June 30, 2017 and June
30, 2016 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy

Investments at

Fair Value Lewl 6/30/2017  (Lewel 1) (Lewel 2) 6/30/2016 (Lewel 1) (Lewel 2)
Money market mutual funds $ 414,387 $ - $ 414387 $ 80676 $ - $ 80,676
U.S. Treasury 502,770 502,770 - 173,968 173,968 -
U.S. government agencies 39,109 - 39,109 334,937 - 334,937
Commercial paper 237,344 - 237,344 208,917 - 208,917
California municipal bonds 6,136 - 6,136 26,974 - 26,974
Foreign government bonds 34,639 - 34,639 25,037 - 25,037
Total Investments at Fair
Value 1234385 $ 502,770 $ 731,615 850,509 $ 173968 $ 676,541

Excluded from FMV
hierarchy reporting
Certificate of deposit 865 962
Total investments $ 1,235,250 $ 851471

Investments valued at $502,770,000 in fiscal year 2017 and $173,968,000 in fiscal year 2016 are classified
in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. This asset category mainly consists of U.S Treasury securities which
are valued using Institutional Bond quotes, i.e., quoted market prices in active markets.

Total investments valued at $731,615,000 in fiscal year 2017 and $676,541,000 in fiscal year 2016 are
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was determined using Matrix Pricing techniques
maintained by various pricing vendors. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’
relationship to benchmark quoted prices.

33





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District does not have a policy to limit investments in any one issuer to no more than 5% of the total
portfolio. However, the District is required to disclose investments that represent a concentration of 5% or
more of investments in any one issuer other than U.S. Treasury obligations. At June 30, 2017, the District
did not have investments in any one issuer other than U.S. Treasury obligations that exceeded 5% of the
District’s total investment portfolio. At June 30, 2016, the District had investments in Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation and Federal Home Loan Banks in the amounts of $111,418,000 (or 13.10%) and
$208,500,000 (or 24.5%), respectively, of the District’s total investment portfolio.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may
not be returned. The CGC Section 53652 requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure governmental deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged
securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s deposits. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure governmental deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of
150% of the District’s total deposits. Such collateral is considered to be held in the District’s name.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the District
may not be able to recover the value of its investments. The exposure to the District is limited as the
District’s investments are held in the District’s name by a third-party safe-keeping custodian that is separate
from the counterparty or in the custody of a trust department, as required by bond covenants.

B. Investments of the Retiree Health Benefit Trust

Investment Policy

The investment objective of the Trust is to achieve consistent long-term growth for the Trust and to
maximize income consistent with the preservation of capital for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing
benefits to participants and their beneficiaries and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the Trust.
The District’s Board of Directors establishes the general investment policy and guidelines for the Trust.
Allowable investments under the Trust investment guidelines include:

e Cash equivalents such as U.S. Treasury bills, money market mutual funds, short-term interest fund
(STIF) trusts, commercial paper rated AL/P1, banker’s acceptances, certificates of deposits and
repurchase agreements;

o Fixed income securities, which include U.S. agency and corporation bonds (including Yankees)
and preferred stock and Rule 144A issues, and mortgage or asset-backed securities; and

e Equity securities, including U.S. traded common, preferred stocks and convertible stocks and
bonds, including American Depository Receipts.

34





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Interest rate risk
The Trust’s investment policies mitigate exposure to changes in interest rates by requiring that the assets
of the Trust be invested in accordance with the following asset allocation guidelines:

Asset Class Minimum Maximum Preferred
Equity securities 45% 70% 60%
Fixed income securities 25% 45% 35%
Cash equivalents 3% 10% 5%

Fixed income securities have the following maturity restrictions: (1) maximum maturity for any single
security is 40 years, and (2) the weighted average portfolio maturity may not exceed 25 years.

A summary of investments by type of investments and by segmented time distribution as of June 30, 2017
and 2016 is as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less More
2017 Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 73793 $ 11,158 $ 20,196 $ 26,243 $ 16,196
Money market mutual funds* 20,652 20,652 - - -
Corporate obligations 15,874 2,117 8,826 3,053 1,878
Foreign obligations 936 936 - - -
Investments subject to interest rate risk 111,255 $ 34863 $ 29,022 $ 29296 $ 18,074
Domestic common stocks 157,994
Domestic preferred stocks 11
Mutual funds - equity 220
Foreign stocks 8,726
Total investments $ 278,206

35





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less More
2016 Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 53413 $ 10926 $ 20,713 $ 16895 $ 4,879
Money market mutual funds* 29,893 29,893 - - -
Corporate obligations 12,271 817 6,707 1,836 2,911
Foreign obligations 1,938 - 971 622 345
Investments subject to interest rate risk 97515 $ 41636 $ 28391 $ 19353 $ 8135
Domestic common stocks 101,231
Mutual funds - equity 45,701
Foreign stocks 3,024
Total investments $247,471

* weighted-average maturity

36





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

The Trust’s credit risk policy is defined in its Statement of Investment Policy approved by the District’s
Board of Directors. The policy states that the Board recognizes that some risk is necessary to produce long-
term investment results that are sufficient to meet the Trust’s objectives and that the Trust’s investment
managers are expected to make reasonable efforts to control risk. The investment policy requires that all
of the Trust’s assets be invested in liquid securities, defined as securities that can be transacted quickly and
efficiently for the Trust, with minimal impact on market prices. The investment policy also demands that
no single investment shall exceed five percent of the total Trust assets, at market value, except obligations
of the U.S. government, short-term money market funds, index funds and other diversified commingled
accounts; and for actively managed equity accounts, where, for issues that comprise more than 4% of the
account’s stated benchmark, the limit shall be 125% of the weight of the common stock benchmark.

The following is a summary of the credit quality distribution for securities with credit exposure as rated
by Standard & Poor’s and/or Moody’s as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Credit Ratings

2017 AAA AA A BBB
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 73793 $ 73793 $ - $ - $ -
Money market mutual funds 20,652 20,652 - - -
Corporate obligations 15,874 2,596 1,234 7,346 4,698
Foreign obligations 936 - - 936 -
Investments subject to credit risk 111,255 $ 97,041 $ 1234 $ 8282 $ 4,698
Domestic common stocks 157,994
Domestic preferred stocks 11
Mutual funds - equity 220
Foreign stocks 8,726
Total investments $ 278,206

Credit Ratings

2016 AAA AA A BBB
U.S. Treasury obligations $ 53,413 $ - $ 53413 $ - $ -
Money market mutual funds 29,893 29,893 - - -
Corporate obligations 12,271 88 356 5,288 6,539
Foreign obligations 1,938 - - 1,255 683
Investments subject to credit risk 97515 $ 29981 $ 53,769 $ 6543 $ 7,222
Domestic common stocks 101,231
Mutual funds - equity 45,701
Foreign stocks 3,024
Total investments $ 247,471

37





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Trust categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value
of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs (the Trust does
not value any of its investments using Level 3 inputs).

All of the Trust investments fall under the Marketable/Actively traded assets category. The custodian bank
relies on the pricing by nationally known vendors. In the event that a particular category is not priced by
the primary pricing vendor, the custodian bank engages a secondary vendor or other sources.

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the Trust as of
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fair Value Hierarchy

Investments by

Fair Value Level 6/30/2017 (Level 1) (Level 2) 6/30/2016 (Level 1) (Level 2)

Domestic common stocks $ 157,994 $ 157,994 $ - $ 101,231 $ 101,231 $
Domestic preferred stocks 11 11
Foreign stocks 8,726 8,726 - 3,024 3,024 -
Money market mutual funds 20,652 - 20,652 29,893 - 29,893
U.S. Treasury obligations 73,793 51,062 22,731 53,413 43,868 9,545
Corporate obligations 15,874 - 15,874 12,271 - 12,271
Foreign obligations 936 - 936 1,938 - 1,938
Total Investments by fair value level 277,986 $ 217,793 $ 60,193 201,770 $ 148,123 % 53,647
Investment measured at Net Asset Value

Mutual funds - equity 220 45,701

Total Investments measured at fair value $ 278,206 $ 247,471

Investments classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy valued at $217,793,000 and $148,123,000 in
fiscal year 2017 and 2016, respectively, are valued using quoted prices in active markets.

Investments amounting to $60,193,000 in fiscal year 2017 and $53,647,000 in fiscal year 2016 are classified
under Level 2 of the fair market value hierarchy and are valued using Matrix pricing, which is used to value
securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices.

Mutual fund-equity totaling $220,000 and $45,701,000 in 2017 and 2016, respectively, are valued using
the Net Asset Value (NAV) methodology. Per GASB72, the government entity should be permitted to
calculate the fair value of certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value using a
practical expedient method based on the investment’s NAV per share. A mutual fund may include several
different underlying investments. The NAV is derived from the value of these investments, accrued
income, anticipated cash flows (maturities), management fees and other fund expenses. Certain
investments within the fund may be deemed unobservable and not readily determined in an active market.

38





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

2.  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Trust’s investment policies mitigate exposure to concentration of credit risk by diversifying the
portfolio and limiting investments in any one issuer to no more than 5% of the total portfolio. As of June
30, 2017, no single issuer comprised more than 5% of the total portfolio for the Trust.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the Trust
may not be able to recover the value of its investments. The exposure to the Trust is limited as the Trust’s
investments are in the custody of a third-party custodian that is separate from the counterparty.

3. Receivables and Other Assets

The District reports the following aggregated accounts as receivables and other assets in the statements of
net position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollar amounts in thousands):

2017 2016
Interest receivable - other investments $ 23716 $ 2,046
Deferred charges 197 227
Deposit for power supply 11,571 11,287
Off-site ticket vendor receivable 2,659 2,393
Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority receivable (Note 14) 1,510 1,044
Property tax receivable 1,157 2,259
Prepaid expenses 13,883 15,240
Imprest deposits for self-insurance liabilities 1,975 2,029
Other 7,755 7,019
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,289) (1,235)
Total receivables and other assets $ 41794 $ 42309
Current, unrestricted portion $ 27691 $ 29,754
Current, restricted portion 2,363 1,070
Noncurrent, unrestricted portion 169 198
Noncurrent, restricted portion 11571 11,287
Total receivables and other assets, as
presented in the basic financial statements $ 41794 $ 42309

39





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Capital Assets

Changes to capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):

Additions Retirements
Lives and and
(Years) 2016 Transfers Transfers 2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and easements N/A $ 624090 $ 8042 $ (976) $ 631,156
Construction in progress N/A 1,712,702 525,236 (966,369) 1,271,569

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,336,792 533,278 (967,345) 1,902,725
Capital assets, being depreciated
Tangible asset
Stations, track, structures and improvements 5-80 5,469,838 738,964 - 6,208,802
Buildings 80 10,732 - - 10,732
System-wide operation and control 20 635,287 52,469 - 687,756
Revenue transit vehicles 30 1,123,559 - - 1,123,559
Service and miscellaneous equipment 3-20 361,695 44,498 (689) 405,504
Capitalized construction and start-up costs 30 98,305 - - 98,305
Repairable property items 30 375,261 118,041 - 493,302
Intangible asset
Information systems 20 54,488 4,356 - 58,844

Total capital assets, being depreciated 8,129,165 958,328 (689) 9,086,804
Less accumulated depreciation (3,087,924) (191,877) 488 (3,279,313)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 5,041,241 766,451 (201) 5,807,491

Total capital assets, net $ 7378033 $ 1299729 $ (967546) $ 7,710,216

40





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2015

Capital Assets (Continued)

Changes to capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):
Additions Retirements

Lives and and
(Years) 2015 Transfers Transfers 2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and easements N/A $ 576443 $ 49555 $ (1,908) $ 624,090
Construction in progress N/A 1,765,710 446,792 (499,300 1,712,702
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,342,153 496,347 (501,708) 2,336,792
Capital assets, being depreciated
Tangible asset
Stations, track, structures and improvements 5-80 5,143,450 326,388 - 5,469,838
Buildings 80 10,732 - - 10,732
System-wide operation and control 20 628,877 6,429 (19 635,287
Revenue transit vehicles 30 1,123,559 - - 1,123,559
Service and miscellaneous equipment 3-20 319,845 42,990 (1,140) 361,695
Capitalized construction and start-up costs 30 98,305 - - 98,305
Repairable property items 30 311,819 63,502 (60) 375,261
Intangible asset
Information systems 20 43552 10,936 - 54,488
Total capital assets, being depreciated 7,680,139 450,245 (1,219) 8,129,165
Less accumulated depreciation (2,892,599) (196,452) 1,127 (3,087,924)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 4,787,540 253,793 (92) 5,041,241
Total capital assets, net $ 7129693 $ 750240 $ (501,8000 $ 7,378,033

After the completion of the San Francisco International Airport Extension in 2004, which added 38 miles
of track and 10 new stations to the system, the District embarked on three expansion projects, which include
the East Contra Costa BART Extension (eBART) in Contra Costa County, the Oakland Airport Connector
(OAC) in Alameda County and the Warm Springs Extension (WSX) also in Alameda County. Revenue
operations for the OAC started in November 2014. The eBART is expected to be completed in spring of
2018.

The Warm Springs Extension Project (WSX) is a 5.4-mile BART extension south from the Fremont BART
Station into the Warm Springs District of Fremont. There were two major construction contracts for WSX,
the Fremont Central Park Subway Construction Contract (Subway) and the Design-Build Line, Track,
Station and Systems Contract (LTSS). The Subway contract, which constructed a cut and cover subway
structure through Fremont Central Park and beneath a portion of Lake Elizabeth and the operating Union
Pacific Rail Road (UPRR) freight track along the park’s east side, was completed in 2013. The LTSS
contract includes the final design and construction of the Warm Springs / South Fremont Station, the
remaining trackway including the tie-in at the Fremont Station, and the transit systems (traction power,
electrification, train control, and communications) for the entire extension, and provisions for a future
station in Irvington. The WSX commenced revenue service in March 2017.

41





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2015

4. Capital Assets (Continued)

The District has entered into contracts for the construction of various facilities and equipment totaling

approximately $2,750,000,000 at June 30, 2017 and $2,700,000,000 at June 30, 2016.

5. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

The District reports the following aggregated payables as accounts payable and other liabilities in the

statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollar amounts in thousands):

2017 2016

Payable to vendors and contractors $ 151622 $ 146,266
Employee salaries and benefits 35,127 33,701
Accrued compensated absences 64,992 61,169
Accrued interest payable 24,447 25,691
Liabilities at the end of year 276,188 266,827
Less: noncurrent portion (46,376) (44,418)
Net current portion $ 229812 $ 222,409

42





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2015

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is summarized as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):

2006A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2012A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2012B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2015A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2016A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds

2007B General Obligation Bonds - Measure AA

2013C General Obligation Bonds - Meausure AA

2015D General ObligationRefunding Bonds - Measure AA
2017E General Obligation Refunding Bonds - Measure AA
2017A General Obligation Bonds - Measure RR

Add (less):
Original issue premiums and discounts, net

Long-term debt, net of accumulated accretion and
debt-related items

Less: current portion of long-term debt

Net long-term debt

43

Payments/

2016 Additions Amortization 2017

$ 95840 $ - $  (95840) $ -
121,065 - (2,925) 118,140
121,305 - (1,640) 119,665
104,770 - (2,555) 102,215
186,640 - (15,400) 171,240
- 83,800 - 83,800
101,145 - (97,095) 4,050
225,545 - - 225,545
276,805 - - 276,805
- 84,735 - 84,735
- 300,000 - 300,000
1,233,115 468,535 (215,455) 1,486,195
128,513 56,837 (14,853) 170,497
1,361,628 $ 525,372 $ (230,308) 1,656,692
(27,225) (77,130)
$ 1,334,403 $ 1,579,562





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is summarized as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):

2005 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2006 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2006A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2012B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2015A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds
2005A General Obligation Bonds - Measure AA
2007B General Obligation Bonds - Measure AA
2013C General Obligation Bonds - Measure AA
2015D General Obligation Refunding Bonds - Measure AA

Add (less):
Original issue premiums and discounts, net

Long-term debt, net of accumulated accretion and
debt-related items

Less: current portion of long-term debt

Net long-term debt

Payments/

2015 Additions Amortization 2016

$ 246380 $ $ (246,380) $ -

1,155 (1,155) -
96,985 (1,145) 95,840
122,685 (1,620) 121,065
124,290 (2,985) 121,305
107,305 - (2,535) 104,770
- 186,640 - 186,640

35,730 - (35,730) -
369,520 (268,375) 101,145
225,545 - - 225,545
- 276,805 - 276,805
1,329,595 463,445 (559,925) 1,233,115
82,491 73,650 (27,628) 128,513
1,412,086 $ 537,095 $ (587,553) 1,361,628
(27,540) (27,225)
$ 1,384,546 $ 1,334,403

44






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2005 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2005 Refunding Bonds)

In August 2005, the District issued the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Refunding Series 2005A totaling
$352,095,000. The 2005 Refunding Bonds were used to advance refund $349,925,000 in aggregate
principal amount of sales tax revenue bonds related to the Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1995, 1998,
1999, and 2001. The 2005 Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and
collateralized by a pledge of sales tax revenues. In October 2015, the remaining outstanding balance of
$231,250,000 were refunded from the proceeds of the 2015 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds.

2006 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (the 2006 Bonds)

In June 2006, the District issued Sales Tax Revenue Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
$64,915,000 to finance a portion of the cost of construction of a new transit station, the West
Dublin/Pleasanton Station, including two parking facilities, pedestrian bridges, a bus intermodal facility
and related improvements. The 2006 Bonds are special obligations of the District payable from and secured
by a pledge of sales tax revenues. In October 2012, the 2006 Bonds with principal amounts totaling
$63,615,000 were refunded from the proceeds of the 2012 Series A Refunding Bonds. In October 2015, the
remaining outstanding balance of $720,000 were refunded from the proceeds of the 2015 Series A Sales
Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds.

2006 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2006 A Refunding Bonds)

On November 30, 2006, the District issued the 2006 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, with a
principal amount of $108,110,000 to advance refund a portion of the 2001 Bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of $102,560,000. The 2006A Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the District,
payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. In August 2016, the remaining outstanding
principal balance of $94,450,000 were refunded from the proceeds of the 2016A Refunding Bonds.

2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2010 Refunding Bonds)

On May 5, 2010, the District issued the 2010 Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, with a principal amount
of $129,595,000 to provide sufficient funds to refund a portion of the 1998 Bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of $143,825,000, to fund a deposit to the 2010 Refunding Bonds Reserve Account in the
bond reserve fund and to pay costs of issuance of the 2010 Refunding Bonds. The District funded from its
own funds the Bond Reserve Fund in the amount of $14,202,000. The 2010 Refunding Bonds are special
obligations of the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2017
the 2010 Refunding Bonds consist of serial bonds amounting to $118,140,000 with interest rates ranging
from 4.0% to 5.0%, with various maturity dates from 2018 to 2029.

2012 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2012A Refunding Bonds)

On October 4, 2012, the District issued the 2012 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, with a
principal amount of $130,475,000 and a premium of $23,439,000 to provide sufficient funds, along with
$10,690,000 in other District funds, to refund $51,605,000 principal amount of the Association of Bay Area
Governments BART SFO Extension Bond (Airport Premium Fare), 2002A Bonds, to refund the remaining
balance of the 2001 Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of $41,745,000, to refund $63,615,000
principal amount of the 2006 Bonds, and to fund costs of issuance of the 2012A Refunding Bonds. The
2012A Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of
sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2017, the 2012A Refunding Bonds consist of serial bonds amounting to
$87,330,000 with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% with various maturity dates from 2018 to 2033,
and a term bond with interest rate of 5% in the amount of $32,335,000 due in 2037.

45





6.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2012 Series B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds (the 2012B Bonds)

On October 4, 2012, the District issued the 2012 Series B Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, with a principal
amount of $111,085,000 to provide financing for the Oakland International Airport Connector Project and
to fund the costs of issuance. The 2012B Bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and
secured by a pledge of sales tax revenues. At June 30, 2017, the 2012B Bonds consist of serial bonds
amounting to $16,190,000 with interest rates ranging from 1.341% to 2.677% with various maturity dates
from 2018 to 2023, a term bond in the amount of $15,670,000 with interest rate of 3.477% due in 2028, a
term bond in the amount of $18,815,000 with interest rate of 4.087% due in 2033 and a term bond in the
amount of $51,540,000 with interest rate of 4.287% due in 2043.

2015 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2015A Refunding Bonds)

In October 2015, the District issued the 2015 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, with a
principal amount of $186,640,000 and a premium of $31,350,000, along with other District funds, to
provide sufficient funds to (1) refund $231,250,000 principal amount of the District’s 2005 Refunding
Bonds; (2) refund $720,000 principal amount of the District’s 2006 Bonds; and (3) fund costs of issuance
associated with the 2015A Refunding Bonds. The 2015A Refunding Bonds are special obligations of the
District, payable from and secured by a pledge of Sales Tax Revenues derived from a transaction and use
tax levied by the District in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and County of San Francisco.
At June 30, 2017, the 2015A Refunding Bonds consist of serial bonds amounting to $171,240,000 with
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%, with various maturity dates from 2018 to 2035. The refunding
resulted in economic gain of $41,601,000 and cash flow savings of $59,633,000.

2016 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2016A Refunding Bonds)

In August 2016, the District issued 2016 Series A Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, with a principal
amount of $83,800,000 and a premium of $11,855,000, along with other District funds, to provide sufficient
funds to (1) refund $94,450,000 principal amount of the District’s 2006 A Refunding Bonds, and (2) to fund
costs of issuance associated with the 2016A Refunding Bonds. The 2016A Refunding Bonds are special
obligations of the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of Sales Tax Revenues derived from a
transaction and use tax levied by the District in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and
County of San Francisco. At June 30, 2017, the 2016A Refunding Bonds consist of serial bonds amounting
to $29,230,000 with interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 4.25%, with various maturity dates from 2018 to
2028, a term bond in the amount of $10,395,000 with interest rate of 4.25% due in 2030, a term bond in the
amount of $11,310,000 with interest rate of 4.25% due in 2032, a term bond in the amount of $12,315,000
with interest rate of 4.25% due in 2034, and a term bond in the amount of $20,550,000 with interest rate of
4.25% due in 2037. The refunding resulted in economic gain of $19,083,000 and cash flow savings of
$19,136,000.

2005 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds (the 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds)

In May 2005, the District issued the 2005 Series A Measure AA General Obligation Bonds (Elections
2004), with an aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000. The 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds constitute
a portion of the total authorized amount of $980,000,000 of general obligation bonds of the District duly
authorized by at least two-thirds of the qualified voters of the District voting on a ballot measure (“Measure
AA”) at an election held on November 2, 2004. The 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds constitute the first
issue of general obligation bonds being issued pursuant to the Measure AA authorization.

The 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds were issued to finance earthquake safety improvements to BART
facilities, including aerial trackway structures, underground trackway structures, including the Transbay
Tube, and at-grade trackway structures, stations, and administrative, maintenance, and operations facilities
and to finance additional retrofits to facilitate a rapid return to service after an earthquake or other disasters.

46





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable from and secured solely
by ad valorem taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or
amount (except for certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra
Costa Counties and the City and County of San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to
the payment of the 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds. In October 2015, the remaining outstanding balance of
$34,680,000 were refunded from the proceeds of the 2015 Measure AA GO Bonds.

2007 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds (the 2007B Measure AA GO Bonds)

On July 25, 2007, the District issued the 2007 Series B Measure AA General Obligation Bonds (Election
of 2004), with a principal amount of $400,000,000. The 2007B Measure AA GO Bonds constitute the
second issue of the total authorized amount of general obligation bonds issued pursuant to the Measure AA
duly authorized by at least two-thirds of the qualified voters of the District. The 2007B Measure AA GO
Bonds were issued to finance earthquake safety improvements to BART facilities in the three BART
Counties, including strengthening tunnels, bridges, overhead tracks and the underwater Transbay Tube. The
2007B Measure AA GO Bonds are general obligations of the District payable from and secured solely by
ad valorem taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the District levied in Alameda and Contra Costa
Counties and the City and County of San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to the
payment of the 2007B Measure AA GO Bonds. In October 2015, a portion of the 2007B Measure AA GO
Bonds, in the amount of $265,735,000, were advance refunded from the proceeds of the 2015D Measure
AA GO Bonds. In June 2017, a large portion of the remaining outstanding 2007B Measure AA GO Bonds,
in the amount of $93,780,000, were refunded from the proceeds of the 2017E Measure AA GO Bonds. At
June 30, 2017, the remaining outstanding 2007B Measure GO Bonds consist of $4,050,000 serial bonds
due on August 1, 2017 with interest rate of 4.1%.

2013 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds, Series C (the 2013C Measure AA GO Bonds)

On November 21, 2013, the District issued the 2013 Series C Measure AA General Obligation Bonds, with
a principal amount of $240,000,000. The 2013C Measure AA GO Bonds are general obligations of the
District, payable from and secured solely by ad valorem taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the
District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except for certain personal property which is taxable at
limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and County of San Francisco. No
other revenues of the District are pledged to the payment of the 2013C Measure AA GO Bonds. The 2013C
Measure AA GO Bonds constitute the third issue of general obligation bonds issued pursuant to the Measure
AA authorization to provide financing for earthquake safety improvements to District facilities in the Three
District Counties, including strengthening tunnels, bridges, overhead tracks, the underwater Transbay Tube
and the Berkeley Hills Tunnel.

At June 30, 2017, the 2013C Measure AA GO Bonds consist of $205,420,000 in serial bonds due from
2018 to 2034 with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.00%, and term bonds totaling $20,125,000 with interest
of 5% due in 2038. The serial bonds maturing on or after August 1, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to
their respective stated maturities, at the option of the District, from any source of available funds, as a whole
or in part, on any date on or after August 1, 2023, at the principal amount called for redemption, without
premium, plus accrued interest. The term bonds are also subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on
August 1 beginning 2034, at the principal amount, without premium, plus accrued interest.

2015 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds Refunding Series D (the 2015D Measure AA Refunding
GO Bonds)

In October 2015, the District issued the 2015 Series D Measure AA Refunding General Obligation Bonds,
with a principal amount of $276,805,000 and a premium of $42,300,000. The 2015D Measure AA
Refunding GO Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable from and secured solely by ad valorem

47





6.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except
for certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties
and the City and County of San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to the payment of
the 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds. The purpose of the 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO
Bonds is to apply the proceeds and refund $34,680,000, principal amount of the District’s 2005A Measure
AA Refunding GO Bonds and to advance refund $265,735,000 principal amount of the District’s 2007B
GO Bonds, and to pay costs of issuance of the 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds. The refunded
bonds were issued to finance earthquake safety improvements to the District facilities, including aerial
trackway structures, overhead and underground trackway structures, stations and administrative,
maintenance, and operations facilities, and to finance additional retrofits to facilitate rapid return to service
after an earthquake or other disasters

At June 30, 2017, the 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds consist of $276,805,000 in serial bonds
due from 2018 to 2036 with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.00%. The serial bonds maturing on or after
August 1, 2026 are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, at the option of the
District, from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after August 1, 2025,
at the principal amount of such 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds called for redemption, together
with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. If less than all of the
2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds are called for redemption, the 2015D Measure AA Refunding
GO Bonds shall be redeemed in inverse order of maturities (or as otherwise directed by the District), and if
less than all of the 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds of any given maturity are called for
redemption, the portions of 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds of a given maturity shall be
determined by lot. The refunding in 2015 resulted in economic gain of $42,384,000 and cash flow savings
of $42,378,000.

2017 Measure AA General Obligation Bonds Refunding Series E (the 2017E Measure AA
Refunding GO Bonds)

In June 2017, the District issued the 2017 Series E Measure AA Refunding General Obligation Bonds, with
a principal amount of $84,735,000 and a premium of $9,341,000. The 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO
Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable from and secured solely by ad valorem taxes upon all
property subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except for certain
personal property which is taxable at limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the
City and County of San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to the payment of the
2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds. The purpose of the 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds
is to apply the proceeds, together with other District funds, to current refund $93,780,000, principal amount
of the District’s 2007B Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds and to pay costs of issuance of the 2017E
Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds. The refunded bonds were issued to finance earthquake safety
improvements to the District facilities, including aerial trackway structures, overhead and underground
trackway structures, stations and administrative, maintenance, and operations facilities, and to finance
additional retrofits to facilitate rapid return to service after an earthquake or other disasters.

At June 30, 2017, the 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds consist of $84,735,000 in serial bonds due
from 2019 to 2038 with interest ranging from 4.0% to 5.00%. The serial bonds maturing on or after August
1, 2036 are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, at the option of the District,
from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after August 1, 2027, at the
principal amount of such 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds called for redemption, together with
interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. If less than all of the 2017E
Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds are called for redemption, the 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds

48





6.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

shall be redeemed in inverse order of maturities (or as otherwise directed by the District), and if less than
all of the 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds of any given maturity are called for redemption, the
portions of 2017E Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds of a given maturity shall be determined by lot. The
refunding resulted in economic gain of $13,165,000 and cash flow savings of $15,370,000.

After the issuance of the 2005A, 2007B, 2013C, 2015D, and the 2017E Measure AA GO Bonds, the
remaining Measure AA General Obligation Bonds that can be issued by the District as authorized under
Measure AA is $240,000,000.

2017 Measure RR General Obligation Bonds (the 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds)

In June 2017, the District issued the 2017 Series A Measure RR General Obligation Bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of $300,000,000 and a premium of $35,641,000. The 2017A Measure RR GO
Bonds were issued in 2 series, 2017A-1 Measure RR Bonds in the amount of $271,600,000 and 2017A-2
Measure RR Bonds (Federally Taxable) in the amount of $28,400,000. The 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds
are part of a $3,500,000,000 authorization approved at an election held on November 8, 2016 (Election of
2016), by over two-thirds of the qualified voters of the District voting on a ballot measure (“Measure RR”)
titted *“BART Safety, Reliability and Traffic Relief” to keep BART safe; prevent
accidents/breakdowns/delays; relieve overcrowding; reduce traffic congestion/pollution; and improve
earthquake safety and access for seniors/disabled by replacing and upgrading 90 miles of severely worn
tracks, tunnels damaged by water intrusion; 44-year old train control systems; and other acquisition or
improvement of real property. The 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds constitute the first issue of general
obligation bonds being issued pursuant to the Measure RR authorization. Proceeds from the 2017A Measure
RR Bonds will be applied to (1) finance the projects described in Measure RR, and (2) pay a portion of the
debt service on the 2017A Measure RR Bonds through February 1, 2018, including the debt service in full
of the 2017A-2 Bonds.

The 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable from and secured solely
by ad valorem taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or
amount (except for certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates) levied in Alameda and Contra
Costa Counties and the City and County of San Francisco. No other revenues of the District are pledged to
the payment of the 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds.

At June 30, 2017, the 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds has a total outstanding balance of $300,000,000,
consisting of $271,600,000 2017A-1 Measure RR GO Bonds and $28,400,000 2017A-2 Measure RR GO
Bonds. The 2017A-1 Measure RR GO Bonds consist of $140,480,000 in serial bonds due from 2019 to
2038 with interest ranging from 2.0% to 5.00%, a $58,500,000 term bond with interest of 4% maturing in
2043, and a $72,620,000 term bond with interest of 5% maturing in 2048. The 2017A-2 Measure RR GO
Bonds consist of serial bonds maturing in 2018 with interest of .822%. The 2017A-1 serial bonds maturing
on or after August 1, 2028 are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, at the option
of the District, from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after August 1,
2027, at the principal amount of such 2017A-1 Measure RR GO Bonds called for redemption, together with
interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. If less than all of the 2017A-1
Measure RR GO Bonds are called for redemption, the 2017A-1 Measure RR GO Bonds shall be redeemed
in inverse order of maturities (or as otherwise directed by the District), and if less than all of the 2017A-1
Measure RR GO Bonds of any given maturity are called for redemption, the portions of 2017A-1 Measure
RR GO Bonds of a given maturity shall be determined by lot.

49





6.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

After the issuance of the 2017A Measure RR GO Bonds, the remaining Measure RR General Obligation
Bonds that can be issued by the District as authorized under Measure RR is $3,200,000,000.

Defeased Bonds

On various dates, the District issued bonds to refund certain outstanding sales tax revenue bonds previously
issued by the District. In October 2015, $231,250,000 aggregate principal amount of the District’s 2005
Refunding Bonds, and $720,000 aggregate principal amount of the 2006 Bonds were refunded from the
proceeds of the 2015A Refunding Bonds. In October 2015, $34,680,000 aggregate principal amount of the
District’s 2005A Measure AA GO Bonds, and $265,735,000 aggregate principal amount of the 2007B
Measure AA GO Bonds were refunded from the proceeds of the 2015D Measure AA Refunding GO Bonds.
In August 2016, $94,450,000 principal amount of the District’s 2006 A Refunding Bonds were refunded
from the proceeds of the 2016A Refunding Bonds. Also, in June 2017, $93,780,000 principal amount of
the District’s 2007B Measure AA GO Bonds were refunded from the proceeds of the 2017E Measure AA
Refunding GO Bonds.

On the above described defeasances, the District placed in irrevocable trusts, the required amounts to pay
the future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. The advance refunding met the requirement of the
in-substance debt defeasance, and the defeased bonds were removed from the District’s long-term debt.
Accordingly, the trust accounts assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the District’s
financial statements.

The outstanding principal balance of the defeased Measure AA General Obligation Bonds is $359,515,000
as of June 30, 2017 and $265,735,000 as of June 30, 2016. There are no outstanding principal balances for
the defeased Sales Tax Revenue Bonds on June 30, 2017 and 2016.

Arbitrage Bonds

The District is subject to certain bond covenants, including the rules set forth by IRS Code Section 148a,
which requires that interest earned on the proceeds of a tax exempt bond issuance does not exceed the
interest expense related to those bonds, which qualifies those bonds as arbitrage bonds. Any excess interest
income is subject to a 100% tax and is payable to the Federal Government. The District has recorded an
estimated arbitrage liability with a balance amounting to $4,000 in fiscal year 2017 and 2016, which is
included in accounts payable and other liabilities in the statements of net position.

Pledge of Revenue to Repay Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

The District issues sales tax revenue bonds primarily to finance a portion of its capital projects. The sales
tax revenue bonds are special obligations of the District, payable from and secured by a pledge of sales tax
revenues derived from a seventy-five percent (75%) portion of a transactions and use tax levied by the
District in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties and the City and County of San Francisco in an amount
equal to one-half of one percent (0.5%) of gross retail receipts. The sales tax revenue bonds outstanding as
of June 30, 2017 consist of the 2010 Refunding Bonds, the 2012A Refunding Bonds, the 2012B Bonds,
2015A Refunding Bonds, and the 2016A Refunding Bonds. Interest on the sales tax revenue bonds are
payable on January 1 and July 1 of each year, and the principal on July 1 of the scheduled year until 2047.
The total principal and interest remaining on these sales tax revenue bonds is $870,148,000 as of June 30,
2017 ($944,309,000 as of June 30, 2016), which is 7.24% in 2017 (9.31% in 2016) of the total projected
sales tax revenues of $12,010,829,000 as of June 30, 2017 ($10,145,390,000 as of June 30, 2016). The
total projected sales tax revenues cover the period from fiscal year 2018 through fiscal year 2047, which is
the last scheduled bond principal payment.

50





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The pledged sales tax revenues recognized in fiscal year 2017 was $247,185,000 ($241,547,000 in fiscal
year 2016) as against a total debt service payment of $50,460,000 in fiscal year 2017, and $44,628,000 in

fiscal year 2016.

51





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Debt Repayments

The following is a schedule of long-term debt principal and interest payments required as of June 30,
2017 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

2010 Refunding Bonds 2012A Refunding Bonds 2012B Bonds

Year ending
June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 3,045 $ 5784 $ 2,605 $ 5800 $ 2,580 $ 3,847

2019 3,165 5,660 3,045 5,687 2,615 3,807
2020 10,490 5334 3,255 5,545 2,660 3,759
2021 11,020 4,797 3,565 5393 2,715 3,701
2022 17,065 4,094 3,865 5,244 2,775 3,635
2023-2027 57,625 9,481 24,875 22,929 15,165 16,816
2028-2032 15,730 796 36,950 15271 18,095 13,775
2033-2037 - - 41,505 4954 22,135 9,623
2038-2042 - - - - 27,295 4,348
2043-2047 - - - - 6,180 133
2048 - -

$ 118140 $ 35946 $ 119665 $ 70823 $ 102215 $ 63444

2015A Refunding Bonds 2016A Refunding Bonds Total Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
Year ending

June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ 15585 $ 7936 $ - $ 3,204 $ 23815 $ 26571
2019 15815 7,308 - 3204 24,640 25,666
2020 7405 6,807 3135 3,126 26,945 24571
2021 7,785 6,427 3,300 2,965 28,385 23,283
2022 2,675 6,165 3,465 2,79%6 29,845 21934
2023-2027 56,905 25596 20,190 11,146 174,760 85,968
2028-2032 50,810 7,693 24,835 6,740 146,420 44,275
2033-2037 14,260 1,093 28875 2,669 106,775 18,339
2038-2042 - - - - 27,295 4348
2043-2047 - - - - 6,180 133

2048 - -

$ 171240 $ 69025 $ 83800 $ 3580 $ 59,060 $ 275088

52





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2007B 2013C 2015D
Measure AA Measure AA Measure AA
General General Refunding General
Obligation Obligation Obligation
Bonds Bonds Bonds
Year ending
June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 4050 $ 8 § 19815 $ 10046 $ 1050 $ 12340

2019 - - 18,050 9319 1,085 12,307

2020 - - 18,100 8,566 1115 12,269

2021 - - 18,185 7,760 1,165 12223

2022 - - 18,365 6,942 8,235 12118
2023-2027 - - 52,99 26219 57430 54,711
2028-2032 - - 45305 14,080 94,645 36,371
2033-2037 - - 31,030 4415 112,080 9,530
2038-2042 - - 3,700 a3 - -
2043-2047 - - -

2048

$ 4050 $ 8 § 25545 § 87440 $ 276805 $ 161869

53





6.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2017E 2017A
Measure AA Measure RR
Refunding General General
Obligation Obligation Total
Bonds Bonds General Obligation Bonds
Year ending
June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2018 $ - $ 256 § 28400 $ 8175 $ 53315 $ 59772
2019 4455 3,145 45710 12113 28,160 63,151
2020 5220 3525 4,750 11927 29,185 60,858
2021 6,125 3242 4940 11,708 30415 58,216
2022 - 3,089 5,185 11455 31,785 55,538
2023-2027 - 15443 28,865 54438 139,290 236,779
2028-2032 - 15443 36,255 46,706 176,205 156,875
2033-2037 33115 14,615 45630 31214 221,855 84,172
2038-2042 35,820 716 56,150 26533 95,670 31,690
2043-2047 - - 69,280 12916 69,280 13,049
2048 - - 15975 39 15975 39

$ 84735 $§ 62314 $ 300000 $ 233644 $ 891135 $ 82049

Risk Management

The District is partially self-insured for workers’ compensation, public liability and property damage
claims. The self-insured retention for workers’ compensation is $4,000,000 per accident and the limit of
liability is $10,000,000. The self-insured retention for public liability and property damage is $5,000,000
for any one occurrence. Claims in excess of self-insured retentions are covered up to a total of $145,000,000
by insurance policies. There have been no settlement amounts during the past three years that have
exceeded the District’s insurance coverage.

The self-insurance programs are administered by independent claims adjustment firms. Claim expenses and
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities are discounted at a 3% rate, in part, upon the independent adjustment
firms’ estimate of reserves necessary for the settlement of outstanding claims and related administrative
costs, and include estimates of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported, including loss adjustment
expenses. Such reserves are estimated by professional actuaries through June 30 and are subject to periodic
adjustments as conditions warrant.

The estimated liability for insurance claims at June 30, 2017 is believed to be sufficient to cover any costs

arising out of claims filed or to be filed for accidents occurring through that date. At June 30, 2017
and 2016, the estimated amounts of these liabilities were $55,951,000 and $53,308,000, respectively.

54





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

7. Risk Management (Continued)

Changes in the reported liabilities since the beginning of the respective fiscal years are as follows (dollar
amounts in thousands):

2017 2016
Liabilities at beginning of year $ 53,308 $ 53,453
Current year claims and changes in estimates 20,063 15,747
Payments of claims (17,420) (15,892)
Liabilities at the end of year 55,951 53,308
Less current portion (20,048) (18,479)
Net noncurrent portion $ 35,903 $ 34,829

8. Federal Capital Contributions and Operating Financial Assistance

The U.S. Department of Transportation and other federal agencies provide capital funding to the District
for construction projects, planning and technical assistance. Cumulative information for grants which were
active during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows (dollar amounts in

thousands):
2017 2016
Total approved project costs $ 1,582,012 $ 1,520,634
Cumulative amounts of project costs incurred and earned $ 1,068,825 $ 954,922
Less: approved federal allocations received (1,033,906) (916,474)
Government receivables - Federal $ 34919 $ 38,448

The District’s fleet replacement project consisting of construction for the A, B, C1 and C2 fleet replacement
was formally launched in 2013. To set aside funding for this program, the District and MTC, on May 24,
2006, entered into the BART Car Replacement Funding Exchange Agreement. Under the agreement, MTC
agrees to program federal funds to eligible BART projects that are ready to be delivered within the year of
MTC’s programming action. In exchange for MTC programming funds for ready-to-go BART projects,
the District will deposit an equal amount of local unrestricted funds into a restricted account established to
fund BART’s car replacement program. MTC is the exclusive administrator of the restricted account and
any withdrawal of funds from the account requires prior approval from the MTC Commission and the
District’s Board. In accordance with the agreement, MTC allocated Federal Section 5307 and 5337 Grants
for $52,548,000 in fiscal year 2017 and $50,176,000 in fiscal year 2016 to fund the District’s preventive
maintenance expenses. The District remitted to MTC the full amount of $52,548,000 in fiscal year 2017
and $50,176,000 in fiscal year 2016, the equivalent amount of its own funds, which were deposited by MTC
to the restricted account. The federal grant is shown as nonoperating revenue — operating financial
assistance and the District’s remittance to MTC is shown as nonoperating expense in the District’s financial
statements. The restricted account for BART’s car replacement program held by MTC, which is excluded
from the District’s financial statements, reported a balance of $381,528,000 as of June 30, 2017 and
$327,340,000 as of June 30, 2016.

55





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

9. State and Local Operating and Capital Financial Assistance

The District is eligible to receive local operating and capital assistance from the Transportation
Development Act Funds (TDA). There was no TDA capital and operating assistance received in fiscal years
2017 or 2016. The District may also be entitled to receive state operating and capital assistance from the
State Transit Assistance Funds (STA). These funds are allocated by MTC based on the ratio of the District’s
transit operation revenue and local support to the revenue and local support of all state transit agencies.
The District was awarded STA operating allocations, which amounted to $490,000 in fiscal year 2013,
$99,000 in fiscal year 2014, $17,697,000 in fiscal year 2015, $15,429,000 in fiscal year 2016, and
$9,135,000 in fiscal year 2017. In addition, the allocation for fiscal 2016 was increased by $990,000 in
fiscal year 2017. Of these allocations, $10,187,000 was earned in fiscal year 2017 and $11,253,000 was
earned in fiscal year 2016. In fiscal year 2017, the district received an STA capital grant of $329,000. There
were no STA capital revenues earned in fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2016.

Beginning in fiscal year 2015, the District has applied and received an allocation from the Low Carbon
Transit Operations Program (LCTOP). The LCTOP is one of several programs established by the California
Legislature in 2014 through Senate Bills 862 (SB 862) and 852 (SB 852). The source of funds for LCTOP
is from the state’s Cap-and-Trade Program annual proceeds and was created to provide operating and capital
assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with a priority on
serving disadvantaged communities. Eligible projects and programs include new or expanded bus or rail
services, expanded intermodal transit facilities, equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance and other
operating costs. The District received an allocation of $1,596,000 in fiscal year 2015, $4,477,000 in fiscal
year 2016 and $2,066,000 in fiscal year 2017. Funds allocated in fiscal year 2017 and 2016 have been set
aside for the acquisition of new rail car and will be earned as revenue when capital expenditures are
incurred, thus no expenditures and revenue were recognized in fiscal year 2017. The District earned in full
the fiscal year 2015 allocation in fiscal year 2016.

The District receives Paratransit funds provided to cities and transit operators from Alameda County
Transportation Commission (ACTC) Measure B funds to be used for services aimed at improving mobility
for seniors and persons with disabilities. Beginning in April 2015, the ACTC also allocated to the District
Measure BB funds to supplement the funding needed for the paratransit program. Additional Measure BB
funds were also allocated to the District for transit operations, maintenance and safety programs. ACTC is
the administrator of both Measure B and BB funds. The District’s revenues that relate to the Measure B
funds were $1,983,000 in fiscal year 2017 ($1,905,000 in fiscal year 2016). Revenues from Measure BB
funds for transit operations were $674,000 in fiscal year 2017 ($653,000 in fiscal year 2016), and for
paratransit operations, were $2,022,000 in fiscal year 2017 ($1,957,000 in fiscal year 2016). The District
also received annual assistance for its paratransit program from the Contra Costa Transportation Authority
Measure J funds. Revenues from Measure J funds received in fiscal year 2017 were $84,000 ($79,000 in
fiscal year 2016).

56





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

State and Local Operating and Capital Financial Assistance (Continued)

On February 28, 2007, the District, San Mateo County Transit District (SamTrans), and MTC entered into
a Tri-Party Financial Agreement establishing the operational and financial arrangement regarding the
BART San Francisco International Airport Extension. To fund the operating costs of the SFO Extension,
the agreement provided that (1) the District will receive up-front funding of $24,000,000 from MTC and
$32,000,000 from SamTrans from their shares of Proposition 1B funds; (2) the District will also receive
2% of the San Mateo County half cent sales tax, Measure A, which was reauthorized by the voters of San
Mateo County in 2004, for 25 years beginning in fiscal year 2009; this amount is currently equal to
approximately $1,600,000 per year; and (3) MTC shall allocate to the District additional STA revenue-
based funds beginning in fiscal year 2009, which would otherwise be available for allocation to SamTrans
as a result of the completion of the Traffic Congestion Relief Program projects, in an amount of $801,000
annually. The above funds will be used first to cover any operating deficit on the SFO Extension and then
to complete SamTrans’ funding commitment of $145,000,000 to the District’s Warm Springs Extension
Project. In December 2013, MTC adopted Resolution No. 4123, the Transit Core Capacity Challenge Grant
Program, which re-directs the $145,000,000 of SFO Net Operating Revenues to BART's New Railcar
Procurement Program.

The up-front funding of $24,000,000 from MTC was allocated to the District in 2008 in the form of
Regional Measure 2 (RM2) revenues as local match to capital projects funded by the Transit Capital
Priorities Program. For the purpose of the Tri-Party Agreement, the District made up-front deposits
equivalent to the RM2 revenues in the reserve account, and is currently being reimbursed by MTC with
RM2 revenues, as the funds are earned. SamTrans' $32,000,000 contribution was funded with
approximately $22,500,000 in Proposition 1B funds and $9,500,000 in a direct allocation.

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the balance of the reserve account is as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

2017 2016
Reserve account at beginning of year $ 3465 % 29,511
Received/accrued 2,596 5,935
Add interest earnings 36 10
Total 37,287 35,456
Less: amount used to cover SFO Extension operating shortfall (801) (801)
Reserve account at end of year $ 36486 $ 34,655

In accordance with the Tri-Party Financial Agreement, the District recognized contributions in fiscal year
2017 of $2,453,000 from SamTrans ($2,396,000 in fiscal year 2016) and $144,000 from MTC ($3,539,000
in fiscal year 2016).

PTMISEA Grants

The Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality, and Port Security Bond Act of 2006, approved by the
voters as Proposition 1B on November 7, 2006, includes a program of funding in the amount of $4 billion
to be deposited in the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement
Account (PTMISEA). Of this amount, $3.6 billion in the PTMISEA is available to project sponsors in
California for allocation to eligible public transportation projects.

57





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

State and Local Operating and Capital Financial Assistance (Continued)

The District has cumulatively received a total $354,526,000 in PTMISEA grant funds to fund various
BART capital projects. The grants received are in the form of cash for $349,011,000 and reimbursement
grants for $5,515,000.

The following schedules show the changes in activities related to the PTMISEA grant funds during the
fiscal years 2017 and 2016 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Grant Fund Grant Fund
Balance at Grants Project Costs Balance at
2017 Beginning of Year Received Incurred End of Year
eBART Extension $ 2,490 $ - $ 1,923 $ 567
Ashby Elevator 262 - 50 212
Station Modernization 109,914 1,287 11,672 99,529
Seismic Retrofit (405) - - (405) *
Oakland Airport Connector (54) - - (54) 2
Warm Springs Extension 159 350 407 102
Balboa Park Eastside 8,323 - 5,032 3,291
Berkeley Station Entrance 4111 - 738 3,373
Access Improvements 3,740 - 483 3,257
Station Signage® 1,349 - 438 911
Train Control 13,428 - 5,622 7,806
$ 143,317 $ 1,637 $ 26,365 $ 118,589
Grant Fund Grant Fund
Balance at Grants Project Costs Balance at
2016 Beginning of Year Received Incurred End of Year
eBART Extension $ 16,976 $ 1,098 $ 15,584 $ 2,490
Ashby Elevator 272 - 10 262
Station Modernization 89,764 39,134 18,984 109,914
Seismic Retrofit (405) - - (405) *
Oakland Airport Connector (54) - - (54) 2
Warm Springs Extension 160 - 1 159
Balboa Park Eastside 359 9,028 1,064 8,323
Berkeley Station Entrance 647 3,726 262 4111
Access Improvements 4,083 - 343 3,740
Station Signage® 1,380 - 31 1,349
Train Control 15,670 - 2,242 13,428
$ 128,852 $ 52,986 $ 38,521 $ 143317

! This grant is on a reimbursement basis.

2 Covered by interest earnings.

3 New grants of $1,637,000 received in fiscal year 2017, net of $350,000 reallocated to Warm Springs Extension.

4 Amount was reallocated from Station Modernization.

®>New grant of $52,986,000 received in FY 2016, net of $1,098,000 reallocated to eBART Extension, $9,028,000
reallocated to Balboa Park Eastside and $3,726,000 reallocated to Berkeley Station Entrance.

58





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

State and Local Operating and Capital Financial Assistance (Continued)

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the unused portion of PTMISEA grant funds received in cash are shown on
the statements of net position as a component of unearned revenues as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

2017 2016
Cash Available, end of year $ 118,028 $ 142,656
Less: noncurrent portion (25,316) (101,982)
Net current portion $ 92,712 $ 40,674

At the end of fiscal year 2017, the PTMISEA funds had earned interest income of $2,621,000 from
inception, of which $528,000 was earned in fiscal year 2017 and $526,000 in fiscal year 2016.

Employees’ Retirement Benefits

Plan Description

All eligible employees participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (the Fund) of CalPERS under
the Miscellaneous Plan and the Safety Plan of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District. The
Fund is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit retirement plan that acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for 3,093 local public agencies and school districts within the State of California. The
Fund provides retirement, disability, and death benefits based on the employee’s years of service, age and
compensation. Most employees become eligible for benefits after five years of service and 50 years of age
(age 52 for employees hired after January 1, 2013, see paragraph below.) These benefit provisions and all
other requirements are established by State statute and District contractual agreements.

Pursuant to the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), new members, defined
as active members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, or who were hired after a break in service of more
than six months, are required to contribute 50% of the "normal™ pension cost. That amount is currently
13% of covered payroll for safety and 6.25% of covered payroll for miscellaneous. Represented employees
were exempt from this provision; however, as a result of a court decision, they were determined to be
covered effective December 30, 2014. There is currently a pending District Court case related to PEPRA's
impact on represented employees which could alter the applicability of PEPRA to represented employees
in the future.

Copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their Executive Office by writing or
calling the Plan: California PERS, P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709, (916) 326-3420. A
separate report for the District’s plan is not available.

Benefits Provided

The District provides service retirement and disability retirements, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on
years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total
service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. The death benefit is as follows:
The Basic Death Benefit for Miscellaneous employees and for Safety employees, it is the 4" level of 1959
Survivor Benefit.

59





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2017, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Plan Safety Plan

Prior to On or After Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62 3.0% @ 50 2.70% @ 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5years 5years 5years 5years
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 55 62 50 57
Monthly benefits, as a percentage

of eligible compensation 2.0% 2.0% 3.0% 2.7%

Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.25% 9.00% 13.00%
Required employer contribution rates 16.38% 16.38% 56.47% 56.47%

At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

June 30, 2017 Miscellaneous Plan Safety Plan

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2,694 286
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 220 10
Active employees 3,290 186
Total 6,204 482
June 30,2016 Miscellaneous Plan Safety Plan

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2,584 275
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 192 10
Active employees 3,158 184
Total 5,934 469

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan is
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

60





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

10. Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

For fiscal year 2017, the average employee contribution rate for the Miscellaneous Plan is 6.987% and for
the Safety Plan is 9.021% of their annual covered payroll. The District was required to contribute for fiscal
year 2017 an actuarially determined rate of 16.38% (14.79% in fiscal year 2016) and 56.47% (51.61% in
fiscal year 2016) for Miscellaneous and Safety Plans, respectively, of annual covered payroll for the
District’s employees. Annual covered payroll amounted to $309,590,000 and $286,188,000 for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The District contributed $ 58,386,000 and $50,426,000
in fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2016, respectively.

Net Pension Liability

The District’s net pension liability for the Plans is measured as the total pension liability, less the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position. The plans’ net pension liability as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 were measured
as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 (measurement date), using an annual actuarial valuation of June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension
liability is shown below.

Actuarial Assumptions
The June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 total pension liabilities were based on the following actuarial methods
and assumptions:

June 30, 2017 Miscellaneous Safety
Valuation date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015
Measurement date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 7.65% 7.65%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll growth 3.00% 3.00%
Projected salary increase 3.20% to 12.20% depending 3.70% to 15.00% depending
on Age, Service and Type on Age, Service and Type
of Employment of Employment
Investment rate of returni 7.50% 7.50%
Derived using Derived using
CalPERS' Membership CalPERS' Membership
Mortality rate table2 Data for all Funds Data for all Funds

1 Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation

2 The probabilities of mortality are based on 2010 CalPers Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.
Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using
Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries.

61





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

June 30, 2016 Miscellaneous Safety
Valuation date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Measurement date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 7.65% 7.65%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll growth 3.00% 3.00%
Projected salary increase 3.20% to 12.20% depending 3.70% to 15.00% depending
on Age, Service and Type on Age, Service and Type
of Employment of Employment
Investment rate of returnt 7.50% 7.50%
Derived using Derived using
CalPERS' Membership CalPERS' Membership
Mortality rate table2 Data for all Funds Data for all Funds

1 Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including
inflation

2 The probabilities of mortality are based on 2010 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2007.
Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using

Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries.

The underlying mortality assumptions and other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 and 2014
valuations were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period from 1997

to 2011. The Experience Study report can be obtained on the CalPERS’ website.

Notes to Actuarial Assumptions

In 2014, CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study, incorporating actuarial
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014, the CalPERS Board of
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce
the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long-term
blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.65 percent. The Board
also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual
experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life
expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected continued improvements. The new
actuarial assumptions were first used in the June 30, 2014 valuation to set the Fiscal year 2016-17
contribution for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to the new actuarial
assumptions is amortized over a 20-year period with a 5-year ramp-up/ramp-down in accordance
with Board policy.

62





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

For more details and additional rationale for the selection of the actuarial assumptions, please refer to the
CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from January 2014 that can be
found on the CalPERS website under Experience Study.

All actuarial assumptions (except discount rates used for the hypothetical termination liability) represent an
estimate of future experience rather than observations of the estimates in market data.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 7.65%. To
determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different
from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets.
Therefore, the discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary.
The long-term expected discount rate of 7.65% is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement
Fund. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report”
that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

Long-term rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flow. Such cash flows were
developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and
as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
returns were calculated over the short term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building
block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short- term and long term, the present value
of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent
to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

63





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
The target allocation for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was as follows:

Miscellaneous & Safety Plans
5- Year 10- Year

New Return Return

Strategic Years 1 - Years

Asset Class Allocation 10 (a) 11+ (b)
Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Debt Securities 20% 0.99 2.43
Inflation Sensitive 6% 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 10% 6.83 6.95
Real Assets 10% 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 2% 4.50 5.09
Liquidity 1% (0.55) (1.05)

Total 100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

The target allocation for the June 30, 2015 measurement was as follows:

Miscellaneous & Safety Plans

Real Real

New Return Return

Strategic Years 1 - Years

Asset Class Allocation 10 (a) 11+ (b)
Global Equity 51% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 20% 0.99 2.43
Inflation Assets 6% 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 10% 6.83 6.95
Real Assets 12% 4.50 5.13
Liquidity 1% (0.55) (1.05)

Total 100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

64





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

10. Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the June 30, 2016 measurement date,
calculated using the discount rate of 7.65%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1 percentage-point higher
(8.65%) than the current rate (dollar amounts in thousands):

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Miscellaneous Plan

Plan's Net Pension

Liability (Asset) $ 753,713 $ 499,114 $ 284,915
Safety Plan
Plan's Net Pension

Liability (Asset) 154,865 115,336 82,795

The following presents the net pension liability of the Plan as of the June 30, 2015 measurement date,
calculated using the discount rate of 7.65%, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.65%) or 1 percentage-point higher
(8.65%) than the current rate (dollar amounts in thousands):

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%
(6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Miscellaneous Plan

Plan's Net Pension

Liability (Asset) $ 617,713 $ 371,399 $ 164,394
Safety Plan
Plan's Net Pension

Liability (Asset) 133,363 95,823 64,982

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
CalPERS financial report.

65





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Change in Net Pension Liability

The following table shows the changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2017 (dollar

amounts in thousands):

Miscellaneous Plan

Balance at June 30, 2016
Changes during the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Plan to Plan resource movement
Contributions from the employer
Contributions from the employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net Changes
Balance at June 30, 2017

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

$ 2,027925  $ 1,656,526 371,399
37,959 - 37,959

152,757 - 152,757

1,193 - 1,193

- 1) 1

- 38,283 (38,283)

- 18,174 (18,174)

- 8,747 (8,747)

(102,543) (102,543) -

- (1,009) 1,009

89,366 (38,349) 127,715

$ 2117291  $ 1618177 $ 499,114

66





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Safety Plan

Increase (Decrease)

Balance at June 30, 2016

Changes during the year:
Service cost
Interest on the total pension liability
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected and

actual experience

Plan to Plan resource movement
Contributions from the employer
Contributions from the employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

Net Changes

Balance at June 30, 2017

Total of Miscellaneous and Safety Plans

Balance at June 30, 2016

Changes during the year:

Service cost

Interest on the total pension liability

Changes of assumptions

Differences between expected and
actual experience

Plan to Plan resource movement

Contributions from the employer

Contributions from the employees

Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions

Administrative expense

Net Changes

Balance at June 30, 2017

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
$ 278,727  $ 182,904  $ 95,823
6,491 - 6,491
21,340 - 21,340
4,387 - 4,387
- 1 @
- 10,038 (10,038)
- 1,854 (1,854)
- 924 (924)
(14,803) (14,803) -
- (112) 112
17,415 (2,098) 19,513
$ 296,142  $ 180,806  $ 115,336
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
$ 2,306,652 $ 1839430 $ 467,222
44,450 - 44,450
174,097 - 174,097
5,580 - 5,580
- 48,321 (48,321)
- 20,028 (20,028)
- 9,671 (9,671)
(117,346) (117,346) -
- (1,121) 1,121
106,781 (40,447) 147,228
$ 2413433 % 1798983 % 614,450

67





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

The following table shows the changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2016 (dollar
amounts in thousands):

Miscellaneous Plan Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 1978781 $ 1,666,408 312,373
Changes during the year:
Service cost 36,151 - 36,151
Interest on the total pension liability 146,226 - 146,226
Changes of assumptions (32,773) - (32,773)
Differences between expected and
actual experience (4,807) - (4,807)
Plan to Plan resource movement - (36) 36
Contributions from the employer - 32,466 (32,466)
Contributions from the employees - 17,818 (17,818)
Net investment income - 37,388 (37,388)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (95,653) (95,653) -
Administrative expense - (1,865) 1,865
Net Changes 49,144 (9,882) 59,026
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 2027925  $ 1656526 $ 371,399

68





10.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Safety Plan Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 266981 % 181889 $ 85,092
Changes during the year:
Service cost 5,935 - 5,935
Interest on the total pension liability 20,099 - 20,099
Changes of assumptions (4,942) - (4,942)
Differences between expected and
actual experience 4,794 - 4,794
Plan to Plan resource movement - 1 )
Contributions from the employer - 9,428 (9,428)
Contributions from the employees - 1,917 (1,917)
Net investment income - 4,015 (4,015)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (14,140) (14,140) -
Administrative expenses - (206) 206
Net Changes 11,746 1,015 10,731
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 278727 % 182,904  $ 95,823

Total of Miscellaneous and Safety Plans
Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 2245762 % 1848297 $ 397,465
Changes during the year:
Service cost 42,087 - 42,087
Interest on the total pension liability 166,325 - 166,325
Changes of assumptions (37,715) - (37,715)
Differences between expected and
actual experience (14) - (19
Plan to Plan resource movement - (35) 35
Contributions from the employer - 41,894 (41,894)
Contributions from the employees - 19,735 (19,735)
Net investment income - 41,403 (41,403)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (109,793) (109,793) -
Administrative expense - (2,071) 2,071
Net Changes 60,890 (8,867) 69,757
Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 2,306,652 $ 1839430 $ 467,222

69





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

10. Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the District incurred a pension expense of $67,246,000 and

$30,403,000, respectively.

At June 30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources (dollar amounts in thousands):

Miscellaneous Plan Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 46,709 $ -

Changes of assumptions - (17,167)

Differences between actual and expected experience 895 (2,518)

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 88,062 -
Total $ 135,666 $ (19,685)

Safety Plan

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 11,677 $ -

Changes of assumptions - (2,118)

Differences between actual and expected experience 5,112 -

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 9,813 -
Total $ 26,602 $ (2,118)

Total Miscellaneous and Safety

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 58,386 $ -

Changes of assumptions - (19,285)

Differences between actual and expected experience 6,007 (2,518)

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments 97,875 -
Total $ 162,268 $ (21,803)

70





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

10. Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

At June 30, 20186, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources (dollar amounts in thousands):

Miscellaneous Plan Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 39,768 $ -

Changes of assumptions - (24,970)

Differences between actual and expected experience - (3,663)

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments - (15,848)
Total $ 39,768 $ (44,481)

Safety Plan

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 10,658 $ -

Changes of assumptions - (3,530)

Differences between actual and expected experience 3424 -

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments - (1,637)
Total $ 14,082 $ (5,167)

Total Miscellaneous and Safety

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 50,426 $ -

Changes of assumptions - (28,500)

Differences between actual and expected experience 3424 (3,663)

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments - (17,485)
Total $ 53,850 $ (49,648)

The District recognized the $50,426,000 deferred outflow for pension contribution after the measurement
date in fiscal year 2016 as reduction of pension liability in fiscal year 2017. The $58,386,000 deferred
outflow for pension contribution after the measurement date in fiscal year 2017 will be recognized as a
reduction of net pension liability in fiscal year 2018.

71





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

10. Employees’ Retirement Benefits (Continued)

11.

The deferred inflow of resources related to pensions will be recognized in future pension expense as follows
(dollar amounts in thousands):

Miscellaneous Plan Safety Plan
Year Ending  Deferred Outflows/ Deferred Outflows/
June 30, (Inflows) of resources (Inflows) of resources

2018 $ 3391 % 2,665
2019 3,391 2,685
2020 39,300 4,892
2021 23,190 2,565

Total _$ 69,272 $ 12,807

Payable to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the District had no contributions payable outstanding to the pension plan.

Money Purchase Pension Plan

Most District employees participate in the Money Purchase Pension Plan (MPPP), which is a supplemental
retirement defined contribution plan. In January 1981, the District’s employees elected to withdraw from
the Federal Social Security System (FICA) and established the Money Purchase Pension Plan. The District
contributes an amount equal to 6.65% of eligible employees’ annual compensation (up to $29,700 after
deducting the first $133 paid during each month) up to a maximum annual contribution of $1,868 for all
employees except those represented by BPOA and BPMA pursuant to their labor agreements effective
January 1, 2010. An additional contribution to the MPPP equal to 1.627% of eligible compensation is
provided to all employees except for represented sworn police officers. Payment of this additional
contribution was also suspended for all CalPERS eligible individuals, with various effective dates, pursuant
to labor agreements and District policy as a cost saving measure. These payments resumed on July 1, 2013.
However, under the latest labor agreements with ATU, SEIU, and AFSCME, the District retained 0.0888%
of the 1.627% contribution. The District also retained this same amount for non-represented employees.
In addition, the District retained $37 per month of the 1.627% for ATU, SEIU, and AFSCME employees
who elected medical to pay for medical premiums.

The annual compensation limit subject to the additional contribution is established by the Internal Revenue
Code Section 401(a) (17). Each employee’s account is available for distribution upon such employee’s
termination.

The District’s total expense and funded contribution for this plan for the years ended June 30, 2017 and
2016 were $10,286,000 and $9,775,000 respectively. The MPPP assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016
(excluded from the accompanying financial statements) per the plan administrator’s unaudited reports were
$315,742,000 and $285,801,000, respectively. At June 30, 2017, there were approximately 221 (210 in
2016) participants receiving payments under this plan.

The plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information. This report may be obtained by writing or calling: BART Investments Plans
Committee, 300 Lakeside Drive, Oakland, California 94612, (510) 464-6238.

72





12.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the retirement benefits described in Notes 10 and 11, and specified in the District’s contractual
agreements, the District provides certain other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) to employees, which
may include medical benefits to retirees and surviving spouses, retiree life insurance, survivor dental and
vision benefits, and medical benefits to survivors of active employees. Most employees who retire directly
from the District or their surviving spouses are eligible for medical benefits if the employee retires at or
after age 50 with a minimum of 5 years of service with the District, elects to take an annuity from CalPERS
and makes a timely election of retiree medical.

In compliance with GASB requirements, the District accounts for OPEB on an accrual basis and created
the Retiree Health Benefit Trust. The purpose of establishing the Trust is to facilitate the provision of
medical benefits and other health and welfare benefits (“retiree medical benefits”) for the qualifying retirees
of the District; to provide the means for financing the costs and expenses of operating and administering
such benefits; to hold Trust assets for the sole and exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants
and beneficiaries; and to defray the reasonable expenses of administering the Trust and designated plans.
Assets placed into the Trust cannot be used for any other purposes and are not available to satisfy general
creditors of the District. Under California state law, the restrictions on the use of any proceeds from
liquidation of the Trust are significant enough to render the Trust effectively irrevocable. The Trust is
administered by one or more Trustees appointed by the District’s Board of Directors. Currently, the Board
has appointed the District’s Controller-Treasurer as the Trustee. The Trust issues a publicly available
audited financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
financial report may be obtained by writing to Retiree Health Benefit Trust, San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District, 300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, California 94604.

Currently, the Trust covers the funding only for the “retiree medical benefits”, which include retiree medical
benefits and medical benefits provided to widows and widowers of retirees. It does not fund the “additional
OPEB” which includes the retiree life insurance premiums or the cost to the District of additional benefits
available to survivors of employees and retirees who, at the time of hire, elected to contribute to a survivor
health benefit program. Survivors of employees and retirees who elected this program and who continue
to contribute are eligible for medical, dental and vision coverage at a cost of $15/mo. The District is
currently in process of establishing a new trust for the additional OPEB.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Trust are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Beginning with
fiscal year 2017, the Trust implemented the GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which established the accounting and financial
reporting standards for plans that provide OPEB. The Trust recognizes contributions from the District in
accordance with the provisions contained on the District collective bargaining agreements, as described
briefly in the following discussion.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value as determined by the financial institutions, which have custody of the
investments based on fair value measurements under GASB 72.

73





12.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Funding Policy and Long-Term Contract for Contributions

The District’s current collective bargaining agreements with its unions (CBA) describe the District’s
funding commitments to the Trust. Beginning fiscal year 2008, the District is funding the Trust with a
“ramp up” (increasing) percentage of the “full” annual required contribution (ARC) in addition to funding
the pay-as-you-go amount outside of the Trust every year for the following six years. Including fiscal years
2007 and 2008, this “ramp-up” contribution funds an eight-year period covering fiscal years 2006 through
2013. The CBAs include the baseline “ramp-up” percentages, which is the minimum amount that the
District is committed to contribute to the Trust during the “ramp-up” period. The District shall commission
an actuarial study of the retiree medical insurance plan liabilities and funding needs, including the ARC,
every year. The revised “ramp-up” percentage shall be the basis of the District’s contribution to the Trust,
except when it is less than the baseline “ramp-up” percentage. In addition, in fiscal year 2009 the District
contributed into the Trust a lump sum make up payment reflecting the amounts it would have contributed
for fiscal years 2006 and 2007, which was actuarially calculated at $14,629,000.

Beginning in fiscal year 2014, the District contributed to the Trust each pay period an amount equal to the
full GASB compliant ARC. Also, effective on July 1, 2013, retiree medical insurance premiums and related
administration fees are paid by the Trust.

Funding Policy

Employer contributions to the retiree benefits plan are actuarially determined and amounted to $28,912,000
for fiscal year 2017 (including $3,900,000 implied subsidy). The actuarial valuation for fiscal year 2015
was used to determine the actuarially determined contribution for fiscal year 2017. The District also paid
in fiscal year 2017 survivor benefits and life insurance premiums, on a pay as you go basis, amounting to
$346,000 and $ 685,000 (including $542,000 implied subsidy), respectively.

The annual OPEB cost for fiscal year 2016, using the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, as a percent of
covered payroll for the year, was 9.89% for retiree medical benefits and 0.81% for additional OPEB, which
amounted to $26,974,000 and $1,961,000, respectively. In fiscal year 2016, the District contributed cash
equivalent to the full annual required contribution to the Trust amounting to $27,145,000 for the retiree
medical benefits and zero for the additional OPEB to partially fund the OPEB cost for the year. The District
also paid in fiscal year 2016 life insurance premiums, on a pay as you go basis, amounting to $154,000.
The District does not charge any administration cost to the Trust. For fiscal year 2016, most retirees paid
$137.79 per month for their share of the medical premium and the balance is paid by the District.

74





12.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

The following tables show the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost, the amount contributed to
the Trust, pay-as-you-go payments and changes in the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year 2016 (dollar
amounts in thousands):

Retiree Medical Benefits

2016
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 27145
Interest on net OPEB obligation 3,044
Adjustments to ARC (3,215)
Annual OPEB Cost 26,974
Contributions made (27,145)
Increase in Net OPEB obligation (171)
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 45,093
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 44922
Additional OPEB
2016
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $ 2,226
Interest on net OPEB obligation 693
Adjustments to ARC (958)
Annual OPEB Cost 1,961
Contributions made (154)
Increase in Net OPEB obligation 1,807
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 16,318
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 18,125

The total net OPEB obligation of $63,047,000 in fiscal year 2016 is shown on the statements of net position
as Other post-employment benefits, under noncurrent liabilities.

The notes and schedules above, for fiscal year 2016, are presented per GASB 45 reporting and comparative
financial statement presentation purposes.

New Standard - GASB 75

Effective June 30, 2017, the District adopted GASB 75 where the District recognizes a liability as the
employees earn benefits by providing services. Changes to OPEB liability are recognized immediately as
OPEB expenses or deferred outflows/inflows of resources.

The Net OPEB liability is measured as the difference between the District’s total OPEB liability (for Retiree

Medical Plan, Survivor Benefit and Retiree Life Insurance) and the plan’s fiduciary net position, as of the
measurement date.

75





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

12. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Employer’s Net OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 for the Retiree Medical Benefit, Survivor
Benefit and Retiree Life Insurance totals $ 380,392,000 and $ 384,647,000, respectively, detail of which is
presented below (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year ending 6/30/2017 6/30/2016

Measurement date 6/30/2017 6/30/2016

Retiree Medical Benefits

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $ 573597  § 537,872
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) (270,151) (237,403)
Net OPEB Liability $ 303446 % 300,469

Survivor Benefit Plan

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $ 42,456  $ 46,590
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) - -
Net OPEB Liability $ 4245 % 46,590

Retiree Life Insurance

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $ 34490 % 37,588
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) - -
Net OPEB Liability $ 34490 % 37,588
Total

Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $ 650,543  $ 622,050
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) $ (270,151) 3 (237,403)
Net OPEB Liability $ 380,392 $ 384,647

76





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

12. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Significant Actuarial Assumptions Used in Calculating the Total OPEB Liability

The total OPEB liability were determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2017 using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Retiree Medical Benefits
Jume 30, 2017 Measurement Date

Valuation date June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate Based on Crossover Test

6.75% at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016

Long -term investment rate of return ~ 6.75%
on investments

General inflation 3% per annum
Crossover test assumptions Employer contributes full ADC

Administrative expenses = 0.01% of pay
Assets are projected to always exceed benefit payments

Mortality, disability, termination, CalPERS 1997-2011 Experience Study
retirement
Mortality improvement Mortality porojected fully generational with

Scale MP-14, modified to converge to
ultimate improvements in 2022

Health care costs trend rate Pre- Medicare- 6.5% for 2018 decreasing to
5.00% for 2021 and later
Medicare- 6.7% for 2018, decreasing to 5% for 2021 and later

Healthcare participation for Medical coverage: 98% of safety and 88% of Miscellaneous
future retirees future retirees elect coverage
Retirees not eligible for BART Medical Subsidy: 60% participate
Spouse Coverage: varies by bargaining unit, 56% to 90%
Assumptions based on study of recent retiree experience

77





12.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)

Survivor Benefit Plan

Jume 30, 2017 Measurement Date

Valuation date June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 3.58% at June 30, 2017 and 2.85% June 30, 2016

Long term investment rate of return N/A at 6/30/2017

on investments N/A at 6/30/2016
3.58% based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond
Municipal bond rate General Obligation Index as of 6/30/2017
General inflation 3% per annum
Mortality improvement Mortality projected fully generational with

Scale MP-14, modified to converge to
ultimate improvements in 2022

Trend Dental and Vision- 4% per year
Pre- Medicare- 6.5% for 2018, decreasing to 5% for 2021 and later
Medicare- 6.7% for 2018, decreasing to 5% for 2021 and later

Participation Current covered employees and retirees will continue paying premium

for coverage.
Future retirees will elect to be covered by District retiree healthcare benefits

78





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Retiree Life Insurance

Jume 30, 2017 Measurement Date

Valuation date June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate 3.58% at June 30, 2017 and 2.85% June 30, 2016

Long term investment rate of return N/A at 6/30/2017

on investments N/A at 6/30/2016
3.58% based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond
Municipal bond rate General Obligation Index as of 6/30/2017
General inflation 3% per annum

Mortality, disability, termination,
retirement CalPERS 1997-2011 Experience Study

Mortality improvement Mortality projected fully generational with
Scale MP-14, modified to converge to
ultimate improvements in 2022

Trend Not applicable for this life insurance benefit

Salary increases 3.25% plus merit increases based on CalPERS 1997-2011
Experience Study

Life insurance participation for future
retirees 100%

79





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

12. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Assumptions:
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Retiree Medical Benefits Plan as of the June 30, 2017
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, and healthcare trend rate of 6.6% decreasing
to 5.0%, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the current rate (dollar amounts in thousands):

Retiree Medical Benefits

Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Net OPEB liability $ 382,865 $ 303,446 $ 238,470

Health care costs trend rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(5.6% decreasing (6.6% decreasing (7.6% decreasing
to 4.0%) to 5.0%) t0 6.0%)
Net OPEB liability $ 222,457 $ 303,446 $ 403,345

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Survivor Benefit Plan as of the June 30, 2017
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 3.58%, and healthcare trend rate of 6.7% decreasing
to 5.0%, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the current rate (dollar amounts in thousands):

Survivor Benefit

Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(2.58%) Rate (3.58%) (4.58%)
Net OPEB liability $ 53,538 $ 42,456 $ 34,266

Health care costs trend rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(5.7% decreasing (6.7% decreasing (7.7% decreasing
to 4.0%) to 5.0%) to 6.0%)
Net OPEB liability $ 41,154 $ 42,456 $ 43,967

80





12.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Retiree Life Insurance Plan as of the June 30, 2017
measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 3.58%, as well as what the net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher
than the current rate. Healthcare trend rates are not applicable to the Retiree Life Insurance Plan (dollar
amounts in thousands):

Retiree Life Insurance

Discount Rate

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(2.58%) Rate (3.58%) (4.58%)
Net OPEB liability $ 41,472 $ 34,490 $ 29,076

OPEB Expense for Fiscal Year

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized OPEB expense of $44,801,000, details of which
follow (dollar amounts in thousands):

Medical

Benefit Survivor Benefit  Life Insurance Total
Fiscal Year 2016/2017
OPEB expense $ 40,098 $ 3,095 $ 1,608 $ 44,801

Employees covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2017 reporting date, the following numbers of employees were covered by the benefit
terms:

Medical Survivor Life

Benefits Benefit Insurance
Inactives currently receiving benefits 2,118 175 -
Inactives entitled to benefit payments 571 922 2,316
Active employees 3,553 2,208 3,553
Total 6,242 3,305 5,869

81





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

At June 30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources (dollar amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017 Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Retiree Medical Benefits

Differences between expected and $ - $ -
actual experience

Changes of assumptions - -

Net difference between projected and - 8,209
actual earnings on plan investments
Employer contributions made subsequent N/A N/A

to measurement date

Total $ - $ 8,209

Survivor Benefit Plan
Differences between expected and $ - $ -

Changes of assumptions - 6,883
Net difference between projected and - -
actual earnings on plan investments

Employer contributions made subsequent N/A N/A
to measurement date
Total $ - $ 6,883

Retiree Life Insurance

Differences between expected and $ - $ -
actual experience

Changes of assumptions - 4,021
Net difference between projected and - -
actual earnings on plan investments

Employer contributions made subsequent N/A N/A
to measurement date
Total $ - $ 4,021

82





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

12. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Year Ending Deferred Outflows/
June 30, (Inflows) of resources

Retiree Medical Benefits

2018 $ (2,052)
2019 $ (2,052)
2020 $ (2,052)
2021 $ (2,053)
2022 $ -
Thereafter $ -
Survivor Benefit
2018 $ (860)
2019 $ (860)
2020 $ (860)
2021 $ (860)
2022 $ (860)
Thereafter $ (2,583)
Retiree Life Insurance
2018 $ (894)
2019 $ (894)
2020 $ (894)
2021 $ (894)
2022 $ (445)
Thereafter $ -

83





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset)

The following table shows the changes in the net OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2017 (dollar
amounts in thousands):

Retiree Medical Benefits Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2016* $ 537873 $ 237,404  $ 300,469
Changes for the year
Service cost 21,143 - 21,143
Interest 36,977 - 36,977

Changes of benefit terms - - -
Difference beween expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions - - -

Contributions from the employer - 28,912 (28,912)
Contributions from the employees - - -
Net investment income - 26,497 (26,497)
Benefit payments, including refunds *** (22,396) (22,396) -
Administrative expense - (266) 266
Net Changes 35,724 32,747 2977
Balance at June 30, 2017 ** $ 573597 $ 270151  $ 303,446

* Previous measurement date June 30, 2016
** Measurement date June 30, 2017
*** Includes $ 3,900 implied subsidy benefit payments

84





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

12. Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)

Survivor Benefit Plan Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2016* $ 46590 $ - $ 46,590
Changes for the year
Service cost 2,559 - 2,559
Interest 1,396 - 1,396
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Difference beween expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions (7,743) - (7,743)
Contributions from the employer - 346 (346)
Contributions from the employees - - -
Net investment income - - -
Benefit payments, including refunds (346) (346) -
Administrative expense - -
Net Changes (4,134) - (4134
Balance at June 30, 2017 ** $ 42456  $ - 8 42 456
* Previous measurement date June 30, 2016
** Measurement date June 30, 2017
Retiree Life Insurance Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2016* $ 37,588 $ - $ 37,588
Changes for the year
Service cost 1,401 - 1,401
Interest 1,101 - 1,101
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Difference beween expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions (4,915) - (4,915)
Contributions from the employer - 685 -
Contributions from the employees - - -
Net investment income - - -
Benefit payments, including refunds *** (685) (685) (685)
Administrative expense - -
Net Changes (3,098 $ - (3,098)
Balance at June 30, 2017 ** $ 34490 $ - $ 34,490

* Previous measurement date June 30, 2016
** Measurement date June 30, 2017
*** Includes $542 implied subsidy benefit payments

85





12.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Presented below is GASB 45 disclosure for comparative financial reporting purposes. The three-year trend
for the OPEB costs and net OPEB obligation follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Annual Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
Retiree Medical Benefits June 30,2014 $ 27,076 99.8% $ 45151
June 30, 2015 23,646 100.2% 45,093
June 30, 2016 26,974 100.6% 44,922
Additional OPEB June 30, 2014 2,187 3.5% 14,227
June 30, 2015 2,258 7.4% 16,318
June 30, 2016 1,961 7.9% 18,125

Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Retiree Medical Plan. As of June 30, 2016, based on Keenan
and Associates (Keenan)’s most recent actuarial report, the Retiree Medical Plan is 66.57% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $333,141,000, and the actuarial value of assets was $221,766,000
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $111,375,000. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active miscellaneous and safety employees covered by the plan) was $260,861,000 and the ratio
of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 42.70%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI, following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents
the three-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Funded Status and Funding Progress of the Additional OPEB Plan. As of June 30, 2016, based on
Keenan’s most recent actuarial report, the Additional OPEB Plan is zero percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $30,659,000, and the actuarial value of assets was zero, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $30,659,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
miscellaneous and safety employees covered by the plan) was $260,861,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to
the covered payroll was 11.75%.

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RS, following the Notes to Financial Statements, presents
the three-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan in effect and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

86





12.

13.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
The latest OPEB actuarial valuation was performed by Keenan in February 2016 using District data as of
June 30, 2015. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used by Keenan to determine the
District’s annual required contributions to the OPEB plans is shown below:

Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method

Remaining amortization
period

Asset valuation method

Discount rate

Inflation rate

Payroll growth rate
Health care cost trend rate
for the first year

Ultimate trend rate

Year that rate reaches the
ultimate rate

June 30, 2015

Entry age normal
Closed, Level percent of
payroll

18 years

Market value

6.75% for the retiree medical
plan; 4.25% for the additional
OPEB

2.75%

3.00% per year

5.00%
3.75%

2020

Board of Directors’ Expenses

June 30, 2014

Entry age normal
Closed, Level percent of
payroll

19 years

Market value

6.75% for the retiree medical
plan; 4.25% for the additional
OPEB

2.75%

3.00% per year

5.50%
3.75%

2020

June 30, 2013

Entry age normal
Closed, Level percent of
payroll

20 years

Market value

6.75% for the retiree medical
plan; 4.25% for the additional
OPEB

2.75%

3.00% per year

6.00%
3.75%

2020

Total Directors’ expenses, consisting of travel and other business related expenses for the years ended June
30, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $18,900 and $26,000, respectively.

87





14.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Related Organizations and Joint Venture Projects

Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority

The Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement dated December 31, 1996, between the District and five other
transportation authorities in surrounding counties (Agencies) provided for the creation of the Capitol
Corridor Joint Powers Authority (Capitol Corridor), a public instrumentality of the State of California.
Capitol Corridor was formed for the purpose of administering and managing the operation of the Capitol
Corridor Rail Service as part of the California intercity passenger rail system. The District is the managing
agency of Capitol Corridor and in that capacity shall provide all necessary administrative support to Capitol
Corridor. Capitol Corridor entered into an Interagency Transfer Agreement with the State of California
and assumed administration and operation commencing on July 1, 1998. The initial term of the Interagency
Transfer Agreement was for three years beginning July 1, 1998, and was extended for three additional years
effective July 1, 2001. In 2004, State legislation was enacted that eliminated the sunset date of the
Interagency Transfer Agreement, which now exists indefinitely.

The governing board of Capitol Corridor consists of six members from the District and two members from
each of the five other Agencies. Neither the District nor the other Agencies are responsible for any debt,
liabilities and obligations of Capitol Corridor and the District would not be entitled to any of Capitol
Corridor’s net assets should it terminate.

The District charged Capitol Corridor a total of $3,561,000 for marketing and administrative services during
2017 and $3,504,000 during 2016. In addition, Capitol Corridor reimburses the District for its advances
for capital project expenditures and other operating expenses. Reimbursements for expenses incurred by
the District on behalf of and in providing services to Capitol Corridor are netted against the corresponding
expense in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Unreimbursed expenses and
advances for capital project costs from Capitol Corridor amount to $1,510,000 and $1,044,000 as of
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. All unreimbursed expenses and advances are included as current
receivables and other assets in the statements of net position. As the District has no ownership involvement
or ongoing financial interest or responsibility in Capitol Corridor, its financial statements include only
amounts related to the services and advances it provides to Capitol Corridor.

East Bay Paratransit Consortium

In 1994, the District and the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (AC Transit) executed an agreement
establishing the East Bay Paratransit Consortium (the Consortium). The purpose of the Consortium is to
enable the District and AC Transit to jointly provide paratransit services in the overlapping service area of
the District and AC Transit. Revenues and expenditures for the Consortium are split 31% and 69% between
the District and AC Transit, respectively, except the program coordinator’s expenses, which are split 50/50
starting in 2011. The District’s financial statements reflect its portion of revenues and expenditures as
operating activities. The District supported the project primarily through its own operating funds, with
some financial assistance from Alameda County Measure B and BB funds and from the Contra Costa
Transportation Authority Measure J funds (Note 9). The District has no equity interest in the Consortium.

88





14.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Related Organizations and Joint Venture Projects (Continued)

Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing Authority

In July 2004, the District, the County of Contra Costa (County) and the Contra Costa County
Redevelopment Agency (Agency) entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JPA Agreement) to
create the Pleasant Hill BART Station Leasing Authority (Pleasant Hill Authority). In 2012, the Agency
was dissolved by California Assembly Bill ABx1 26, and the Pleasant Hill Authority now consists of the
District and Contra Costa County. The Pleasant Hill Authority was created as a means of accomplishing
the cooperation and coordination among the agencies to provide for the development of a mixed-used transit
village located at BART’s Pleasant Hill/Contra Costa Centre Station, which includes rental residential,
retail and a future office development. The original lease to the Pleasant Hill Authority was for a 99-year
term expiring on May 14, 2105. All subsequent leases will be conterminous with the May 14, 2105 date.

On June 30, 2009, the District received as ground lease payments for the full term of the lease, a cash base
rent of $99 and a noncash base rent in the form of a newly constructed parking structure located at the
Pleasant Hill BART station. The District accepted the completion of the new parking structure and became
its new owner effective June 30, 2009. The replacement parking garage was recorded as a capital asset at a
value of $51,236,000, which is its final construction cost as reported by its developer. As a result of the
Agency’s funding of the replacement parking garage, future sublease revenue will be split between the
County and BART at 75% and 25%, respectively, after defeasance of Agency’s final incremental
contribution to the parking garage project.

The Pleasant Hill Authority is a public entity separate from any member and as such its debts, liabilities
and obligations shall not be the debts, liabilities and obligations of any of the members. The governing body
of the Pleasant Hill Authority is a Board of Directors consisting of four persons — two each from the County
and the District.

Richmond Redevelopment Agency or Successor Agency

On April 11, 2002, the District entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement with Richmond
Redevelopment Agency and Richmond Transit, LLC for the development of a mixed use transit village on
the property owned by the Redevelopment Agency, the City of Richmond and BART.

The transit village will be developed in two phases. The first phase has been completed and consists of the
development of the townhouses on the western side of the tracks, a parking structure that includes retail
space incorporated within the structure (the “Phase One Improvements”).

The second phase will consist of the development of additional housing and the improvement of Nevin
Avenue and the Nevin Avenue walkway on the eastern side of the Tracks (the “Phase Two Improvements™).

The District had agreed to issue grant deeds to the developer pertaining to two parcels with approximate
total size of 245,070 square feet in both the West side and the East side for the development projects. The
agreement states that in exchange for the parcels, the Richmond Redevelopment Agency, at their expense,
will construct a parking structure on the West side of BART’s property, and transfer ownership of the
garage to the District upon completion. The transfer of maintenance and responsibility to the District of
the parking structure, which consisted of 750 parking spaces and approximately 9000 +/- square feet of
commercial space, occurred in September 2014. As of June 30, 2017, only the parcel on the West side of
the development project has been transferred by the District to the developer. The transfer of the parcel on
the East side is expected to occur in fiscal year 2018.

89





14.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Related Organizations and Joint Venture Projects (Continued)

The District allocated the value of the garage, which amounted to $36,260,000, between the two parcels.
The total cost of the structure was recorded as part of capital assets. A gain of $6,012,000 was recognized
in fiscal year 2015 pertaining to the value allocated to the West side parcel that was transferred to the
developer, after deducting the cost. The allocated value pertaining to the East side parcel amounting to
$30,110,000 was recognized as unearned revenue, pending the transfer, and is shown as part of noncurrent
unearned revenue.

MacArthur Transit Village

On July 29, 2010, the District entered into a Purchase and Lease Option agreement with MacArthur Transit
Community Partners LLC (Developer) pertaining to the development of the MacArthur Transit Village, a
mixed-use, transit-oriented project, including affordable and market rate housing, retail/commercial and
community space and replacement parking adjacent to the MacArthur BART Station.

The District owns a portion of the project’s real property totaling approximately 7.76 acres that is to be
used to develop the project.

As a consideration for the purchase of parcels totaling 198,642 square feet and lease of a 34,404 square feet
parcel, the Developer constructed a parking garage structure, funded in part by the Oakland Redevelopment
Agency, with 450 BART parking spaces and approximately 5,200 square feet of retail spaces. The parking
structure was completed and transferred to the District in September 2014. In addition to the parking
structure, Phase 1 of the project included BART Plaza and Transportation Improvements. These
improvements are also the responsibility of the Developer as part of the consideration for the land. The
total value of the garage and the improvements amounted to $27,596,000 and were recognized as part of
depreciable capital assets. $1,780,000 of the consideration was allocated to Phase 2 of the project which is
for a 99 year term ground lease; and was recorded as deferred ground lease prior to 2017. The land transfers
to the master developer’s designated assignee developers have now occurred, December 29, 2016 for
Parcels A and C1 and June 29, 2017 for Parcel B. The District recognized a gain from exchange of property
of $24,839,000 resulting from the completion of required land transfers.

Using the City of Oakland Redevelopment Agency funds, the project acquired two parcels under the
District’s name which were used for the construction of the BART Garage Structure. The total consideration
paid by the City of Oakland for the two parcels was $5,121,000. The costs of these parcels were recorded
by the District as non-depreciable capital assets. The District also recognized a revenue (donated income)
equivalent to the value of the land received.

South Hayward Transit Oriented Development

On June 18, 2012, the District and JMJ Development LLC (Developer) entered into an Option Agreement
for a Transit Oriented Development (TOD). That agreement also includes the right to purchase
approximately 1.65 acres of land from the District. The right to purchase was exercised in fiscal year 2014
for a total consideration of $692,000. Grant deed for the transfer was issued on October 8, 2014. The
District recognized a gain of $620,000 from this sale.

An Option Agreement between the District and the Developer provided further consideration to the District
of a transfer benefit fee (TBF) which guarantees the District a perpetual revenue stream. The TBF amounts
to a 1% assessment against successive transfers of each of the development units (i.e. unit sales) or a 1%
annual assessment against Gross Annual Rental Revenue from rental of the units. A total of 206 market
rate rental units were completed in 2017. This does not have an impact on the financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2017.

90





14.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Related Organizations and Joint Venture Projects (Continued)

South Hayward BART Station Access Authority

On September 1, 2011, the District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement with the City of
Hayward which provided for the creation of a public entity known as the South Hayward BART Station
Access Authority (South Hayward JPA). The purpose of the South Hayward JPA is to manage and
administer parking and access within the boundaries of the South Hayward JPA in an equitable and orderly
fashion in order to promote transit-oriented development, support access to the station by District patrons,
maximize BART ridership and protect the neighborhoods surrounding the South Hayward Station.

The governing board of the South Hayward JPA consists of four members, two each from the governing
Board of the District and from the City of Hayward, appointed by the governing board of the District and
the Hayward City Council, respectively. Neither the District nor the City of Hayward is responsible for
any debt, liabilities and obligation of the South Hayward JPA.

The parking fees and traffic citation fees collected by the District for the South Hayward Station are
transferred to the South Hayward JPA to cover maintenance and other expenses. Parking fees collected in
fiscal year 2017 amounts to $537,000 ($516,000 in fiscal year 2016) and traffic citation fees collected in
fiscal year 2017 amounts to $27,000 ($23,000 in fiscal year 2016). The District and the City of Hayward
are entitled to reimbursement of operating and/or capital expenses incurred for the benefit of the South
Hayward JPA. Net revenues will be used by the South Hayward JPA to implement parking and access
projects in line with the objectives set forth in the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement.

Regional Administrative Facility Corporation (RAFC)

The Regional Administrative Facility Corporation (RAFC) was incorporated in the State of California on
March 23, 1983 for the purposes of administering, operating, preserving, and controlling common areas
and certain easements of the property known as the Regional Administrative Facility Project under the
Condominium Plan and Declaration of Covenants, Condition, and Restrictions established by the following
three owner occupants of the Project: the District, MTC, and the Association of Bay Area Governments
(ABAG) (through its Association of Bay Area Governments Public Office Building Corporation).

Under the above Plan and Declaration, RAFC exercises a custodial responsibility on behalf of the owner
occupants to discharge operational obligations and to assess sufficient amounts to meet all required
expenditures of the common areas and certain easements of the Project.

On January 27, 2017, the District entered into a Purchase Agreement with MTC for the acquisition of land
and building located at 101 Eight Street, Oakland, California. As of June 22, 2017, the District is the sole
owner of the property. The District paid a total amount of $18,224,000 net of assets and liabilities assumed
as a result of the purchase. The District assumed ownership of RAFC to be able to continue the utilization
of existing procurement contracts. Currently, RAFC is being managed by the District’s Real Estate group.

91





15.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

The District is involved in various lawsuits, claims and disputes, which for the most part are normal to the
District’s operations. It is the opinion of the District’s management that the costs that might be incurred in
the disposition of these matters, if any, would not materially affect the District’s financial position.

Power Purchases

The District purchases electrical power for self-consumption at multiple points of delivery such as Traction
Power, Passenger Station Power and Miscellaneous Power from the Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA). Power purchase contracts with the NCPA are in place through December 31, 2017, with a total
remaining contract value of $19,188,000 as of June 30, 2017.

Operations and Maintenance Agreement for the Oakland International Airport Connector

On October 1, 2010, the District entered into an Operations and Maintenance Contract with Doppelmayr
Cable Car, Inc, to operate and maintain the OAC for an amount not to exceed $4,907,000 (base service
payment in 2009 dollars) annually for a period of twenty (20) years from revenue service date, subject to
annual escalation based on Consumer Price Index. Total operating expenses incurred under this agreement
amounts to $6,014,000 in fiscal year 2017 ($5,928,000 in fiscal year 2016). As part of the contract, the
District is also required to deposit to a reserve account, the amount of $768,000 annually, subject to
escalation, for Capital Asset Replacement Program (CARP). The CARP will cover all major maintenance
and rehabilitation expenditures during the term of the Operations and Maintenance agreement. The OAC
started revenue operations on November 22, 2014

Lease Commitments
The District leases certain facilities under operating leases with original terms ranging from one to fifty
years with options to renew.

Future minimum rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining lease terms
of over one year at June 30, 2017 are as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

Operating

Year ending June 30: Leases
2018 $ 13,705
2019 13,860
2020 14,064
2021 14,234
2022 3,312
2023-2027 12,634
2028-2032 12,500
2033-2037 12,500
2038-2042 12,500
2043-2047 12,500
2048-2055 4,792

Total minimum rental payments $ 126,601

92





15.

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Rent expenses under all operating leases were $13,680,000 and $8,768,000 for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Fruitvale Development Corp.

On October 1, 2001, the District entered into a ground lease agreement with Fruitvale Development
Corporation (FDC) pertaining to 1.8 acres of land for the purpose of constructing thereon portions of a
mixed-use development project commonly known as the Fruitvale Transit Village, which consists of
approximately 250,000 square feet of commercial, community service and residential improvements. The
lease agreement became effective December 9, 2003 and continues through January 31, 2077.

The terms of the lease require FDC to pay the District a Base Rent and a Percentage Rent. The Base Rent
is a fixed amount determined at the inception of the lease subject to periodic CPI adjustments. Percentage
Rent is calculated equal to 15% of annual net revenues, as defined in the ground lease agreement.

The District provided FDC a Rent Credit with an initial amount of $7,247,000, to acknowledge its assistance
in obtaining grants for the construction of a Replacement BART Commuter Parking Garage near the
Fruitvale Transit Village. The initial Rent Credit earned interest on the outstanding balance at simple
interest based on the prime rate and can only be applied to satisfy the Base Rent.

In October 2010, there was a second amendment to the ground lease agreement, which recalculated the
initial Rent Credit available to FDC as it relates to the replacement parking. The amount of the Replacement
Parking Rent Credit was revised to $4,642,000, after a payment of $5,500,000 coming from the proceeds
of the sale of land at the Fruitvale BART Station to the City of Oakland Redevelopment Agency. The
second amendment also stated that no interest shall accrue on the revised Replacement Parking Rent Credit
and that beginning on December 1, 2003 and continuing throughout the term of the ground lease, base rent
and percentage rent shall be subtracted from the Replacement Parking Rent Credit balance, until there is no
longer a positive Replacement Parking Rent Credit. The offset base rent for fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year
2016 amounted to $169,000 each year. There is no percentage rent offset for fiscal year 2017 ($22,000 in
fiscal year 2016). The remaining balance in the Replacement Parking Rent Credit was $2,753,000 as of
June 30, 2017 ($2,922,000 as of June 30, 2016).

Based on the agreement, FDC shall not be under any obligation to make any cash payment to the District
for base rent at any time that the Replacement Parking Rent Credit still has a positive balance.

93





This Page Intentionally Left Blank.

94





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (dollar amounts in thousands)

(Last 10 years*)

Miscellaneous

2017 2016 2015
Total pension liability
Service cost 37,959 36,151 36,182
Interest on total pension liability 152,757 146,226 139,931
Changes of assumptions - (32,773) -
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,193 (4,807)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (102,543) (95,653) (89,968)
Net change in total pension liability 89,366 49,144 86,145
Total pension liability - beginning 2,027,925 1,978,781 1,892,636
Total pension liability - ending 2,117,291 2,027,925 1,978,781
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - Employer 38,283 32,466 28,276
Contributions - Employee 18,174 17,818 21,375
Plan to Plan resource movement @) (36) -
Net investment income 8,747 37,388 251,137
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (102,543) (95,653) (89,968)
Administrative expense (1,009) (1,865) -
Net change in fiduciary net position (38,349) (9,882) 210,820
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,656,526 1,666,408 1,455,588
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 1,618,177 1,656,526 1,666,408
Plan net pension liability - ending 499,114 371,399 312,373
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 76.43% 81.69% 84.21%
Covered payroll** 264,024 246,901 240,171
Plan net pension liability as a percentage of covered
payroll 189.04% 150.42% 130.06%

*Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB 68, therefore only three

years of information is shown.
** Based on actuarial report

95





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (dollar amounts in thousands)
(Last 10 years*) (Continued)

Safety
2017 2016 2015
Total pension liability
Service cost $ 6,491 $ 5935  $ 5,790
Interest on total pension liability 21,340 20,099 18,885
Changes of assumptions - (4,942) -
Differences between expected and actual experience 4,387 4,794 -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (14,803) (14,140) (13,199)
Net change in total pension liability 17,415 11,746 11,476
Total pension liability - beginning 218,727 266,981 255,505
Total pension liability - ending $ 296,142 $ 278,727 $ 266,981
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - Employer $ 10,038 % 9428 % 7,442
Contributions - Employee 1,854 1917 2,817
Plan to Plan resource movement 1 1 -
Net investment income 924 4,015 27,150
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee
contributions (14,803) (14,140) (13,199)
Administrative expense (112) (206) -
Net change in fiduciary net position (2,098) 1,015 24,210
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 182,904 181,889 157,679
Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 180,806  $ 182904  $ 181,889
Plan net pension liability - ending $ 115,336 $ 95,823 $ 85,092
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 61.05% 65.62% 68.13%
Covered-employee payroll** $ 19,738 $ 17941  $ 17,377
Plan net pension liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 584.33% 534.10% 489.68%

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB 68, therefore only three
years of information is shown.
** Based on actuarial report

96





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios:

Benefit changes - The figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan
changes which occurred after the measurement dates. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well
as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit.

Changes in assumptions — In 2016, there were no changes in assumptions. In 2015, amounts reported
reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5% (net of administrative expense) to 7.65% (without a
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. In 2014, amounts reported were based on the 7.5%
discount rate.

Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions (dollar amounts in thousands)
(Last 10 years*)
Miscellaneous Safety
2017 2016 2015 2014 2017 2016 2015 2014

Actuarially determined

contribution $ 46709 $ 39768 $ 32756 $ 28213 $ 11677 $ 10658 $ 9512 $ 7423
Contributions in relation to the

actuarially determined

contribution (46,709) (39,768) (32,756) (28,213) (11,677) (10,658) (9,512) (7423)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -3 - 3 - 3 - $ -3 -3 - 3

Covered-employee payroll**  § 288637 $ 265778 $ 245593 § 226893 $ 20953 $ 20410 $ 19741 § 17077

Contribution as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 16.18% 14.96% 13.34% 12.43% 55.73% 52.22% 48.18% 43.47%

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation of GASB 68; therefore, only four
years of information is shown.
** Based on actual payroll

97





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

June 30, 2017 and 2016

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for
Fiscal Year 2016-17 were derived from the June 30, 2014 funding valuation report.

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method/period
Asset valuation method
Inflation

Projected salary increase

Payroll growth

Investment rate of returnt

Retirement age

Mortality 1

Miscellaneous

Safety

Entry Age Normal Cost
Level percentage of payroll
Market Value of Assets
2.75%

3.20% to 12.20% depending
on Age, Service and Type
of Employment
3%

7.50%, net of Pension Plan

Investment & Administrative
Expenses; includes inflation

Derived using
CalPERS' Membership

Based on the 2014 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period
form 1997 to 2011

Based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period
form 1997 to 2011

Entry Age Normal Cost
Level percentage of payroll
Market Value of Assets
2.75%

3.70% to 15.00% depending
on Age, Service and Type
of Employment
3%

7.50%, net of Pension Plan

Investment & Administrative
Expenses; includes inflation

Derived using
CalPERS' Membership

Based on the 2014 CalPERS

Experience Study for the period
form 1997 to 2011

Based on the 2014 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period
form 1997 to 2011

1 Pre-retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using
Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries.

98





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Retiree Medical Benefits

Total OPEB liability FY 2017
Service cost $ 21,143
Interest 36,977

Changes of benefit terms -
Difference beween expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions -

Benefit payments, including refunds *** (22,396)
Net changes in total OPEB liability $ 35,724
Total OPEB liability- June 30, 2016* 537,873
Total OPEB liability- June 30, 2017** $ 573,597

Fiduciary net position

Contributions from the employer $ 28912
Contributions from the employees -
Net investment income 26,497
Benefit payments, including refunds *** (22,396)
Administrative expense (266)
Net changes in total fiduciary net position $ 32,747
Total fiduciary net position- June 30, 2016* 237,404
Total fiduciary net position- June 30, 2017** $ 270,151
Net OPEB liability $ 303,446
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability 47.10%
Covered employee payroll $372,887

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll 81.38%

99





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

June 30, 2017 and 2016

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (dollar amounts in

thousands):

Survivor Benefit Plan

Total OPEB liability

Service cost

Interest

Changes of benefit terms

Difference beween expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds

Net changes in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liability- June 30, 2016*
Total OPEB liability- June 30, 2017**

Fiduciary net position
Contributions from the employer
Contributions from the employees
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
Administrative expense
Net changes in total fiduciary net position

FY 2017

2,559
1,396

(7,743)
(346)

(4,134)
46,590

42,456

346

(346)

Total fiduciary net position- June 30, 2016* -
Total fiduciary net position- June 30, 2017** $ -

Net OPEB liability

$ 42,456

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total OPEB liability

Covered employee payroll

0.00%

$372,887

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee

payroll

11.39%

100





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Retiree Life Insurance

Total OPEB liability FY 2017
Service cost $ 1,401
Interest 1,101

Changes of benefit terms -
Difference beween expected and actual experience

Change of assumptions (4,915)
Benefit payments, including refunds *** (685)
Net changes in total OPEB liability $ (3,098)
Total OPEB liability- June 30, 2016* 37,588
Total OPEB liability June 30, 2017** $ 34,490

Fiduciary net position
Contributions from the employer*** $ 685
Contributions from the employees -
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds *** (685)
Administrative expense
Net changes in total fiduciary net position -
Total fiduciary net position- June 30, 2016* -
Total fiduciary net position- June 30, 2017** -

Net OPEB liability $ 34,490
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total OPEB liability 0.00%
Covered employee payroll $372,887

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee
payroll 9.25%

*  Previous measurement date June 30, 2016
** Measurement date June 30, 2017
***Includes implied subsidy benefit payments

101





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Schedule of Employer Contributions (dollar amounts in thousands):

Retiree Medical Benefits

Fiscal year
2016/2017
Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) $ 25,012
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution $ (28,912)
Contribution deficiency /(excess) $ (3,900)
Covered payroll* $ 372,887
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 7.75%
* For the 12-month period ending on June 30, 2017
Survivor Benefit Plan
Fiscal year
2016/2017
Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) $ 3,138
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution $ (346)
Contribution deficiency /(excess) $ 2,792
Covered payroll* $ 372,887
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.09%

*For the 12-month period ending on June 30, 2017

102





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Retiree Life Insurance

Fiscal year
2016/2017
Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) $ 2,450
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution $ (685)
Contribution deficiency /(excess) $ 1,765
Covered payroll* $ 372,887
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.18%

*For the 12-month period ending on June 30, 2017

Notes to Schedule of Employer Contribution

Methods and Assumptions for Actuarially Determined Contribution for the 2016/2017 Fiscal Year

Valuation date June 30, 2015

Actuary Keenan/TCS

Actuarial cost method Entry Age, level percentage of payroll
Amortization Period Level percent of payroll over closed 18 year period
Asset Valuation Method Market value, no smoothing

Discount Rate 6.75%

Same as for determining total OPEB liability, except for
rates of retirement, medical trend, future retiree
Other Assumptions participation, and assumed spouse coverage percent.

103





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2017 and 2016

Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedules of Funding Progress
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Retiree Medical Benefits

Entry Age Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Actuarial Percentage of
Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio (%) Payroll Payroll (%)
6/30/13 $ 297,955 § 165639 $ 132,316 55.6 $ 243,406 54.36
6/30/14 331,352 202,181 129,171 61.0 253,264 51.00
6/30/15 333,141 221,766 111,375 66.6 260,861 42.70
Additional OPEB
Entry Age Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Normal Actuarial Actuarial Percentage of
Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Covered
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio (%) Payroll Payroll (%)
6/30/13 $ 33027 $ - $ 33,027 - $ 245,406 13.57
6/30/14 29,130 - 29,130 - 253,264 11.50
6/30/15 30,659 - 30,659 - 260,861 11.75

Schedule of Funding progress is presented in accordance with GASB 45 reporting requirement for
comparative periods.

104






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Certified
Public
Accountants






Certified
Public
Accountants

To the Board of Directors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Oakland, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Enterprise Fund and the Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund
of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our engagement letter dated July 25, 2017. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you on a number of subjects. The information on pages 2 through 5 satisfies these
requirements.

In planning and performing our audit of the District’s financial statements as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing our audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the second paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. In
addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management
override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls.
Given these limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

We have also provided a status of our prior year comments on page 6 of this document.
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management

and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Mhcias G C‘ OComel (5P

Oakland, California
November 29, 2017

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
2121 N. California Boulevard, Suite 750
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 www.mgocpa.com





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2017

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the District’s financial
statements. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District implemented the
following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements in 2017: GASB
Statement No. 74 — Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension
Plans, GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, GASB Statement No. 77 — Tax Abatement Disclosures, GASB Statement
No. 78 — Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, ,
GASB Statement No. 80 — Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — An Amendment
of GASB Statement No. 14, and GASB Statement No. 82 — Pension Issues — An Amendment of
GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73.

We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the
financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting
the financial statements were:

= Fair value of investments. The District’s investments are generally at fair value, which is
defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The District’s
investments are valued and classified using the fair value hierarchy established by GASB
Statement No. 72, based on guidance from its custodian banks.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2017

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS (Continued)

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Policies (continued)

= Useful life estimates for capital and intangible assets. The estimated useful lives of capital and
intangible assets were based on management’s estimate of the economic lives of the assets.

= Estimated claims liabilities. Reserves for estimated claims liabilities were based on actuarial
evaluations using historical loss, other data, and attorney judgment about the ultimate outcome
of claims.

= Accrual of compensated absences. The accrual for compensated absences is based on the
unused sick leave, vacation, and holiday time earned by employees and their salary rates as of
June 30, 2017.

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plans. The contribution
requirements, net pension liability and related pension amounts of the pension plans, and the
net OPEB liability and related OPEB amounts of the OPEB plans were based on actuarially
determined studies.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates described
above in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the District’s financial statements taken
as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements are
related to investments, long-term debt, defined benefit pension benefits, and postemployment
healthcare benefits as discussed in notes 2, 6, 10 and 12, respectively, to the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. The attached schedule summarizes the uncorrected misstatements of the
financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the District’s financial statements taken as a whole. In
addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the District’s financial
statements taken as a whole.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2017

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS (Continued)

V.

VI.

VII.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or to the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated November 29, 2017.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s basic financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those financial statements,
our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

VIII.

Required Supplementary Information

We applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis, the schedules
of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of employer pension
contributions, the schedules of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, the schedules of
employer contributions for the OPEB plans, and the schedules of funding progress — other
postemployment benefits, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements
the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2017

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS (Continued)

IX.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the financial statements and our
report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in our audit report. We do not
have an obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information contained in these
documents. The District will include its financial statements and our report in its annual report.
However, we will read the other information in District’s annual report and consider whether such
information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with information, or the
manner of its presentation, appearing in the financial statements.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2017

CURRENT YEAR COMMENT AND RESPONSE

NONE

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS

Comment

Summary

Status

# 2015-001

# 2015-002

Uniform Guidance for Federal Awards. We
recommend that the District analyze the Uniform
Guidance and work closely with its grantor
agencies to determine what compliance
requirements have changed beginning on
December 26, 2014. Because many individuals
amongst multiple departments of the District may
be involved with the administration of federal
grants, the District may want to consider forming a
central Uniform Guidance task force to assist in
assessing the District’s internal controls, policies,
and procedures that may need to be amended to
ensure compliance with Uniform Guidance
requirements.

New Other Postemployment Benefit
Accounting Standards. The District should begin
assessing the impacts of the new OPEB standards
and develop a plan to implement the new
accounting and financial reporting requirements.
In addition, the District should work closely with
its OPEB administrator, actuaries, and auditor to
ensure that all relevant parties are involved in the
process that ultimately affect its successful
implementation.

The District has evaluated the
requirements of the new
Uniform Guidance for federal
awards and has updated its
policies and procedures for
conformity.

The District implemented
GASB Statement Nos. 74 and
75 during fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017.





SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA
RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Report to the Board of Directors
Year Ended June 30, 2017

SUMMARY OF UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Impact of Uncorrected Misstatements on Enterprise Fund Financial Statement Captions - Increase (Decrease)

Statements of Net Position Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Assets and Liabilities Nonoperating

Description (Nature) Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Ending Beginning Operating Operating Revenues, Net and
of Audit Differences of Resources of Resources Net Position Net Position Rewenues Expenses Capital Contributions
Uncorrected misstatements

To adjust sales taxrevenues fromthe cash

basis to accrual basis. $ 47,070,070 3 - $ 47070070 $ 44846786 $ - $ - $ 2,223,284
Total uncorrected misstatements $ 47070070 $ - $ 47070070 $ 44846786 $ - 3 -3 2,223,284
Financial statement amounts $ 9661638000 $ 3287017000 $ 6,374621,000 $6,027,354000 $ 547,100,000 $ 908,065000 $ 708,232,000
Impact as a percentage of financial
statement amounts 0.49% 0.00% 0.74% 0.74% 0.00% 0.00% 0.31%











ATTACHMENT 1. BART FARE TABLE with BART to Antioch Extension Stations; CLIPPER fares effective January 1, 2018

Exit
RM
EN
EP
NB
BK
AS
MA

19th
12th
LM
FV
cL
SL
BF
HY
SH
uc
FM
CN
PH
wc
LF
OR
RR
wo

EM
MT
PL
cc

16th
24th
GP
BP
DC
cM
cv

D/P
NC
PB
S8
SB
SO
MB

WD
OA

ws
PC
AN

Eﬂtw —

oo
S 8 RMRichmond

2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.75
2.95
2.95
2.95
3.30
3.50
3.80
4.05
4.30
4.60
5.10
5.45
4.75
4.35
4.20
3.85
345
2.80
3.10
4.80
4.80
4.80
4.80
4.85
4.90
5.05
5.15
5.25
5.25
4.30
5.45
5.00
5.50
5.45
5.70
10.45
6.05
5.30
9.65
5.90
5.65
6.30

[SA
g g ENEC del Norte

2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
240
260
2,60
260
305
325
360
380
410
440
490
525
455
415
4.00
365
325
245
2.80
455
455
455
455
465
470
485
490
505
5.00
410
525
475
5.30
520
550

10.20
5.80
505
9.45
570
545
6.10

I
S g EPECPlaza

5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
210
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.80
3.10
340
3.65
3.95
4.25
4.75
5.10
4.40
4.00
3.85
3.45
3.00
215
2.50
4.40
4.40
4.40
4.40
4.50
455
4.70
4.75
4.90
4.85
3.95
5.05
4.60
5.15
5.05
5.30
10.05
5.65
4.90
9.25
5.55
5.30
5.95

NN
S S NBNorth Berkeley

2,00
590
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
245
2.80
320
345
375
405
455
490
420
380
365
330
265
2,00
2.20
420
420
420
420
430
435
450
455
470
465
375
485
440
495
485
510
9.85
545
470
8.95
535
510
575

BK Dwntn Berkeley

AS Ashby

2.00

2,00
2,00
2,00
590
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2.20
250
3.00
330
360
390
440
475
410
370
355
3.00
240
2,00
2,00
395
395
395
395
415
420
435
440
455
450
360
475
430
485
470
495
9.70
530
455
865
520
500
565

N
3 & MAMacArthur

210
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.30
2.75
3.15
3.50
3.80
4.30
4.60
4.10
3.70
3.55
2.95
2.00
2.00
2.00
3.75
3.75
3.75
3.75
3.90
4.00
4.20
4.30
4.40
4.40
345
4.60
4.30
485
4.60
485
9.60
5.20
445
8.45
5.05
5.00
5.65

N Ll
¥ QK 19th St/Oakland

2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.55
2.95
340
3.70
4.20
4.55
4.15
3.75
3.60
3.10
2.50
2.00
2.00
3.50
3.50
3.50
3.50
3.70
3.80
4.05
4.20
4.30
4.30
3.40
450
4.35
4.90
4.50
475
9.50
5.10
4.35
8.15
5.00
5.05
5.70

N Ll
¥ QK 12th St/Oakland

2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.55
2.95
340
3.70
4.20
4.55
4.15
3.75
3.60
3.10
2.50
2.00
2.00
3.50
3.50
3.50
3.50
3.70
3.80
4.05
4.20
4.30
4.30
3.40
450
4.35
4.90
4.50
475
9.50
5.10
4.35
8.15
5.00
5.05
5.70

Lake Merritt

LM

2.60
2.35
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.55
2.95
340
3.70
4.20
4.55
4.15
3.75
3.60
3.10
2.50
2.00
2.00
3.50
3.50
3.50
3.50
3.70
3.80
4.05
4.20
4.30
4.30
3.40
450
4.35
4.90
4.50
475
9.50
5.10
4.35
8.15
5.00
5.05
5.70

Fruitvale

Ll &
S Y FV

2.80
245
2.35
2.20
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
590
2,00
2,00
245
295
340
390
425
430
390
375
335
2.80
2,00
2,00
395
395
395
395
415
425
440
445
460
460
295
425
450
505
475
505
975
535
405
8.15
470
520
585

Coliseum

el &2
N @ CL

340
2.80
265
250
2.30
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
590
2,00
2,00
260
340
370
405
450
410
395
355
315
2.35
2.20
430
430
430
430
440
445
460
465
480
480
2,60
405
470
525
495
525
9.95
555
390
6.15
450
540
6.05

San Leandro

BF Bay Fair

4.05

3.65
3.45
3.40
3.30
3.15
2.95
2.95
2.95
245
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.05
4.60
445
4.10
3.70
3.15
3.10
4.85
4.85
4.85
4.85
4.95
5.00
5.15
5.20
5.35
5.30
2.00
2.00
5.25
5.75
5.50
5.75
10.50
6.10
2.00
8.15
3.95
5.95
6.60

HY Hayward

430
410
395
375
370
360
350
340
340
340
295
260
2,00
2,00
590
2,00
2,00
2,00
5.30
490
475
440
400
350
345
515
515
515
515
525
5.30
540
550
565
560
2,00
380
550
6.05
5.80
6.05

10.80
6.40
365
8.80
370
6.20
6.85

& o
B & & SHSouth Hayward

4.05
4.00
3.90
3.80
3.70
3.70
3.70
3.40
3.10
2.60
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
5.65
5.20
5.05
4.70
4.30
3.80
3.80
545
5.45
5.45
5.45
5.50
5.60
5.75
5.80
5.95
5.90
2.70
4.10
5.85
6.35
6.10
6.35
11.10
6.70
3.95
9.25
2.00
6.50
715

& o
&g = UC Union City

475
455
450
440
430
420
420
420
390
370
335
2,00
2,00
2,00
590
200
6.15
570
555
520
480
430
430
595
595
595
595
6.05
6.10
6.25
6.30
6.45
6.40
340
460
6.35
6.85
6.60
6.85

11.60
7.20
445
9.90
2,00
7.05
765

Fremont

FM

545

5.10
4.90
4.85
4.75
4.60
4.55
4.55
4.55
4.25
4.05
3.75
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
6.50
6.05
5.90
5.55
5.15
4.60
4.65
6.30
6.30
6.30
6.30
6.35
6.45
6.60
6.65
6.80
6.75
3.80
4.95
6.70
7.20
6.95
7.20
11.95
7.55
4.80
10.25
2.00
7.35
8.00

& o
3 & 5 CNConcord

4.20
4.15
4.10
4.10
4.15
4.15
4.15
4.30
4.50
4.80
5.05
5.30
5.65
6.15
6.50
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
4.00
4.30
5.95
5.95
5.95
5.95
6.05
6.10
6.25
6.30
6.45
6.40
5.35
6.45
2.00
2.00
6.60
6.90
11.60
7.20
6.30
10.65
6.90
2.00
3.65

Pleasant Hill

E
& & PH

4.00
3.80
3.75
3.70
3.70
3.75
3.75
3.75
3.90
4.10
4.40
4.60
4.90
5.20
5.70
6.05
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
3.55
3.90
5.55
5.55
5.55
5.55
5.60
5.70
5.85
5.90
6.05
6.00
4.90
6.05
2.00
2.00
6.20
6.45
11.20
6.80
5.85
10.25
6.50
3.40
4.05

WC Walnut Creek

LF Lafayette

NG
% & RRRockridge

2145
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2.35
2.80
315
350
380
430
460
400
355
3.30
275
2,00
590
2,00
395
395
395
395
415
420
435
445
455
455
345
460
420
470
470
500
9.70
530
445
8.50
505
490
555

w
= WO West Oakland

N R
o @
S o

2.20
205
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2,00
2.20
2.70
340
345
380
430
465
430
390
370
335
2.70
2,00
590
325
325
325
325
355
360
390
405
425
420
350
460
450
500
440
465
9.40
500
445
8.40
505
520
585

Embarcadero

EM

455
440
420
410
395
3.75
350
350
350
395
430
465
485
5.15
545
595
6.30
595
555
540
505
465
395
3.25
590
2.00
200
2.00
200
2.00
200
2.00
335
3.70
515
6.30
6.15
6.70
4.00
440
9.15
475
6.10
1045
6.75
6.85
7.50

MT Montgomery

Powell

PL

4.80

440
420
410
395
3.75
350
350
350
395
430
465
485
5.15
545
595
6.30
595
555
540
5.05
465
395
3.25
2.00
2.00
590
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
335
3.70
515
6.30
6.15
6.70
4.00
440
9.15
475
6.10
1045
6.75
6.85
7.50

CC Civic Center

A~ s s
o g & 16th St/Mission

4.30
4.25
4.15
3.90
3.70
3.70
3.70
4.15
4.40
4.70
4.95
5.25
5.50
6.05
6.35
6.05
5.60
545
5.10
4.70
4.15
3.55
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
3.15
3.55
5.20
6.35
6.25
6.75
3.85
4.25
9.10
4.70
6.20
10.55
6.80
6.95
7.60

A~ s s
g N g 24th St/Mission

4.35
4.30
4.20
4.00
3.80
3.80
3.80
4.25
4.45
4.75
5.00
5.30
5.60
6.10
6.45
6.10
5.70
5.50
5.15
4.75
4.20
3.60
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
2.00
3.15
3.40
5.30
6.40
6.30
6.85
3.70
4.15
9.00
4.65
6.25
10.60
6.85
7.00
7.65

GP Glen Park

> o
N o o
S o &

4.50
4.45
4.35
4.20
4.05
4.05
4.05
4.40
4.60
4.90
5.15
540
5.75
6.25
6.60
6.25
5.85
5.65
5.30
4.90
4.35
3.90
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
2.00
3.15
3.30
545
6.55
6.45
7.00
345
3.90
8.75
4.40
6.40
10.75
7.00
715
7.80

Balboa Park

> o
S > Bp

4.75
4.55
4.50
4.40
4.30
4.20
4.20
4.20
4.45
4.65
5.00
5.20
5.50
5.80
6.30
6.65
6.30
5.90
5.75
5.40
5.00
445
4.05
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
5.90
3.15
3.30
5.50
6.65
6.50
7.05
3.30
3.75
8.60
4.25
6.45
10.85
7.10
7.20
7.85

o o
S & DC Daly City

4.90
4.70
4.65
4.55
4.40
4.30
4.30
4.30
4.60
4.80
5.10
5.35
5.65
5.95
6.45
6.80
6.45
6.05
5.85
5.50
5.10
4.55
4.25
3.35
3.35
3.35
3.35
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.15
5.90
3.30
5.65
6.75
6.65
7.20
3.30
3.30
8.40
4.05
6.60
10.95
7.20
7.35
8.00

CM Colma

5.00
4.85
4.65
4.60
4.50
4.40
4.30
4.30
4.30
4.60
4.80
5.05
5.30
5.60
5.90
6.40
6.75
6.40
6.00
5.85
5.50
5.10
4.55
4.20
3.70
3.70
3.70
3.70
3.55
340
3.30
3.30
3.30
5.90
5.60
6.75
6.65
715
3.30
3.30
8.15
3.85
6.55
10.95
7.20
7.30
7.95

ATTACHMENT 1. BART FARE TABLE with CLIPPER Fares BART to Antioch Stations eff 01/01/18

CV Castro Valley

>
= w
o o

3.95
3.75
3.70
3.60
345
3.40
3.40
3.40
2.95
2.60
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.70
340
3.80
5.35
4.90
4.75
4.40
4.00
345
3.50
5.15
5.15
5.15
5.15
5.20
5.30
545
5.50
5.65
5.60
5.90
2.00
5.55
6.05
5.80
6.05
10.80
6.40
2.00
8.80
425
6.20
6.85

o o o
S X & DIP Dublin/Pleasntn

4.85
4.85
4.75
4.60
4.50
4.50
4.50
425
4.05
3.75
2.00
3.80
4.10
4.60
4.95
6.45
6.05
5.90
5.50
5.15
4.60
4.60
6.30
6.30
6.30
6.30
6.35
6.40
6.55
6.65
6.75
6.75
2.00
5.90
6.65
7.20
6.90
7.20
11.95
7.55
2.00
10.20
5.40
7.35
8.00

~ & oo
& 5! 8 NCNorth Concord

4.40
4.35
4.30
4.30
4.35
4.35
4.35
4.50
4.70
5.00
5.25
5.50
5.85
6.35
6.70
2.00
2.00
2.00
3.10
3.60
4.20
4.50
6.15
6.15
6.15
6.15
6.25
6.30
6.45
6.50
6.65
6.65
5.55
6.65
5.90
2.00
6.80
7.10
11.80
7.40
6.50
10.85
7.10
2.00
345

o o
& &g PBPittsburg/BayPt

5.15
4.95
4.90
4.85
4.85
4.90
4.90
4.90
5.05
5.25
5.55
5.75
6.05
6.35
6.85
7.20
2.00
2.00
2.00
3.75
4.15
4.70
5.00
6.70
6.70
6.70
6.70
6.75
6.85
7.00
7.05
7.20
7.15
6.05
7.20
2.00
5.90
7.35
7.60
12.35
7.95
7.00
11.40
7.65
2.00
2.00

South SF

SS

5.45
5.20
5.05
4.85
4.80
4.70
4.60
4.50
4.50
4.50
475
4.95
525
5.50
5.80
6.10
6.60
6.95
6.60
6.20
6.05
5.65
5.30
4.70
4.40
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
3.85
3.70
3.45
3.30
3.30
3.30
5.80
6.90
6.80
7.35
5.90
3.30
7.85
3.30
6.75
11.15
740
7.50
8.15

o
= SB San Bruno

5.50
5.30
5.10
5.05
4.95
4.85
4.75
475
4.75
5.05
5.25
5.55
5.75
6.05
6.35
6.85
7.20
6.90
6.45
6.30
5.95
5.55
5.00
4.65
4.40
4.40
4.40
4.40
425
4.15
3.90
3.75
3.30
3.30
6.05
7.20
7.10
7.60
3.30
5.90
7.85
3.30
7.00
11.40
7.65
7.75
8.40

S 5
N & SFO Airport

10.05
9.85
9.80
9.70
9.60
9.50
9.50
9.50
9.75
9.95

10.25

10.50

10.80

11.10

11.60

11.95

11.60

11.20

11.05

10.65

10.30
9.70
9.40
9.15
9.15
9.15
9.15
9.10
9.00
8.75
8.60
8.40
8.15

10.80

11.95

11.80

12.35
7.85
7.85
5.90
4.55

11.75

16.15

12.40

12.50

13.15

Millbrae

[ =
© o
8 & MB

565
545
540
530
520
510
510
510
535
555
585
6.10
6.40
6.70
7.20
7.55
7.20
6.80
6.65
6.25
590
530
5.00
475
475
475
475
470
465
440
425
405
385
6.40
7.55
7.40
7.95
330
3.30
455
590
7.35

1.75
8.00
8.10
8.75

WD West Dublin

o o
o w
& S

490
470
465
455
445
435
435
435
405
390
360
200
365
395
445
480
6.30
5.85
5.70
5.35
495
445
445
6.10
6.10
6.10
6.10
6.20
6.25
6.40
6.45
6.60
6.55
200
200
6.50
7.00
6.75
7.00

11.75
7.35
590

10.05
520
7.20
7.85

OAK Airport

WS Warm Springs

o o o
o N ©
o o oS

5.35
5.30
5.20
5.05
5.00
5.00
5.00
470
4.50
420
3.95
3.70
2.00
2.00
2.00
6.90
6.50
6.35
6.00
5.60
5.05
5.05
6.75
6.75
6.75
6.75
6.80
6.85
7.00
7.10
7.20
7.20
425
540
7.10
7.65
740
7.65
12.40
8.00
5.20
10.65
5.90
7.80
8.45

oo o
8 & & PCPittsburg Center

5.10
5.05
5.00
5.00
5.05
5.05
5.05
5.20
5.40
5.70
5.95
6.20
6.50
7.05
7.35
2.00
3.40
3.55
3.95
4.30
4.90
5.20
6.85
6.85
6.85
6.85
6.95
7.00
7.15
7.20
7.35
7.30
6.20
7.35
2.00
2.00
7.50
7.75
12.50
8.10
7.20
11.55
7.80
5.90
2.00

AN Antioch





ATTACHMENT 2. BART FARE TABLE with BART to Antioch Extension Stations; PAPER TICKET 50 Cent Surcharge fares effective January 1, 2018

Exit
RM
EN
EP
NB
BK
AS
MA
19th
12th
LM
FV
CL
SL
BF
HY
SH
uc
FM
CN
PH
wcC
LF
OR
RR
WO
EM
MT
PL
cC
16th
24th
GP
BP
DC
CM
CVv
D/P
NC
PB
SS
SB
SFO
MB
WD
OAK

WS
PC
AN

Entry -
2
g 3
£ 3
g g
z &
6.40 2.50
250 6.40
250 2.50
250 250
250 2.50
250 250
325 2.90
3.45 3.10
345 3.10
3.45 3.10
380 3.55
400 3.75
430 4.10
455 4.30
480 4.60
5.10 4.90
5.60 5.40
595 5.75
5.25 5.05
485 4.65
470 4.50
435 4.15
3.95 3.75
3.30 295
3.60 3.30
530 5.05
530 5.05
530 5.05
530 5.05
535 5.5
540 5.20
555 5.35
5.65 5.40
575 555
5.75 5.50
480 4.60
595 575
550 5.25
6.00 5.80
595 5.70
6.20 6.00
10.95 10.70
6.55 6.30
5.80 555
10.15 9.95
6.40 6.20
6.15 5.95
6.80 6.60

EP EC Plaza

NN
g
o O

6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.60
2.85
2.85
2.85
3.30
3.60
3.90
4.15
4.45
4.75
5.25
5.60
4.90
450
4.35
3.95
3.50
2.65
3.00
4.90
4.90
4.90
4.90
5.00
5.05
5.20
5.25
5.40
5.35
4.45
5.55
5.10
5.65
5.55
5.80

10.55
6.15
5.40
9.75

6.05
5.80
6.45

NB North Berkeley

N
o
o

2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.95
3.30
3.70
3.95
4.25
4.55
5.05
5.40
4.70
4.30
4.15
3.80
3.15
2.50
2.70
4.70
4.70
4.70
4.70
4.80
4.85
5.00
5.05
5.20
5.15
4.25
5.35
4.90
5.45
5.35
5.60
10.35
5.95
5.20
9.45

5.85
5.60
6.25

Dwntn Berkeley

BK

2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.85
3.15
3.65
3.90
4.20
4.50
5.00
5.35
4.65
4.25
4.10
3.70
3.05
2.50
2.55
4.60
4.60
4.60
4.60
4.75
4.80
4.95
5.00
5.15
5.10
4.20
5.35
4.85
5.40
5.30
5.55
10.30
5.90
5.15
9.30

5.80
5.55
6.20

AS Ashby

2.50

2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.70
3.00
3.50
3.80
4.10
4.40
4.90
5.25
4.60
4.20
4.05
3.50
2.90
2.50
2.50
4.45
445
4.45
445
465
4.70
485
4.90
5.05
5.00
4.10
5.25
4.80
5.35
5.20
5.45

10.20
5.80
5.05
9.15

5.70
5.50
6.15

MacArthur

N oW
® B & 19th St/Oakland

2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.05
3.45
3.90
4.20
4.70
5.05
4.65
4.25
4.10
3.60
3.00
2.50
2.50
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.20
4.30
4.55
4.70
4.80
4.80
3.90
5.00
4.85
5.40
5.00
5.25
10.00
5.60
4.85
8.65

5.50
5.55
6.20

12th St/Oakland

©w
BN
o o,

2.85
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.05
3.45
3.90
4.20
4.70
5.05
4.65
4.25
4.10
3.60
3.00
2.50
2.50
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.20
4.30
4.55
4.70
4.80
4.80
3.90
5.00
4.85
5.40
5.00
5.25
10.00
5.60
4.85
8.65

5.50
5.55
6.20

Lake Merritt

LM

3.10
2.85
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
3.05
3.45
3.90
4.20
4.70
5.05
4.65
4.25
4.10
3.60
3.00
2.50
2.50
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.20
4.30
4.55
4.70
4.80
4.80
3.90
5.00
4.85
5.40
5.00
5.25
10.00
5.60
4.85
8.65

5.50
5.55
6.20

W W
S B FV Fruitvale

3.30
2.95
2.85
2.70
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.95
3.45
3.90
4.40
4.75
4.80
4.40
425
3.85
3.30
2.50
2.50
4.45
4.45
4.45
4.45
4.65
475
4.90
4.95
5.10
5.10
3.45
475
5.00
5.55
5.25
5.55

10.25
5.85
455
8.65

5.20
5.70
6.35

CL Coliseum

SL San Leandro

~op
P W
o o

3.90
3.70
3.65
3.50
3.25
3.05
3.05
3.05
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
3.10
3.85
4.25
5.30
4.90
4.70
4.35
3.95
3.30
3.20
5.15
5.15
5.15
5.15
5.20
5.25
5.40
5.50
5.60
5.55
2.50
4.25
5.50
6.05
5.75
6.05
10.75
6.35
4.10
8.65

4.70
6.20
6.85

A
& BF Bay Fair

»
[
=]

4.15
3.95
3.90
3.80
3.65
3.45
3.45
3.45
2.95
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
5.55
5.10
4.95
4.60
4.20
3.65
3.60
5.35
5.35
5.35
5.35
5.45
5.50
5.65
5.70
5.85
5.80
2.50
2.50
5.75
6.25
6.00
6.25
11.00
6.60
2.50
8.65

4.45
6.45
7.10

Hayward

HY

4.60
4.45
4.25
4.20
4.10
4.00
3.90
3.90
3.90
3.45
3.10
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
5.80
5.40
5.25
4.90
4.50
4.00
3.95
5.65
5.65
5.65
5.65
5.75
5.80
5.90
6.00
6.15
6.10
2.50
4.30
6.00
6.55
6.30
6.55
11.30
6.90
4.15
9.30

4.20
6.70
7.35

o
5 SH South Hayward

»
©
o

475
455
450
4.40
430
4.20
420
4.20
3.90
3.60
3.10
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
6.15
5.70
5.55
5.20
4.80
430
4.30
5.95
5.95
5.95
5.95
6.00
6.10
6.25
6.30
6.45
6.40
3.20
4.60
6.35
6.85
6.60
6.85

11.60
7.20
445
9.75

2.50
7.00
7.65

Union City

uc

5.40
5.25
5.05
5.00
4.90
4.80
4.70
4.70
4.70
4.40
4.20
3.85
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
6.65
6.20
6.05
5.70
5.30
4.80
4.80
6.45
6.45
6.45
6.45
6.55
6.60
6.75
6.80
6.95
6.90
3.90
5.10
6.85
7.35
7.10
7.35
12.10
7.70
4.95
10.40

2.50
7.55
8.15

FM Fremont

o
©
a

5.75
5.60
5.40
5.35
5.25
5.10
5.05
5.05
5.05
4.75
4.55
4.25
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
7.00
6.55
6.40
6.05
5.65
5.10
5.15
6.80
6.80
6.80
6.80
6.85
6.95
7.10
7.15
7.30
7.25
4.30
5.45
7.20
7.70
7.45
7.70
12.45
8.05
5.30
10.75

2.50
7.85
8.50

CN Concord

o o
o N
o o

4.90
4.70
4.65
4.60
4.60
4.65
4.65
4.65
4.80
5.00
5.30
5.55
5.80
6.15
6.65
7.00
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
4.50
4.80
6.45
6.45
6.45
6.45
6.55
6.60
6.75
6.80
6.95
6.90
5.85
6.95
2.50
2.50
7.10
7.40
12.10
7.70
6.80
11.15

7.40
2.50
4.15

Pleasant Hill

PH

4.65
450
430
425
4.20
420
4.25
425
425
4.40
4.60
4.90
5.10
5.40
5.70
6.20
6.55
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
4.05
4.40
6.05
6.05
6.05
6.05
6.10
6.20
6.35
6.40
6.55
6.50
5.40
6.55
2.50
2.50
6.70
6.95
11.70
7.30
6.35
10.75

7.00
3.90
4.55

WC Walnut Creek

LF Lafayette

s on
W
[S20 )

3.95
3.80
3.70
3.50
3.45
3.60
3.60
3.60
3.85
4.05
4.35
4.60
4.90
5.20
5.70
6.05
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
3.25
3.85
5.55
5.55
5.55
5.55
5.60
5.65
5.80
5.90
6.00
6.00
4.90
6.00
3.60
4.25
6.15
6.45
11.15
6.75
5.85
10.20

6.50
4.45
5.10

OR Orinda

Rockridge

N
© W
a 8 RR

2.65
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.85
3.30
3.65
4.00
430
4.80
5.10
4.50
4.05
3.80
3.25
2.50
6.40
2.50
4.45
445
4.45
445
465
470
485
4.95
5.05
5.05
3.95
5.10
470
5.20
5.20
5.50

10.20
5.80
495
9.00

5.55
5.40
6.05

WO West Oakland

w
w o
o o

3.00
2.70
2.55
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.70
3.20
3.60
3.95
4.30
4.80
5.15
4.80
4.40
4.20
3.85
3.20
2.50
6.40
3.75
3.75
3.75
3.75
4.05
4.10
4.40
455
475
4.70
4.00
5.10
5.00
5.50
4.90
5.15
9.90
5.50
4.95
8.90

5.55
5.70
6.35

EM Embarcadero

o o
o 9w
o O

4.90
4.70
4.60
4.45
4.25
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.45
4.80
5.15
5.35
5.65
5.95
6.45
6.80
6.45
6.05
5.90
5.55
5.15
4.45
3.75
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.85
4.20
5.65
6.80
6.65
7.20
4.50
4.90
9.65
5.25
6.60

10.95

7.25
7.35
8.00

[6;]
& MT Montgomery

o
o
a

4.90
4.70
4.60
4.45
4.25
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.45
4.80
5.15
5.35
5.65
5.95
6.45
6.80
6.45
6.05
5.90
5.55
5.15
4.45
3.75
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.85
4.20
5.65
6.80
6.65
7.20
4.50
4.90
9.65
5.25
6.60

10.95

7.25
7.35
8.00

PL Powell

o
w
o

5.05
4.90
4.70
4.60
4.45
4.25
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.45
4.80
5.15
5.35
5.65
5.95
6.45
6.80
6.45
6.05
5.90
5.55
5.15
4.45
3.75
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.85
4.20
5.65
6.80
6.65
7.20
450
4.90
9.65
5.25
6.60
10.95

7.25
7.35
8.00

CC Civic Center

& 0o
© o w
S a1 o

4.70
4.60
4.45
4.25
4.00
4.00
4.00
4.45
4.80
5.15
5.35
5.65
5.95
6.45
6.80
6.45
6.05
5.90
5.55
5.15
4.45
3.75
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.85
4.20
5.65
6.80
6.65
7.20
4.50
4.90
9.65
5.25
6.60
10.95

7.25
7.35
8.00

oo
5% 16th St/Mission

5.00
4.80
475
4.65
4.40
4.20
420
4.20
465
4.90
5.20
5.45
5.75
6.00
6.55
6.85
6.55
6.10
5.95
5.60
5.20
465
4.05
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.65
4.05
5.70
6.85
6.75
7.25
435
475
9.60
5.20
6.70

11.05

7.30
7.45
8.10

a o v
S N B 24th St/Mission

4.85
4.80
4.70
4.50
4.30
4.30
4.30
4.75
4.95
5.25
5.50
5.80
6.10
6.60
6.95
6.60
6.20
6.00
5.65
5.25
4.70
4.10
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
2.50
2.50
3.65
3.90
5.80
6.90
6.80
7.35
4.20
4.65
9.50
5.15
6.75
11.10

7.35
7.50
8.15

GP Glen Park

Balboa Park

BP

5.65

5.25
5.05
5.00
4.90
4.80
4.70
4.70
4.70
4.95
5.15
5.50
5.70
6.00
6.30
6.80
7.15
6.80
6.40
6.25
5.90
5.50
4.95
4.55
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
6.40
3.65
3.80
6.00
7.15
7.00
7.55
3.80
4.25
9.10
4.75
6.95
11.35

7.60
7.70
8.35

Daly City

o o
o~
¢ 3 DC

5.40
5.20
5.15
5.05
4.90
4.80
4.80
4.80
5.10
5.30
5.60
5.85
6.15
6.45
6.95
7.30
6.95
6.55
6.35
6.00
5.60
5.05
4.75
3.85
3.85
3.85
3.85
3.65
3.65
3.65
3.65
6.40
3.80
6.15
7.25
7.15
7.70
3.80
3.80
8.90
4.55
7.10
11.45

7.70
7.85
8.50

CM Colma

o o
g~
o v

5.35
5.15
5.10
5.00
4.90
4.80
4.80
4.80
5.10
5.30
5.55
5.80
6.10
6.40
6.90
7.25
6.90
6.50
6.35
6.00
5.60
5.05
4.70
4.20
4.20
4.20
4.20
4.05
3.90
3.80
3.80
3.80
6.40
6.10
7.25
7.15
7.65
3.80
3.80
8.65
4.35
7.05
11.45

7.70
7.80
8.45

ATTACHMENT 2. BART FARE TABLE with Paper Ticket Fares BART to Antioch Stations eff 01/01/18

»
¥ CV Castro Valley

>
@
o

4.45
4.25
4.20
4.10
3.95
3.90
3.90
3.90
3.45
3.10
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.20
3.90
4.30
5.85
5.40
5.25
4.90
4.50
3.95
4.00
5.65
5.65
5.65
5.65
5.70
5.80
5.95
6.00
6.15
6.10
6.40
2.50
6.05
6.55
6.30
6.55
11.30
6.90
2.50
9.30

4.75
6.70
7.35

D/P Dublin/Pleasntn

o o o
g N ©
(526 B¢

5.35
5.35
5.25
5.10
5.00
5.00
5.00
4.75
4.55
4.25
2.50
4.30
4.60
5.10
5.45
6.95
6.55
6.40
6.00
5.65
5.10
5.10
6.80
6.80
6.80
6.80
6.85
6.90
7.05
7.15
7.25
7.25
2.50
6.40
7.15
7.70
7.40
7.70
12.45
8.05
2.50
10.70

5.90
7.85
8.50

NC North Concord

o
a
o

5.25
5.10
4.90
4.85
4.80
4.80
4.85
4.85
4.85
5.00
5.20
5.50
5.75
6.00
6.35
6.85
7.20
2.50
2.50
2.50
3.60
4.10
4.70
5.00
6.65
6.65
6.65
6.65
6.75
6.80
6.95
7.00
7.15
7.15
6.05
7.15
6.40
2.50
7.30
7.60
12.30
7.90
7.00
11.35

7.60
2.50
3.95

PB Pittsburg/BayPt

o o
© O
o O

5.65
5.45
5.40
5.35
5.35
5.40
5.40
5.40
5.55
5.75
6.05
6.25
6.55
6.85
7.35
7.70
2.50
2.50
2.50
4.25
4.65
5.20
5.50
7.20
7.20
7.20
7.20
7.25
7.35
7.50
7.55
7.70
7.65
6.55
7.70
2.50
6.40
7.85
8.10
12.85
8.45
7.50
11.90

8.15
2.50
2.50

SS South SF

o o
~N ©
o o

5.55
5.35
5.30
5.20
5.10
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.25
5.45
5.75
6.00
6.30
6.60
7.10
7.45
7.10
6.70
6.55
6.15
5.80
5.20
4.90
4.50
4.50
4.50
4.50
4.35
4.20
3.95
3.80
3.80
3.80
6.30
7.40
7.30
7.85
6.40
3.80
8.35
3.80
7.25
11.65

7.90
8.00
8.65

SB San Bruno

o o
[=3N]
o o

5.80
5.60
5.55
5.45
5.35
5.25
5.25
5.25
5.55
5.75
6.05
6.25
6.55
6.85
7.35
7.70
7.40
6.95
6.80
6.45
6.05
5.50
5.15
4.90
4.90
4.90
4.90
4.75
4.65
4.40
4.25
3.80
3.80
6.55
7.70
7.60
8.10
3.80
6.40
8.35
3.80
7.50
11.90

8.15
8.25
8.90

SFO Airport

Millbrae

o o
w u
@ o vB

6.15
5.95
5.90
5.80
5.70
5.60
5.60
5.60
5.85
6.05
6.35
6.60
6.90
7.20
7.70
8.05
7.70
7.30
7.15
6.75
6.40
5.80
5.50
5.25
5.25
5.25
5.25
5.20
5.15
4.90
4.75
4.55
4.35
6.90
8.05
7.90
8.45
3.80
3.80
5.05
6.40
7.85
12.25

8.50
8.60
9.25

WD West Dublin

o o
g
o O

5.40
5.20
5.15
5.05
4.95
4.85
4.85
4.85
4.55
4.40
4.10
2.50
4.15
4.45
4.95
5.30
6.80
6.35
6.20
5.85
5.45
4.95
4.95
6.60
6.60
6.60
6.60
6.70
6.75
6.90
6.95
7.10
7.05
2.50
2.50
7.00
7.50
7.25
7.50
12.25
7.85
6.40
10.55

5.70
7.70
8.35

OAK Airport

o
8 WS Warm Springs

o
N
o

6.05
5.85
5.80
5.70
5.55
5.50
5.50
5.50
5.20
5.00
4.70
4.45
4.20
2.50
2.50
2.50
7.40
7.00
6.85
6.50
6.10
5.55
5.55
7.25
7.25
7.25
7.25
7.30
7.35
7.50
7.60
7.70
7.70
4.75
5.90
7.60
8.15
7.90
8.15
12.90
8.50
5.70
11.15

6.40
8.30
8.95

PC Pittsburg Center

6.15

5.80
5.60
5.55
5.50
5.50
5.55
5.55
5.55
5.70
5.90
6.20
6.45
6.70
7.00
7.55
7.85
2.50
3.90
4.05
4.45
4.80
5.40
5.70
7.35
7.35
7.35
7.35
7.45
7.50
7.65
7.70
7.85
7.80
6.70
7.85
2.50
2.50
8.00
8.25

13.00
8.60
7.70

12.05

8.30
6.40
2.50

AN Antioch

o o
o @
o O

6.45
6.25
6.20
6.15
6.15
6.20
6.20
6.20
6.35
6.55
6.85
7.10
7.35
7.65
8.15
8.50
4.15
4.55
4.70
5.10
5.45
6.05
6.35
8.00
8.00
8.00
8.00
8.10
8.15
8.30
8.35
8.50
8.45
7.35
8.50
3.95
2.50
8.65
8.90
13.65
9.25
8.35
12.70

8.95
2.50
6.40





ATTACHMENT 3. BART FARE TABLE with BART to Antioch Extension Stations; CLIPPER 62.5% Discount Fares for Seniors & People with Disabilities effective January 1, 2018

SS
SB
SFO
MB
WD
RM
EN
EP
NB
BK
AS
MA
19th
12th
LM
FV
CL
SL
BF
HY
SH
uc
FM
cv
D/P
PB
NC
CMm
CN
PH
wC
LF
OR
RR
wo
EM
MT
PL
cC
16th
24th
GP
BP
DC
OAK
WS
PC
AN

Entry

South SF

SS

220
1.20
2.90
1.20
2.50
2.00
1.95
1.85
1.80
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.75
1.85
1.95
2.05
215
225
245
2.60
215
2.55
2.75
2.55
1.20
245
2.30
225
210
1.95
1.75
1.65
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.40
1.35
1.25
1.20
1.20
4.15
2.75
2.80
3.05

SB San
Bruno

—

1.20
2.20
2.90
1.20
2.60
210
2.05
1.95
1.90
1.85
1.85
1.80
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.85
1.95
2.05
2.15
2.25
2.35
2.55
2.70
2.25
2.70
2.85
2.65
1.20
2.55
240
2.35
2.20
2.05
1.85
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.55
1.55
145
1.40
1.20
425
2.85
2.90
3.15

SFO Airport

N
©
o

2.90
2.20
1.70
440
390
3.80
375
365
365
360
360
355
355
355
365
370
380
390
405
415
435
445
405
445
460
440
305
435
420
410
395
385
360
350
340
340
340
340
340
335
325
320
315
6.05
465
465
490

MB Millbrae

1.20
1.20
1.70
220
275
225
215
210
2.00
2.00
1.95
1.95
1.90
1.90
1.90
2.00
2.05
215
225
240
2.50
270
2.80
240
2.80
295
275
140
2.70
255
245
230
220
195
1.85
175
175
175
175
175
1.70
165
155
150
440
3.00
3.00
325

WD West

Dublin

2.50

4.40
2.75
220
1.95
1.85
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.70
1.65
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.50
1.45
1.35
0.75
1.35
1.45
1.65
1.80
0.75
0.75
2.60
240
245
235
215
210
2.00
1.85
1.65
1.65
225
225
225
225
2.30
2.30
240
240
245
3.75
1.95
2.70
2.90

RM

Richmond

2.00

3.90
2.25
1.95
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.00
1.10
1.10
1.10
1.20
1.30
1.40
1.50
1.60
1.70
1.90
2.00
1.60
2.00
2.05
1.85
1.95
1.75
1.60
1.55
1.40
1.25
1.05
1.15
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.85
1.90
1.95
3.60
220
2.10
2.35

EN EC del
Norte

1.95
2.05
3.80
215
1.85
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.90
0.95
0.95
0.95
1.10
1.20
1.35
1.40
1.50
1.65
1.80
1.95
1.50
1.95
1.95
1.75
1.85
1.70
1.55
1.50
1.35
1.20
0.90
1.05
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.75
1.80
1.80
1.85
3.50
210
2.00
2.25

EP EC Plaza

1.85
1.95
3.75
210
1.80
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.85
0.85
0.85
1.05
1.15
1.25
1.35
1.45
1.55
1.75
1.90
1.45
1.85
1.90
1.70
1.80
1.65
1.50
1.40
1.25
1.10
0.80
0.90
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.70
1.75
1.75
1.80
3.45
2.05
1.95
2.20

NB North
Berkeley

1.80

3.65
2.00
1.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.90
1.05
1.20
1.25
1.40
1.50
1.70
1.80
1.40
1.80
1.85
1.65
1.70
1.55
1.40
1.35
1.20
0.95
0.75
0.80
1.55
1.55
1.55
1.55
1.60
1.60
1.65
1.70
1.75
3.35
2.00
1.90
215

BK Dwntn
Berkeley

1.80

3.65
2.00
1.70
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.85
0.95
1.15
1.25
1.35
1.50
1.65
1.80
1.35
1.80
1.80
1.60
1.70
1.55
1.40
1.35
1.20
0.95
0.75
0.75
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.55
1.60
1.65
1.65
1.70
3.30
1.95
1.85
2.10

AS Ashby

1.75
1.85
3.60
1.95
1.70
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.80
0.90
1.10
1.20
1.35
145
1.65
1.75
1.35
1.75
1.80
1.60
1.65
1.50
1.35
1.30
1.10
0.90
0.75
0.75
145
1.45
145
1.45
1.55
1.55
1.60
1.65
1.70
3.20
1.95
1.85
210

MA

MacArthur

1.70

3.60
1.95
1.65
1.00
0.90
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.85
1.00
1.15
1.30
1.40
1.60
1.70
1.25
1.70
1.80
1.60
1.65
1.50
1.35
1.30
1.10
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.40
1.40
1.40
1.40
145
1.50
1.55
1.60
1.65
3.15
1.85
1.85
2.10

19th
2, &> St/Oakland
o o

3.55
1.90
1.60
1.10
0.95
0.85
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.95
1.10
1.25
1.35
1.55
1.70
1.25
1.65
1.80
1.60
1.60
1.55
1.40
1.35
1.15
0.90
0.75
0.75
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.35
1.40
1.50
1.55
1.60
3.05
1.85
1.85
210

12th
=, & St/Oakland
[$,] o

3.55
1.90
1.60
1.10
0.95
0.85
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.95
1.10
1.25
1.35
1.55
1.70
1.25
1.65
1.80
1.60
1.60
1.55
1.40
1.35
1.15
0.90
0.75
0.75
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.35
1.40
1.50
1.55
1.60
3.05
1.85
1.85
2.10

LM Lake
Merritt

1.65

3.55
1.90
1.60
1.10
0.95
0.85
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.95
1.10
1.25
1.35
1.55
1.70
1.25
1.65
1.80
1.60
1.60
1.55
1.40
1.35
1.15
0.90
0.75
0.75
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.35
1.40
1.50
1.55
1.60
3.05
1.85
1.85
210

Fruitvale

FV

1.75
1.85
3.65
2.00
1.50
1.20
1.10
1.05
0.90
0.85
0.80
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.90
1.10
1.25
145
1.55
1.10
1.55
1.85
1.65
1.70
1.60
145
1.40
1.25
1.05
0.75
0.75
145
1.45
145
1.45
1.55
1.55
1.65
1.65
1.70
3.05
1.75
1.95
2.15

CL Coliseum

0
o

1.95
3.70
2.05
1.45
1.30
1.20
1.15
1.05
0.95
0.90
0.85
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.95
1.15
1.35
1.50
0.95
1.50
1.95
1.75
1.80
1.65
1.50
1.45
1.30
1.15
0.85
0.80
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.65
1.65
1.70
1.70
1.80
2.30
1.65
2.00
2.25

SL San

Leandro

1.95
2.05
3.80
215
1.35
1.40
1.35
1.25
1.20
1.15
1.10
1.00
0.95
0.95
0.95
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.95
1.25
1.40
0.75
1.40
2.05
1.85
1.85
1.80
1.65
1.55
1.40
1.25
1.05
1.00
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.75
1.75
1.80
1.85
1.90
3.05
1.55
2.10
2.35

BF Bay Fair

2.05
215
3.90
225
0.75
1.50
1.40
1.35
1.25
1.25
1.20
1.15
1.10
1.10
1.10
0.90
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
215
1.95
1.95
1.85
1.70
1.65
1.50
1.35
1.15
1.15
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.85
1.85
1.90
1.95
2.00
3.05
145
220
245

HY Hayward

2.15
2.25
4.05
240
1.35
1.60
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.35
1.35
1.30
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.10
0.95
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.40
2.25
2.05
2.10
1.95
1.80
1.75
1.65
1.50
1.30
1.25
1.90
1.90
1.90
1.90
1.95
1.95
2.00
2.05
2.10
3.30
1.35
2.30
2.55

SH South

Hayward

2.25

4.15
2.50
1.45
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.50
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.25
1.15
0.95
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
1.00
1.50
2.35
2.15
2.20
2.10
1.95
1.85
1.75
1.60
1.40
1.40
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.05
210
215
215
2.20
345
0.75
240
2.65

UC Union
City

245
2.55
4.35
2.70
1.65
1.90
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.60
1.55
1.55
1.55
145
1.35
1.25
0.75
0.75
0.75
2.20
0.75
1.25
1.70
2.55
2.35
240
2.30
2.10
2.05
1.95
1.80
1.60
1.60
220
220
2.20
220
2.25
225
2.30
2.35
240
3.70
0.75
2.60
2.85

Fremont

FM

2.60
2.70
445
2.80
1.80
2.00
1.95
1.90
1.80
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.55
1.50
1.40
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
1.40
1.85
2.70
2.50
2.50
240
2.25
220
2.05
1.90
1.70
1.70
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.35
240
245
245
2.55
3.80
0.75
275
3.00

CV Castro
Valley

D/P
~ Dublin/Pleas

132
a

2.15
2.25
4.05
240
0.75
1.60
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.35
1.35
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.10
0.95
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.00
1.25
1.40
2.20
0.75
2.25
2.05
2.10
2.00
1.80
1.75
1.65
1.50
1.25
1.30
1.90
1.90
1.90
1.90
1.95
1.95
2.00
2.05
2.10
3.30
1.55
2.30
2.55

ntn

PB
~ Pittsburg/Ba

N
~
o

445
2.80
0.75
2.00
1.95
1.85
1.80
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.55
1.50
1.40
0.75
1.40
1.50
1.70
1.85
0.75
220
2.70
245
2.50
240
2.25
220
2.05
1.90
1.70
1.70
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.35
240
245
245
2.50
3.80
2.00
275
3.00

NC North
g Concord

2.65
4.40
2.75
240
1.85
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.65
1.75
1.85
1.95
2.05
2.15
2.35
2.50
2.05
245
0.75
220
245
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.15
1.35
1.55
1.65
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.35
240
240
245
4.05
2.65
0.75
1.25

CM Colma

1.20
1.20
3.05
1.40
245
1.95
1.85
1.80
1.70
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.70
1.80
1.85
1.95
210
2.20
240
2.50
210
2.50
265
245
220
240
225
2.15
2.05
1.90
1.70
1.55
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.30
1.25
1.20
1.20
1.20
4.10
2.70
2.70
2.95

CN Concord

N
S
o

2.55
4.35
2.70
2.35
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.55
1.50
1.50
1.55
1.55
1.55
1.60
1.65
1.80
1.85
1.95
2.10
2.30
240
2.00
240
0.75
0.75
240
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.50
1.60
2.20
220
2.20
220
2.25
225
2.30
2.35
240
3.95
2.55
0.75
1.35

PH Pleasant

Hill

2.30
240
4.20
255
2.15
1.60
1.55
1.50
1.40
1.40
1.35
1.35
1.40
1.40
1.40
145
1.50
1.65
1.70
1.80
1.95
210
225
1.80
225
0.75
0.75
225
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.30
1.45
2.05
2.05
2.05
2.05
210
2.10
215
220
225
3.80
240
1.25
1.50

WC Walnut
Creek

225

4.10
245
2.10
1.55
1.50
1.40
1.35
1.35
1.30
1.30
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.40
1.45
1.55
1.65
1.75
1.85
2.05
2.20
1.75
220
0.75
0.75
215
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
1.20
1.35
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.05
2.10
2.15
215
3.75
2.35
1.30
1.55

LF Lafayette

N
=)

220
3.95
230
2.00
1.40
1.35
1.25
1.20
1.20
1.10
1.10
1.15
1.15
1.15
1.25
1.30
1.40
1.50
1.65
1.75
1.95
2.05
1.65
2.05
1.40
1.15
2.05
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
1.00
1.25
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.90
1.90
1.95
2.00
2.05
3.60
225
1.45
1.70

OR Orinda

©
3]

2.05
3.85
2.20
1.85
1.25
1.20
1.10
0.95
0.95
0.90
0.75
0.90
0.90
0.90
1.05
1.15
1.25
1.35
1.50
1.60
1.80
1.90
1.50
1.90
1.55
1.35
1.90
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
1.00
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.75
1.75
1.80
1.85
1.90
3.50
2.10
1.60
1.85

RR

ATTACHMENT 3. BART FARE TABLE with CLIPPER Senior & Disabled Fares BART to Antioch Stations eff 01/01/18

Rockridge

1.75

3.60
1.95
1.65
1.05
0.90
0.80
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.85
1.05
1.15
1.30
1.40
1.60
1.70
1.25
1.70
1.75
1.55
1.70
1.50
1.30
1.20
1.00
0.75
220
0.75
145
1.45
145
1.45
1.55
1.55
1.60
1.65
1.70
3.15
1.85
1.80
2.05

WO West
2, & Oakland
o [$,]

EM

3.50
1.85
1.65
1.15
1.05
0.90
0.80
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.80
1.00
1.15
1.25
1.40
1.60
1.70
1.30
1.70
1.85
1.65
1.55
1.60
1.45
1.35
1.25
1.00
0.75
220
1.20
1.20
1.20
1.20
1.30
1.35
145
1.50
1.55
3.15
1.85
1.95
215

Embarcader
[}

—
(2]
S

1.65
3.40
1.75
225
1.80
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.30
1.30
1.30
145
1.60
1.70
1.80
1.90
2.00
220
2.35
1.90
2.35
2.50
2.30
1.35
2.20
2.05
2.00
1.85
1.70
145
1.20
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.25
3.90
2.50
2.55
2.80

MT
§ 5 Montgomery

3.40
1.75
2.25
1.80
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.45
1.60
1.70
1.80
1.90
2.00
2.20
2.35
1.90
2.35
2.50
2.30
1.35
220
2.05
2.00
1.85
1.70
145
1.20
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.25
3.90
2.50
2.55
2.80

Powell

PL

1.50
1.65
3.40
1.75
225
1.80
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.45
1.60
1.70
1.80
1.90
2.00
220
235
1.90
235
2.50
230
1.35
220
2.05
2.00
1.85
1.70
145
1.20
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.25
3.90
2.50
2.55
2.80

CC Civic
Center

1.50
1.65
3.40
1.75
2.25
1.80
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.50
1.45
1.40
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.45
1.60
1.70
1.80
1.90
2.00
2.20
2.35
1.90
2.35
2.50
2.30
1.35
220
2.05
2.00
1.85
1.70
145
1.20
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.25
3.90
2.50
2.55
2.80

16th

St/Mission

1.40

3.40
1.75
2.30
1.80
1.70
1.65
1.60
1.55
1.55
1.45
1.35
1.35
1.35
1.55
1.65
1.75
1.85
1.95
2.05
225
235
1.95
235
2.50
2.30
1.30
225
210
2.00
1.90
1.75
1.55
1.30
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.15
3.95
2.55
2.60
2.85

24th

St/Mission

1.35

3.35
1.70
2.30
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.60
1.60
1.55
1.50
1.40
1.40
1.40
1.55
1.65
1.75
1.85
1.95
2.10
2.25
240
1.95
240
2.55
2.35
1.25
225
2.10
2.05
1.90
1.75
1.55
1.35
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
0.75
1.15
3.95
2.55
2.60
2.85

GP Glen
Park

145
3.25
1.65
240
1.85
1.80
1.75
1.65
1.65
1.60
1.55
1.50
1.50
1.50
1.65
1.70
1.80
1.90
2.00
215
230
245
2.00
245
260
240
1.20
2.30
215
210
1.95
1.80
1.60
1.45
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
0.75
1.15
4.00
2.60
2.65
2.90

BP Balboa

Park

1.20
1.40
3.20
1.55
240
1.90
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.60
1.55
1.55
1.55
1.65
1.70
1.85
1.95
2.05
2.15
2.35
245
2.05
245
2.60
240
1.20
2.35
2.20
2.15
2.00
1.85
1.65
1.50
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
0.75
220
1.15
4.05
2.65
2.70
2.90

DC Daly City

1.20
1.20
3.15
1.50
245
1.95
1.85
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.70
1.65
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.70
1.80
1.90
2.00
210
220
240
2.55
210
2.50
2.70
245
1.20
240
225
215
2.05
1.90
1.70
1.55
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.15
1.15
1.15
1.15
220
4.10
2.70
2.75
3.00

OAK Airport

=
o
o

425
6.05
440
375
360
350
345
335
3.30
320
345
305
305
305
305
2.30
305
3.05
330
345
370
380
330
380
425
405
410
395
3.80
3.75
3.60
350
3.15
315
3.90
390
390
390
395
395
400
405
410
2.20
395
430
455

WS Warm

Springs

2.75

4.65
3.00
1.95
220
2.10
2.05
2.00
1.95
1.95
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.75
1.65
1.55
1.45
1.35
0.75
0.75
0.75
1.55
2.00
2.85
265
2.70
2.55
240
235
225
210
1.85
1.85
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.55
2.55
2.60
2.65
2.70
3.95
220
2.90
3.15

PC Pittsburg

N
o Center
o

2.90
4.65
3.00
2.70
210
2.00
1.95
1.90
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.95
2.00
2.10
220
2.30
240
2.60
2.75
2.30
2.75
0.75
0.75
2.70
0.75
1.25
1.30
145
1.60
1.80
1.95
2.55
2.55
2.55
2.55
2.60
2.60
2.65
2.70
2.75
4.30
2.90
220
0.75

AN Antioch

w
o
(2]

3.15
4.90
3.25
2.90
2.35
225
220
215
210
210
210
210
210
210
215
225
2.35
245
2.55
265
2.85
3.00
2.55
3.00
0.75
1.25
2.95
1.35
1.50
1.55
1.70
1.85
2.05
215
2.80
2.80
2.80
2.80
2.85
2.85
2.90
2.90
3.00
455
3.15
0.75
2.20





ATTACHMENT 4. BART FARE TABLE with BART to Antioch Extension Stations; CLIPPER 50% Discount Fares for Youth 5-18 effective January 1, 2018

Exit
SS
SB

SFO
MB
WD
RM

EN
EP
NB
BK
AS
MA
19th
12th
LM
FV
CL
SL
BF
HY
SH
uc
FM
cv
D/P
PB
NC
CcM
CN
PH
wc
LF
OR
RR
wo
EM
MT
PL
cc
16th
24th
GP
BP
DC

OAK
ws

PC
AN

Entry

SS South SF

N
©
(2]

1.65
3.90
1.65
3.35
2.70
2.60
2.50
240
240
235
2.30
225
225
225
2.35
245
2.60
2.75
2.90
3.05
3.30
345
2.90
345
3.65
3.40
1.65
3.30
3.10
3.00
2.80
265
2.35
220
2.00
2.00
2.00
2.00
1.90
1.85
1.70
1.65
1.65
5.55
3.70
3.75
4.05

SB San
Bruno

—

2.95
3.90
1.65
3.50
2.85
2.75
2.65
2.55
2.50
245
240
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.50
2.60
2.75
2.85
3.00
3.15
3.40
3.60
3.00
3.60
3.80
3.55
1.65
345
3.20
3.15
2.95
2.75
2.50
2.30
2.20
220
2.20
220
2.10
2.05
1.95
1.85
1.65
5.70
3.80
3.85
4.20

SFO Airport

w
©
o

3.90
2.95
225
5.85
5.20
5.10
5.00
4.90
4.90
4.85
4.80
4.75
4.75
4.75
4.85
4.95
5.10
5.25
5.40
5.55
5.80
5.95
5.40
5.95
6.15
5.90
4.05
5.80
5.60
5.50
5.30
5.15
4.85
4.70
4.55
455
4.55
455
4.55
4.50
4.35
4.30
4.20
8.05
6.20
6.25
6.55

MB Millbrae

1.65
1.65
225
2.95
3.65
3.00
2.90
2.80
2.70
2.70
2.65
2.60
2.55
2.55
2.55
2.65
2.75
2.90
3.05
3.20
335
3.60
3.75
3.20
3.75
3.95
3.70
1.90
3.60
3.40
3.30
3.10
2.95
2.65
2.50
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.35
2.30
2.20
2.10
2.00
5.85
4.00
4.05
4.35

WD West

Dublin

3.35

5.85
3.65
2.95
2.65
2.50
245
2.35
2.30
225
2.20
215
215
215
2.00
1.95
1.80
1.00
1.80
1.95
2.20
240
1.00
1.00
3.50
325
3.25
3.15
2.90
2.85
2.65
245
2.20
220
3.05
3.05
3.05
3.05
3.10
3.10
3.20
320
3.30
5.00
2.60
3.60
3.90

RM

Richmond

2.70

5.20
3.00
2.65
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.35
1.45
1.45
1.45
1.65
1.75
1.90
2.00
215
2.30
2.55
2.70
215
2.70
2.75
2.50
2.60
2.35
2.15
2.10
1.90
1.70
1.40
1.55
240
240
240
240
240
245
2.50
2.55
2.60
4.80
2.95
2.80
3.15

EN EC del
Norte

2.75
5.10
2.90
2.50
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.20
1.30
1.30
1.30
1.50
1.60
1.80
1.90
2.05
220
245
2.60
2.05
2.60
2.65
235
2.50
225
2.05
2.00
1.80
1.60
1.20
1.40
2.25
225
225
225
2.30
2.35
240
245
2.50
4.70
2.85
270
3.05

EP EC Plaza

N
132
(=)

2.65
5.00
2.80
245
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.05
1.15
1.15

1.40
1.55
1.70
1.80
1.95
2.10
2.35
2.55
1.95
2.50
2.55
2.30
240
220
2.00
1.90
1.70
1.50
1.05
1.25
2.20
220
220
220
2.25
225
2.35
2.35
245
4.60
2.75
2.65
2.95

NB North
Berkeley

240

490
2.70
235
1.00
1.00
1.00
295
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.20
140
160
170
185
2.00
225
245
185
240
245
220
230
210
190
1.80
165
130
1.00
1.10
210
210
210
210
215
215
225
225
235
445
265
2.55
285

BK Dwntn
Berkeley

240

490
270
230
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
295
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.15
130
155
1.70
1.85
2.00
225
240
1.85
240
245
215
230
2.05
1.85
1.80
1,60
1.25
1.00
1.00
205
2.05
205
205
210
215
220
225
230
440
265
2.50
285

AS Ashby

2.35
245
4.85
2.65
225
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.10
1.25
1.50
1.65
1.80
1.95
2.20
2.35
1.80
2.35
240
215
2.25
2.05
1.85
1.75
1.50
1.20
1.00
1.00
1.95
1.95
1.95
1.95
2.05
210
215
220
225
4.30
2.60
2.50
2.80

MA

MacArthur

2.30

4.80
2.60
220
1.35
1.20
1.05
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.15
1.35
1.55
1.75
1.90
215
2.30
1.70
2.30
240
2.15
2.20
2.05
1.85
1.75
145
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.95
2.00
2.10
2.15
2.20
4.20
2.50
2.50
2.80

19th

St/Oakland

225
2.35
4.75
2.55
215
1.45
1.30
1.15
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.25
1.45
1.70
1.85
210
225
1.70
225
245
215
215
2.05
1.85
1.80
1.55
1.25
1.00
1.00
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.85
1.90
2.00
210
215
4.05
2.50
2.50
2.85

12th

St/Oakland

225
2.35
475
2.55
2.15
1.45
1.30
1.15
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.25
1.45
1.70
1.85
210
225
1.70
225
245
2.15
2.15
2.05
1.85
1.80
1.55
1.25
1.00
1.00
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.85
1.90
2.00
2.10
2.15
4.05
2.50
2.50
2.85

LM Lake
Merritt

225
2.35
4.75
2.55
215
1.45
1.30
1.15
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.25
1.45
1.70
1.85
210
225
1.70
225
245
215
215
2.05
1.85
1.80
1.55
1.25
1.00
1.00
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.85
1.90
2.00
2.10
215
4.05
2.50
2.50
2.85

Fruitvale

FV

N
w
o

2.50
4.85
2.65
2.00
1.65
1.50
1.40
1.20
1.15
1.10
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.20
145
1.70
1.95
2.10
145
2.10
2.50
225
2.30
2.15
1.95
1.85
1.65
1.40
1.00
1.00
1.95
1.95
1.95
1.95
2.05
2.10
2.20
220
2.30
4.05
2.35
2.60
2.90

Coliseum

&

2.60
4.95
2.75
1.95
1.75
1.60
1.55
1.40
1.30
1.25
1.15
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.30
1.55
1.85
2.00
1.30
2.00
2.60
2.35
240
225
2.05
1.95
1.75
1.55
1.15
1.10
215
215
215
215
2.20
220
2.30
2.30
240
3.05
2.25
2.70
3.00

SL San

Leandro

2.60
2.75
5.10
2.90
1.80
1.90
1.80
1.70
1.60
1.55
1.50
1.35
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.30
1.65
1.85
1.00
1.85
2.75
2.50
2.50
240
220
2.10
1.90
1.70
1.40
1.35
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.35
2.35
245
2.50
2.55
4.05
2.10
2.85
3.15

BF Bay Fair

2.75
2.85
5.25
3.05
1.00
2.00
1.90
1.80
1.70
1.70
1.65
1.55
1.45
1.45
1.45
1.20
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.85
2.60
2.65
2.50
2.30
220
2.05
1.85
1.55
1.55
240
240
240
240
245
2.50
2.55
2.60
2.65
4.05
1.95
2.95
3.30

HY Hayward

290
3.00
540
3.20
1.80
215
205
1.95
1.85
1.85
1.80
1.75
1.70
1.70
1.70
145
1.30
1.00
1.00
295
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.90
3.00
275
2.80
265
245
235
2.20
2.00
175
1.70
2.55
255
255
255
260
265
270
275
280
440
185
310
340

SH South
Hayward

3.05

5.55
3.35
1.95
2.30
220
210
2.00
2.00
1.95
1.90
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.70
1.55
1.30
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.35
2.05
3.15
2.90
2.95
2.80
2.60
2.50
2.35
215
1.90
1.90
2.70
2.70
2.70
2.70
2.75
2.80
2.85
2.90
2.95
4.60
1.00
325
3.55

UC Union
City

3.30
3.40
5.80
3.60
2.20
2.55
245
2.35
225
2.25
2.20
215
2.10
210
2.10
1.95
1.85
1.65
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.70
2.30
3.40
3.15
3.20
3.05
2.85
2.75
2.60
240
215
2.15
2.95
2.95
2.95
2.95
3.00
3.05
3.10
3.15
320
4.95
1.00
3.50
3.80

Fremont

FM

345
3.60
5.95
3.75
240
2.70
2.60
2.55
245
240
2.35
2.30
2.25
225
2.25
210
2.00
1.85
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.90
245
3.60
3.35
3.35
325
3.00
2.95
2.75
2.55
2.30
2.30
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.20
3.30
3.30
3.40
5.10
1.00
3.65
4.00

CV Castro
Valley
DIP

290
3.00
540
3.20
1.00
215
205
1.95
1.85
1.85
1.80
1.70
1.70
1.70
1.70
145
1.30
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.35
1.70
1.90
295
1.00
3.00
275
2.80
265
245
235
2.20
2.00
1.70
1.75
2.55
255
255
255
260
265
270
275
280
440
210
310
340

Dublin/Pleasn

tn

-l 2
@ B
S o

5.95
3.75
1.00
2.70
2.60
2.50
240
240
2.35
2.30
2.25
2.25
2.25
210
2.00
1.85
1.00
1.90
2.05
2.30
245
1.00
2.95
3.60
3.30
3.35
3.20
3.00
2.95
2.75
2.55
2.30
2.30
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.15
3.20
3.25
3.30
3.35
5.10
2.70
3.65
4.00

Pittsburg/Bay

PB
Pt

W W
o om
S o

6.15
3.95
3.50
2.75
2.65
255
245
245
240
240
245
245
245
2.50
2.60
2.75
2.85
3.00
3.15
3.40
3.60
3.00
3.60
2.95
1.00
3.55
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.85
2.05
235
2.50
3.35
3.35
3.35
3.35
3.35
340
3.50
3.50
3.60
5.70
3.80
1.00
1.00

NC North
Concord

3.40

5.90
3.70
3.25
2.50
2.35
2.30
2.20
215
2.15
215
2.15
215
2.15
2.25
2.35
2.50
2.60
2.75
2.90
3.15
3.35
2.75
3.30
1.00
2.95
3.30
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.55
1.80
210
225
3.05
3.05
3.05
3.05
3.10
3.15
3.20
325
3.30
5.40
3.55
1.00
1.70

Colma

CM

1.65
1.65
4.05
1.90
3.25
260
2.50
240
2.30
230
225
220
215
215
215
230
240
2.50
2.65
2.80
2.95
320
3.35
2.80
3.35
3.55
3.30
295
320
3.00
2.90
2.75
2.55
225
2.10
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.75
1.70
1.65
1.65
1.65
545
3.60
3.65
3.95

CN Concord

W w
B ow
o S

5.80
3.60
3.15
2.35
2.25
2.20
2.10
2.05
2.05
2.05
2.05
2.05
2.05
215
225
240
2.50
2.65
2.80
3.05
3.25
2.65
3.20
1.00
1.00
3.20
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.00
215
2.95
2.95
2.95
2.95
3.00
3.05
3.10
3.15
3.20
5.30
345
1.00
1.80

PH Pleasant

Hill

3.10

5.60
3.40
2.90
215
2.05
2.00
1.90
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.85
1.95
2.05
220
2.30
245
2.60
2.85
3.00
245
3.00
1.00
1.00
3.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.75
1.95
2.75
275
2.75
275
2.80
2.85
290
2.95
3.00
5.10
3.25
1.70
2.00

WC Walnut
Creek

3.00
3.15
5.50
3.30
2.85
210
2.00
1.90
1.80
1.80
1.75
1.75
1.80
1.80
1.80
1.85
1.95
210
220
2.35
2.50
2.75
2.95
2.35
2.95
1.00
1.00
2.90
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.65
1.85
2.70
2.70
2.70
2.70
2.70
275
2.80
2.85
2.90
5.05
3.15
1.75
2.10

LF Lafayette

N
oo
S

295
5.30
3.10
2.65
1.90
1.80
1.70
1.65
1.60
1.50
145
1.55
1.55
1.55
1.65
1.75
1.90
2.05
220
2.35
260
2.75
220
2.75
1.85
1.55
2.75
1.00
1.00
1.00
295
1.00
1.35
1.65
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.55
255
265
2.70
2.75
4.85
3.00
1.95
2.30

OR Orinda

2.65
2.75
5.15
2.95
245
1.70
1.60
1.50
1.30
1.25
1.20
1.00
1.25
1.25
1.25
1.40
1.55
1.70
1.85
2.00
2.15
240
2.55
2.00
2.55
2.05
1.80
2.55
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.35
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.30
2.35
2.35
245
2.50
2.55
4.65
2.80
2.15
245

RR Rockridge

NN
o w
S &

4.85
265
2.20
1.40
1.20
1.05
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.15
1.40
1.55
1.75
1.90
215
2.30
1.70
2.30
235
2.10
225
2.00
1.75
1.65
1.35
1.00
295
1.00
1.95
1.95
1.95
1.95
2.05
2.10
215
220
225
4.25
2.50
245
2.75

WO West

Oakland

ATTACHMENT 4. BART FARE TABLE with CLIPPER Youth 5-18 Fares BART to Antioch Stations eff 01/01/18

2.20
2.30
4.70
2.50
2.20
1.55
1.40
1.25
1.10
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.10
1.35
1.55
1.70
1.90
215
2.30
1.75
2.30
2.50
225
210
2.15
1.95
1.85
1.65
1.35
1.00
2.95
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.75
1.80
1.95
2.00
210
4.20
2.50
2.60
2.90

EM
NN
~ & Embarcadero
o o

4.55
235
3.05
240
225
220
2.10
2.05
1.95
1.85
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.95
215
230
240
2.55
2.70
2.95
3.15
2.55
3.15
3.35
3.05
1.85
2.95
2.75
2.70
2.50
2.30
1.95
1.60
295
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.65
5.20
3.35
340
3.75

MT

Montgomery

2.00

4.55
2.35
3.05
240
2.25
2.20
2.10
2.05
1.95
1.85
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.95
2.15
2.30
240
2.55
2.70
2.95
3.15
2.55
3.15
3.35
3.05
1.85
2.95
2.75
2.70
2.50
2.30
1.95
1.60
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.65
5.20
3.35
3.40
3.75

Powell

PL

2.00
220
4.55
2.35
3.05
240
225
220
2.10
2.05
1.95
1.85
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.95
215
230
240
2.55
2.70
2.95
3.15
2.55
3.15
3.35
3.05
1.85
2.95
2.75
2.70
2.50
230
1.95
1.60
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.65
5.20
3.35
340
3.75

CC Civic
Center

2.00
2.20
4.55
2.35
3.05
240
2.25
2.20
2.10
2.05
1.95
1.85
1.75
1.75
1.75
1.95
2.15
2.30
240
2.55
2.70
2.95
3.15
2.55
3.15
3.35
3.05
1.85
2.95
2.75
2.70
2.50
2.30
1.95
1.60
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.65
5.20
3.35
3.40
3.75

16th

St/Mission

1.90
210
4.55
2.35
3.10
240
2.30
225
215
210
2.05
1.95
1.85
1.85
1.85
2.05
220
235
245
2.60
2.75
3.00
3.15
2.60
3.15
3.35
3.10
1.75
3.00
2.80
2.70
2.55
235
2.05
1.75
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.55
525
3.40
345
3.80

24th

St/Mission

=
o
IS

4.50
2.30
3.10
245
2.35
2.25
2.15
215
2.10
2.00
1.90
1.90
1.90
210
220
2.35
2.50
2.65
2.80
3.05
3.20
2.65
3.20
3.40
3.15
1.70
3.05
2.85
2.75
2.55
2.35
210
1.80
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.00
1.55
5.30
3.40
3.50
3.80

GP Glen Park

-
o
=]

1.95
4.35
220
3.20
2.50
240
2.35
225
220
215
210
2.00
2.00
2.00
220
2.30
245
2.55
2.70
2.85
3.10
3.30
2.70
325
3.50
320
1.65
3.10
2.90
2.80
265
245
215
1.95
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.00
1.55
5.35
3.50
3.55
3.90

BP Balboa

Park

1.65
1.85
4.30
210
3.20
2.55
245
2.35
2.25
2.25
220
215
2.10
210
2.10
2.20
2.30
2.50
2.60
2.75
2.90
3.15
3.30
2.75
3.30
3.50
3.25
1.65
3.15
2.95
2.85
2.70
2.50
2.20
2.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
1.00
2.95
1.55
540
3.55
3.60
3.90

DC Daly City

1.65
1.65
4.20
2.00
3.30
260
2.50
245
235
230
225
220
215
215
215
230
240
2.55
265
2.80
2.95
3.20
3.40
2.80
3.35
3.60
3.30
1.65
320
3.00
2.90
2.75
255
225
210
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.65
1.55
1.55
1.55
1.55
2.95
5.45
3.60
3.65
4.00

OAK Airport

o o
~N o
I<Jxs |

8.05
585
500
480
470
460
445
440
430
420
405
405
405
405
3.05
405
405
440
460
495
510
440
510
5.70
540
545
530
510
505
485
465
425
420
520
520
520
520
525
530
535
540
545
295
530
575
6.10

WS Warm

Springs

3.70
3.80
6.20
4.00
2.60
2.95
2.85
2.75
265
265
2.60
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.35
225
210
1.95
1.85
1.00
1.00
1.00
210
2.70
3.80
3.55
3.60
345
3.25
3.15
3.00
2.80
2.50
2.50
3.35
3.35
3.35
3.35
3.40
3.40
3.50
3.55
3.60
5.30
2.95
3.90
4.20

PC Pittsburg

Center

3.85
6.25
4.05
3.60
2.80
2.70
2.65
2.55
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.50
2.60
2.70
2.85
2.95
3.10
3.25
3.50
3.65
3.10
3.65
1.00
1.00
3.65
1.00
1.70
1.75
1.95
2.15
245
2.60
3.40
340
3.40
340
3.45
3.50
3.55
3.60
3.65
575
3.90
2.95
1.00

AN Antioch

el =
N o
S &

6.55
4.35
3.90
3.15
3.05
2.95
2.85
2.85
2.80
2.80
2.85
2.85
2.85
2.90
3.00
3.15
3.30
3.40
3.55
3.80
4.00
3.40
4.00
1.00
1.70
3.95
1.80
2.00
210
2.30
245
2.75
2.90
3.75
3.75
3.75
3.75
3.80
3.80
3.90
3.90
4.00
6.10
4.20
1.00
2.95






Regional Means-

Based Fares

Informational Presentation
December 7, 2017






oo Overview

e MTC Regional Means-Based Transit Fare Pricing Study

e Study Purpose: Develop scenarios and determine feasibility of
reduced fares for low-income riders

e Program Objectives
1. Make transit more affordable for Bay Area low-income residents

2. Move towards a more consistent regional standard for fare discount
policies

3. Define a transit affordability solution that is financially viable and
administratively feasible, and does not adversely affect the transit
system’s service levels and performance

e MTC has developed program proposal

e Region’s transit operators support means-based fares
concept and have developed guiding principles and
proposal refinements





Revenue & Ridership Impacts

Estimated Annual Impact ($M)

Annual % of Adult | Annual Fare Farebox
Operator IS Rl Revente 'Iil\\e/:telr:a;%: Recovery Paﬁbicli([)o?t/?on Parct?c?[());)t/fion Par?cizp?;/:ion
(Millions) |Low-Income ($M) Rate

AC Transit 52.4 74% $55.8 $1.06 18% $12.6 $6.3 $2.5

BART 124.2 25% $484.8 $3.90 77% $52.8 $26.4 $10.6

Caltrain 18.7 9% $98.4 $5.27 68% $4.4 $2.2 S0.9

County Connection 3.6 38% $4.6 $1.28 17% $0.5 S0.2 S0.1

East Contra Costa 2.3 59% $2.4 $1.01 16% $0.4 S0.2 S0.1
County (Tri Delta)

Golden Gate Bus 3.1 31% §15.1 $4.81 19% S2.1 S1.0 S0.4

Golden Gate Ferry 2.5 14% $20.3 $8.05 53% $1.2 S0.6 S0.2

Muni 186.1 59% $173.5 $0.93 21% $43.0 $21.5 S8.6

SamTrans 11.8 47% $16.2 $1.37 13% $3.1 S1.6 S0.6

SF Bay Ferry 2.6 2% $18.6 $7.15 60% $0.15 $0.08 $0.03

VTA 42.9 57% $37.7 $0.88 11% $14.3 $7.2 $2.9

TOTAL $134.5 $67.2 $26.9|

*Based on current operator specific data; does not include any assumptions for elasticity, ridership changes, etc.; includes estimates for operators
currently providing discounts.





‘oo ] Points to Consider

Discount applied to existing adult single ride fares via specially encoded
Clipper card

Each operator sets own discount rate with potential for phasing in
participants

Application processing, customer service and database management
handled through RTC program for people with disabilities

Eligibility determined based on participation in existing social service
programs (CalFresh, CalWorks, Medi-Cal, SNAP, SSI/SSP)

e Approximately 200% of poverty; no additional income verification
required

Application process online or by mail only to reduce administrative
costs

Clipper cards to have printed participant name for fare enforcement (in
lieu of photos requiring in-person applications)





ba Clipper Discount Coupon

e Clipper card can have “discount coupon” implemented to apply
low-income discount to single ride fares, giving an Operator:

e Option to participate or not in program
e Flexibility to set appropriate discount rate

e Cubic development timeline from Notice to Proceed
approximately 6 months

e Similar development on BART for the SFSU Gator Pass was
approximately $170,000





Funding/Sustainability

e MTC investigating funding opportunities to
offset operator losses due to program

e Regional administrative costs could be covered under
this funding, with any remaining funds to be
distributed on a revenue based formula

e Each Operator investigating funding
opportunities to offset possible revenue loss

e Federal, State, County, Human Services, Access to Job,
Air Quality





Next Steps

Operators continue to work with MTC on proposal
Operators and MTC jointly identify funding sources

Operators initiate change notice with Cubic for
proposal to implement “discount coupon” for low-
income fares

Operators initiate conversations with local county
social service agencies regarding eligibility

Operator Boards to consider proposal





		Regional Means-Based Fares

		Overview

		Slide Number 3

		Points to Consider

		�Clipper Discount Coupon

		          Funding/Sustainability

		         Next Steps




CALPERS
MISCELLANEOUS AND SAFETY PLANS

DRAFT

Mary Beth Redding & Doug Pryor,
Vice President & Actuary

December 7, 2017

BART
m December 7, 2017

CalPERS Benetfits

B CalPERS Defined Benefit Promise:

® At retirement, employees receive a monthly annuity
for life

® Final average pay (monthly) x years of service x factor

® Example: 2.0%@55
Hire age 30, retire at 55 = 25 years of service
2.0% x 25 = 50% of final average pay for life

® Cost of living increase up to 2% per year

® No Social Security

BART m
m December 7, 2017 1 I\'|






CalPERS Benetfits

®m CalPERS Contract
® Withdrawal from CalPERS not practical

Termination basis plan liabilities very large
Cannot change future benefits for current employees

Cannot withdraw future hires from CalPERS even if
alternative benefit is provided.

BART m
m December 7, 2017 2 ] ) |

Actuarial Terminology

B Present Value of Benefits (PVB)

® Value, using actuarial assumptions, of all benefits
expected to be paid to current employees & retirees

B Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

® Liability for benefits “earned” for past service

® Normal Cost (NC)

® Value of benefits “earned” during the current year

BART m
m December 7, 2017 3 ] ) |






Actuarial Terminology

Present Value of Benefits for One Employee
Year 3
Future
Normal
Cost:
Years 4
to 20 Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
Years 1
and 2
Normal
Cost:
Year 3

—
(o
=~

BART
m December 7, 2017 4

Actuarial Terminology - UAAL

B Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)

@ If all actuarial assumptions were always exactly met,
then the plan assets would always equal AAL

® Any difference is the Unfunded (or overfunded) AAL

® Every year, the actuary calculates the difference
between the expected UAAL and actual UAAL. This

1s a new layer or amortization base

® Each new layer gets amortized (paid off) over a period
of time as part of the contribution [rate].

BART 3
m December 7, 2017 5 b*l






Actuarial Terminology - UAAL

m UAAL can be positive (gains) or negative (losses)

® Largest is investment gains and losses — assets returns
more or less than assumed

® Experience (demographics, salaries, retiree COLAS)
not as expected

® Change in any actuarial assumptions

® Change in plan benefits

BART m
m December 7, 2017 6 1‘;. |

Fundamental Funding Rule

Contributions * + Investment Earnings

Benefits + Expenses

* Employee and Employer contributions

BART m
m December 7, 2017 7 l"' |






Historical Investment Returns

30.00%

Historical CalPERS Rate of Return

22.50%

C
- “/\\ : \f\\ /r \f\uf
- ]
¥
\1

-30.00% 1995]1996[1997]1998 199920002001 [2002]2003[2004]2005 [2006 [2007 2008 [2009 [20102011 [2012]2013]2014]2015]2016]2017
[m=Mmvaie3915.390.1919.5912.5910.59-7.2%]-6.1%] 3.7%[16.6912.391 1.8919.1945.1%] 24.0 1339 1.79%40.1%[13 2941 8.4 2.4% [ 0.6% 1 1.2%

BART m
m December 7, 2017 3 I‘n|

Recent CalPERS Policy Changes

®m Contribution policy changes:
® No asset smoothing
® No rolling amortization

® First impact 15/16 rates; full impact 19/20

B Mortality improvement & other minor assumption
changes

® First impact 16/17 rates; full impact 20/21

BART m
m December 7, 2017 9 I\'|






Discount Rate

® CalPERS Board was told at end of 2016;

® 2017 Capital Market Assumption Study will likely
show expected return 7.0% (not 7.5%)

® Expected returns in next 10 years even lower (6.2%)
B Board decreased discount rate to 7% over 3 years
® Impact phased in from 18/19 through 24/25
B Current Board policy: move to less risky
investments over time
® Expect discount rate at 6.0% after 20 years

BART m
m December 7, 2017 10 ] )|

Proposed Changes

BART )
m December 7, 2017 11 _]"r l






Proposed Changes — Discount Rate

2017 Asset Liability Management Workshop Attachment 1, Page 26 of 55

Discount Rate Determination (continued)

» Based on Blended CMA rates and projected Cash Flows

Portfolio Discount Rate! Volatility

A 6.50% 9.1%
B 6.75% 10.2%
C 7.00% 11.4%
D 7.25% 12.8%
* Does not include any provision for adverse deviabon
BART A CalPERS )
h December 7, 2017 12 h*l

Proposed Changes

B Asset allocation & discount rate

B Experience study
® Likely small impact

m Expect decision at December Board meeting

B Amortization policy

® Deferred until February meeting

BART y
h December 7, 2017 13 h*l






Proposed Changes - Amortization

B Proposed amortization policy

Current Proposed
Period (assumption change) 20 yrs 20 yrs
Period (gains & losses) 30 yrs 20 yrs
Payment increases 3% per year None
Payment r.amp-ups (investment 5 years 5 years
gains/losses)
Payment ramp-ups (other) 5 years None
Payment ramp-downs S years None

BART
m December 7, 2017

14

Proposed Changes - Amortization

Annual Payments

$160,000
$140,000

$120,000

$100,000 - t

$80,000 - Hine

$60,000 - :

$40,000 !

$20,000 - l‘ 1 | i i
$0 4 -

® Current Policy = Proposed Policy

0 2 4 6 B 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30

Page 5

Investment Gain or Loss:
From CalPERS Finance &
Admin. Committee, November
2017 Agenda,

Item 8b Attachment 1

BART
m December 7, 2017

15






Proposed Changes - Amortization

UAL Balance

$1,200,000

$1,000,000 -

$800,000 -

$600,000 -

$400,000 +

$200,000 -

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30

Investment Gain or Loss:
From CalPERS Finance &
Admin. Committee, November
2017 Agenda,

Iltem 8b Attachment 1

Page 5

weneee Current Policy —e=s==Proposed Policy
m December 7, 2017 16

Next Steps

B CalPERS Decision on Asset Allocation, Discount
Rate, and Actual Assumptions — Mid-Dec 2017

B CalPERS Decision on Amortization Policy —

Mid-Feb 2018 or Later

®m Next Board Update — Jan/Feb 2018

BART
m December 7, 2017 17







! Phase Il Extension Alignment Options

BERRYESSA/NORTH SAN JOSE
STATION

Mineta
San Jose
Intermnational Airport

; SANTA CLARA
3%, STATION
R Newhall __
oy Maintenance
. Facility i ALUM ROCK/
28TH STREET
N || STATION
_DOWNTOWN >
. SAN JOSE STATIUN_' >
EAST OPTION > 4
SAN JOSE STATION ¥
WEST OPTION o LECEND e
: %q‘@ % %*" \ Phase 1 Ali
— ) e e Phase | Alignmant
1980 DRI gps-r%HON 5 mmmm Phase l| At-Grade Alignment
== Phase |l Twin- and Single-Bore Tunnel Alignment
6 DIRIDON STATION o — i i e
SOUTH OP“HON @s mmms Twin-Bore Tunnel Alignment Option
HOT TO SCALE - ol - -

December 7, 2017





va‘ Station Design:
A Twin-Bore vs. Single-Bore

Twin-Bore Single-Bore
Station Station [
.—
|/
/

S ¢ | TR 3
l--l-""--.‘-.'u_‘ll---

December 7, 2017 2





SVX Phase |l BART/VTA
Tunnel O&M Peer Review

Findings and Recommendations
November 15, 2017






Summary - Overall Conclusion

e From an operations and maintenance
perspective, and

e Based on the available information and the
two options as designed, and

e Keeping in mind the timing of the FTA
process and record of decision, and

e With a particular focus on fire/life safety
concerns, the panel concludes






Summary - Overall Conclusion

e Twin bore is the preferred of the two options presented
at this time.

e The single bore option as presented could be operated
with additional efforts and measures on the part of the
operating agency. However, there are concerns with
respect to consistency, training, fire/life safety, and
related issues that seem to outweigh the benefits of this
method of construction.

e An alternative, redesigned single bore design could be
operated safely and eliminate many of the concerns.






Overall Observations

e Partnership arrangement of owner/builder on one
hand and operator/maintainer on the other has
caused some disconnects in terms of competing
Interests.

e There are design issues with stations,
operations, and fire/life safety that have been
discussed over some time, though perhaps not in
a sufficiently specific way. Still, these issues are
apparently not resolved.




Presenter

Presentation Notes

FRA Deep Dive report addressed first four accidents; NTSB report addressed all five accidents





Overall Observations

e Firel/life safety and construction impact were primary
points of interest for both VTA and BART. While the
Issues are complex, in some ways BART personnel
felt their concerns about fire/life safety and system
consistency were not sufficiently addressed in the
single-bore option. VTA personnel were concerned
that the twin-bore option may result in too much
construction impact.






Overall Observations

e Comprehensive preliminary hazard analysis
and threat and vulnerabllity assessment
appear not to have been completed for the
single bore concept.

e Twin bore Is tried and tested In transit
application.

e Single bore has been identified to minimize
construction impacts to local businesses.






Overall Observations

e Large single bore has evolved over recent
years, customary for road tunnels but not ralil
transit.

e While VTA will be the owner of the facilities,
BART is the de facto owner when there Is an
accident or incident.






Overall Recommendations

e The project must go forward with a united
front to compete and come to fruition.

e Potential safety/operational issues raised by
BART must be recognized and reconciled by
both parties.






Overall Recommendations

e VTA should plan and focus efforts on
construction, alternate operating plans during
construction, traffic, and community outreach,
not just on downtown businesses, all

nalanced against long term investment and

oroject benefits.

e Dual agency efforts should be undertaken on
oroject delivery methodology to emphasize
delivery, long-term viability, and cost.






Questions Posed to Panel

1. What are the risks and or challenges
associlated with the single bore option and
can it be operated and maintained safely as
an extension of the BART system?






Question 1: Risks?

e Current conceptual design includes
undetermined risk due to variance from
current twin bore design.






Question 1: Risks?

e Risks: Single bore transition areas with different egress
facility configurations present most risk during train
evacuations.

Stairs slow evacuation.

Evacuation of lower tunnel in stacked tunnel arrangement requires
passengers to climb stairs in some locations.

Upper to lower tunnel evacuation may be counterintuitive.

Managing evacuations and emergencies is complicated, especially for
the single Train Operator who is the first responder on scene. May
require additional personnel to be effective.

Movement away from standardization, as well as excessive variation
from one location to another, and variation from this segment to
remainder of BART system, are problematic.






Question 1: Risks?

e Training Is an important tool, but in the
moment of an emergency, equipment and
Infrastructure needs to be as intuitive as
possible, and as consistent as possible.

e Some O&M concerns deserve more
attention, such as inspecting and maintaining
elevators/escalators to keep them in service.






Question 1: Can it Work?

e The single bore extension can be operated
and maintained safely in normal operating
conditions. However the risks involved,
especially in fire/life safety and emergency
situations, seem to outweigh the benefits of
shorter-term constructabllity issues that the
single bore approach brings.






Questions Posed to Panel

2. How does the single - bore configuration
compare to the twin - bore configuration Iin
key areas of performance?






Question 2: Comparison

e In single bore as presented with
transition/stacked configuration,
passageways may need to be pressurized
(especially for lower bore fires) to keep
smoke out, versus passively ventilated cross
passages under twin bore configuration.






Question 2: Comparison

e In single bore, new configurations of
passageways in tunnel requires different and
new training (both initial and ongoing) and
procedures for employees and first responders.

e Location of / distance of interlocking away from
the downtown station under single bore is
potentially problematic for disrupted operations,
maintenance, and incident response.






Question 2: Comparison

e Service delays (unplanned) and scheduled
diversions (planned) harder to accommodate
with the single 15.6 foot platforms under
single bore configuration.

e Transfer from one stacked platform to
another may be problematic during delays
and single tracking operations. Restoration of
service techniques would be complicated.

20





Question 2: Comparison

e Single bore egress and corridors potentially
non-intuitive.

e Twin bore, cross passages, and safety walk
areas are more intuitive and ADA friendly
than under single bore (with steps etc.)

il





Questions Posed to Panel

3. What additional design elements, if any,
should be considered for either
configuration to address BART's concerns?

27





Question 3: Design Elements

e The parties must commit to continue to work
cooperatively and transparently on design
process, especially analyses and specifics,
e.g., time for egress from platforms.

23





Question 3: Design Elements

e Revisit issues related to cost and project
delivery efficiency, and ensure that
methodologies and comparisons are made
on a consistent basis between possible
design options.

24





Question 3: Design Elements

e Under single bore, enclosed passageways
must be wide enough for egress and first
responder ingress.

e The project should consider incorporating
platform screen doors. These can help
mitigate train fires from impacting station
platforms, reduce ventilation needs, and
potentially reduce the number of wayside
trash fires.

23





Question 3: Design Elements

e For twin bore approach, consider design
elements such as:

Additional ventilation elements such as ventilation

columns, under platform ventilation, downstands,
stairwell enclosures, etc.

Use of concourse to serve as a point of safety
below street level and earlier in evacuation path.

28





Question 3: Design Elements

e There needs to be consistency and
agreement in project standards, including
type of fire modeling to be used
(instantaneous vs. medium fire growth). If the
BFS requirement is to be enforced, CFD
modeling will be required to demonstrate the
single bore concept as presented will work
from a fire/life safety perspective.

21





Question 3: Design Elements

e There may be other design options, e.g., a larger bore or
hybrid approaches to address concerns of construction
Impacts to local businesses and conformity to current
tunnel/station designs. Possible benefits might include
side by side tracks, center platforms, greater allowance
for passageways aside tracks. Possible impacts include
deeper construction, tunnel boring machine that is more
mechanically demanding.

28





Overall Conclusion

e From an operations and maintenance
perspective, and

e Based on the available information and the
two options as designed, and

e Keeping in mind the timing of the FTA
process and record of decision, and

e With a particular focus on fire/life safety
concerns, the panel concludes

29





Overall Conclusion

e Twin bore is the preferred of the two options presented
at this time.

e The single bore option as presented could be operated
with additional efforts and measures on the part of the
operating agency. However, there are concerns with
respect to consistency, training, fire/life safety, and
related issues that seem to outweigh the benefits of this
method of construction.

e An alternative, redesigned single bore design could be
operated safely and eliminate many of the concerns.

30





		Slide Number 1

		Slide Number 2

		SVX Phase II BART/VTA Tunnel O&M Peer Review

		Summary - Overall Conclusion 

		Summary - Overall Conclusion

		Overall Observations

		Overall Observations

		Overall Observations

		Overall Observations

		Overall Recommendations

		Overall Recommendations

		Questions Posed to Panel

		Question 1: Risks?

		Question 1: Risks?

		Question 1: Risks?

		Question 1: Can it Work?

		Questions Posed to Panel

		Question 2: Comparison

		Question 2: Comparison

		Question 2: Comparison

		Question 2: Comparison

		Questions Posed to Panel

		Question 3: Design Elements

		Question 3: Design Elements

		Question 3: Design Elements

		Question 3: Design Elements

		Question 3: Design Elements

		Question 3: Design Elements

		Overall Conclusion 

		Overall Conclusion




YE.EM Update on San Francisco
h Homeless Qutreach Team in
BART Stations

BART Board
December 7, 2017






e | FY18 Budget - Public Safety Initiatives

Outreach: SF Homeless Outreach Team (SFHOT) partnership:
e SF Dept. of Public Health
e SF Dept. of Homelessness and Supportive Services
* BART
 SFMTA

Education: Public Conduct ordinances and signage
Operations: Additional cleaning resources

Enforcement: Additional security resources, harden paid area






‘ool SF Homeless Outreach Team

Program to:

engage and stabilize the most vulnerable and at-risk homeless
individuals.

prevent the harmful effects of homelessness.

transition individuals into stable living, and healthcare
environments

provide access to services that promote greater health, housing
retention and reduce vulnerability.






oo | SFHOT Implementation with BART

* Program Summary
* Began operations mid-Nov. 2017
* Role is to connect homeless to City services

 Works independently, but in collaboration, with BART Police
* Four (4) days/ week

e |nitial focus on most impacted stations:
 Powell
* Civic Center

* Engagement
e Significant planning and coordination with City partners
e Extensive outreach to Labor Leadership
e Panel discussion at ATU Retreat (Nov. 14)
e Additional outreach will be on-going






: How are we doing?

<!

Quarterly Service Performance Review
First Quarter, FY 2018
July - September, 2017

Operations & Safety Committee
December 7, 2017










SUMMARY CHART 1st QUARTER FY 2018

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS CURRENT QUARTER PRIOR QTRACTUALS YEARTO DATE
updated 10/31/17 LAST THIS QTR
ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS QUARTER LAST YEAR ACTUAL STANDARD STATUS

Average Ridership - Weekday 419,978 428,268| NOTMET | | 419,794 432,002 419,978 428,268| NOT MET
Customers on Time

Peak 86.95% 95.00%| NOT MET 83.46% 90.00% 86.95% 95.00%| NOT MET

Daily 90.04% 95.00%| NOT MET 87.66% 91.97% 90.04% 95.00%| NOT MET
Trains on Time

Peak 79.68% N/A NA 73.79% 85.84% 79.68% N/A N/A

Daily 83.14% 92.00%| NOT MET 79.72% 88.24% 83.14% 92.0%| NOT MET
Peak Period Transbay Car Throughput

AM Peak 96.68% 97.50%| NOT MET : 95.56% 98.71% 96.68% 97.50%| NOT MET

PM Peak 95.38% 97.50%| NOTMET | | 96.15% 99.72% 95.38% 97.50%| NOT MET
Car Availability at 4 AM (0400) 575 595 NOTMET [ | 573 596 575 595| NOT MET
Mean Time Between Service Delays 3,810 4,000 NOTMET [ | 4,723 5,179 3,810 4,000 NOT MET
Hevators in Service

Station 98.10% 98.00% MET - 98.57% 98.50% 98.10% 98.00% MET

Garage 96.40% 98.00%| NOTMET | | 96.60% 97.60% 96.40% 98.00%| NOT MET
Escalators in Service ||

Street 92.10% 95.00%| NOT MET 87.80% 91.40% 92.10% 95.00%| NOT MET

Platform 96.50% 96.00% MET 94.73% 96.67% 96.50% 96.00% MET
Automatic Fare Collection |

Gates 99.51% 99.00% MET 99.21% 99.12% 99.51% 99.00% MET

Vendors 95.79% 95.00% MET 95.55% 95.92% 95.79% 95.00% MET
Wayside Train Control System 2.00 1.00( NOT MET 1.55 1.08 2.00 1.00f NOT MET
Computer Control System 0.06 0.08 MET 0.080 0.029 0.063 0.08 MET
Traction Power 0.12 0.20 MET 0.13 0.12 0.16 0.20 MET
Track 0.13 0.30 MET 1.48 0.88 0.13 0.30 MET
Transportation 0.69 0.50| NOT MET 0.52 0.43 0.69 0.50|] NOT MET
Environment Outside Stations 2.62 2.80|] NOT MET 2.76 2.71 2.62 2.80 NOT MET
Environment Inside Stations 2.52 3.001 NOT MET 2.62 2.66 2.52 3.001 NOT MET
Station Vandalism 2.90 3.19] NOT MET 2.95 2.97 2.90 3.19] NOT MET
Station Services 2.86 3.06] NOT MET 291 2.92 2.86 3.06] NOT MET
Train P.A. Announcements 3.06 3.17| NOTMET | | 3.09 3.09 3.06 3.17] NOT MET
Train Exterior Appearance 2.78 3.00f NOT MET 2.79 2.86 2.78 3.00f NOT MET
Train Interior Appearance 2.85 3.00] NOT MET 2.85 2.95 2.85 3.00] NOT MET
Train Temperature 3.06 312 NOTMET | | 3.11 3.10 3.06 3.12] NOT MET
Customer Complaints [

Complaints per 100,000 Passenger Trips 7.74 5.07 NOT MET 8.89 7.41 7.74 5.07| NOT MET
Safety .

Station Incidents/Million Patrons 1.56 5.50 MET 1.64 2.05 1.56 5.50 MET

Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons 0.62 1.30 MET 0.35 0.59 0.62 1.30 MET

Lost Time Injuries/llinesses/Per OSHA 7.24 7.50 MET 7.25 8.48 7.24 7.50 MET

OSHA-Recordable Injuries/llinesses/Per OSHA 12.99 13.30 MET 10.12 12.72 12.99 13.30 MET

Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles 0.050 0.300 MET 0.100 0.000 0.050 0.300 MET

Rule Violations Summary/Million Car Miles 0.150 0.500 MET 0.460 0.330 0.150 0.500 MET
Police .

BART Police Presence 11% N/A NA [ 10% NA 11% N/A NA

Quality of Life per million riders 99.45 N/A N/A ] 112.98 29.08 99.45 NA N/A

Crimes Against Persons per million riders 3.15 2.00 NOT MET 3.28 2.18 3.15 2.001 NOT MET

Auto Burglaries per 1,000 parking spaces 6.26 8.00 MET 4.64 3.64 6.26 8.00 MET

Auto Thefts per 1,000 parking spaces 2.04 6.00 MET 2.56 2.08 2.04 6.00 MET

Police Response Time per Emergency Incident (Minutes) 5.30 5.00( NOT MET 4.24 6.43 5.30 5.00 NOT MET

Bike Thefts (Quarterly Total and YTD Quarterly Average) 125 150.00 MET 129 163 125 150.00

L EGEND:

Goal met

Goal not met but within 5%

Goal not met by more than §











:Howarewedoing? []  FY'18 First Quarter Overview

Ridership down 2-3%, 2.4% below budget

Train service reliability improved again, focus area for Ops and
BPD

Equipment Reliability: Traction Power, Track, and Computer
Control System met; Train Control and Cars not met

Equipment Availability: Platform Escalators, Fare Gates, Ticket
Machines, and Station Elevators met; Street Escalators, Garage
Elevators and Cars not met

Passenger Environment: Train Interior Cleanliness improved
very slightly, the other 7 train or station customer ratings were
down including several substantial drops (Station
Interior/Exterior Cleanliness)

Complaints decreased 13.7%





:Howarewe doing? [[] CUStOMer Ridership

Average Weekday Trips

480,000
470,000

460,000
=\
440,000 1
150000 \\V/ \ / —4— Results
420,000 N ’\0\./"%
410,000 X -
e Goal

400,000

390,000
380,000
370,000

Juy Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

v" Total ridership 2.4% below budget

v" Average weekday ridership (419,978) down by 2.8% from same
quarter last year

v" Core weekday ridership down by 2.7% from same quarter last year

v SFO Extension weekday ridership down by 3.6% from same quarter
last year

v" Average peak ridership down by 1.5% compared to same quarter last
year

v’ Saturday and Sunday down by 2.2% and 3.1%, respectively, from
same quarter last year





: How are we doing?

100%06

BART

=7 On-Time Service - Customer

2
(=) —
§ °9% ] T \\\
@) T
g 8006 - — Results
E —_— Goal
[¢B}
9p}
[¢B)
e 70% -
i_T
[
@)
60%06
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept
v 90.04%, up 2.4% from prior quarter, below goal
v Delay events causing the most late trains:
Object Struck MUX Equipment(Cable Tray Damaged/Loss of Power)(0442-EOR)
1]  3-Jul-17|Balboa Park Object on Track 407
2| 28-Aug-17|D.C. I-Lock |False Occupancy (Cranks Installed)(0405-2200) \Wayside Equip 175
3| 24-Aug-17|Bay Fair Person Under Train(1440-1911) Misc/People 107
4 1-Sep-17|Systemwide |Weather (Heat)(1332-1900) \Weather 104
5| 30-Aug-17|Powell BPD Hold (Suspicious Package)(1340-1825) BPD 75
6| 27-Sep-17|Coliseum Animal On Trackway (0749-1006) Object on Track 75
7] 21-Aug-17|Dublin I-lock [Speed Code (L18-L20)(0420-2240) Wayside Equip 70
8| 14-Aug-17|Rich. Yd. MU X (False Occupancy & Routing Issues)(0714-1509) \Wayside Equip 68
9] 21-Aug-17]16th Street  [Aux. Electric (Inverter)( Would Not Move in ATO)(1704-1909) Vehicle* 68
W & M-
10[ 22-Sep-17|Lines PG&E Power Outage(34.5 VAC Power Loss)(1723-2035) PG&E 67

*Pending further investigation





: How are we doing?

On-Time Service - Train

100%06

90%

80%0

70%0

60%0

= On-Time Service - Train

[ Results

= Goal

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar AprilMayJdune July Aug Sept

v' 83.1%, up 3.4% from prior quarter, goal not met
v' 43.1% of late trains were late due to multiple small delays, each under 5

m

inutes

v’ Categorization of late trains due to a known delay event of 5 minutes or
greater:

1. POLICE ACTIONS

2. TRAIN CONTROL

3. OBJECT ON TRACKWAY
4. RAIL CAR

5. MULTIPLE CAUSE

17.4% of delayed trains
16.9% of delayed trains
10.5% of delayed trains
9.0% of delayed trains
8.2% of delayed trains





:Howarewe doing? [(] \Nayside Train Control System

Includes False Occupancy & Routing, Delays Per 100 Train Runs

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

—J Results

2.5
\ — Goal
2.0
i \—
1.5

— 7\

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

Goal not met — Actual 2.0 / Goal 1.00

Restructured staffing to focus on Preventative Maintenance

PM group increased from 16 to 34 FTE, increasing PM completeness and accuracy
Updating PM procedures to increase effectiveness and ensure compliance

Installed 40+ TX Loops and RX Coils in core system to increase reliability

Added 3 new TC engineers to maintenance group to focus on tough problems

SN N NN





:Howarewe doing? [(] Computer Control System

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

1.0
0.9
0.8
0.7
0.6
0.5
0.4
0.3
0.2
0.1
0.0

Includes ICS computer & SORS, Delays per 100 train runs

=3 Results

e 0oal

Juy Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v Goal met






:Howarewedoing? [] | raction Power

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

2.5

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.5

0.0

Includes Coverboards, Insulators,
Third Rail Trips, Substations,
Delays Per 100 Train Runs

[ Results
= G oal

\
.

~_ T I~

T m—

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal Met

v" Replaced 640’ of 3" rail and coverboard on lower A-Line to

reduce coverboard caused delays.

10






:Howarewe doing? [ Transportation

Includes Late Dispatches, Controller-Train
Operator-Tower Procedures and Other
Operational Delays Per 100 Train Runs

1.5

1.0

I Results

0.5

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

LT

0.0 t }
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar  April May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal not met — Actual .69 / Goal .5

v T.0. staffing affected by increased training for FOTF and testing
commitments for SVBX.

v" Slight upward trend in procedural errors being addressed.

11





: How are we doing? :[

Delayed Trains per 100 Train Trips

Track

Includes Rail, Track Tie,
Misalignment, Switch,
Delays Per 100 Train Runs

I Results

= G oal

v" Goal met

12

Jul

Aug

Sep






Mean Time Between Service Delays (Hours)

Howarewe doing? [1]  Car Equipment - Reliability

7500
7000
6500

6000 -
5500 A
5000 A
4500 -

4000

3500 A
3000 A

2500

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal not met — MTBSD 3,810 hours / Goal 4,000 hours

v" Continuing root cause failure analysis by Vehicle Engineering, selective
component replacement / mods and procedural improvements

v" Turnover of key personnel (Supt, Shop Engineers, and Vehicle Trouble Desk)
v Managing transition to FOTF

13

[ Results

e Goal






: How are we doing? :[ Car EqL“pment —
Availability @ 0400 hours

Number of Cars

625

600

575 A

550 A

525 1

500 A1

475

450 A

425 A

400

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprli May June July Aug Sept

v" Goal not met — 575 Actual vs. 595 Required
v With a very aggressive availability target (89%),

availability impacted by small perturbations; in this
case Hayward Shop construction and periods of hot
weather.

14

[ Results

e Goal






:Howarewe doing? [V]  Elevator Availability - Stations

100%
95% - 7
— Active
e Goal
90% - — All
8590
80%

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v 98% goal exceeded

15





: How are we doing?

100%0

95%0

90%0 H

85%0 A

80%o

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April MayJune July Aug Sept

v 98% goal, actual 96.4%

1 Elevator Availability - Garage

— Results

e Goal

v" Controller failures and vandalism (broken glass) negatively impacted

results

16





:Howarewe doing? [1] ESCAlator Availability - Street

100%

90%0

80%0

70%

602%0

1T~ /\
/ [
— Results
/\/ e Goal
— Weighted
\ Awvailability

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

v' 95% goal, 92% actual

v’ Substantial improvement

v Four extensive heavy repairs, 3 of the 4 were due to O&K
Bull-Gears

17





7 Escalator Availability - Platform

: How are we doing?

100%06
— —
| E—] ——
\\//
90%0 -
— Results
e Goal
— Weighted
Availability

802%0 -

70%

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept

60%0

v Goal met, improved performance
v" Long term Civic Center outage, should be back in service by 11/30/17

18





: How are we doing? | /|

100%

AFC Gate Availability

90% A

80% 1

70% A

60%

[ Results

e G oal

July Aug Sept Oct Nov

v' 99% goal exceeded

Dec

Jan

Feb

19

Mar

April

May  June

July

Aug

Sept






7 AFC Vendor Availability

: How are we doing?

100%

90% H

80%

I Results

e (0al
70%

60%
Juy Aug Sept Oct

Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Apri May June July Aug Sept

v Goal met, improved performance
v Add Fare Availability — 98.7%

v' Parking Validation Machines Availability — 99.9%

20






:Howarewe doing? [Vl Enyironment - Qutside Stations

3
O Results
Ratings |
guide: 2.71 2.[75 273 276 >leo
4 = Excellent  Goal
3= Good
2.80 = Goal 2
2 = Only Fair
1 =Poor
1
FY2017 FY2017 FY2017 FY2017 FY2018
Qtr 1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1

Composite rating of:
Walkways & Entry Plaza Cleanliness (50%) 2.50 !
BART Parking Lot Cleanliness (25%) 2.851
Appearance of BART Landscaping (25%) 2.62 !

v'Goal not met Cleanliness ratings of either Excellent or Good:
Walkways/Entry Plazas: 54.3%
Parking Lots: 71.4%
Landscaping Appearance: 59.8%
v'Filling vacancies
v'Clearing three large homeless encampments and completing 20 miles of fire
breaks was a significant diversion of labor resources.

indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter

21





‘Howarewedoing? [[] ENVIronment - Inside Stations

Ratings 3 [ Results
guide:
3.00 = Goal
1 =Poor
1
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1
Composite rating for Cleanliness of:
Station Platform (60%) 2.66
Other Station Areas (20%) 2.491¢
Restrooms (10%) 2.01!
Elevator Cleanliness (10%) 2.27 14

v Goal not met
v’ Cleanliness ratings of either Excellent or Good:
Station Platform: 62.4% Other Station Areas: 53.2%
Restrooms: 32.9% Elevators: 43.8%
v" Moved to M&E end of July, grievance filed, discussions on-going, may go to arbitration
v' 20 vacancies in process of being filled, training program will be developed, dedicated
management structure with more reasonable spans of control, developing cleaning SOPs,
upgrading equipment, development of KPI’s

indicates a statistically significant decrease from the prior quarter

22





Howarewedoing? [ Station Vandalism

Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent
3.19 = Goal

3 = Good

2 =Only Fair
1 = Poor

I Results

= Goal

a
3
2lo7 2.98 2|93 195
2
1
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4

Station Kept Free of Graffiti

v'Goal not met

FY2018 Qtr 1

v’ 74.1% of those surveyed ranked this category as either

Excellent or Good

v"Holding contractor accountable; expedited in-house

response to offensive graffiti

23





: How are we doing? :[

Ratings
guide:

4 = Excellent
3.06 = Goal
3 =Good

2 = Only Fair
1 =Poor

Station Services

a4
3
I Results
2l92 2.88 2|90 2191 2|86
— Goal
2
1
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1

Composite rating of:
Station Agent Availability (65%) 2.82
Brochures Availability (35%) 2.93

v Go
v Av

al not met
ailability ratings of either Excellent or Good:

Station Agents: 69.9%

Brochures: 74.9%

24





: How are we doing? :[

4 = Excellent
3.17 = Goal
3 =Good

2 = Only Fair
1 = Poor

Ratings guide:

Train P.A. Announcements

1

FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4

I Results

— Goal

FY2018 Qtr 1

Composite rating of:
P.A. Arrival Announcements (33%)
P.A. Transfer Announcements (33%)
P.A. Destination Announcements (33%)

3.03
3.00
3.16

v'Goal not met

v Announcement ratings of either Excellent or Good:

v'Internal compliance checks show substantially better results

Arrivals: 76.8%
Transfers: 76.0%
Destinations: 82.4%

25






Howarewedoing? [ Train Exterior Appearance

4
Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent
3.00 = Goal
3 =Good
2 = Only Fair
1="Poor 3
I Results
286 2.83 2,82 2179 2|78
— Goal
2
1
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1

v'Goal not met
v'69.7% of those surveyed ranked this category as either

Excellent or Good

26





HHowarewedeing? Il Train Interior Cleanliness

4
Ratings
guide:
4 = Excellent
3= Good
3.00 = Goal
2 =Only Fair e e ——
1= Poor C—Results

2,95 2.89 2,86 2|85 2(85
— Goal
2
1
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1

Composite rating of:
Train interior cleanliness (60%) 2.57
Train interior kept free of graffiti (40%) 3.27

v’ Goal not met
v'Train Interior ratings of either Excellent or Good:

Train Interior Cleanliness: 56.1%; Graffiti-free: 89.5%
v"Recent progress in filling vacancies should help

27





: How are we doing? | /|
4
Ratings guide:
4 = Excellent
3.12 = Goal
3 =Good
2 = Only Fair
1 = Poor 3 1
310 311
2 -
1
FY2017 Qtr FY2017 Qtr
1 2

Train Temperature

A3

11

06

FY2017 Qtr
3

FY2017 Qtr
4

Comfortable Temperature Onboard Train

v"Goal not met

v'79.9 % of those surveyed rated this category as either
Excellent or Good

v"On-going A/B HVAC upgrade 50% complete

v'C car HVAC mod has helped

v"Record high temperatures

— Results

= Goal

FY2018 Qtr
1






: How are we doing?

14

@i Customer Complaints

Complaints Per 100,000 Customers

12

10

Per 100,000 Customers

T AT

1 Results

e oal

O N M OO O
1 1 1

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprii May June July Aug Sept

v’ Total complaints lodged this period decreased 380 (13.7%) from last quarter, up
4 (.01%) when compared with the first quarter FY17.

v'Complaint numbers increased in the categories M&E, Trains, Station
Cleanliness, and Quality of Life. Complaint decreases are seen in AFC,

Announcements, Bike Program, Parking, Personnel, Police Services, Policies,
Service, Train Cleanliness, and Passenger Information.

v Compliments” are down at 96 from 127 last quarter (one year ago these

numbered 116).

29






: How are we doing? :[

Station Incidents/Million Patrons

=
o

0

Patron Safety:
Station Incidents per Million Patrons

C—1 Results

e Benchmark

- N w EY a1 (0] ~ [00] ©
1 1

FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2

v Goal met

FY2017 Qtr 3

30

FY2017 Qtr 4

FY2018 Qtr 1





: How are we doing? | /|

Vehicle Incidents/Million Patrons

Patron Safety
Vehicle Incidents per Million Patrons

4
3
C— Results
2
e Benchmark
1
0
FY2017 Qtr1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr4 FY2018 Qtr1
v' Goal met

31





Hovarewedoing? [0 Emyp|oyee Safety:
Lost Time Injuries/llInesses
per OSHA Incidence Rate

Lost Time Injuries/lliness per OSHA rate
P P
N 0 N
P )
[

v Goal met

32





: How are we doing? | /| Employee Safety

OSHA-Recordable Injuries/llIinesses
per OSHA Incidence Rate

]

[

—_

I

(9p]

O

~

[72)

(<3}

[72} —
[72]

()

£

= —
[72]

L

=

>

=

k=

i)

O

[35}

o

—

o :
8 Y Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 Y Q
nd

I

(7p]

@)

v Goal met

33





Howarewe doing? [1 - Operating Safety:
Unscheduled Door Openings per Million Car Miles

1.000

0.900

0.800

0.700

0.600

0.500
= Benchmark

0.400

0.300

0.200

0.100

0.000 t
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 OQtr 1

Unscheduled Door Openings/Million Car Miles

v' Goal met

34





:Howarewe doing? [1]  OQperating Safety:
Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

15

1.0

0.5

Rule Violations per Million Car Miles

0.0

[ Results

e Benchmark

— T |

v Goal met

35

FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1






: How are we doing? [/ BART Police Presence

Starting FY17 Q2, the way BART Police Presence is measured was

changed. The new questions are:
* Did you see BART Police on the Train? (Yes, No, Don’t Know)
* Did you see BART Police Outside the Station? (Yes, No, Don’t Know)
* Did you see BART Police in the Station? (Yes, No, Don’t Know)

Results are reported for all revenue hours and for after 7:00 PM.
Goals will be set after approximately a year of using the new measures.

FY 17 Q2 FY17 Q3 FY 17 Q4 FY18 Q1
Avg. Avg. Avg. Avg.
BART Police Presence 10.9% 9.6% 10.4% 10.8%
Rider saw Police on train 5.6% 5.6% 4.7% 5.4%
Rider saw Police outside the station 16.3% 15.6% 13.8% 13.7%
Rider saw Police in the station 11.1% 9.6% 9.7% 10.6%
Rider saw Police on train after 7:00PM 4.8% 3.8% 4.9% 5.1%
Rider saw Police outside the station aft 7:00PM 16.0% 13.5% 16.6% 16.4%
Rider Saw Police in the station after 7:00PM 11.4% 9.7% 12.9% 13.8%

36






: How are we doing?

Crimes per Million Trips

250

@ Quality of Life*

200
150
O Results
100 I
50 -
0 .
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1

v Quality of Life incidents are down from the last quarter and up
from the corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

*Quality of Life Violations include: Disturbing the Peace, Vagrancy, Public Urination,
Fare Evasion, Loud Music/Radios, Smoking, Eating/Drinking and Expectoration

37






:Howare we doing? [1] Crimes Agalnst Persons

(Homicide, Rape, Robbery, and Aggravated Assault)

4
wn
(@8 e e
I
c
(@) C— Results
" — 2
2 = Goal
S
<b)
o
w0 1
b
=

(o]

FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 OQtr 1

v Goal not met

v Crimes against persons are down from the last quarter and up from the
corresponding quarter of the prior fiscal year.

38





mowarewedoing? [ AULO Burglary

Crimes per 1000 Parking Spaces

12

10

T Results

6 - = Goal

FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3 FY2017 Qtr 4 FY2018 Qtr 1

v Goal met

v The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are up from last
quarter and up the corresponding quarter from the prior fiscal year.

39





: How are we doing? :[ AUtO Theft

12
(%]
(b}
(&)
g o
)
g) C—Results
E 8
S
©
(a
8 6 = Goal
o
i
3

a
o
(%]
(<3}
E 2 ]
|
@)
o T T t
FY2017 OQtr 1 FY2017 Otr 2 FY2017 Otr 3 FY2017 Otr 4 FY2018 OQtr 1

v" The number of incidents per thousand parking spaces are down from last
quarter and down the corresponding quarter from the prior fiscal year.

40





: How are we doing?

Response Time (in Minutes)

@ Average Emergency Response Time

10

(o]

CJResults

(o)
I

IS
1

N
I

= Goal

0
FY2017 Qtr 1 FY2017 Qtr 2 FY2017 Qtr 3

FY2017 Qtr 4

FY2018 Qtr 1

v The average Emergency Response Time goal was not met for the quarter.

41





: How are we doing? :[ Blke Theft

250

200

C—I Results

150

100 -
— Goal

Total Quarterly Bike Thefts

50

(@)
FY 2017 FY 2017 FY 2017 FY 2017 FY 2018
Qtr Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr 1

v Goal met
v' 125 bike thefts for current quarter, down 4 from last quarter.

42






LAKE MERRITT BART STATION

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design
BART Board of Directors

€ @ Lake Merrm Stn.
=L T «é#JLJ
- Chmatown

=3 '*:‘uir

E=s

December 7, 2017





TRANSIT OPERATIONS FACILITY&
PLAZA REDESIGN TIMELINE

< 2017 >< 2018 >< 2019-2021 — >

June 22: *B o Acti
Approved AdOPtCEQA Review oard Actions
Siting Analysis Actlon & Approve Project
Environmental Review Federal

(CEQA) Approvals

(NEPA)
Procure,

Transit Operations Facility &

Bid, Award
Lake Merritt Plaza Design

Award | Contract

Return to Board with full funding plan

Construction &
Systems
Integration

Ongoing Community & City Engagement*

* Qutreach completed to date: stakeholder meetings, 3 community working group meetings, community open house

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design






PRESENTATION OVERVIEW

 Environmental Review
* Project Update
 Next steps

« Motion

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design





PROJECT OVERVIEW

« Construct facility
to modernize
BART operations
and support
system expansion

—— e e e e e e e e

* Redesign the
Plaza to enhance
transportation
connectivity, & e
accessibility, and | = CEEECESEL e
better serve the | smomer 35,
community ’ '

~ MADISON STREET

-
S A ON S

L gy
Proposed Project is located on western portion of the plaza (former
location of Administration building that was demolished in 2010)

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design 4






ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

« California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

« ldentify significant/potentially significant impacts
« Recommend mitigation measures to avoid significant effects
« Documentation/Public Input

* |nitial Study considers 18 topics; 6 include in-depth analysis:
» Aesthetics

 Air Quality

 Biological Resources

* Hazards & Hazardous Materials
* Noise

» Transportation/Traffic

« 4 topics may result in significant impacts

» Mitigation measures have been identified that reduce impacts to less-than-
significant

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design






ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS &

MITIGATION MEASURES
 Air Quality

» Apply “Best Management Practice” air quality construction control measures to
reduce dust/construction equipment emissions

* Biological Resources:
« Avoid tree or shrub removal or pruning during the bird nesting period

» Perform survey if construction occurs during nesting period
* Replace removed trees

« Hazardous Materials:
» Apply safety measures if contaminated soils encountered during construction

* Noise:
» Apply construction noise and vibration control measures and best
management practices
» Require emergency backup generator design to achieve a performance
standard of 65 dBA at the exterior of the nearest sensitive receptor

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design





ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC REVIEW

Released Sept 22 for 30 day public review period

Notices posted at site, station, and at public facilities in
neighborhood

Stakeholders notified by email

Document and information posted at
www.bart.gov/lakemerritt

Public comment meeting held Oct 11 at the MetroCenter
* Interpretation & translation provided

 All public comments are addressed in Final IS/MND

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design



http://www.bart.gov/lakemerritt



PRECEDENTS & INSPIRATION

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design 8





PROJECT PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

 To Date:
« Stakeholder meetings
» LEP Advisory Committee
 Title VI/EJ Advisory Committee
* Three Community Working Group Meetings
« Community Open House

« Ongoing community, stakeholder, and City engagement

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design





ILLUSTRATIVE CONCEPT A

MADISON

SQUARE
_PARK

MADISON STREET

OAK STREET

CAFE OR
RETAIL

(S.

8TH STREET

n

scale 1'=20"-0"
0 10 20 40

enhanced streetscape
improvements include
widened sidewalks, special
pavers, and new street

trees

special crosswalk
treatment at all
intersections

activated streetscape with

benches on both sides of
Madison St.

bike station

bike share parking

trees in raised planters
back up generator

open plaza space 21,000
sq. ft.

shade structure

movable seating

kiosk / cafe

low planting areas with
seatwalls

special paving throughout
plaza with emphasis on
BART line running below
plaza level

enclosed sunken

courtyard; glass paving
allows light below

game tables w/ possible
shade element

bus bench

modified head house entry
and landing to be studied






ILLUSTRATIVE CONCEPT

MADISON - ﬁ »

SQUARE

MADISON STREET

COMMUNITY
SPACE

CAFE OR
RETAIL

8TH STREET

BART
PARKING/
FUTURE

e ENVISIONED

| ose

OAK STREET
D
1
;

n

scale 1'=20-0"
|
0 10 20

4C

enhanced streetscape
improvements include
widened sidewalks, special
pavers, and new street

trees

special crosswalk
treatment at all
intersections

activated streetscape with

benches on both sides of
Madison St.

bike station

bike share parking

trees in raised planters
back up generator

open plaza space 21,000
sq. ft.

shade structure

movable seating

kiosk / cafe

low planting areas with
seatwalls

special paving throughout
plaza with emphasis on
BART line running below
plaza level

partially enclosed sunken

courtyard; glass paving
allows light below

game tables w/ possible
shade element

bus bench

modified head house entry
and landing to be studied
stairs to concourse






H ; LV L ‘

| Oak St near and 9t






TRANSIT OPERATIONS FACILITY&
PLAZA REDESIGN TIMELINE

< 2017 >< 2018 >< 2019-2021 — >

June 22: *B o Acti
Approved AdOPtCEQA Review oard Actions
Siting Analysis Actlon & Approve Project
Environmental Review Federal

(CEQA) Approvals

(NEPA)
Procure,

Transit Operations Facility &

Bid, Award
Lake Merritt Plaza Design

Award | Contract

Return to Board with full funding plan

Construction &
Systems
Integration

Ongoing Community & City Engagement*

* Qutreach completed to date: stakeholder meetings, 3 community working group meetings, community open house

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design






MOTION

Having reviewed and considered the information contained in the Initial
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring &
Reporting Plan, the BART Board of Directors hereby:

« Finds that on the basis of the whole record before the Board, there is no

substantial evidence that the proposed BART Transit Operations Facility
and Lake Merritt Plaza Project will have a significant effect on the
environment (the potential significant impacts identified can all be mitigated
to less-than-significant levels following implementation of project-specific
mitigation measures identified in the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative
Declaration); and

» Finds that the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the
Board’s independent judgment and analysis; and

» Adopts the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

» Adopts the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan; and

« Approves the BART Transit Operations Facility and Lake Merritt Plaza
Project as proposed.

Transit Operations Facility & Plaza Design






Wholesale Renewable Energy
Power Purchase Agreements

BART Board of Directors
December 7, 2017






District Energy Facts

 District uses about 400,000 MWh every year, slightly more than
the City of Alameda, making it one of the largest users in
Northern CA.

e District electricity costs are about $41 million per year.
* Electricity is the 2" |argest cost after labor.

e Currently about 4% of the District’s electricity portfolio comes
from renewable energy. With the execution of these PPAs, about
90% of the portfolio will come from renewable energy in 2021
and about 75% beginning in 2025, as the District’s load increases.





Timeline of Renewable Energy

Procurement
Aug April May June — Aug — Dec 2018 - Jan
2015 2017 2017 Aug Nov 2017 2020 2021
2017 2017
e .
CA Senate\ a Staff b Contract Project
Bill 502 launches negotiations Construction
authorizes e ~ RFP for with two
BART to BART Board Wholesale \ developers ) Renewable
procure approves ReneV\{a!:)Ie energy
renewable Sustainability N Electricity Review Board delivery
N energy ) Policy and and approval begins
Wholesale shortlisting required
Electricity of 50+ for 3
Portfolio renewable signing
Plan rojects contracts
\_ J PR )






b Wholesale Electricity Portfolio Policy:

Performance Measures

1. Maintain a long-term cost advantage compared to rates that
BART would otherwise pay as a bundled utility customer; and

2. Maintain per unit energy costs within BART’s Short Range
Transit Plan (SRTP) projections; and

3. Achieve a portfolio that:

* Has an average emission factor no greater than 100 lbs-
CO2e/MWh during the period 2017 through 2024 (inclusive).

e Is from at least 50% Eligible Renewable sources and from at
least 90% low and zero carbon sources by 2025.

e |s 100% from zero carbon sources by 2035.

e Is 100% from Eligible Renewable sources by 2045.





ool Renewable RFP Objectives

e Align procurement with Board Policy.

e Purchase long-term (10-30 year) renewable supply at stable,
competitive prices.

e Ensure developers are experienced and creditworthy, and
contracts mitigate BART’s exposure to market, development and
production risks.

e Ensure projects are realistic and far along in preconstruction
planning.

e Ensure BART’s risks during delivery terms are minimized.





ool Renewable Energy Contract Details

Developer ‘ NextEra Energy Recurrent Energy
Project Name Sky River Gaskell West 2
Technology Wind Energy Solar Energy

Location (ot ofBakerste) Sauthenstof saerstel)
Term 1/1/2021-12/31/2040 1/1/2021-12/31/2040
Project Size 61.7 MW 45 MW

Expected Output 257,000 MWh/Year 142,000 MWh/Year






W™ BART Energy Supply with
tn gy 2upply

Renewable Contracts
~8.0¢/kWh

~7.0 ¢/kWh

700

~ /
600 ~5.8¢ kWh 6.3¢{kWh

300

S

GWh

200

100

B rederallargeHydro [[] Low-Carbon Imports (2017 - 2020)

B  Existing Renewable Open Position
[  Unspecified BART Demand 7

[ |
[ ]  New Renewable Contracts






h 2018 State and Federal
Advocacy Program

BART Board of Directors
December 7, 2017






‘e ] Proposed STATE Advocacy Program

. Protect state transportation funding, including new SB 1 revenue, from
being eliminated, repealed, or diverted

. Advocate for additional, more flexible funding for public transit through the
Cap and Trade Program

. Monitor the implementation of new housing legislation and funding
programs for affordable housing; Pursue opportunities to advance BART’s
transit-oriented development (TOD) goals

. Support efforts to enhance local funding for transit and promote
infrastructure improvements near transit

. Continue to engage in the State’s Greenhouse Gas emission reduction
efforts

. Monitor legislation and regulations related to shared mobility and the
testing/deployment of autonomous vehicles

7. Monitor and respond to legislation that directly impacts BART

8. Pursue and pass necessary BART-sponsored legislation





‘oo ] Proposed FEDERAL Advocacy Program

Advocate for Congress to appropriate funding consistent with the
amounts authorized in the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST)
Act

Secure a $50 million FY19 budget appropriation and Full Funding Grant
Agreement for the Transbay Corridor Core Capacity Project

Engage in any advocacy efforts to advance a federal Infrastructure
Initiative with a specific focus on new funding mechanisms for transit

Advocate for continued funding to support public transit security
programs

Support legislative efforts to ensure the solvency of the Highway Trust
Fund

Continue to promote federal funding for apprenticeship and workforce
development programs





		������������2018 State and Federal �Advocacy Program 

		Proposed STATE Advocacy Program

		Proposed FEDERAL Advocacy Program





